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No

Document Date

SCHEDULE] SRSt AV
Documents made public, filed or distributed since Julv 1, 2005

Document Name

June 11, 2006

Disclosure Document

2. August 11,2006 | Admission to Official List

3. August 11,2006 | Pre-Quotation Disclosure

4. August 14,2006 | Appendix 1 A: ASX Listing application and agreement

> August 14,2006 | Constitution

6. August 16,2006 | Appointment of New Company Secretary

7. August 16,2006 | Initial Director's Interest Nouice x4

8 August 21,2006 | Ironbark Acquires Further Zinc/Copper Projects

2. August 21,2006 | MRO: Farm in Agreement with [ronbark Gold Limited - Captains
10. August 29, 2006 | Change of Director's Interest Notice

t. September 4, 2006 | Change of Director's Interest Notice

12. September 21, 2006 | Acquires Copper/Tungsten Proj & Expands Belara Base Metals
131 October 19,2006 | Change of Registered office address

141 October 27,2006 | First Quarter Activities & Cashflow Reports

1. December 4, 2006 | Ironbark & Graynic divest tungsten & tin projects

16. December 4, 2006 | GYN: Ironbark & Graynic divest tungsten & tin projects

7. December 5, 2006 | Broker Field Presentation

18, December 22, 2006 | Wolf priority offer record date - IBG and GYN

15. January 11, 2007 Commences drilling at Captains Flat - Jerangle Prospect

20. January 11,2007 | MRO ann: Drilling to commence at Jerangle, NSW

21.

January 17, 2007

Drilling Results - Belara Project




No | Document Date Document Name

22. January 31, 2007 | Second Quarter Activities Report

23. January 31,2007 | Second Quarter Cashflow Report

24. February 14,2007 | WLF: Closes offer early and heavily oversubscribed
25| March1,2007 | Trading Halt

26. March 1, 2007 Trading Halt Request

27. | March2,2007 | Major Zinc Project Acquisition

28. March 2, 2007 Media Release Ironbark Acquires Major Zinc Project
29. March 2, 2007 Company Presentation

30. March 7, 2007 Change of Director's Interest Notice x2

31 March 8, 2007 Change of Director's Interest Notice

32| March 14,2007 | Half Year Accounts

33. March 16, 2007 Becoming a substantial holder for WLF

34. March 28, 2007 Citronen Purchase Option Exercised & Director Appointment
3. April 10, 2007 Trading Halt

36. April 12, 2007 Fund Raising & Strategic Partnership Finalised

37. April 18, 2007 Belara Initial Resource Estimate

38. April 20, 2007 Notice of General Meeting

39. April 23, 2007 Short Form Prospectus

40- 1 April 26,2007 | Appendix 3B

4l. April 30, 2007 Third Quarter Activities Report

42. April 30, 2007 Third Quarter Cashflow Report

43. May 3, 2007 Change of Director's Interest Notice

44. May 10, 2007 Acquires further Zinc Projects




No

Document Date

Document Name

45. May 11, 2007 Further Information of new Acquisitions
46. May 17, 2007 Release from Escrow

47. May 21, 2007 Citronen Project Update & Key Appointments
48. May 21, 2007 Results of Meeting

49. May 24, 2007 Change of Director's Interest Notice

50| May 30,2007 | Placement Finatised

L1 May 31,2007 | Appendix 3B

52. June 6, 2007 Becoming a substantial holder

33 June 18, 2007 Issue of Directors options

o4, June 18, 2007 Appendix 3B

55.

June 28, 2007

ASX Circular: Share Split




ASX

AUSTRAIAM STUCK FXCHANGE

MARKET RELEASE

11 August 2006

Ironbark Gold Limited

ADMISSION TO OFFICIAL LIST

Ironbark Gold Limited was admitted to the Official List of Australian
Stock Exchange Limited on Friday, 11 August 2006.

Official Quotation of the following securities will commence at 2.00 pm
E.S.T.(12.00 pm W.S.T.) on Wednesday, 16 August 2006.

17,000,000 Ordinary shares fully paid

Security Code: IBG

-

SIy T,
NS0

i
Nicholas Ong
Senior Adviser, Issuers {Perth)

sipentls companiesiper-unfistediironbark gt 2006.U8. 1 Inn-nealas Page 1ef t




ASX Restrictad Securities:

3,500,000 ordinary shares fully paid classified by ASX as restricted securities and to be held in escrow for a period of 24
months from commencement of official quotation.

2 000,000 ordinary shares fully paid issued on 31 May 2006 classified by ASX as restricted securities and ta be held in
escrow for a period of 12 months from the date of issus.

2 000,000 options exercisable at $0.30 exercisable an or before 10 August 2011 classified by ASX as restricted secunities
and to be held in escrow for a period of 24 months from commencement of official quotation.

r'.bQZDfJG.EB.l1c:aui)c-nn.doc _J ( Page 2 ef 2 ]
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AUSTIALLAN §7000 EXCHANGE

MARKET RELEASE

11 August 2006

Iroubark Gold Limited

PRE-QUOTATION DISCLOSURE

lronbark Gold Limited was admitted to the Official List of Austrahan

Srock Exchange Limited on Friday, 1T August 2006.

Official Quoration of the following sceurities will commence at 2.00 pm

E.ST. (12,00 pm W.5T.) on Wednesday, 16 August 2006,

The following information is released as pre-quotation disclosure.

1. Distribution schedule - Appendix 1A, paragraph 48.

2. Top 20 holders.

3 Terms and conditions of executive options.

4. Number and escrow period of restricted secunnes.

5 Ironbark Gold’s intentions in relation to having legal title to
Lxploration Licences 6506, 6575 and 6376 rransferred 1o it by the
registered holders of those renements.

Security Code: IBG

. N, T
Fal /T] ﬂ *
s AR

!
Nicholas Ong
Senior Adviser, Issuers (Perth)

woperth companiesiper-unlivedinombark galdthy 006,08 tpadms-no.doe
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TERMS OF EXECUTIVE OPTIONS

Following ars the isrms of ithe Cplions thet have beon issuad to MrA Byass and Mr J
Downes pursuant to their Execulive Employment Agreements,

Terms of Execulive Options

(al

o)

(h)

each Option entitles the holder, whan exercised, to one Share;

subject ‘o {¢) below the Oplions are exarcisable on or before the date
which is 5 yeors aiter ihe date of issuc of the Oplions {Expiry Date):

rach Qplion wil lapae:

(i) mmediclely afier the holder ceases to be an emploves of
he Company if he resigns within two years from the cdnfe of
issue of the Oplions: or

(i) al the expiralion of 80 days aftar ihe holder ceases 1o be
ar employce of the Company by reuson of death,
resignation or dismissal for redundancy ol Ihe holder.

the: exercise price is 30 cents each;

an Opsion does no! confer Ihe right to o changs in cxocse price of ©
change in the number of underlying secunties over which the Gplion can
be exercised:

all Shares issued upon exercise of the Options will rank pad posse ol
respecls with the Company's then issued Shares. The Compaony will apply
for oficiat quotation by ASX of all Shares issued upon excrcise of the
Cplions:

there s no curent intention of the Cormpany 1o apply for quatation of the
Ciions on ASX;

thore are no paricipating nghts or eniitlioments inharent in the Options and
oplionhalders will net ce eonlited 1o paricipale in new ssues of capite
ctiored 1o Sharetolders cuiing the curercy ¢t the Qpliors, Bowever, thiz
Company wl ensure that for the purpases of e pronaosed isve notice of
the: new issue will be given to optionholders al least seven {7] business days
before the record dale. This will give oplienhalders the opporiunity o
exercise their Oplions prior to lhe date for deiemining eniiflernents 1o
participale in any suchissue; and

in the even! ol any racunstruction [including consoldalion, sub-division,
recduction or return) of theissued capita! of the Cornpany prior o 1he Expiry
Cate, all righls of the oplionholders will be vored in occerdance wilh ihe
ASX Listing Rulas.




IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ACN 118 751 027
(‘Company’)

STATEMENT QF SECURITIES SUBJECT TO ESCROW

he Compaory conlirms that the tellowing Company secudiiies are subjec! to escrow:

. 3,500,000 Ordinary Shares for the period of 24 monihs liom the dale of officicl
guolation of the Company's Ordinary Shares on ASX.

. 2,000,000 Execulive Oplions [exercisable at 30 cents each expiing S yeors
from the daie of issue) for the pericd of 24 menths from the date of official
quotation of the Company's Orclinary Shaies on ASK..

. 2.00G,000 Crdinary Shares (o the period of 12 months irom 31 mMay 2006.




IS GRS LN L PR AR S ekt

tranbark Gold Limitod
Level 2, 16 Al'ana Slreot,
Wosl o, WA, G0GE,
Postai PO Box 935,
Weat Pecth, 6872

T +B1 88401 5E6C0

E 48 36210 W72

E adonngbrontarkools coniu
W oL ironbarkonid com,au

16 August 2006

Ausiraiian Slock Exchange Limited
Compary Announcemenis Plattorm

By E-locgement

Decr Sirs

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED — LEGAL TITLE TO EXPLORATION LICENCES

wWe refer to 1he lelter dafed 7 August 20056 from the Ausiroiian Stock Exchange Lirmited
[ASX} to ronbark Gold Limited (Company}. in which ASX granted concitiona! approval
tor the camission of the Company fo ihe Official List of ASX. subject to comphunce
with certain conditions.

In response 10 paragraph 2.2.5 of ASX's letter, the Compony hareby confims thot i
infe~ds to hove lega! lile to Expleiciior licences 6506, 6575 ard 6577 ransfaied G
ihe Company by the regisicred hoders, within bwo monihs of the date on whch
official gquotation of the Company's crdinary shares Commences. The Comoany
presently holds o 100% beneficial interesl in each Expioration Licence pursuant 1o
Declarations of Trust referred ‘o in the Company's prospacius cotecd 30 June 2Deé.

The Compaeny also advises thal it has received confirmation from each of the
regisiered holders of thair inienfion 1o compleie ihe transfar documentationr in
accordance wiin the Company's cbovementioned intertion,

Yours faithfully / / y \}
/A
T / 0.

- oAt ~, \'_'\--44 ".“ / . .
s /%.""_/{.(r’ - \"“,,;/J \ (;,r:l, {,/71/ [V
Jonathan Downes / s

Managing Director
Ironbark Goid Limited

S TRONBARK COLD LIITED
CUABN BB ISVOIL.




ASX Listing application and agreement

Rufes it Cond 3. 1.7

s Appendix 1A

ASX Listing application and agreement

This farm is for use by an cntity seeking admission 1o the *official list as an ASX Listing (for classification as an

ASY Debt Listing use Appendix 1B, and for classification as an ASX Foreign Exempt Listing use Appendix 1O},
The form is in 3 paris:

! Application for admission to the *aofficial tisi;

2 Information 1o be completed. and

3 Agreement (o be completed.

Information and documents {including this appendix} given to ASX in support of an application become ASX's
property and may be made public. This may be prior 1o admission of the entity and "quotation af its Yrecuritios.
Publication does not mean that the entity will be udmitted or that 1s * securities will be guored,

Introduced 14296, Oripin. Appendix 1. Amended 27/97, 177798, 1/9/99, 13/3/2000, 17772000, 30492001, 117372002, 14172003, 24/10/2005

Part 1 - Application for admission to the official list

Name of entity ACN

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED 118 751 027

We (the entity) apply for admission to the ‘official tist of Australian Stock Exchange
Limited (ASX) and for *quotation of *securities. X
Part 2 - Information to be completed .

About the entity

You must complete the refovant sections (aitach sheels i there is not enough space).

All entities

1 Relered 30:972001 |
2 *Main class of *securitics Number *Class
22,500,000 Fully paid ordinary shares
3 Additional *classes of [ Number  to be | *Class
*securities {except TCDIs) quoted _‘
{

™ See chapter 19 for defined werms.

2471072005 Appendix [A Page 1




ASX Listing application and agreement

4 Telephone  number,  postal
address for all correspondence,
general fax number, fax number
for ‘company announcements
nifice 1o confirm release of
information to the market, and
¢-mail  address  for  contact
purposus,

3 Address of principal *security
registrics for each ‘class of
*security (including *CDl1s)

i Annual balance date

Companies only
(Cther entities go 1o 19)

7 Name and title of chief
exeeutive officer/managing
director

8  Name and title of chairperson of
directors

Number not to be | "Class

quoted

2,000,000 Unlisted Options (excrcisable at 30
cemts on or before the date which is 5
years from the date of issue). The
Options are to be issued upon the
Company being reasonably satisfied
that it can satlisfy ASX’s pre-quotation
conditions.

Address: Level 2

Telephone:
Facsimile:
Email:

16 Altona Strecet

West Perth WA 0005

{08) 9481 5600

(08) 9482 0505
abyass{@ironbarkgold.com.au

Security Transter Registrars Py Ltd
Suite |, Alexandrea House

770 Canning Highway

Applecross WA 6153

30 June

Jonathan Downes, Managing Dircctor

Peter Bennetio, Non-Executive Chairman

¥ See chapter 19 fer defined terms.

Appendix 1A Page 2

11732002




ASX Listing application and agreement

12

16

18

Names of all directors

Duration of appomtment  of
directors  (if not subject to
retirement by rotation) and
details of any entitlement to
participate in profits

Name and title of company
secretary

Place of incorporation

Date of incorporation

Legisiation under which
incorporated

Address of registered office in
Australia

Month in which annual meeting
is usually held

Months in which dividends are
usually paid (or are intended 1o
be paid)

Il the eniity is a foreign
company which has a
certificated  subregister  for
qguoted *securitics, the location
of Australian *security registers

Peter Bennetto, Non-Executive Chairman
Jonathan Downes — Managing Director
Adrian Byass — Technical Director

Greg Campbell -~ Non-Executive Direclor

NIA.

Adrian Byass

Western Australia

10 March 2006

Corporations Act 2001

Level 2, 16 Altona Strect
West Perth WA 6005

November

N/A

N/A

* See chapter 19 for defined terms,

30/9/2001%

Appendix JA Page 3




ASX Listing application and agreement

I the entity is a foreign
company, the name and address
of the entity's Australian agent
for service of process

N/A

fCompanies now go (o 31)

All entities except companies

19

20

21

22

23

23A

24

25

Name and title of chief
executive officer/managing
director of the responsible
entity

Name and title of chairperson
of directors  of responsible
cntity

Names of all directors of the
responsible entity

Duration of appointment of
directors of responsible entity
(if not subject to reiirement by
rotation) and details of any
entitlement 1o participate in
profits

Name and title of company
secretary of responsible entity

Trusts only - the names of the
members of the compliance
committee (il any)

Place of registration of the
entity

Date of registration of the
entity

NIA

N/A

N/A

NiA

Nf&

MIA

NI

N/A

* See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 1A Page 4
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ASX Listing application and agreement

26 Legislation under which the | NA
entity is registered

27 Address  of  administration | NA
office in Australia of the entity

28 If an annual mecting is held, | NiA
month in which it is usually
held

29 Months in which distributions | NA
are usually pnid (or are
intended (o be paid)

30 If the entity is a foreign entity | N/A
which  has a certificated
subregister for quoted
*securitivs, the location of
Australian *security registers

30A I the entity is a foreign trust, | N/A
the name and address of the
entity’s  Australian agent for
service of process

About the entity
Al entities
Tick 10 indicate you are providing the information or

documents

31 E Evidence of compliance with 20 cent minimum
issue price or sale price, und spread requirements

32 [:‘ Prospectus, Product Disclosure Statement or
information  memorandwm  relevant o the
application (230 copies)

Where is the information or document
to be found? (cg, prospectus cross
reference)

Prospectus
(spread requirements to be confirmed)

Attached (Item 1)

PDF copy and 50 printed copies to be
provided

¥ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

30/9/2001

Appendix A Page 5




ASX Listing application and agreement

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

X X X

[ ]

X

X

X X

X

Cheque for fees

Type of subregisters the entity will operate

Fxample: CHESS and cestificated subregisters

Copies of any contracts referred to in the
prospectus,  Product  Disclosure  Statement or
information  memorandum  (ingluding any
underwriting agreement)

A certified copy of any resiriction agreement
entered into in relation to 'restricted securities

If there are ‘restricted securities, undertaking,
issued by any bark or “recognised trustee

{Companies only) - certificate of incorporation or
other evidence of status (including any change of
name)

(ANl entities except companies) - certificate of
registration or other evidence of status (including
change of name)

Copv of the entity’s constitution (eg, if a
company, the memorandum and articles of
association)

Completed  checklist  that  the  constitution
comgplics with the listing rules {copy of articles
checklist is available from any Compaunies
Department)

A bricf history of the entity or, if applicable, the
group

Copy of agreement with ASX that documents
may be given to ASX and authenticated
electronically.

Wherg is the information or document
to be found? (eg, prospectus cross
reference)

Attached to application

CHESS - Prospectus section 4.10

Attached (ltem 2)

To be provided

NIA

Attached (Item 1)

N/A

Antached (Item 4)

Email - Nicholas Ong, 16 May 2006
attached {ftem 5).

Prospeciug - section 2, 5.1,

Attached (ltemn 6)

* See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 1A Page 6
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ASX Listing applicatien and agreement

About the securities to be quoted

All entities

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

1 OX OKXK X

]

X
]

Confirmation that the ‘sccurities to be quoted
are eligible 10 be quoted under the listing rules

Voting rights of “securities to be quoted

A specimen certificate/holding  statement for
each *class of 'securities to be quoted and a
specimen holding staterment for *CDls

Terms of the *securities to be quoted

A statement setting out the names of the 20
largest holders in each “class of “securities to be
quoted, and the number und percentage of cach
*class of securities held by those hulders

A distribution schedule of each "class of Tequity
Juily

securitics to be queted, settingrout the number of

holders in the catepories -

1-1.,000
1,00t - 5,000
5,001 - 10,000

10,001 - 100,000
100,001 and over

The number of holders of a parcel of *securities
with a value of more than $2,000, based on the
issue/sale price

Terms of any “debt securitics and 'convertible
debt securitics

Trust deed for any ‘'debt scourities  and

“convertibie debt securities

Deleted 2471072005,

Where 15 the information or document
to be found? (ep, prospectus cross
reference)

Yes ~ Ordinary fully paid shares (in
accordance with ASX Listing Rule 6.2)

Prospectus ~ section 12.1(b)

To be provided from Security Transfer
Registrars

Prospecius — section 12,1

T be provided

To be provided

To be provided

N/A

NAA

+ See chapler 19 for defined terms,

30/9/2001
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ASX Listing application and agreement

All entities with classified assets
(Other entities go to 62)

Al 'mining exploration entities and, f ASX asks, eny other entity that has acquired, or gnered inta an

agreemeni to acquire a classified assel. must give ASX the following information.

33

54

55

56

58

60

51

X

X

X

X

The name of the vendor and details of any
relationship of the vendor with us

If the verdor was not the beneficial owner of the
‘classified asset at the date of the acquisition or
agreement, the name ol the beneficiat owner(s)
and details of the relationship of the beneficial
owner(s) to us

The date that the vendor acquired the “classified
asset

The method by which the vendor ‘acquired the
‘classified asset, including whether by agreement,
exercise of option or otherwise

The consideration passing directly or indirectly
from the vendor (when the vendor “acquired the
asset), and whether the consideration has been
provided in full

Full details of the *classified asset, including any
title particulars

The work done by or on behalf of the vender in
developing the *classified asset. In the case of a
*mining lenement, this includes prospecting in
relation to the tenement, 1f money has been spent
by the vendor, state the amount (verification of
which may be required by ASX).

The date that the entity "acquired the “classified
asset from the vendor, the consideration passing
directly or indirectly to the vendor, and whether
that consideration has been provided in full.

A breakdown of the consideration, showing how
it was calculated, and whether any experts’
reports were commissioned or considered (and of
s, with copies attached).

Where is the information or document
to be feund?  (eg, prospectus cross
reference)

Prospectus section 9. Solicitor's Report
on Tenements Part | of Report.

Details attached {ltem 7)

Details attached (Item 7)

Details attached (ltem 7)

Details attached (ltem 7)

Prospectus - section 9 Solicitor's

Report on Tenements

N/A —recently granted lenements

Details attached (liem 7)

N/A

-

See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 1A Page 8
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ASX Listing application and agreement

About the entity’s capital structure

All entities

62 Deleted 179599,

63 Eﬂ A copy of the register of members, if ASX asks

64 l:l A copy of any court orders in relation 10 a
reorganisation of the entity's capital in the last
five years

65 D The terms of any “emplayee incentive scheme

66 D The terms of any *dividend or distribution plan

67 & The terms of any *sccuritics that will not be
quoted

63 Deleted 177798,

69 @ The entity's issued capital (interests), showing

separately  each “class of “security (except
“CDIs), the amount paid up on each “class, the
issue price, the dividend (in the case of a trust,
distribution) and voting rights attaching to each
*class and the conversion terms (if applicable)

70 D The number of the entity's debentures, except to
bankers, showing  the amount  outstanding,
nominal value and issuc price, rate of interest,

dates of payment of interest, date and terms of

redemption of cach “class and conversion terms
(if applicable)

Naote, This applics whether the sequriivs zre quoled oz not,

Where is the information or document
to be found? (ep, prospectus cross
reference)

To be provided if ASX asks

N/A

NiA

N/A

Prospectus — section 11.2, Executive
Employment  Agreements  (attached
Item 2) and propesed Option Terms
(attached ltem §)

Prospectus — section 3.5

NIA

* See chapter 19 for defined werms.

30/9/2001

Appendic LA Page 9




ASX Listing application and agreement

71 The number of the entity’s unsccured notes,
showing the ameunt vutstanding, nominal value
and issuc price, rate of interest, dates cof puyment
of interest, date and terms of redemptian of each
*class and conversion terms (if applicable)

Naote: This applies whether the sceritics are guoled or not,
72 The number of the entity’s options to *acquire

unissucd  'securities, showing the number
outstanding

X

Note: This applies whether the securities are quoted or not

73 @ Details of any rights granted to any “person. or 1o
any class of “persons, (o participate in an issue of
the entity's "securitics

Note: This applics whether the secuniies are quoted of nol

74 D If the ertity has any “child entities, o list of alt
*child cntitics stating in cach cose the name, the
naturc of its busiress and the entity's percentage
holding in it. Similar details should be provided
for every entity in which the entity holds (directly
or intirectly) 20% or more of the issued capital
(interests).

About the entity’s financial position
fEntities meeting the profic test go to 75. For the assets test go 1o 81A4.)

All entities meeting the profit test

D Evidence that the entity has been in the same
main business activity for the last 3 full financial
years

73

76 D Evidence that the entity is a going concern (or
successor) and its aggregated profit for the last 3
full financial vears

T6A D Evidence that  the entity’s  ‘profit  from
continuing operations in the past 12 months
exceeded $400,000

77 D Audited ‘accounts for the last 3 full financial
years and audit reports

78-79 Deleted 17497

Where is the information or document
to be found? (ep, prospectus cross
reference)

N/A

Prospecius —~ section 3.5, 11.2 (refer to
Itern 3 of Appendix 1A)

N/A

N/A

Where is the information or document
to be found? (eg, prospectus cross
reference)

NfA

HiA

WIA

NiA

* See chapter 19 for defined terms,

Appendix 1A Page 10
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ASX Listing application and agreement

Where is the information or document
te pe found? (eg, prospectus cross
reference)
80 D Half yearly Taccounts (if required) and audit | N/A
report or review

80A D Pro forma balance sheet and review NIA

808 D Statement from all dircctors or all directors of | N/A
the responsible entity confirming that the entity
is continuing to carn “profit from continuing
operations

All entities meeting the assets test
fonty complete one of 814, 818 or 81C and one of 82 or 83)

Intraduced 17796, Amended 177499,

Delered 17787
| 8)

1A D For cntities other than “investment entitics, | To be confirmed following capital raising
evidence of net tangible assets of at least $2 | {minimum raising §3 million)
million ¢r market capitalisation of at least $10
million

818 For “investment enfitics other than ‘pooled | N/A
development funds, evidence of net tangible

assets of at least $15 million

81C Evidence that the entity is a  ‘pooled | NA
development fund with net tangible assets of at

Jeast $2 million

82 Evidence that at least half of the entity’s total | Prospecius —~ section § (Investigating
tangible assets (afler raising any funds) is not | Accountants Report)
cash or in a form readily convertible to cash (if

there are no-commitments)

Evidence that there are commitments to spend at | Frospectus — section 3.4
lcast half of the entity's cash and assets in a
form readily convertible to cash (if half or more
of the entity’s total tangible asscts (after raising
any funds) is cash or in a form readily
convertible to cash}

X X X X

84 IE Statermnent that there is enough working capital | Prospecius - seetion 3.4
to carry out the emtity’s stated objectives (and
statement by independent expert, if required)

85 Deleied 1,999

86 Deleted 14797

* See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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ASX Listing application and agreement

87 s *Accounts for the last 3 full tinancial years and
audit report, review or statement that not audited
or not reviewed

87A g Half yearly *accounts (if required) and audit
report, review or statement that not audited or
not revicwed

878 Audited balance sheet (iff required) and audit
report
§7C g Pro forma balance sheet and review

Now go to 110}

88 Deleted /7497,
89-92C Deleted 119199,
a3 Deleted 1/7/97,
94-98C Deleted 119199,
99 Deleted 170G

100-105C Deleted 17999,

Where is the information or document to

be  found? {eg, prospectus  cross
reference)

N/A

N/A

NiA

Prospectus — sechion 8 (Investigating

Accountants Report)

' Sce chapter 19 for defined terms
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ASX Listing application and agreement

About the entity’s business plan and level of operations

All entities

Information  contained  in the  information

memorandum

106 N Details of the entity's existing and proposed activities,
< and level of operations. State the main business

107 N Details of any issues of the entity's 'securities (in all

*classes) in the last 5 years. Indicate issues for

consideration other than cash

Information memorandum requirements

All entities

108 D

[f the entity is a company, o stalement that all
the information that would be reguired under
section 710 of the Corporations Act if the
information memorandum were a prospectus
offering for subscription the same number of
“securities for which "quotation will be sought is
contained in the information memorandum. If
the entity is a trust, a statement that alt the
information that would be required under
section 1013C of the Corporations Act if the
information memorandum were a Product
Disclosure Statement offering for subscription
the same number of ~sccurities for which
‘quotation will be sought is contained in the
information memorandum

109 The signature of every director, and proposed
director, of the entity persenally or by a “person
authorised in writing by the director {in the case

of a trust, director of the responsible entity)

o

110 D The date the information memorandum is sipned

111(a) D

Full particulars of the nature and extent of any
interest now, or in the past 2 years, of every
director or propaosed director of the entity (in the
case of a trust, the responsible entity), in the
promotion of the entity, or in the property
acquired or proposed to be acquired by 1t

If the intercst was, or is, as o mmember or partner
in another entity, the nature and extent of the
interest of that other entity

1) D

Where is the information or document
o be found? (eg, prospecius cross
reference)

Prospecius — sections 2, 3.2, 5.1,
Mineral exploration.

1 the
Report,

Refer Appendix 1, Nete 5
Investigating  Accountant’s

Prospectus, Section 8

NIA

MIA

NIA

NIA

NIA

* See chapier 19 for defined terms.
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ASX Listing application and agreement

Where 1s the information or document
Information contained in the information memarandum to be found? (cp. prospectus cross
reference)

111{cy D If the interest was or is as a member or partner | NA
in another entity, a statement of &l amounts paid
or agreed (o be paid to him or her or the entity in
cash, “securities or otherwise by any "person to
induce him or her to become or to qualify him or
her as, a directer, or for services rendered by
him or her or by the enlity in connection with
the promotion or formation of the listed entity

112(a) D Full particulars of the nature and extent of any © N/A

interest of every expert in the promotion of the

o entity, or in the property acquired ar proposed 1o
be acquired by it

i12(b) D If the interest was or is as a member or pariner | NA
in another entity, the nature and extent of the
interest of that other entity

112(e) I:l I1f the interest was or is o8 @ member or partner in
another entity, a statement ol all amounts paid or
agreed 10 be paid to him or her or the entity in
cash, “securities or otherwise by any ‘person for
services rendered by him or her or by the entity in
connection with the promotion or formation of the
listed entity

A statement that ASX does not take any
responsibility for the contents of the information
memaorandum

A statemnent that the fact that ASX may admit the
entity to its *official list is not to be taken in any
way as an indication of the merits of the entity

If the information memorandum includes a
statement claiming to be made by an expert or
based on a statement made by an expert, a
statement that the expert has given, and has not
withdrawn, consent Lo the issue of the information
memorandum  with  the  particular  statement
included in its form and context

¥ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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ASX Listing application and agreement

116 D

117 D

A statement that the entity has not raised any capital
for the 3 months before the date of issue of the
information memerandum and will not need to raisc
any caphal for 3 months after the date of issue of the
information memorandum

A statement that a  supplementary  information
memorandum will be issued if the entity becomes

*aware of any of the following between the issue of

the information memorandum and the date the

entity’s *securitics are *quoted or reinstated,

e A material statement in the informaticn
memorandum is misleading or deceptive.

o There is a material omission from the information
memorandum.

= There has been a significant change affecting o
matter included in the information memorandum,

s A signiftcant new circumstance has arisen and it
would have been required 10 be included in the
information memorandum

Information contained in the supplemeniary information memorandum

18 D

If  there is  a  supplementary  information

memorandum:

e Correction of any deficiency.

o Details of any material omission, change or ncw
matter.

» A prominent statement that it is a supplementary
information memorandum,

s The signature of every director, or proposcd
director, of the cntity personally or by a ‘person
authorised in writing by the dircctor (in the case
of a trust, director of the responsible entity).

e The date the supplementary information
memorandum is signed.

Evidence if supplementary information memorandum ix issued

1o D

Evidence that the supplementary information
memorandum  accompanied every copy of the
information memerandum issued after the date of the
supplementary information memorandum,

Where is the infermation or decument
w be found? {cg, prospectus cruss
reference)

NIA

N/A

MNIA

' See chapier 19 for defined erms.
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ASX Listing application and agreement

Other information

All entities

120 N Lvidence thar the supplementary information

123A

123 & Information not covered clsewhere and which,

memorandum was sent 10 every *person who
was sent an information memorandum

N Details of any material contracts entered into

between the eniity and any of its directors (if a
trust, the directors of the responsible entity)

A copy of every disclosure decument or Product
Disclosure  Statement  issued, and  every
information memorandum circulated, in the last
3 yeurs

in terms of rule 3.1, is likely materially 10 aflect
the price or value of the cntity’s *sccuritics

The documents which would have been required
to be given to ASX underrules 4.1, 4.2, 4.3, 4.5,
5.1, 5.2 and 5.3 had the entity been admitted to
the ‘official list at the date of its application for
admission, unless ASX agrees otherwise.

Example:  ASX may agree otherwise if the entity was recently
incorpiated.

Mining exploration entities

* K

A map or maps of the mining tenements prepared
by a qualified *person. The maps must indicate the
geology and  other pertinent features of the
tenements, including their extent and location in
relation to a capital city or major town, and relative
to any nearby propertics which have a significant
bearing on the potential of the tenements. The maps
must be dated and identify the qualified “person
and the report to which they relate.

Deleted 17797

Where is the information or decument
to be found? ({eg, prospectus cross
reference)

NIA

Prospectus - section 1.2, 12.3

NiA

NIA

The Company was incorperaled on
10 March 2006 and therefore has not
prepared such accounts.

Prespectus — section 7 (Independent
Geologist's Report)

Please advise if more maps are required

* See chapter 19 Tor defined terms,
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ASX Listing application and '.;grvemenl

126

128 @

129 @

A schedule of "mining tenements prepared by a
qualified person. The schedule must state in
relation to each *mining tenement:

the geographical arca where the "mining tenement
is situated;

the naiure of the title to the *mining tenement;
whether the title has been formally confirmed or
approved and, if not, whether an application for
confirmation ur approval is pending and whether
the application is subject o challenge: and

the *person in whose name the title to the "mining
tenement is currently held.

If the entity has "acquired an interest or entered
into an agreement to facquire an inderest in a
‘mining tenement from any ‘person, a statement
detailing the date of the ‘acquisition of the
imerest from the vendor and the purchase price
paid and all other consideration (whether legally
enlorceable or not) passing (directly or indirectly)
e the vendor,

A financial statement by the directors (if a trust,
the directors of the responsible entity) setting out
a program of expendilure together with a
timetable for completion of an  exploration
program in respect of cach “mining tenement or,
where appropriate, each group of tenements

A declaration of conformity or otherwise with the
Australasian Cede for Reponing of ldentified
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves for any
reports on mineral resources and fore reserves

Where is the information or document 1o

be  found? (ep, prospectus  Cross
reference)
Prospectus  —  section 9 (Selicitor’s
Report)
Prospectus - section 7 {Independent

Geologist’s Report)

N/A

Prospectus — section 3.4 (Use of funds)

Please advise if more information s
required,

Prospectus - section 7 {Independent
Gieologist's Report)

" See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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ASX Listing application and agreement

Part 3 - Agreement

All entities

Yau must camplete this agreement. [f you require a seal 16 be bound, the agrecment must be under seal.
We agree:

| Qur admission to the *official list is in ASX’s absolute discretion. ASX may admit us
on any conditions it decides. ~*Quotation of our *sccuritics is in ASX's absolute
discretion. ASX may quote our *securities on any conditions it decides. Qur removal
from the official list or the suspension or ending of *quotaticn of our “securities is in
ASX's absolute discretion. ASX is entitled immediately 1o suspend *quotation of our
*sccuritics or remove us from the 'official list if we break this agreement, but the
absolute discretion of ASX is not limited.

t

We warrant the following to ASX,

. The 1ssuc of the “securities to be quoted complies with the Taw, and is not for
an illegal purpose.

. There is no reason why the “securities should not be granted “quotation.

. An offer of the "securities for sate within 12 months aficr their issue will not
require disclosure under section 707(3) or section 1012C(6) of the
Corporations Act.

Note? An entity may ceed (o obtain appropriaie warraoties frism suliscribers fos the secunties moorder to be
able to give this warranty

) Scction 724 or section 1016 of the Corporations Act does not apply to any
applications received by us in relation to any ‘sccurities to be quoted and that
no-one has any right to return any ‘securities to be quoted under sections
GOITMB(1), 737, 738, Y92A, 992AA or 10161 of the Corporations Act at the
time that we request that the “securities be quoted.

I we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right to return the
*sccurities to be quoted under section 10198 of the Corporations Act at the
time that we request that the 'securities be quoted.

3 We will indemnify ASX to the fullest extent permitied by law in respect of any claim,
action or expense arising from, or connected with, anv breach of the warranties in this
agreemuent,

4 We give ASX the information and documents reguired by this form. [f any information

or document is not avatfable now, we will give it 10 ASX before *quotation of the
‘sccurities begins.  We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information and
documents. We warrant that they are (will be) true and complete.

¥ See chapter 19 for delined (eems.
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ASX Listing application and.:;grccmenl

5 We will comply with the listing rules that are in force from time to time, even if
*quotation of our *securitics is deferred. suspended or subject to a “trading halt,

6 The listing rules are to be interpreted:
. in accordance with their spirit, intention and purpose;
v by looking bevond form to substance: and
. in a way that best promotes the principles on which the listing rules are
based.
7 ASX has discretion to take no action in response 1o a breach of a listing rule. ASX
may also waive a listing rule (except one that specifies that ASX will not waive it)
. either on our application or of its own accord on any conditions. ASX may at any

time vary or revoke a decision on our application or of i#ts own accord.

) A document given 1o ASX by an entity, or on its behalf, becomes and remains the
property of ASX 10 deal with as it wishes, including copying, storing in a retricval
system, transmitting to the public, and publishing any pan of the document and
permitting others 10 do so. The documents include o document given to ASX in
support of the listing application or in compliance with the listing rules.

9 In any proceedings, a copy or extract of any document or information given to
ASX is of equal validity in evidence as the original.

10 Except in the case of an entity established in a jurisdiction whose laws have the
effeet that the entity’s 'securities cannot be approved under the operating rules of
the “approved CS facility:

. We will satisfy the “technical and performance requirements of the
0 rapproved CS facility und mmect any other requirements the ‘upproved CS
facility imposes in connection with approval of our “securities.

) When “securities arg issued we will enter them in the 'approved CS
facility’s subregister holding of the applicant before they are quoted, if
the applicant instructs us on the application form to do so.

’ The *approved CS fucility is irrevocably authorised to establish and
administer a subregister in respect of the "sccurities for which 'quotation
is sought.

¥ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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ASX Listing application and apgreement

! Except in the case of an cntity established in a jurisdiction whose laws have the
effect that the entity’s “securitics cannot be approved under the operating rules of
the *approved CS facility, we confirm that cither:

we have given a copy of this application to the ‘approved CS facility i
accordance with the operating rules of the *approved CS facility ; or

we ask ASX to forward a copy of this application to the *approved CS

facility.

12 In the case of an entity cstablished in a jurisdiction whose laws have the effeet that the
entity’s ‘securitics cannot be approved under the operating rules of the *approved CS
facility:

. The ‘approved CS$ facility is irrevocably authorised to establish and
administer a subregister in respect of *CDIs.

. We will make sure that *CDIs are issued over ‘securities if the holder of
quoted 'securities asks for *CDIs.

13 In the case of an entity cstablished in a jurisdiction whose laws have the effect that the
entity’s ‘securitics cannot be approved under the operating rules of the ‘approved CS
facility:

we have given a copy of this application te the approved CS facility in
accordance with the operating rules of the “approved CS factlity; or

we ask ASX to forward a copy of this application to the “approved €S8
factlity.

Dated: é.lu]y 2006

EXECUTED BY

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ACN 118 751 027 in accordance with
Section 127 of the Corporations Act

A ATH AN DOWNES MMN

Dircctor (0][’ ctor/ 1T
ADIL1fns BTASS %

Name of Director mm o cctor/Company Sceretary

* See chapter 19 for detined terms.
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lrgn bark Gpld Limited

) Lavel 2,16 Altona Strect,

oo A ! ! West Perth, WA, 8005,

Postal: PO Box 935,

VWast PParth. 6872

T+61 8 G481 56800

F g1 882101872

E admingiironbarkgold.com.au
WY weww.irondrarkgold. com . a

16 August 2006 By Electronic Lodgement

APPOINTMENT OF NEW COMPANY SECRETARY

fronbark Gold Ltd is pleased to announce the appointment of Mr Stephen Brockhurst as s
company secretary. The company advises that Mr Adrian Byass has resigned as company
secretary i order to concentrate on his role as Executive Technical Director.

Yours faithfully

Jonathan Dowsnes
Managing Director




19 October 2006 By Electronic Lodgement - -- e o !

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE LOCATION

The Company advises that the Registered Office is locating from the current address of:

Level 2, 16 Altona Street. WEST PERTH WA 6005
To new premises at:
Level 1, 350 Hay Street, SUBIACO WA 6008
PO Box 935, WEST PERTH WA 6872

The following contact details will commence from 19 October 2006
Phone: +61 8 6461 6350 Fax: +61 8 6210 1872

Yours faithfully

Jonathan Downes
Managing Director




MONARO MIN'NG NL ABN: 89 (073 155 781

D Tel: +61 2 4647 0566 Fax: +61 2 4647 7332 Al Correspendence 1o: PO Box 427 Nareltan NSW 2567

11 January, 2007 ASX Announcement

Ironbark Gold Limited commences drilling on Jerangle Prospect, NSW

The Directors of Monaro Mining NL (Monaro) are pleased to announce that Ironbark Gold Limited
(lronbark Gold) have commenced drilling operanons at the Jerangle base-metal prospect localed near
Captains Flat, south-eastern NSW. The initial programme citaits the completion of 6 diamond/RC holes
for an aggregate of 1,100 metres and 11 s intended to conlirm and extend historie copper/lead/zine/poid
and silver mineralisation delineated by previous explorers.

Subject w the fMINment of a number of conditions, Ironbark Gold has the right 10 cam a 75% interest in
the Captains Flai base metal project (Exploration Licence 638 1) Monaro will retyin a free eariad interest
up Lo a decision 1o mine.

The Captains Flat tenement covers a well endowed belt of Volcanic Massive Sulphide (VMS) base metal
occurrences including Jerangle and the historic Lake George Mine which 1o 19020 produced
approximately 4 mitlion tonnes ol high grade zing-lead-copper-silver-gold.

Commenting on the start of drilling operations, Chairinan of the Company, Mr Warwick Grigor, has
said that:

“The Capiains Flai wenement is one of the keysione projecis of the Monara 10O, Whilse the Company
is now strongly Jocused on the uranium sector, its vriginal concept of searching the Lachlan Fold Belr
for gold and buase metals will now | am sure. bear fruit. We are confident that the Ironhark Gold-
Monaro Joine Venture will generate positive results from this dvilling program.”™

For Turther inforimation please contact:
Mart Rampe

Executive Dirccror

Tele: 02 464793560

Or:

Warwick Grigor

Chairman o . i

-
A

Tele: 02 92470077 BES a

Do

-
P
: '

Unit 4a 20 Somerset Avenue Wabsite www.monaremining.com.au
NARELLAN NSW 2567 Email: infe@monaramining.com.au




Minerals Limited

Gih February 2007
Wolf Minerals Limited closes offer early and hecavily oversubscribed

Wolf Minerals limited (Wolf) has announced that it has clesed its inigal public ofTey
(IPO) 1oday (6th Feb. 2007) 3 weeks early <due 10 overwhelming interest and support
from both fronhark Gold Lid shareholders, Gravmic Metals sharcholders and she public. Tt
1 with greal regret and disappointment that Wolfl was unable to zecept all applications
from sharchatders.

Woll is raigsing $3.000.000 by placing 15000000 shares at S0.20. There was no
allowance Tor oversubseription. The cempany plans w0 commence exploration and
evaluation ol its tungsten and tn projects immediately Tollowing its [isting on the ASX.

Graynic Metals Ltd will recetve 2,000.000 ordinary shares upon the successful listing of
Wolf, as detailed in the prospectus, for 100% of the tin and tungsien rights a1 Yaneo Glen
40km north of Broken Haitl

The Dircetors and management of Woll have strong technical backgrounds and a proven
track recard for adding value. These skilis will be used o implement cirgeted exploraion
programs to grow the resources of the companies advanced exploration projeais. Drilling
1s scheduled to commence @ Yanco CGilen in March.

The exploration license application at Kiawarra un project bas been granted and i
addition 1he exploration bHcense appiication al Burrandana wingsten project has been
granted prior to listing, both of these tenements are owned 100%: by Woll. Exploration
will begin concurrently with Yanco glen upon listing

Woll expecis 1o [inalise the share altocations in the coming week with statements mailed
shortly after. Due to the overwhelming public interest many applicants were not able 1o
be processed and scale backs ol other applications are expeaied. Woll wouldd Tike 1o thank
its tong term supporters and s looking forward 10 an exciting future.

Woll will list on the ASX on 15th February 2007,

, L,L_'

Homphrey Hale
Managing Director
+01 86364 3776

www. wolfnmerals.comaaua

Level 1, 350 Hay St, Subiaco, WA 6008 - PO Box 935, West Perth. W.A, 5872 ABN 32 121 831 472
T: +61 8 6364 3776 F: +61 8 6210 1872 Web: www.woliminerals.com.au




g
DRCRSERRMIRS
B ~

LS

ASX

AUSTRALIAN SECUAITIES EXCHAMGE

MARKET RELEASE

1 March 2007

.' IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
TRADING HALT

The securities of IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED (the ‘Company™) will be placed in pre-
open at the request of the Company, pending the release of an announcement by the
Company. Unless ASX decides otherwise, the securities will remain in pre-open until the

- earlier of the commencement of normal trading cn Monday, 5 March 2007 or when the
announcement is refeased to the market.

Security Code: IBG

o Vickrem Naicker
Senior Adviser

s:\perth companies\per-code h-k\ibglibg2007.02.28mr-vn.dee
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Clronbark

lpabonk Gole brojted
Level 1, 350 Ray Sheet,
Suiiaco s008,
Westan Austrolia,
Poslal PO Bux 235,
weaxl Parth, WA, AR72

145186461 6350
Fasp 80201372
wsw sonbarkgold. com.ou

[ March 2007

Australian Siock Exchange Limited
Exchange PMlaza

2 The Esplanade

PERTIH WA 6800

Attention: Nicholas Ong
Manager - Perth Companies

Facsimile No.: 9221 2020

Dear Nicholas,

Trading Halt Request
lronbark Gald Limited (*lronbark™) herchy requests « wrading halt from ASX
clfective immediately, pending an announcement.

Ironburk requests the trading halt last from receipt ot the request until the relense

of the announcement, in any case no buer thun the commencement of rading 3
Murch 2007

lronbark is not aware of any reason why the trading halt should not be granted.

Ironbark is not aware of uny other information necessary 1o inform the market
about the trading habt.

Should you have any queries regarding the above 1 will be happy to discuss such
matters with you.

Yours {aithtully

Jonathan Downes
Managing Director
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12 April 2007

The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

IRONBARK RAISES $25,750,000 FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF
THE MAJOR CITRONEN ZINC PROJECT
AND PROPOSES ENTERING INTO A STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP
WITH GLENCORE INTERNATIONAL AG

Ironbark Gold Limited (lronbark} is pleased to report that, subject to shareholder
approval, it has entered into subscription agreements with institutional,
sophisticated and industry investors to issue 10.300.000 shares to raise $25.75
million at a price of $2.50 per share. These funds are considered adequate to
conclude the purchase of the Citronen Zinc Project (34,500,000 payment) and
provide working capital to aggressively progress the Citronen Zinc Project towards
a full feasibility study for a period of two years.

Ironbark has entered into a Heads of Agreement with Glencore International AG
encompassing potential future funding, entering in an agency agreement to assist
in marketing and the appointment of a non-executive Director to the Board of
Ironbark.

Following the completion of this placement Merrill Lynch Equities {Australia) and
Glencore International AG will become significant shareholders in lronbark.

Further information regarding the placement and the purchase of the Citronen Zing
Project will be set out in a Notice of Meeting which will be forwarded to Ironbark
shareholders shortly.

For further information please contact:

Jonathan Downes

Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Level 1, 350 Hay Streel,
Subiaco,

WA 6008

Tel: +61 BG461 6350

Fax: +61 8 210 1872




17 May 2007

The Manager
Company Announcement Office
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

Release from Escrow
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The Company advises that on 31 May 2007, 2,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares

will be released from escrow.

The Company will apply to ASX for quotation of the fully paid ordinary shares so

released.

For further information please contact:

Jonathan Downes

Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Level 1, 350 Hay Street,
Subiaco,

WA 6008

Tel: +61 86461 6350

Fax: +61 8 210 1872
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ASX RELEASE

21 May 2007
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Ironbark Gold Limited
Fowit 216 Allona Stren,
Weost Parth, WA, BOOS,

Prostul, PO Box 935,

Watst Perth B872Z

¥ =813 2487 51

Fodi 3621011872

E admingiironbarkgold.com.au
Y wewdrontarkgold com.aug

RESULTS OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF MEMBERS

The Direciors of Ironbark Gold Limited are pleased to announce that ai the General Meesling of
shareholders held today, all of the resolutions put to the meeting and detailed in the notice of

meeting lodged with ASX were passed.

In accordance with section 251AA of the Corporations Act 2001 the Company hereby provides the

following information:-

Resolution | Resolution Resolution

1 2 3
Proxies instructed to vote in the affirmative 6,009,617 6.009,617 6,009,617
Proxies instructed to vote in the negative . -
Proxies 1o vale at the discretion of the proxy 367,779 367,77¢ 367,779
Proxies insiructed to abslain from voling 900 ann S100)
Total proxy votes validly appointed 6,378,296 6,378,296 6,378,296

Yours Maithlully

Jonathan Downes
Managing Director
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ASX RELEASE

30 May 2007

$25,750,000 PLACEMENT FINALISED
Ironbark Gold Limited (IBG) is pleased to announce thal the $25,750,000 placement issug
has been finalised. The Company will apply io ASX for quotation of the securities.

For further information please contact the Company:

Yours faithfully

Jonathan Downes
Managing Director
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CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

Constitution
OF

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ACN 118 751 027

. SHELFORM (AUST)
LEVEL 3/12 ST GEORGE’S TERRACE PERTH
PO BOX Y3527 EAST ST GEORGES TERRACE 6832

TELEPHONE 9225 6133
FACSIMILE 9225 6212
MOBILE 0418 913 477




RESOLUTION OF THE MEMBER(S) OF IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

To Adopt a Constitution

IIWE the undersigned being the only Member(s) of the IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED hereby
AGREE and RESOLVE that the attached constitution be adopted as the constitution of the
company., .

e A
Shareholders signature
KATRINA PETA DOWNES

.

Shareholders signature
MEGAN RUTH ROBERTS

Dated this day of March 2006
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CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

A COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
CONSTITUTION
OF
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

PART 1 DEFINITIONS

Definitions

1.1

The following words have these meanings in these Clauses unless the contrary
intention appears.

“Act” and “Regulations” means the Corporations Act 2001 and the corporations
Regulations.

“Alternate Director” means a person appointed as alternate director under Clause
13.6.

«Auditor” means the auditor or auditors for the time being of the Company.

“ASX” means the Australian Stock Exchange Limited.

“Business Days” means those days other than a Saturday, Sunday, New Year's Day,
Good Friday, Easter Monday, Christmas Day, Boxing Day and any other day on
which ASX shall declare and publish not a business day.

“Chess” means the Clearing House Electronic Sub-Register System established and
operated by the ASX including but not limited to:

(a) the clearing and settlement of transaction in CHESS approved securities;
(b) the transfer of Securities; and
(c) the registration of transfers.

“Chess approved securities” means securitics of a company of which CHESS
approval has been given in accordance with the SCH Business Rules.

“Chess sub-register” means that part of a company’s register for a class of the
company’s CHESS approved securities that is administered by SCH and that records
uncertificated holdings of securities in that class.

“Company” means IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED A CN 118 751 027
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“Constitution” means this Constitution as amended from time to time.

“Director” means a director for the time being of the Company, and where
appropriate includes Alternate Director.

“Dividend Interest” means the right a member to receive dividends under this
Constitution or any law.

“ASX” means the Australian Stock Exchange Limited.

“Executive Director” means a person appointed as executive director under Clause
13.36.

“Home Branch” means the State Branch of the ASX designated to the Company by
the ASX.

“Listed” means in relation to the Company, the Company being and remaining
admitted to the official list of the ASX.

“Listing Rules” means the Listing Rules of the ASX and any other rules of the ASX
which are applicable while the Company is admitted to the official list of the ASX,
cach as amended or replaced from time to time, except to the extent of any express
written waiver by the ASX.

“listed Securities® means any shares, share options, stock, debentures, debenture
stock or other securities for the time being issued by the Company and officially
quoted by the ASX.

“Managing Director” means the person appointed as managing director under
Clause 13.36.

“Market Transfer” means:

(a) a transfer of shares in the Company where the transfer is pursuant to or
connected with a transaction entered into on the stock market operated by the
ASX and for the avoidance of doubt includes SCH transfer; or

(b)  an allotment of shares in the Company as a result of the exercise of any rights,
options or convertible notes where such rights, options or notes are traded on
a market operated by the ASX.

“Member” means a person for the time being entered in the Register as a member of
the Company.
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“Prescribed Information” means information as to whether shares are held
beneficially by the holder of the shares and, if not, who has beneficial interests in the
shares, whether the holder of the shares or any person who has a beneficial interest in
the shares is in the position to exercise control of another licence (giving particulars
of any such position) and any other information which the Direciors consider is
necessary or desirable for determining the eligibility of that person or any other
person to hold or continue to hold shares in the Company having regard to the
provisions of the Act.

“Proper SCH transfer” has the same meaning as that term under the Act.
“Register” means the register of members of the Company to be kept by the
Company.

“Registered Address” has the meaning ascribed by Clause 36.

“Registered Office” means the registered office form the fime being of the
Company.

“Restricted Securities” has the meaning as ascribed to it by the Listing Rules.
“SCH business rules” has the same meaning as that term has in the Act.
“Seal” means the common seal for the time being of the Company.

“Secretary” means a person appointed by the Directors under Clause 14.1 to
perform the duties of secretary of the Company.

“State”™ means the state or territory in which the Company is from time to time
registered

“Voting interests” means the right of a member to exercise a vote at any meeting of
the Company under this Constitution or any law.

“Winding up interests” means the right under this Constitution or any law for a
member to receive a share in the property of the Company that could be distributed
among the members of the Company if the property of the Company was distributed
among the members, whether as a result of winding up or otherwise.

“Writing” includes printing, typing and other methods of representing or
reproducing words in a visible form and “written” has a corresponding meaning.




PART 2 INTERPRETATION

2.1

2.2

23

24

In this Construction:
(@)  words importing any gender include all other genders;

(b)  the word person includes a firm, a body corporate, unincorporated association
or an authority;

(¢) the singular includes the plural and vice versa;

(d) a reference to a statute or code or the Act (to a provision of the same) means
the statute, code or the Act{ or provisions of the same) as modified or
amended and in operation for the time being, or any statute, code or provision
enacted (whether by the state or commonweaith of Australia) in its place and
includes any regulation or rule for the time being in force under the statute,
code of the Act.

Unless the contrary intention appears in this constitution, an expression has, in a
provision of this Constitution that deals with a matter dealt with by a particular
provision of the Act, the same meaning as in that provision of the Act.

Headings are inserted for convenience and do not affect the interpretation of this
Constitution.

Where the phrase “permitted by the Listing Rules” or such similar phrase is used in
this Constitution that expression under this Constitution shall be deemed to include
any act, omission or transaction which is subject to a waiver of the Listing Rules by
the ASX.

Replaceable Rules not to apply

2.5

The Replaceable Rules contained in the Act do not apply to the Company.
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PART 3 SHARE CAPITAL AND VARIATION OF RIGHTS

Directors to issue shares

3.1

3.2

33

34

3.5

Without prejudice to any special rights previously conferred on the holders of any
existing shares or a class of shares but subject to the Act and the listing Rules, except
as the Company in general meeting may when authorising any issue of shares
otherwise direct and subject to this Constitution, shares in the Company are under
the control of the Directors who may allot or dispose of all or any of the same to such
person at such times at such price and on such terms and conditions and having
attached to them such preferred, deferred or other special rights or such restrictions
whether with regard to dividend, voting, return of capital or otherwise and whether
as preference shares that are at the option of the Company likely to be redeemed as
the Directors think fit.

Subject to the Listing Rules the Directors have the right to grant to any person
options or other securities with rights of conversion to shares or pre-emptive rights to
any shares for any consideration and for any stock.

‘The Directors have the right to settle the manner in which fractions of a share,
however arising, are to be dealt with.

The Directors may not, without the prior approval of a resolution of the Company in
general meeting, allot any shares in the company to a person where the allotment
would have the effect of transferring a controlling interest in the Company.

A Director or any person associated with a Director may not participate in an issue
by the Company of shares under Clause 3.1 or options or other securities under
Clause 3.2 unless the participation of the Director or the person associated with a
director in the issue is permitied under the Listing Rules.

Variation of rights

3.6

37

If at any time the share capital of the Company is divided into different classes of
shares, the rights attached to any class may (unless otherwise provided by the terms
of the issue of the shares of that class), whether or not the Company is being wound
up, be varied or abrogated in any way with the consent in writing of the holders of
three-quarters of the issued shares of that class, or with the sanction of a special
resolution passed at separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that class. Any
variation under this Clause shall be subject to Section 246B to 246E of the Act.

The provisions of this Constitution relating 1o general meetings apply so far as they
are capable of application and with the necessary changes to every separate meeting
of the holders of a class of shares except that:
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(a)  a quorum is constituted by 2 persons who, between them, hold or represent
one-third of the issued shares of that class; and

(b)  any holder of shares of the class, present in person or by proxy, atiomey or
representative appointed under Clause 10.2 may demand a poll.

The rights conferred on the holders of the shares of any class are not deemed to be
varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking equally with the first-
mentioned shares unless otherwise:

(a)  expressly provided by the terms of the issue of the first-mentioned shares; or

(b)  required by the Corporations Act 2001.

Commission on brokerage

3.9

3.10

3.11

The company may exercise the power to pay brokerage or commission conferred by
the Act. The rate or the amount of brokerage or commission paid or agreed to be
paid must be disclosed in the manner required by the Act.

The brokerage or commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or by the
allotment of fully or partly paid shares or other securities or partly by the payment of
cash and partly by the allotment of fully or partly paid shares or other securities.

The Company shall comply with the requirements of the Act and the Listing Rules in
payment of such brokerage or commissions.

Recognition and disclosure of interests

3.12

3.13

Except as required by the Law, the Company is not bound or compelled in any way
to recognise a person as holding a share on any trust.

The Company is not bound or compelled in any way to recognise {(whether or not it
has notice of the interest or rights concerned) any equitable, contingent, future of
partial interest in any share or unit of a share or (except as otherwise provided by this
Constitution or by law any other right in respect of a share except an absolute right of
ownership in the registered holder.

Uncertificated Holdings and Electronic Transfer

3.14

Notwithstanding any other provision in this Constitution, the Directors may
determine not to issue a share certificate or option certificate or may determine to
cancel such a certificate without issuing any certificate in its place, if that
determination is not contrary to the Act or the Listing Rules.
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The Directors may do any thing they consider necessary or desirable and which is
permitted under the Act and the Listing Rules to facilitate the participation by the
Company in CHESS developed by the ASX or in any computerised electronic system
established or recognised by the Act or the Listing Rules for the purposes of
facilitating dealings in shares or securities. Where the securities of the Company are
CHESS approved securities the Company shall comply with the SCH Business
Rules. '

Share Holdings Statements

13.16 Where the Directors of the Company have pursuant to Clause 3.15 determined not to
issue share certificates or to cancel existing share certificates a member shall have
the right to receive such statements of the holdings of the member as are required to
be distributed to a member under the Act and Listing Rules.

Share Certificates

13.17 Subject to Clause 3.13 - 3.15 if the Directors determine to issue a certificate for

shares held by a member the following provisions apply:

(a) A person whose name is entered as a Member in the Register or as an option
holder in the register of options is entitled without payment to receive a
certificate in respect of shares or options registered in the persons name
issued in accordance with the Act but, in respect of shares or options held
jointly by several persons, the Company is not bound (o issue more than one
certificate;

(b)  Delivery of a certificate for a share may be affected by delivering it personally
to the holder or by posting in a prepaid envelope addressed to the holder at the
address shown in the Register or by delivering it or posting the certificate in
accordance with the written instructions of the holder . Delivery of a
certificate for a share to one or several joint holders is sufficient delivery to
all such holders;

(c) Where satisfactory evidence has been received by the Company that the
certificate for shares previously issued has been stolen. Lost or destroyed and
has not been pledged, charged, sold or otherwise disposed of, and the holder
has undertaken in writing to the Company to return any such certificate if it is
found or received by the holder, then the Company must issue a replacement
certificate in accordance with the Act;

(d)  Where the certificate for shares previously issued has been worn out or
defaced and has been surrendered to the Company for cancellation and has
been cancelled the person whose name is entered as the Member in respect of
those s in the Register is entitled to receive a replacement certificate in
accordance with the Act and the Listing Rules;
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(e) The Directors may determine the number of shares to be issued in any one
certificate;

(f) Every certificate for shares must be issued in accordance with the Act and the

Listing Rules.
Joint holders of shares
3.18 Where two (2) or more persons are registered as joint holders of shares they are

deemed to hold the shares as joint tenants.
Restricted Securities

3.19 The Company shall comply in all respects with the requirements of the Listing Rules
with respect to Restricted Securities; without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

(a) Restricted Securities cannot be disposed of during the escrow period except
as permitted by the Listing Rules or the ASX;

(b)  the Company will refuse to acknowledge a disposal (including registering a
transfer) of restricted securities during the escrow period except as permitted
by the Listing Rules or the ASX;

(c)  during a breach of Listing Rules relating Restricted Securities, or a breach of
restriction agreement, then holder of a Restricted Securities is not entitled to
any dividends or distribution, or voting rights, in respect of the Restricted

Securities.
PART 4 LIEN
Licn on shares
4.1 The Company has a first and paramount lien on every share (other than a fully paid

share) for all money (whether presently payable or not) called or payable at a fixed
time in respect of that share and such lien extends to all dividends, rights and other
distributions from time to time declared paid or made in respect of that share. Such
lien extends to cover reasonable interest (not exceeding 10% per annum) and
expenses incurred because such monies are unpaid.

4.2 The Company also has a first and paramount lien on all shares (other than fully paid
shares) registered in the name of a member for all money presently payable by that
member of the Company and all money which the Company may be called on by law
to pay in respect of the shares of that Member.
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4.4

9

Whenever any law for the time being of any country, state or place imposes any
immediate or future or possible liability on the Company to make any payment or
empowers any government of taxing authority or government official to require the
Company to make any payment in respect of any share registered in the name of any
Member (whether solely or jointly with others) or in respect of any dividends or other
moneys paid or due or payable or which may become due or payable to that Member
by the Company or in respect of any of those shares the Company in that case:

(a) is fully indemmified by that Member or that Member’s executor or
administrator from all that liability;

(b)  has a lien on the shares registered in the name of the Member for all money
paid or payable by the Company in respect of those shares under or in
consequence of any such law together with interest at the rate. not exceeding
20% per annum, determined by the Directors from the date of payment to the
date of repayment;

(c) has a lien on all dividends, payable in respect of the shares registered in the
name of that Member for all moneys paid by the Company in respect of those
shares ot in respect of any such dividends under or in consequence of any
such law together with interest at the rate. not exceeding 20% per annum,
determined by the Directors from the date of payment to the date of
repayment and may deduct or set off against any of those dividends or other
moneys any of those moneys paid by the Company together with interest;

(d) may recover as a debt from such Member or that Member’s executor or
administrator wherever constituted or situated any moneys paid by the
Company under any such law; and

(¢)  may if any such money is paid by the Company under any such law refuse to
register a transfer of any shares other than by a Market Transfer by any such
Member or that Member’s executor or administrator until such money and
interest have been set off or deducted as aforesaid or have been otherwise
paid to the Company.

Nothing in this Constitution prejudices or affects any right or remedy which any such
law may confer on the Company and as between the Company and every such
Member, that Member’s executors, administrator and estate wherever constituted or
situated any right or remedy which such law confers on the Company is enforceable
by the Company.

The Company may do all such things as may be necessary or appropriate for it to do
under the SCH business rules 1o protect any lien, charge or other right to which it
may be entitled under any law or this Constitution,
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4.5 The Directors may at any time exempt a share wholly or in part from the provisions
of Clauses 4.1 t0 4.3.

4.6 The Company’s lien on a share is extinguished if a transfer of the share is registered
without the Company giving notice of the claim to the transferee.

Sale under lien

47 Subject to Clauses 4.8 and 4.9. the Company may sell, in such a manner as the
Directors think fit, any share on which the Company has a lien as if the share were
forfeited.

4.8 A share on which the Company has a lien may not be sold by the Company unless:
(a) a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; and .

‘ (b)  the Company has, not less than 14 days before the date of sale, given to the
| registered holder for the time being of the of the share or the person entitled
to the share by reason of death or bankruptcy of the registered holder, a notice
in writing setting out, and demanding payment of, such part of the amount in
respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable.

Transfer on sale under lien

49 For the purpose of giving effect to a sale mentioned in Clause 4.7, the Company may
receive the consideration (if any) given for the sale so sold and may (if required)
execute a transfer of the share sold in favour of the person to whom the share is sold
or where the transfer of shares is to be effected as a Market Transter, the Company
may do all such things as may be necessary or appropriate for it to do to effect the
transfer.

4.10 The title of the transferee to the share is not affected by any irregularity or invalidity ‘
in connection with the sale of the share. ‘

Procecds of sale

4.11 The proceeds of a sale mentioned in Clause 4.7 must be applied by the Company in
payment of such part of the anmount in respect of which the lien exists as is presently
payable, and the residue (if any) must (subject to any like lien for sums not presently
payable that existed on the share before the sale) be paid to the person entitled to the
share at the date of sale.

PART 5 CALLS ON SHARES
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Directors to make calls

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

Time of call

5.5

The Directors may, subject to compliance with the requirements of the Act, the
Listing Rules and the original terms of the issue of the shares, make calls on a
Member in respect of any money unpaid on the shares of that Member.

A call may be made payable by instalments.

The Directors may revoke or postpone a call.

A call must be made in accordance with the Listing Rules.

A call is deemed to be made at the time when the resolution of the Directors
authorising the call is passed.

Notice of call and Member’s Liability

5.6

5.7

5.8

Each Member must, on receiving at least 15 Business Days notice (or such longer
periods as the Listing Rules shall require) specifying:

(a) the name of the Member,

(b)  the number of shares held by the Member;

(c)  the amount of the call;

{(d)  the due date for payment of the call;

{e)  the consequence of non-payment of the call;

H) the taxation deductions applicable (if any) and how they may be applied for;

(g)  market details regarding the shares and any other shares in the Company as
required by the Listing Rules and;

(h) such other information as required by the Listing Rules;

pay to the Company at the time or times and places so specified the amount called on
the shares,

The joint holders of a share are jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect
of the share.

The non-receipt of a notice of any call by, or the accidental omission to give notice of
a call to, a Member does not invalidate the call.
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Interest on default

5.9

If a sum called in respect of a share is not paid before or on the day appointed for
payment of the sum, the person from whom the sum is due must pay interest on the
sum from and including the day for payment to the time of actual payment at the rate,
not exceeding 20% per annum, determined by the Directors, but the Directors may
waive payment of that interest wholly or in part.

Fixed instalments deemed calls

5.10

Subject to the Listing Rules any sum that, by the terms of the issue of a share,
becomes payable on allotment or at a fixed date is deemed for the purposes of this
Constitution to be a call duly made and payable on the date on which by the terms of
issue the sum becomes payable, and in the case of non-payment, all the relevant
provisions of the Constitution as to payment of interest and expenses, forfeiture or
otherwise apply as if the sum held become payable by virtue of a call duly made and
notified.

Differentiation between sharcholders as to calls

5.11 The Directors, may on the issue of shares, differentiate between the holders as to the
amount of calls to be paid and the times of payment.

Prepayment of calls

5.12 The Directors may accept from a Member the whole or a part of the amount unpaid
on a share although no part of that amount has been called.

5.13 The Directors may authorise payment by the Company of interest on the whole or
any part of an amount so accepted, until the amount becomes payable, at rate, not
exceeding the prescribed rate, as is agreed on between the Directors and the Members
paying the sum.

5.14 For the purposes of Clause 5.13, the prescribed rate of interest is:

{2) if the Company has, by resolution, fixed a rate- the rate so fixed; and

(b) in any other case- 10% per annum.




13

PART 6 TRANSKFER OF SHARES

Forms of instrament of fransfer

6.1

Subject to this Constitution, a Member may transfer all or any of the Members shares

by:

(a)

(b)

by a Market Transfer in accordance with the computerised or electronic
system established or recognised by the Listing Rules or the Act for the
purposes of facilitating dealings in the shares, including a transfer that may be
effected pursuant to the SCH business rules or some other computerised ot
electronic transfer process; and

an instrument which is:

(i) in writing in any usual or common form or in any other form that the
Directors approve;

(i)  a sufficient instrument or transfer of marketable securities under
Section 1101 of the Act

(iii)  in a form approved by the ASX, or

(iv)  in any other usual or common form.

Registration procedure

6.2

Where an instrument of transfer referred to in Clause 6.1(b) is to be used by a
Member to transfer shares the following provisions apply:

(a)

(b

(c)

it must be executed by or on behalf of both the transferor and the transferee
unless it is a sufficient transfer of marketable securities within the meaning of
the Act;.

The instrument of transfer must be left for registration at the share registry of
the Company, accompanied by the certificate for the shares to which it relates
(if any) and such information as the Directors properly require to show the
right of the transferor to make the transfer, and in that event, the Company
must, subject to the powers vested in the Directors by this Constitution,
register the transferce as a shareholder;

The Company must register all registrable transfer forms, split certificates,
renunciations and transfers, issue certificates and transmissions receipts and
mark and note transfer forms without charge except in the case where the
Company issues certificates for shares where the issue of a certificate is to
replace a certificate lost or destroyed;
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(d)  On registration of a transfer of shares, the Company must cancel the old
certificate (if any);

6.3 A transferor of shares remains the holder of the shares untii the transfer (if any) is
registered and the name of the transferee is entered in the Register in respect of the
shares. The right to any dividends declared on any shares subject to a transfer will be
determined by a reference to the record date for the purposes of that dividend and the
date of registration of the transfer.

Market transfer
6.4 In the case of a Market Transfer the Company must comply with such obligations as

imposed on it by the Listing Rules and where approptiate the SCH business rules in
connection with any transfer of shares.

Directors power to decline to register

6.5 The Directors may decline to register any transfer of shares (other than a Market
Transfer) where:

(a) the Listing Rules or SCH Business Rules permit the Company to do so; or

(b)  the Listing Rutes or SCH Business Rules require the Company to do so.

6.6 If in the exercise of their rights under Clause 6.5 the Directors refuse to register a
wansfer of a security they must give written notice in accordance with the Listing
Rules of the refusal to the transferee and the broker lodging the transfer (if any)
Failure to give such notice will not invalidate the decision of the Directors.

6.7 Notwithstanding any other provisions contained in this Constitution, the Company
may not prevent, delay or interfere with the registration of a Market Transfer where
to do so would be contrary to the provisions of any of the Listing Rules or the SCH
business rules.

Closure of the register

6.8 Subject to the Act the Listing Rules and the SCH business rules the Company may at
any time close the Register for a period not exceeding in whole 30 days in any year.

Company to retain instrument of transfer

6.9 The Company must retain every instrument of transfer it receives pursuant to the
terms of this part for registration for such periods as the Directors determine.
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6.10 Where the Directors refuse registration of a transfer under this Constitution, the
transfer must be returned to the person who deposited it if demand is made within 12
months of the giving of notice of refusal to register unless there has been an
allegation of fraud concerning the transfer or the transaction to which it relates.

Other securities

6.11 The provisions of Clause 6 shall apply with necessary alterations to any lListed

Securities for the time being issued by the Company.

PART 7 TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

Transmission of shares on death of holder

7.1

In the case of the death of a Member, the survivor or survivors where the deceased
was a joint holder, and the legal personal representatives of the deceased where the
deceased was a sole holder, are the only persons recognised by the Company as
having any title to the deceased’s interest in the shares, but this Clause does not
release the estate of a deceased joint holder from any liability in respect of a share
that had been jointly held by the deceased with other persons.

Right to registration on death or bankruptcy

72

7.3

7.4

7.5

Subject to the Bankruptcy Act 1966, a person becoming entitled to a share in
consequence of the death or bankruptcy of @ Member may, on such information
being produced as is properly required by the Directors, ¢ither elect to be registered
as a holder of the share or nominate another person to be registered as the transferee
of the share. Where the surviving joint holder becomes entitled to a share in the
consequence of the death of a Member the Directors must, on satisfactory evidence
of that death being produced to them, direct the register to be altered accordingly.

If a person becoming entitled elects to be registered as a holder of the share under
Clause 7.2 the person must deliver or send to the Company a notice in writing signed
by the person in such form as the Directors approve stating that the person so elects.

If the person becoming entitled nominates another person to be registered as he
ransferee of the under Clause 7.2 the person must do all things necessary or
appropriate to effect the transfer.

All limitations, restrictions, and provisions of the Constitution the Listing Rules SCH
business rules or the Act relating to the right to transfer, and the registration of
transfer of, shares are applicable to any such notice or transfer as if the death or
bankruptey of the Member had not occurred and the actions and procedures taken to
effect the transfer were actions taken by that Member.
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Effect of transmission

7.6 If the registered holder of a share dies or becomes bankrupt, the personal
representative or the trustee of the estate of the registered holder, as the case may be,
is, on the production of such information as is properly required by the Directors,
entitled to the same dividends and advantages, and to the same rights (whether in
relation to meetings of the Company, or to voting or otherwise), as the registered
holder would have been entitled to if the registered holder had not died or become
bankrupt.

1.7 If 2 or more persons are jointly entitled to any share in consequence of the death of
the registered holder, they are, for the purpose of this Constitution, deemed to be
joint holder of the share.

Market Transfers not effected

78 In the case of a Market Transfer the provisions of this Clause 7 are subject to any
such obligation as may be imposed on the Company or the person entitled to the
shares in the death or bankruptcy of a Member by the Listing Rules, SCH business
rules or any law.

PART 8 FORFEITURE OF SHARES
Notice requiring payment of call

8.1 If a Member fails to pay a call or instalment of a call on the day appointed for
payment of the call or instalment, the Directors may, at any time thereafter during
such time as any part of the call or instalment remains unpaid, serve a notice on the
Member requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment as is unpaid, together
with any interest that has accrued and all costs and expenses that have been incutred
by the Company by reason of such non-payment.

8.2 The notice must name a further day being the date 10 Business Days after the day for
payment of the call or instalment on or before which the payment required by the
notice is to be made and must state that, in the event of non-payment at or before the
time appointed, the shares in respect of which the call was made will be liable to be
forfeited.

Forfeiture for failure to comply with notice

8.3 If the requirements of a notice served under Clause 8.1 are not complied with, any
share of which a call is unpaid at the expiration of 10 Business Days after the date
for its payment is there upon forfeited without any resolution of the Directors to that
effect.
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Such a forfeiture includes all dividends declared in respect of the forfeited shares and
not actually paid before the forfeiture.

Any share forfeited under Clause 8.3 may be sold, re-allotied or otherwise disposed
of to whom and on such terms and conditions, subject to the Act and Listing Rules,
as the Directors think fit.

If any share is forfeited under Clause 8.3, notice of the forfeiture must be given to the
Member holding the share immediately prior to the forfeiture and any entry of
forfeiture with the date thereof must be made on the Register.

The Directors may accept the surrender of any share which they are entitled to forfeit
on such terms as they think fit and any share so surrendered is deemed to be a
forfeited share.

Cancellation of forfeiture

8.8

At any time before the sale or disposition of a share, the forfeiture of that share may
be cancelled on such terms as the Directors think fit.

Effect of forfeiture on former holder’s liability

8.9

A person whose shares have been forfeited ceases to be a Member in respect of the
forfeited shares, but remains liable 1o pay the Company all money that, at the date of
forfeiture, was payable by that person to the Company in respect of the shares
(including interest at the rate, not exceeding 20% per annum, determined by the
Directors from the date of forfeiture on the money for the time being unpaid if the
Directors think fit to enforce payment of the interest and also expenses owing), but
that person’s liability ceases if and when the Company receives payment in full of all
money (including interest and expenses) so payable in respect of the shares.

Evidence of forfeiture

8.10

A statement in writing declaring that the person making the statement is a director or
the secretary of the Company, and that the share in the Company has been duly
forfeifed in accordance with this Constitution on a date stated in the statement, is
prima facie evidence of the facts stated in the statement as against all persons
claiming to be entitled to the share.

Transfer of forfeited share

8.11

The Company may receive the consideration (if any) given for a forfeited share on
any sale or disposition of the share and may effect a transfer of the share in favour of
the person to whom the share is sold or disposed.

i i camem mmmd i e
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Upon the effecting of the transfer, the transferee must be registered as the holder of
the share and is not bound to see to the application of any money paid as
consideration.

The title of the transferee to the share is not effected by any irregularity or invalidity
in connection with the forfeited share, sale or disposal of the share.

Forfeiture applies {o non-payment of instalment

8.14 The provisions of this Constitution as to forfeiture apply in the case of non-payment
of any sum that, by the terms of the issue of the share, become payable at a fixed
time, whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium, as
if that sum had been payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

8.15 Where the transfer of forfeited shares is to be effected by a SCH regulated transfer,
the Company may do all such things as may be necessary or appropriate for it to do
under SCH business rules.

Listing Rules

8.16 The Company shall comply with the Listing Rules with respect to forfeited shares.

PART 9 GENERAL MEETINGS

Annual General Meetings

9.1 Annual general meetings of the Company are to be held in accordance with the Act
and Listing Rules.

General Meeting

9.2 A Director may convene a general meeting of the Company whenever they think fit
provided that if there are no Directors holding office the Secretary shall convene a
general meeting for the purpose of electing Directors,

Notice of General Mceting

9.3 Subject to the Listing Rules and the provisions of the Act relating to special

resolutions and agreements for shorter notice, at least 28 days’ notice (exclusive of
the day on which the notice is served or deemed to be served and of the day for
which notice is given) specify the place, day and the hour of the meeting and, in the
case of special business, the general nature of that business, must be given to such
persons as are entitled to receive notices from the Company for the purposes of
receipt of proxy appointments the notice must specify a place and fax number and
may specify an electronic address.
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9.4 The non-receipt of a notice of a general meeting by, or the accidental omission to
give notice of a general meeting to, a person entitled to receive notice does not
invalidate any resolution passed at the general meeting.

Special business of general meeting

9.5 All business that is transacted at a general meeting is special with the exception at an
annual general meeting of the declaration of a dividend, the consideration of
accounts and the reports of the Directors and the Auditor, the appointment of the
Auditor and the election of Directors.

Requisitioned meeting

9.6 A general meeting shall also be convened on requisition as is provided for by the Act
or in default may be convened by such requisitionists as empowered to do so by the
Act.

Objects of requisitioned meeting

9.7 The requisition for a general meeting must state any resolution to be proposed at the
meeting and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Registered
Office, and may consist of several documents if the writing of the request is identical
in each copy each signed by one or more of the requisitionists.

Expenses of requisitioned meeting

9.8 Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of failure of the
Directors to convene a peneral meeting must be paid to the requisitionists by the
Company and any sum so paid may be recovered by the Company in the manner
provided in Section 249E (5) of the Act.

Postponement or cancellation of meeting

9.9 The Directors may postpone or cancel any general meeting whenever they think fit
(other than a meeting convened as the result of a requisition under Clause 9.6).

Notice to ASX
9.10 The Company shall notify the ASX:

(a)  of any general meeting at which the Directors are to be elected at least 20
Business Days before the earliest intended date of the general meeting and
that notice shall state that nominations for the election to the office of
Director is to be received not later than 5 Business days after the date that the
notice 10 the ASX bears, or any intended time as the Directors shall
determine;
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(b)  of any general meeting (other than a meeting to pass a special resolution) at
least 10 Business Days before such meeting is held; and

(c) of any general meeting convened to pass a special resolution, at least 15
Business Days before such meeting is held.

A notice convening a general meeting must:

(a) set out the place, date and time for the meeting (and, if the meeting is to be
held in 2 or more places, the technology that will be used to facilitate this);
and;

(b) state the general nature of the meeting’s business; and

{c) if a special resolution is proposed at the meeting- set out an intention to
propose the special resolution and state the resolution; and.

(d) if a Member is entitled to appoint a proxy- contain a statement in writing
setting out the following information:

(i) that the Member has a right to appoint a proxy;
(ii)  whether or not the proxy needs to be a Member of the Company,
(i)  that a Member who is entitled to cast 2 or more votes may appoint 2

proxies and may specify the proportion or number of votes each proxy
is appointed to exercise.

PART 10 PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Representation of a Member

10.1

10.2

10.3

Any Member may be represented at any general meeting of the Company by a proxy
or attorney.

If a body corporate is a Member it may also, by resolution of its Directors or other
governing body, authorise such person as it thinks fit to act as its representative
either in a particular general meeting or at all general meetings of the Company or of
any class of Members.

A person authorised under Clause 10.2 is, in accordance with that authority and until
it is revoked by the body corporate, entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of
that body corporate as the body corporate could exercise if it were a natural person
who was a Member.
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Unless the contrary intention appears, a reference to a Member in the succeeding
provisions of this Part 10 means a Member, a proxy or power of attorney of a
Member or a person appointed under Clause 10.2 to represent a corporate body
which is a Member.

No business may be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum is present
comprising 3 Member (or one Member if the Company bas only one Member)
present in person or by proxy, attorney or representative appointed under Clause 10.2
and entitled to vote at the meeting. If a quorum is present at the beginning of a
meeting it is deemed present throughout the meeting unless the chairman of the
meeting otherwise declares, on the chairman’s own motion or at the insistence of a
Member, proxy, attorney or representative appointed under Clause 10.2.

Failure to achieve a quorum

10.6

10.7

If a meeting is convened on the requisition of Members and a quorum is not present
within half an hour from the time appointed for the meeting, the meeting must be
disselved.

If a meeting is convened in any other case and a quorum is not present within half an
hour from the time appointed for the meeting:

(a) the meeting must be adjoumed to such day, time and place as the Directors
determine or if no determination is made by them to the same day in the next

week at the same time and place; and

(b) if a at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour
from the time appointed for the meeting:

(1) 2 Members present in person or by proxy, attorney or representative
appointed under Clause 10.2 constitute a quorum; or

(ii) where 2 such persons are not present - the meeting must be dissolved.

Appointment and powers of chairman of general meetings

10.8

10.9

If the Directors have elected one of their number as chairman of their meeting, that
person must preside as chairman at every general meeting.

If a general meeting is held and:

(a) a chairman has not been elected as provided by in Clause 10.8; or
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(b)  the chairman is not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for the
holding of the meeting or is unable or unwilling to act, then the deputy
chairman elected under Clause 13.16 (if any) must act as chairman of the
meeting. 1f there is no such person or that person is absent or unable or
unwilling to act, the Directors present must elect one of their number to be
chairman of the meeting, or, if no Director is present or if all Directors
present decline to take the chair, the members present must elect one of their
number as chairman of the meeting.

The chairman is responsible for the general conduct of a general meeting and may
make rulings and in addition to any general power to adjourn may adjourn the
meeting without putting the question to the vote if such action is required tO ensure
the orderly conduct of the meeting.

Adjournment of general meeting

The chairman may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present,
and must if so directed by the meeting, adjoum the meeting from a day to day, time
to time and from place to place, but no business may be transacted at any adjourned
meeting other than business left unfinished at the meeting from which the
adjournment took place.

When a meeting is adjourned for 30 days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting
must be given as in the case of the original meeting.

Except as provided by Clause 10.12, it is not necessary to give any notice of an
adjournment or of the business 1o be transacted at any adjourned meeting.

Voting at general meetings

10.14

At any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting must be decided
on a show of hands unless a poll is demanded:

(a) By the chairman;

(b) by not less than 5 members having the right to vote at the meeting: or

(c) by a Member or Members present who are together entitled to not less than
5% of the total voting rights of all the Members having the right to vote on
the resclution at the meeting.

A poll may be demanded:

(a) before a vote is taken;

() before the voting results on a show of hands are declared; or
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(c) immediately after the voting results on a show of hands are declared.

Unless a poll is properly demanded, a declaration by the chairman that a resolution
has on a show of hands been carried or carried unanimously, or by a particular
majority, or lost, and an entry to that effect in the book containing the minutes of the
proceedings of the Company, is conclusive evidence of the fact without proof of the
number or proportion of the votes recorded in favour or against the resolution
provided that the declaration reflects the show of hands and the votes of the proxies
received.

Before a vote is faken the chairman must inform the meeting whether any proxy
votes have been received and how votes are to be cast.

Questions decided by majority

10.15 Subject to the requirements of the Act in relation to special resolutions, a resolution
is taken to be carried if the proportion that the number of votes cast in favour of the
resolution exceeds one half of the total number of votes cast on the resolution.

Poll

10.16 If a poll is properly demanded, it must be taken in such a manner and (subject to
Clause 10.17) either at once or after an interval or adjournment or otherwise as the
chairman directors, and the result of the poll is the resolution of the meeting at which
the poll was demanded.

10.17 A poll demanded on the election of a chairman or on a question of adjournment must
be taken immediately.
10.18 The demand for a poll may be withdrawn.
Equality of votes
10.19 In the case of an equality of votes, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, the

chairman of the meeting at which the show of hands takes place or at which the poll
is demanded, in addition to the vote or votes (if any) to which the chairman may be
entitled as a Member, proxy, representative or attorney shall not have a casting vote.

Entitlement to vote

10.20

Subject to any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes
of shares at a general meeting of Members or classes of Members:

(a) each Member entitled fo vote may vote in person or by proxy, attorney or
representative;
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(b)  on a show of hands, every person present who is a Member or a proxy,
attorney or a representative of a Member has one vofte;

{c) on a poll, every person present who is a Member or a proxy, aitorney or
representative of a Member shall, in respect of each fully paid share held by
him, or in respect of which he is appointed a proxy, attorney or representative
, have on vote for the share, but in respect of partly paid shares, shall have a
fraction of a vote for each partly paid share. The fraction must be equivalent
to the proportion which the amount paid (not credited) is of the total amounts
paid and payable (excluding amounts credited). In this Clause, amounts paid
in advance of a call are ignored when calculating proportion.

If a Member is present at any meeting of the Company and any one or more proxy,
attorney or representative of such Member is also present, or if more than one proxy,
attorney or representative for a Member is present at any meeting of the Company
then no such proxy, atiorney or representative is entitled to vote on a show of hands
and on a poll the vote of each one is of no effect unless each such person is
appointed to represent a specified proportion of the Member’s voting rights, not
exceeding in aggregate 100%.

Joint shareholder’s vote

10.22

In the case of joint holders of a share in the Company the vote of the senior who
tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, attorney or representative must be
accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders and, for this purpose,
seniority is determined by the order in which the names stand in the Register.

Votes of shareholder of unsound mind

10.23

If a Member is of unsound mind or is a person whose person or estate is liable to be
dealt with in any way under the law relating to mental health then the Member’s
committee or trustee or such other person as properly has the management of the
Member’s estate may exercise any rights of the Member in relation to a general
meeting as if the committee, trustee or other person were a Member.

Effect of unpaid call

10.24

A Member is not entitled 1o vote a general meeting in respect of those shares on
which calls are outstanding; this restriction does not apply in respect of those shares
on which no calls are outstanding.

Objection to voting qualification

10.25

An objection may be raised to the qualification of a voter only at the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the vote objected to is given or tendered.
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Any such objection must be referred to the chairman of the meeting, whose decision
is final.

A vote not disaliowed under such an objection is valid for all purposes.

Appointment of proxy

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

(a) A Member of a Company who is entitled to attend and cast a vote al a
meeting of the Company’s members may appoint a person as the member’s
proxy to attend and vote for the Member at the meeting.

(b)  The appointment may specify the proportion or number of votes that the
Proxy, may exercise.

(©) Each Member may appoint a proxy. If the Member is entitled to cast 2 or
more votes at the meeting, they may appoint 2 proxies. If the Member
appoints 2 proxies and the appointment does not specify the proportion or
number of the Member’s votes each proxy may exercise, cach proxy may
exercise half of the votes.

(d)  Disregard any fractions of votes resulting from the application of paragraphs
(b) and (c ).

An instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing under the hand of the appointor
or of the appointor’s attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a
corporation, under seal (where the corporation has adopted a seal). A proxy need not
be a Member.

An instrument appointing a proxy may specify the manner in which the proxy is to
vote in respect of a particular resolution and, where an instrument of proxy so
provides, the proxy is not entitled to vote on the resolution except as specified in the
instrument.

An instrument appointing a proxy is deemed to confer authority to demand or join in
demanding a poll.

An instrument appointing a proxy must:

(a) be in the form approved by the Directors from time to time and which
complies with the Act and;

(b)  comply with the Listing Rules.

The Directors must issue with the notice of a meeting a form of proxy in blank as to
the first proxy but may include the name of any suggested alternative or other proxy.
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Deposit of proxy and other instruments

10.34

An instrument appointing a proxy may not be treated as valid unless the instrument,
and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which the instrument is
signed or a copy of the facsimile which appears on its face to be an authentic copy of
that power or authority certified as a true copy by statutory declaration is or are
received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for the holding of
the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument
proposes to vote at the Registered Office or share registry of the Company or at such
place as specified for that purpose in the notice convening the meeting.

Validity of vote in certain circumstances

10.35

A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy or of a power of
attorney is valid notwithstanding the previous death or unsoundness of mind of the
principal, the revocation of the instrument (or of the authority under which the
instrument was executed) or of the power, or of the transfer of the share in respect of
which the instrument or power is given, if no intimation in writing of the death,
unsoundness of mind, revocation or transfer has been received by the Company at its
Registered Office or share registry before the commencement of the meeting or
adjourned meeting at which the instrument is used or power exercised.

Director entitled to notice of meeting

10.36 A Director is entitled to receive notice of and attend all general meetings and all
separate general meetings of the holders of any class of shares in the Company and is
entitled to speak at those meetings.

PART 11 THE DIRECTORS

Number and Appointment of Directors

1.1

11.2

The number of Directors must not be less than 3 nor more than 10 or such lesser
number as the Directors determine provided that the number so determined must not
be less than the number of Directors when the determination takes effect. The names
of the first Directors of the Company shall be the persons nominated with their
consent in the application for the registration of the Company or the Directors in
office at the time of adoption of this Constitution and will continue in office subject
to the provisions of this Constitution as the case may be.

The Company in general meeting may, by resolution increase or reduce the number
of Directors and may also determine in what rotation the increase or reduced number
is to go out of office.
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Subject to Clause 13.39 at the Annual General Meeting in every ycar one-~third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number 15 not nor a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to one-third, and any other Director not in such one-third who has
held office for 3 years or more (except a Managing Director), must retire from office.

A retiring Director is eligible for re-election.

The Directors to retire at any general meeting must be those who have been longest
in office since their last election, but, as between persons who became Directors on
the same day, those to retire must (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

No Director except a managing Director shall hold office for a period in excess of 3
years or until the third annual general meeting following his appointment whichever
is the longer without submitting himself for re-election.

Election of Directors

11.7

11.8

No person other than a Director seeking re-clection shall be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting unless he or some sharcholder intending
to propose him has not later than 5 Business Days after the date shown on the notice
to the ASX referred to in Clause 9.10(a), left at the Registered Office a notice in
writing duly signed by the nominee giving his consent to the nomination and
signifying his candidature for the office or the intention of such sharcholder to
propose him. Notice of each and every candidature for election as a Director shall be
given to each shareholder with or as part of the notice of the meeting at which the
election is to take place. The Company shall observe the requirements of Section
201E of the Act with respect to election of Directors.

Where the number of nominations for the election of a Director exceeds the number
of Directors who have or are to resign at the general meeting, the order in which the
nominations are to be voted on shall be determined by drawing lots and once the
relevant vacancies have been filled. no further nominations shall be voted on.

Qualification of Directors

11.9

11.10

A Director is not required to hold any share in the Company.

A person over the age of 72 years may not be appointed or re-appointed as a Director
except pursuant to a resolution of the Company in accordance with the Act.
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Casual vacancy

11.11

11.12

The Company in general meeting may by resolution and the Directors may at any
time appoint any person to be a Director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Directors, but so that the total number of Directors does not
at any time exceed the number determined in accordance with Clauses 11.1 and 11.2.

Any Director appointed under Clause 11.11 holds office until the next annual general
meeting of the Company and is then eligible for re-clection but is not taken into
account in determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting.

Removal of Director

11.13

11.14

The Company in general meeting may by resolution (of which a special notice is
given in accordance with the Act ) remove any Director from office and may by
resolution appoint another person in that Director’s stead.

Any Director appointed under Clause 11.13 is to be treated, for the purpose of
determining the time at which that Director or any other Director is to retire, as if
that Director had become a Director on the day on which the Director in whose place
that Director was appointed was last elected as a Director.

Remuneration of Directors

11.15

il.16

11.17

The Directors shall be paid out of the funds of the Company, by way of remuneration
for their services as Directors, a sum not exceeding such fixed sum per annum as
may be determined by the Directors prior to the first annual general mecting of the
Company, to be divided among themselves and in default of agreement then in equal
shares. The remuneration of the Directors shall not be increased except pursuant to a
resolution passed at a general meeting of the Company where notice of such
suggested increase shall have been given to the Members in the notice convening the
meeting. No non-executive Director shall be paid as part or whole of his
remuneration a commission on or a percentage of profits or a commission on or a
percentage of operating revenue, and no Executive Director shall be paid as whole or
part of his remuneration a commission on or a percentage of operating revenue.

The Director’s remuneration is deemed to accrue from day to day.

If a Director, being willing, is called on to perform extra services or to make any
special exertions in going or residing abroad or otherwise for the Company, the
Company may remunerate that Director by payment of a fixed sum determined by
the Directors and that remuneration may either be in addition to or in substitution for
that Director’s share in the remuneration provided for in Clause 11.15.
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The Directors may also be paid all travelling and other expenses properly incurred by
them in attending, participating in and returning from meetings of the Directors or
any committee of the Directors or general meetings of the Company or otherwise in
connection with the business of the Company.

Director's interests

11.19

11.20

11.21

Subject to clause 11.20 no Director is disqualified by his office from contracting
with the Company whether as a vendor purchaser or otherwise, nor shall any such
contract or any contract or arrangement entered into by or on behaif of the Company
in which any Director shall be in any way interested be avoided pr prejudiced on that
account, nor shall any Director be lable to account to the Company for any profit
arising from any such contract or agreement by reason only of such Director holding
that office or of the fiduciary relationship thereby established.

A Director who has a material personal interest in a matter that relates to the affairs
of the Company must give notice of the interest unless such interest falls within the
exception of Section 191 (2) of the Act The nature of the interest must be disclosed
by the Director at a directors’ meeting as soon as practicable after the relevant facts
have come to his knowledge and such director must comply with the requirements of
Sections 191,192 and 195 of the Act.

Subject to the requirements of Sections 191 and 192 of the Act, a standing notice that
a director has an interest in any matter shail be sufficient disclosure under this clause
as regards the interest of the Director in any transactions relating to the matter and
after such standing notice it shall not be necessary for such Director to give special
notice relating to any particular transaction relating to that matter.

Related Body Corporate Contracts

11.22

Subject to the requirement of Chapter 2E and of Section 191 of the Act a Director
shall not be deemed to be interested or to have been at any time interested in any
contract or arrangement by reason only that in a case where the contact or
arrangement has been or will be made with, for the benefit of, or on behalf of a
Related Body Corporate, he is a shareholder in that Related Body Corporate.

Vacation of office of Director

11.23

In addition to the circumstances in which the office of a Director becomes vacant
under the Act, the office of a Director becomes vacant if the Director:

{a) becomes of unsound mind or a person whose person or estate is liable to be
dealt with in any way under the law relating to mental health;

(b)  resigns from office by notice in writing to the Company;
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(c) is absent without consent of the remaining Directors from meetings of the
Directors held during a period of 6 months;

(d) is removed from office under Clause 11.13;

®) ceases to be a Director by virtue of Section 206A or any other provision of
the Act;

|
|
| {H becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his
| creditors generally; or

(g)  becomes prohibited from being a Director by reason of any order made under

| the Act. “

PART 12 POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

Directors to manage Company

12.1 Subject to the Act, the Listing Rules and to any other provision of this Constitution
the business of the Company is managed by the Directors, who may exercise all such
powers of the Company as are not, by the Act or by this Constitution, required to be
exercised by the Company in general meeting.

12.2 Without limiting the generality of Clause 12.1, the Directors may at any time:

(a) exercise all powers of the Company to borrow or raise money, to charge any
property ot business of the Company or all of its uncalled capital and to issue
debentures or give any other security for a debt, liability or obligation of the :
Company or of any person; 0 '

(b) seil or otherwise dispose of the whole or any part of the assets, undertakings
and other properties of the Company or any that may be hereafter acquired
on such terms and conditions as they may deem advisable, but

(1) the Company shall comply with the Listing Rules;

(i)  any sale or disposal of the Company’s main undertaking shall only be
made subject to prior approval or ratification of the sale or disposal by
the Company in general meeting; and




12.3

12.4

12.5

3]

(iii)  on the sale or disposition of the Company’s main undertaking or on
the liquidation of the Company, no commission or fee shall be paid to
any Director or Directors or to any liquidator of the Company unless
it shall have been ratified by the Company in general meeting, with
prior notification of the amount of such proposed payments having
been given to all Members at least 10 days prior to the meeting at
which any such payment is to be considered; and

(c) take any action necessary or desirable to enable the Company to comply with
the Listing Rules.

The Directors may raise or secure the payment or repayment of moneys o any debt,
liability or obligation in such manrer and on such terms and conditions in all
respects as they may determine and in particular by the issue of debentures,
debenture stock (perpetual or otherwise), bonds, notes or other securities or debt
instruments the payment of which may be charged on ali or any part of the property
of the Company (both present and future) including uncalled capital for the time
being.

Debentures, debenture stock, bonds notes ot other securities or debt instruments may
be assignable free from equities between the Company and the person to whom the
same may be issued.

Any debentures, debenture stock, bonds notes or other securities or debt instrioments
may be issued at the discretion of the Directors .at a discount, premium or otherwise
and with any special privileges as to redemption, surrender, drawings allotment of
shares, attending and voting at general meetings of the Company, appoiniment of
Directors and otherwise.

Appointment of attorney

12.6

Minutes

12.8

The Directors may, by power of attorney, appoint any person to be the attorney or
attomeys of the Company for such purposes, with such powers, authorities and
discretions (being powers, authorities and discretions vested in or exercisable by the
Directors), for such period and subject to such conditions as they think fit.

Any such power of attorney may contain such provisions for the protection and
convenience of persons dealing with the attorney as the Directors think fit and may
also authorise the attorney to delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and
discretions vested in the attorney.

The Directors must cause minutes to be made:
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(a) of the names of the Directors present at or involved in the general meetings
of the Directors; and

(b) of all proceedings of general meetings and meetings of Directors,

and cause those minutes to be entered, within one month after the relevant meeting is
held, in the minute book.

The minutes referred to in Clause 12.8 must be signed by the chairman of the
meeting at which the proceedings took place or by the chairman of the next
succeeding meeting.

Execution of Company cheques etc.

12.10

All cheques, promissory notes, bankers drafts, bills of exchange and other negotiable
instruments, and all receipts for money paid to the Company, must be signed, drawn,
accepted, endorsed or otherwise executed, as the case may be, in such manner and by
such persons as the Directors determine from time to time.

Retirement Benefits for Directors

12.11

The Directors may at any time adopt any scheme or plan which they consider to be in
the interest of the Company and which is designed to provide for retiring or
superannuation benefits for both present and future non-executive Directors, and
they may from time to time vary any such scheme or plan. Any scheme or plan may
be effected by agreements entered into by the Company with individual Directors, or
by the establishment of a separate trust or fund, or in such other manner as the
Directors consider proper. The Directors may attach such terms and conditions to
any entitlement under any such scheme or plan as they think fit, including, without
limitation, a minimum period of service by a Director before the accrual of any
entitlement and the acceptance by the Director of a prescribed retiring age. No such
scheme or plan shall operate to confer upon any Director or on any dependants of any
Director any benefits exceeding those permitted by 200G of the Act, except with the
approval of the Company in general meeting.

Securities to Directors

12.12

If the Director acting solely in his capacity as a Director of the Company shall
become personally liable for payment of any such sum primarily due by the
Company, the Directors may create any morigage, charge or security over or
affecting the whole or any part of the assets of the Company by way of indemnity to
secure the person or persons so becoming liable from any loss in respect of such
liability.
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PART 13 PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS
Directors meetings

3.1 The Directors may meet together for the dispatch of business and adjoumn and
otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit.

13.2 A Director may at any time, and the Secretary must on the requisition of a Director, :
convene a meeting of the Directors but not less than 24 hours notice of every such Directors
meeting shall be given to each Director either by personal telephone contact or in writing by the :
convenor thereof, The Directors may by unanimous resolution agree to shorter notice.

O Questions decided by majority -

13.3 Subject to this Constitution, and the provisions of Section 195 of the Act questions
arising at a meeting of the Directors arc to be decided by a majority of votes of the
Directors involved and voting and any such decision is for all purposes deemed a
decision of the Directors.

13.4 An Alternate Director involved in any meeting of the Directors has one vote for each
Director for which that person is an Alternate Director and if that person is also a '
Director has one vote as a Director.

13.5 In the event of there being an equality of votes, the chairman of the meeting, in
addition to the chairman’s deliberate vote, shall not have a casting vote on a
question.
Alternate Directors
‘ 13.6 A Director may, with the approval of the Directors, appoint a person (whether a
Member of the Company or not) to be an Alternate director in the Director’s place

during such period as the Director thinks fit.

13.7 An Alternate Director is entitled to notice of all meetings of the Directors and, if the
appointor is not involved in such a meeting, is entitled to participate and vote in the
appointor’s stead.

13.8 An Alternate Director may exercise any powers that the appointor may exercise and
in the exercise of any such power the Alternate Director the Alternate Director is an
officer of the Company and is not deemed an agent of the appointor.

13.9 An Alternate Director is not required to hold any share in the Company.
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13.11

13.12

13.13
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An Alternate Director is subject in all respects to the conditions attaching to the
Directors generally except that an Alternate Director is not entitled to any
remuneration under Clause 11.15 otherwise than from the Alternate Director’s
appointot.

The appointment of an Alternate Director may be terminated at any time by the
appointor notwithstanding that the period of the appointment of the Alternate
Director has not expired, and terminates in any event if the appointor vacates office
as a Director.

An appointment, or the termination of, an Alternate Director must be effected by
notice in writing signed by the Director who makes or made the appointment and
served on the Company.

The notice of appointment, or the termination of an appointment of an Alternate
Director may be served on the Company by leaving it at the Registered Office or by
forwarding it by facsimile transmission to the Registered Office and in case of a
facsimile transmission, the appearance at the end of the message of the name of the
Director appointing or terminating the appointment is sufficient evidence that the
Director has signed the notice.

Quorum for Directors meetings

13.14

At a meeting of the Directors, the number of Directors whose involvement is
necessary to constitute a quorum is 2 or such greater number as is determined by the
Directors from time to time. However if there are not enough directors to form a
quorum for a directors meeting because of the provisions of Sub-section 195 (1) of
the Act one or more directors (including those who have a material personal interest
in that matter) may call a general meeting and the general meeting may pass a
resolution 1o deal with the matter. Provided a quorum is present at the place where
the meeting is held, other Directors unable to atiend in person may participate in the
proceedings of the meeting in accordance with Clauses 13.32 and 13.33.

Remaining Directors may act

13.15

In the event of a vacancy or vacancies in the office of a Director or offices of
Directors, the remaining Director or Directors may act but, if the number of
remaining Directors is not sufficient to constitute a quorum at a meeting of Directors,
they may act only for the purpose of:

(a) increasing the number of Directors to a number sufficient to constitute such a
quorum; or
(b) convening a general meeting of the Company.




35

Chairman of Directors

13.16

13.17

The Directors must elect one of their number as chairman of their meetings and may
determine the period for which the person elected as chairman is to hold office. The
Directors may also elect on ¢ of their number as deputy-chairman of their meetings
and may determine the period for which that person elected as deputy-chairman is to
hold office.

When a Directors meeting is held and:
(a) a chairman has not been elected as provided by Clause 13.16; or

(b)  the chairman is not present within 10 minutes after the time appointed for the
holding of the meeting or is unable or unwilling to act,

the deputy-chairman (if any) must act as chairman of the meeting. [f there is no such
person or that person is absent or unable or unwilling to act, the Directors involved
must elect one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.

Directors committees

13.18

13.19

13.20

13.21

13.22

13.23

The Directors may delegate any of their powers, other than powers required by law to
be dealt with by the Directors as a board, to a committee or committees consisting of
at least one of their number and such persons as they think fit.

A committee to which any powers have been so delegated must exercise the powers
delegated in accordance with any directions of the Directors and a power so
exercised is deemed to have been exercised by the Directors.

The Member, of such committee may elect one of their number as chairman of their
meetings.

If such a meeting is held and:
(a) a chairman has not been elected as provided by Clause 13.20; or

(b)  the chairman is not present within 10 minutes after the time appointed for the
holding of the meeting or is unable or unwilling to act,

the Mempbers involved may elect one of their number to be chairman of the meeting.
A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper.

Questions arising at a meeting of a committce are to be determined by a majority of
votes of the members involved and voting.
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13.24 In the event of there being an equality of votes, the chairman shall not have a casting
vote,

Written resolution by Directors

13.25 A resolution in writing signed by all of the Directors for the time being or their
respective Alternate Director (except those Directors (or their alternatives) who
expressly indicate their abstention in writing to the Company and those who would
not be permitted by virtue of Section 195 of the Act to voie were the resolution to be
put to a meeting of the Directors) shall be as valid and effectual as if it had been
passed at a Director’s meeting duly convened and held. Any such resolution may
consist of several documents in like form but each document must contain a
statement that the Directors are in favour of the resolution and the wording of the
resolution and the statement of the Directors must be identical and each document
signed by one or more of the Directors. A telex, telegram, facsimile transmission or
other document produced by mechanical means and bearing the signature of the
Director, printed mechanically and with his authority, shall be decmed to be a
document in writing signed by the Director.

Defective appointment

13.26 All acts done by any Directors’ meeting or committee of Directors or by any person
acting as a Director are, notwithstanding that it is afterwards discovered that there
was some defect in the appointment of a person to be, or to act as, a Director or that
person so appointed was disqualified, as valid as if the person had been duly
appointed and was qualified to be a Director or to be a member of the committee.

Directors May Hold Other Offices

13.27 A Director may hold any other office or place of profit in or in relation to the
Company (except that of auditor) in conjunction with his office of Director and on
such terms as to remuneration or otherwise as the Directors shall approve.

Directors May Hold Shares etc

13.28 A Director may become a shareholder in or director of or hold any office or place of
profit in or in relation any company promoted by the Company or in which the
Company may be interested, whether as to vendor, shareholder or otherwise.

Directors Not Accountable for Benefits
13.29 No Director shall be accountable for any benefits received as the holder of any office

or place of profit in or in relation to the Company or any other company referred (o
in Clause 13.28 or as a shareholder in or director of any such company.
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Voting, Affixation of Seal

13.30

A Director may in all respects act as a Director in relation to any contract or
arrangement in which he is interested, including, without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, in relation to the execution of the contract or agreement or the use of
the Company’s common seal, but he may not vote in relation to any contract or
proposed contract or arrangement in which he has directly or indirectly a material
interest and in that respect he shall comply with the requirements of Section 191 and
192 of the Act.

ASX to be Advised

13.31

The Directors shall advise the Company, which in turn shall advise the ASX without
delay of any material contract involving Directors’ interests. The advice shall
include at least the following information:

(a) the names of the parties to the contract;

(b) the name or names of the Director or Directors who has or have any material
interest in the contract;

{c) particulars of the contract; and

(d) particulars of the relevant Directors’ or Directors interest or interests in that
contract.

Meetings to be Effectual

13.32

For the purposes of this Constitution, but subject to Clause 13.14, the
contemporaneous linking together by instantaneous communication device of a
number of consenting Directors not less than a quorum, whether or not any one or
more of the Directors is out of Australia, shall be deemed to constitute a Directors’
meeting and all of the provisions of this Constitution as to the Directors’ meetings
shall apply to such meetings held by instantaneous communication device so long as
the following conditions are met:

(a) all of the Directors for the time being entitled to receive notice of the
Directors’ meeting (including any alternate for any Director) shall be entitled
to notice of a meeting by instantaneous communication device for the
purpose of such meeting. Notice of any such Directors’ meeting shall be
given on the instantaneous communication device or in any other manner
permitted by this Constitution;

(b) each of the Directors’ faking part in the Directors’ meeting by instantaneous
communication device must be able to hear each of the other Directors taking
part at the commencement of the Directors’ meeting;
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(c) at the commencement of the Directors’ meeting each Director must
acknowledge his presence for the purpose of a Directors’ meeting of the
Company to all other Directors taking part.

Procedure at Mectings

13.33

Minutes

13.34

Definition

13.35

A Director may not leave a Directors’ meeting held under Clause 13.32 by
disconnecting his instantaneous communication device unless he has previously
obtained the express consent of the Chairman of the Directors’ meeting and shall be
conclusively presumed to have been present and to have formed part of a quorum at
all time during the Directors’ meeting by instantaneous communication device unless
he previously obtained the express consent of the Chairman of the Directors’ meeting
to leave the meeting as aforesaid. However, if the Director would not be permitted
by virtue of Section 195 of the Act to be present or to vote during the consideration
of a matter then such Director may disconnect his instantanecous communication
device during the consideration of such matter without obtaining express consent of
the Chairman and shall not be counted for the purpose of determining a quorum
during the consideration of that matter.

A minute of the proceedings at a Directors’ meeting held under Clause 13.32 shall be
sufficient evidence of such proceedings and the observance of all necessary
formalities if certified as a correct minute by the chairman or the person taking the
chair at the Directors’ meeting under Clause 13.32.

For the purpose of this Constitution “instantaneous communication device” shall
include telephone, television or any other audio or audio-visual device which permits
instantaneous communication,

Appointment of Managing Director

13.36

The Directors may from time to time appoint one or more of their number to the
office of Managing Director or Managing Directors of the Company or to the office
of Executive Director or Executive Directors either for a fixed term or at will, but not
for life and, subject to the terms of any agreement entered into in a particular case,
may revoke any such appointment. The appointment of a Managing Director or
Executive Director so appointed automatically terminates if he ceases for any reason
to be a Director.
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Remuneration

13.37

Subject to Clause 11.15 a Managing Director or Executive Director shall, subject to
the terms of any agreement entered into in a particular case, receive such
remuneration (whether by way of salary, commission or participation in profits, or
partly in one way and partly in another) as Directors may determine.

Powers

13.38 The Directors may, upon such terms and conditions and with such restrictions as they
think fit confer upon a Managing Director or Executive Director any of the powers
exercisable by them. Any powers so conferred may be concurrent with, or be to the
exclusion of, the powers of the Directors. The Directors may at any time withdraw
or vary any of the powers so conferred on a Managing Director or an Executive
Director.

Rotation

13.39 A Managing Director shall not retire by rotation in accordance with Clause 11.3, but
if there is more than one Managing Director then the first appointed Managing
Director shall not be subject to re-election and the other Managing Director and the
Executive Directors shall be subject to re-election.

PART 14 SECRETARY

Appointment of Secretary

14.1 There must be at least one Secretary of the Company who may be appointed by the

Directors for such term, at such remuneration and on such conditions as they think
fit.

Suspension and removal of Secretary

14.2

The Directors have the power to suspend or remove the Secretary.

Powers and duties of the Secretary

14.3 The Dircctors may vest in a Secretary such powers, duties and authorities as they
may from time to time determine and a Secretary must exercise all such powers and
authorities subject at all times to the contro! of the Directors.

Secretary to attend meeting

14.4 ‘A Secretary is entitled to participate in all meetings of the Directors and all general

meetings of the Company and may be heard on any matter.
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PART 15 COMMON SEAL AND OFFICAL SEAL
Custody of common seal

15.1 The Directors may provide for a common seal and must provide for the safe custody
of the common seal.

Use of common seal

152 The common seal may be used only by the authority of the Directors, or of a
committee of the Directors autherised by the Directors to authorise the use of the
common seal, and every document to which the common seal is affixed must be
signed by a Director and be countersigned by another Director, a Secretary or another
person appointed by the Directors to countersign that document or a class of
documents in which that document is included.

Execution of Documents without Common Seal

15.3 The Company may execute a document without using a common seal if the
document is signed by:

{a) 2 directors; or

) a Director and a Secretary.

PART 16 INSPECTION OF RECORDS

Inspection by Members

16.1 Except as otherwise required by the Act, the Directors may determine whether and to
what extent, and at what times and places and under what conditions, the accounting
records and other documents of the Company or any of them will be open to the
inspection of the Members other than Directors, and a Member other than a Director
does not have the right to inspect any document of the Company except as provided
by law or authorised by the Directors or by the Company in general meeting.

PART 17 DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES

Declaration of dividend

17.1 Subject to the rights of persons (if any) entitled by shares with special rights to
dividends, the Directors may declare a final dividend out of profits in accordance
with the Act and may authorise the payment or crediting by the Company to the
Members of such dividend.
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Directors may authorise interim dividend
17.2 The Directors may authorise the payment or crediting by the Company to the
Members of such interim dividends as appear to the Directors to be justified by the
profits of the Company.

No interest on dividends

17.3 Interest may not be paid by the Company in respect of any dividend, whether final or
interim.

Reserves and profits carried forward
17.4 The Directors may, before declaring any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the

Company such sums as they think proper as reserves, 10 be applied, at the discretion
of the Directors, for any purpose for which the profits of the Company may be

properly applied.

17.5 Pending any such application, the reserves may, at the discretion of the Directors, be
used in the business of the Company or be invested in such investments as the
Directors think fit.

17.6 The Directors may carry forward so much of the profits remaining as they consider

ought not to be distributed without transferring those profits to a reserve.
Calculation and apportionment of dividends

17.7 Subject to the rights of persons (if any) entitled to shares with special rights as to
dividends and subject to the Listing Rules all dividends are to be declared and paid
according 1o the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in respect of which
the dividend is paid.

17.8 Unless any share is issued on terms providing to the contrary, but subject to the
Listing Rules all dividends are to be apportioned and paid proportionately to the
amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares during any portion or portions of the
period in respect of which the dividend is paid.

17.9 An amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of a call is not to be taken
as paid or credited as paid on the share for the purposes of Clauses 17.7 and 17.8.

Deductions from dividends
i7.10 The Directors may deduct from any dividend payable to a Member all sums of

money (if any) presently payable by that Member to the Company on account of calls
or otherwise in relation to shares in the Company.
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Distribution of specific assets

17.11

17.12

The Directors, when applying or declaring a dividend, may direct payment of a
dividend wholly or partly by the distribution of specific assets, including fully paid
shares in, debentures or other securities of the Company or any other corporation.

If a difficulty arises in regard to such distribution, the Directors may settle the matter
as they consider expedient and fix the value for distribution of the specific assets or
any part of those assets and may determine that cash payments will be made to any
Member on the basis of the value so fixed in order to adjust the rights of all parties,
and may vest any such specific assets in trustees as the Directors consider expedient.
If a distribution of specific assets to a particular Member or Members is illegal or, in
the Directors opinion, impractical then the Directors may make such cash payment to
that Member or Members on the basis of the cash amount of the dividend instead of
the distribution of specific assets.

Payment by cheque and receipts from joint holders

17.13

17.14

Any dividend, interest or other money payable in cash in respect of shares may be
paid by cheque sent through the post directed:

(a) to the address of the holder as shown in the Register or, in case of joint

holders, to the address shown in the Register as the address of the joint holder
first named in the Register; or

(b)  to such address as the holder or joint holders in writing directs or direct.

Any one or two or more joint holders may give effectual receipts for any dividends,
interest or other money payable in respect of the shares held by them as joint holders.

Bonus Share Plan

17.15

17.16

The Company, may by ordinary resolution in general meeting, authorise the
Directors to implement a Bonus Share Plan on such terms and conditions as are
referred to in such resolution and which plan provides for any dividend which the
Directors may declare from time to time under the Clause in this Part 17, less any
amount which the Company shall either pursuant to this Constitution or any law be
entitled or obliged to retain, not be payable on shares which are participating shares
in the Bonus Share Plan but for those shares to carry instead an entitlement to receive
an allotment of additional fully paid ordinary shares to be issued as bonus shares.

Any resolution passed by the Company in general meeting pursuant to Clause 17.13
may, at any time, be amended or revoked by the Company by ordinary resolution in
general meeting.
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Dividend Plans

17.17 {a)  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Constitution, but subject to the
requirements of the Act and, if applicable the Listing Rules, the Directors
may in their absolute discretion establish on such terms and conditions as
they think fit:

(i) plans (to be called “dividend reinvestment plan” or an “interest
reinvestment plan” as the case may be) for cash dividends paid by the
Company in respect of shares issued by the Company and interest :
paid by the Company on unsecured notes or debenture stock issued by :
the Company to be reinvested by way of subscription for shares in the
Company; and

o (it) a plan (to be called a “dividend election plan™) permitting holders of
shares to the extent that his shares are fully paid up, to have the option
to elect to forego his right to a share in any dividends (whether
interim or otherwise) payable in respect of such shares and to receive
instead an issue of shares credited as fully paid up 1o the extent as
determined by the Directors;

(h) The Directors may in their absolute discretion, modify, suspend or terminate
all or any plans established pursuant to Clause 17.17 from time to time on not
less than one month’s written notice to all Members;

The powers given to the Directors by this Clause 17.17 are additional to
powers reposed in the Directors by this Constitution and shall not in any way
be limited, restricted or otherwise affected by the Clauses in this Part 17 and
18 inclusive,

Unclaimed dividends

17.18 All dividends declared but unclaimed may be invested by the Direcfors as they think
fit for the benefit of the Company until claimed or until required to be dealt with in
accordance with any law relating to unclaimed moneys.

PART 18 CAPITALISATION OF PROFITS

Capitalisation of reserves and profits

18.1 Subject to the Listing Rules a Company may capitalise profits. The capitalisation
need not be accompanied by the issue of shares.

18.2 Subject to the Listing Rules if the capitalisation involves the issue of shares the
Directors may do all thing necessary to give effect to the resolution and, in particular,
to the extent necessary to adjust the rights of the Members among themselves, may:
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(a) issue fractional certificates or make cash payments in cases where shares or
debentures become issuable in fractions; and,

(b)  authorise any person to make, on behalf of all or any of the Members entitled
to any further shares or debentures on the capitalisation, an agreement with
the Company providing for the issue to them, credited as fully paid up, of any
such shares or debentures or for the payment up by the Company on their
behalf of the amounts or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their
existing shares by the application of their respective portions of the sum
resolved to be capitalised, any such agreement is effective and binding on all
of the Members concerned.

PART 19 NOTICES

Service of notices

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

19.5

19.6

A notice may be given by the Company to any Member or other person receiving
notice under this Constitution either by serving it on the person personally or by
sending it by post or facsimile transmission to the person at their address as shown
on the Register or the address or number supplied by the person to the Company for
giving of notices to the person or to the electronic address nominated by that person.

If a notice is sent by post, service of the notice is deemed to be effected by properly
addressing, prepaying , and posting a letter containing the notice, and the notice is
deemed to have been served three (3) days after the date of its posting.

If a notice is sent by facsimile transmission or other electronic means, service of the
notice is deemed to be effected by properly addressing the facsimile transmission and
transmitting the same and to have been served on the Business Day following its
despatch.

A notice may be given by the Company to the joint holders of a share by giving the
notice to the joint holder first named in the Register in respect of the share.

Every person who by operation of law, transfer or other means whatsoever
becomes entitled to any share is absolutely bound by every notice given in
accordance with this Constitution to the person from whom that person
derives title prior to registration of that person’s title in the Register.

All notices sent by post outside Australia must be sent by pre-paid airmail
post or facsimile or in another way that ensures that it will be received
quickly or by the means provided by Clause 19.10.
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Persons entitled to notice of general meeting

19.7

19.8

Notice of every general meeting must be given in a manner authorised by Clauses
19.1 to 19.6 (inclusive) and in accordance with the Act to:

(a) every Member;

(b) every Director or Alternate Director;

(c) the Audilor;

(dy  the ASX (if the Company is listed); and

(e) every person entitled to a share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of
a Member who, but for his death or bankruptcy, would be entitled to receive

notice of the meeting.
No other person is entitled to receive notices of general meetings.

Change of Address

19.9

The Company shall acknowledge receipt of all notifications of changes of address by
holders of partly paid shares.

Incorrect address

19.10

Where the Company has bona fide reason to believe that a Member is not known at
his registered address, and the Company has subsequently made an enquiry in
writing at that address as to the whereabouts of the Member which enquiry either
elicits no response or a response indicating that the Member or his present
whereabouts are unknown, all future notices will be deemed to have been given to
such Member if the notice is exhibited in the Registered Office (or, in the case of a
Member registered on a Branch Register, in a conspicuous place in the place where
the Branch Register is kept) for a period of 48 hours (and shall be deemed to be duly
served at he commencement of the period) unless and until the Member informs the
Company that he has resumed residence at this registered address or notifies the
Company of a new address to which the Company may send him notices {which new
address shall be deemed his registered address).

PART 20 AUDIT and ACCOUNTS

Company to keep accounts

20.1

The Directors must cause the Company to keep accounts of the business of
the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Act and Listing
Rules.
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Company to Audit accounts

20.2

The Directors must cause the accounts of the Company to be audited in
accordance with the requirements of the Act and Listing Rules.

PART 21 WINDING UP

21.1

21.2

Subject to Clause 21.3, if the Company is wound up, the liquidator may, with the
sanction of a special resolution of the Company, divide among the Members in kind
the whole or any part of the property of the Company and may for that purpose set a
value as the liguidator considers fair on any property to be so divided and may
determine how the division is to be carried out as between the Members or different
classes of Members.

The liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution of the Company, vest
the whole or any part of any such property in trustees on such trusts for the benefit of
the contributories as the liquidator thinks fit, but so that no Member is compelled to
accept any shares or other securities in respect of which there is any liability.

Order for Winding Up

213

21.4

Where an order is made for the winding up of the Company or it is resolved by
special resolution to wind up the Company, then on a distribution of assets to the
Members, shares classified by the ASX as Restricted Securities at the time of the
commencement of the winding up shall rank in priority after all other shares.

Subject to the rights of Members (if any) entitled to shares with special rights in a
winding up, all monies and property that are to be distributed among Members on a
winding up, shall be so distributed in proportion to the shares held by them
respeclively, irrespective of the amount paid-up or credited as paid up on the shares.

PART 22 INDEMNITY

22.1

Except as may be prohibited by Section 199A and 199B of the Act every Officer,
Auditor or Agent of the Company shali be indemnified out of the property of the
Company against any liability incurred by him in his capacity as Officer Auditor or
agent of the Company or any related corporation in respect of any act or omission
whatsoever and howsoever occurring or in defending any proceedings, whether civil
or criminal.

PART 23 OVERSEAS MEMBERS

23.1

Each Member with a registered address outside of Australia acknowledges that, with
the approval of the ASX, the Company may, as contemplated by and in accordance
with the Listing Rules, arrange for a nominee to dispose of any of its entitlement to
participate in any issue of shares or options by the Company Members.
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LISTING RULES
24.1 If the Company is admitted to the Official List of the ASX, the following Clauses
apply:

(8}  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Constitution, if the Listing Rules
prohibit an act being done, the act shall not be done;.

(b)  Nothing contained in this Constitution prevents an act being done that the
Listing Rules require to be done;.

(c) If the Listing Rules require an act to be done or not to be done, authority is
given for that act to be done or not to be done (as the case may be);

(d) If the Listing Rules require the Constitution to contain a provision and it does
not contain such a provision, the Constitution is deemed to contain that
provision;

(e)  If the Listing Rules require this Constitution not to contain a provision and it
contains such a provision, this Constitution is deemed not to contain that
provision;

) If any provision of this Constitution is or becomes inconsistent with the
Listing Rules, this Constitution is deemed not to contain that provision to the
extent of its inconsistency.

PART 25 CHESS
Participation

25.1 The Directors may do may do anything permitted by the Act, Listing Rules or the
SCH Business Rules which they consider necessary or desirable in connection with
the participation of the Company in any computerised or electronic system
established or recognised by the Act, the Listing Rules or the SCH Business Rules
for the purpose of facilitating dealings in shares.

Sub-Register

25.2 The Company may provide facilities for Members to hold securities in the Company
on an issuer sponsored sub-register in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
SCH Business Rules.
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Lien

253 The Company may do anything necessary or desirable for it to do under the SCH
Business Rules to protect or enforce any lien, charge or other right to which it is
entitled under any law or under this Constitution.

Compliance with SCH Business Rules

25.4 The Company shall comply with the Listing Rules and with then SCH Business Rules in
respect of its participation in CHESS.

Dated this 10th Day of March 2006
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Appendix 3X

Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now must be given o ASX as soon as availuble.  Information and
documents given o ASX become ASX's property and may be made public.

Introduced 3042005

Name of entity Ironbark Gold Limited

ABN 93 E18 751 027

We (ihe entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.1 and as agent
for the director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Direcior Jonathan Downes

Date of appoiniment 28 April 2006

Part 1 - Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is the registered
holder

In the case of a trust, this itcludes nforesis in the trust nade available by the responsible onity of the rust

Naote: In the case of @ company, inlerests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “notifiable incerest ofa director' shoutd be
diselased in this part.

Number & class of securities
10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

1,000,000 $0.30 options exercisable on or before 10 August 201

+ Sce chapter 19 for defined terms,

117372002 Appendix 3X Page |




Appendix 3X
Initial Director's Interest Notice

Part 2 — Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is not the

registered holder

I the cave of a trusi, this includes interests in 1he trust made available by the responsible catity of the frust

Name of holder & nature of
interest

Wote: Provide details of the csrcumistances giving rise w0
the relevant imerest,

Katrina Peta Downes

(spouse of Jonathan Downes)

J&K Downes Superfund A/C (an
entity in which Jonathan Downes
has a beneficial interest)

Gold Mecember Pty Ltd (a
company in which Jonathan
Downes has a relevant interest.)

Number & class of Securities

2,000,000 tully paid ordinary shares

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Part 3 - Director’s interests in contracts

Note: i the cage of 2 company, interests which come within paragraph {iij of the definition of “aetifiable interest of a directar should be

disclosed in this pant,

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

No. and class of securities to
which interest relates

+ Sce chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3X Page 2




Appendix JA
Initial Director’s Intercst Notice

Raule 3.194.1

Appendix 3X

Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Informarion ar documents nor availuble now mist be given to ASX as soon as availuble.  Information and
documenis given 1o ASX become ASXs property und may be made public.

Inteoduced 3042001

[Name of entity Ironbark Gold Limited
ABN 93 118 751 027

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.1 and as agent

o for the director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.
Name of Director Adrian Byass
Date of appointment 28 April 2006

Part 1 - Dircctor’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is the registered
holder

In the case of & trust, this includes Diterests in the teust iade avetlobic b the responxible entit: of the irew

Nuote: In the case of a company, intereats which oome within pasagraph (i) of'the definition of “notiliable interest of A director™ should be
disclased in this part,

Number & class of securities

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

+ Sce chapter 19 for defined terms.

115372002 Appendix 3X Page |




Appendix 3X
Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 — Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is not the

registered holder

M the case of a trust. this includes interesis in the trust made avaifable kv the resporsible eatily of the irusi

Name of holder & nature of

interest
Nate: Provide desails of the circumstanees giving rise 1o
rhe refevant interest

Megan Byass
{spouse of Adrian Byass)

Megan Ruth Roberts
{spousc of Adrian Byass)

Adrian Paul Byass ATF Byass
Family Trust (Adrian Byass is a
trustee of the Byass Family Trust)

Number & class of Securities

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

1,510,000 fully paid ordinary shares

320,000 fully paid ordinary shares

1,000,060 $0.30 options exercisable on or before

107872011

Part 3 — Director’s interests in contracts

Note: bn the case of a company, interests which come withia paragraph (i of the definition of “aorifTable interest of a Breecor shoukd be

diselosed in1his pun.

Detail of contract

Nature of inferest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

No. and class of securities to
which interest relates

-+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3X Page 2

P13 2002




APppEnaix JA
Initial Director’s Interesi Notice

Rutle 31041

Appendix 3X

Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not availuble now nust be given 1o ASX as soon as available.  Information and
doctments given 1o ASX become ASX s properiv and may be made public.

Introduesd 30:6:2004.

Name of entity Ironbark Gold Limited

ABN 93118 751 027

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.1 and as agent
for the direclor for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Peter Bennetto

Date of appointment 6 June 2006

Part 1 - Director’s relevant interests in securitics of which the director is the registered
holder

I the case of a trust, this includes iterests in the teust made avaitable by the responsible entity of the Ins

Note: In the case of a company, interesis which come within paragraph (i) of the dedinition of “notifiable interest of'a dircctor” should be
disclased in1his pant

Number & class of securities

360,000 [ully paid ordinary shares

+ See chaper 19 for defined terms.

117372002 Appendix 3X Page )




Appendix 3X
Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 - Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is not the

registered holder

In the cave of d trast. s includes imterests i the trust matde availoble by the responsible entite of the rrust

Name of holder & nature of

interest
Note: Provide details of the circumstances giving rise 10
the relevant interest,

Gillic Bennetto
{spouse of Peter Bennetto)

Canonbar lavestments Pty Lid
{an entity in which Peter
Bennctto has a beneficial interest)

Corporate Momentam Pty Ltd
{an  entity in which Peter
Bennetto has a beneficial interest)

Security Discount & Finance Pty
Ltd (an cntity in which Peter
Bennetto has a beneficial interest)

Number & class of Securities

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Part 3 — Director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of 3 company, interesis which come within paragraph i) of the definition of “aofdiable interest of a dircctar”™ should be

disclosed in this pari,

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securitics)

No. and class of securities to
which interest relates

+ See chapler 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3X Page 2




Apptiiii 3A
Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Rule 31941

Appendix 3X

Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Information ov docwments nor available now must be given 1o ASX as soon as available.  Information and
documents given 10 ASX become ASX s property and may be made public.

introdoced 3092001

Name of entity Ironbark Gold Limited
ABN 93 118 751 027

We (the entity) give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.1 and as agent
for the director for the purposes of section 205G ol the Corporations Acl.

Name of Director

Gregory Campbell

Datc of appeintment

28 April 2006

Part 1 - Dircctor’s relevaat interests in securities of which the director is the registered

holder

I the case of @ truse, this inciudey intereses in the teust atade avatlobic b the responsible ontine of the irum

Note: In the case of a company. intereats which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “aotiliable interest ot a dincerar™ shoufd he

diselosed is this part,

Number & class of securities

Nil

+ Sce chapter 19 for defined terms.

117372002

Appendix 3X Page 1




Appendix 3A
Initial Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2 — Director’s relevant interests in securities of which the director is not the

registered holder

bt the caxe of a it this includes interesis in the trust made available by the resporsible enling of the trust

Name of holder & nature of
interest

Note: Provide details of the circumnstances giving risc 1o
the relevant interest.

Paula Wallace
{spouse of Gregory Camphell)

Wallace Campbell Family Trust
(Gregory Campbell is a trustee of
the Wallace Campbell Family
Trust)

Number & class of Securities

150,000 fully paid ordinary shares

150,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Part 3 — Dhirector’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of a company, interests which come within parageaph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest ot a direcetor’™ shoukd be

disclosed s this pan.

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Namie of registered holder
(if issued securitics)

No. and class of seccurities to
which interest relates

+ See chapler [9 for defined tenns.

Appendix 3X Page 2
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21 Augusl 2006

The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limiled

IRONBARK ACQUIRES FURTHER COPPER / ZINC PROJECTS

lronbark Gold Limited (Ironbark) is pieased o report that it has signed a Heads of
Agreement to farm into Monare Mining NL's (Monaro) wholly owned Captains Flat Project
located south of Canberra in New South Wales. The Project represents an excellent fit
with lronbark’s advanced and wholly owned Belara Zinc/Copper project and provides
several drill ready and advanced Zinc/Copper drill targets. The Projeci covers a strike
length of 39 kilometres of a highly endowed Volcanic Massive Sulphide (VIS) horizon thal
hosts numerous historic mineral occurrences and mines, including the Lake George Mine
thal produced 4 million tonnes of high-grade ore until closure in 1962 {see Figure 1).

Wilhin the projecl area prospecis include the Jerangle. Lake Georgs and Vanderbilt Hill
prospects where previous explorers have returned high grade copper and zinc drill
intercepts.

*  Jerangle

The Jerangle Prospect is located at the southern end of the project area and
drilling over a strike lenglh of 1.5 kilometres has returned drill intercepts such as:

JR3: 1.05m from 113.45m @ 4.3% Cu. 7 g/t Ag
2.25mfrom 227.5m @ 5.25% Cu. 19 g/l Ay
1.55m fram 244 .75m @ 3.66% Zn

JR4: 1.0m from 218m @ 2.8% Cu, 9 g1 Ag
29.4m @ 0.5% Cu, 2.17% Zn, 8 g/t Ag
—including 1.9m @ 4.89% Cu, 6.3% Zn, 17 g/t Ag

* Lake George Mine

The high-grade Lake George Mine produced approximately 4Mt of ore at 0.7% Cu,
8% Pb, 10% Zn and 55 g/t Ag and remains prospective for remnant ore at current
base metal prices as well as af depth where resulls such as 1.22m @ 12.4% Zn,
5.4% Pb were returned over a strike length of at least 300 meires. Mineralisation is
open at depth and may represent possible repeats of the historically mined areas.

IOMIARE GO LiMiTED
AVTPEE 1B 10y
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«  Vanderbilt Hill

The Vanderbilt Hill prospect is located {o the east of the Lake George Mine and
drilling has returned results such as 3.9m @ 10% Zn, 5.3% Pb, 0.1% Cu.

Consideration lor the acquisition is an initial $50.000 payment followed by a progressive
farm irr agreement in which lronbark manages exploration. Manaro will be lree carried by
lronbark cuiminating in fronbark eaming a 75% interast in the project on a Decision to
Mine. In addition Ironbark will be required to keep the project in good standing by meeting
all stattory expenditure requirements for al least two years, A lormal Farm in Agreement
will be negotiated and entered into within two months.

Jonathan Downes
Managing Direclor

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Telephone: +B1 8 9481 5600

The inlormalion in this raport that rulates o Explesation Results, Mineral Resourcos or Ore Reserves s based on information
orovitied by Menare Mining NL and the NSW Depanment of Prmary Ingustrics database and compiled by Mr A Byass, 8.5¢
Hoan(Geal), B.Econ, FSEG. MAIG an ampioyee of ronbark Gold Limited. #Mr Byass has suificient experionce thal s relevant
to the slyle of mineralisation ang lype of deposit urder considerabon and 1o the activity which he is undenaking in gually as
A Cospeleal Prrson as detined i (ke 2004 Edition of e Ausitalasian Code for Senaringg of Faploration Beguils Moaera!
Resources and Ore Resorvas. Me Byass consents 16 tha inglusion in ihe rapart of the mattors bagsed ae ins miarmanan in the
torm and corlext i which st appaars.

T ARONEARIGOLE LMD
Adser 93 TR 1508
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® ANNOUNCEMENT AND MEDIA RELEASE

Farm in Agreement with lronbark Gold Limited on Captains Flat Project — NSW

The Directors of Monaro Mining NL are please Lo announce that [ronbark Gold Limiled {Ironbark Gold),
a recently ASX listed minerals exploration company and Monaro Mining NL, have executed a Heads
of Agreement covering the Captaing Flal Project (Exploration Licence 6381) located in southern
NSW.

The agreement will enable [ronbark Gold to earn a 75% interest in the project subject Lo it meeting
amonyst other conditions, all expenditure commitments for the next 2 years. [ronbark Gold has agreed
to a non-refundable opportunity payment of $50,000 and will manage all exploration activities. Details
of the Farm in Agreement are attached.

For further information please contact:

Mart Rampe

Executive Director

Tele: 02 46479566 <3 .
) & .‘J

Or: e 1 ;

Warwick Grigor I

Chairman o - -2
L.

Tele: 02 92470077 A
P t T

Unit 4a 20 Somerset Avenue Website www.monaromining.com.au

: NARELLAN NSW 2567 Email: info@monaromining.com.au




Wost Perth, WA, 6005,
Postal: PO Box 835,
Weslt Perth, 6872

T +81 8 0481 5600

F +618 82101872

E admin@ironbarkgold.com. sy
W www.ironbarkgold com au

21 August 2006

The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

IRONBARK ACQUIRES FURTHER COPPER / ZINC PROJECTS

ironbark Gold Limited (lronbark) is pleased to report that it has signed a Heads of
Agreement to farm into Monare Mining NL's (Monaro) wholly owned Captains Flat Project
located south of Canberra in New South Wales. The Project represents an exceltent fit
with lronbark's advanced and wholly owned Belara Zinc/Copper project and provides
several drill ready and advanced Zinc/Copper drill targets. The Project covers a strike
length of 39 kilometres of a highly endowed Volcanic Massive Sulphide (VMS) horizon that
hosts numerous historic mineral occurrences and mines, including the Lake George Mine
that produced 4 million tonnes of high-grade ore until closure in 1962 {see Figure 1).

Within the project area prospects include the Jerangle, Lake George and Vanderhilt Hili
prospects where previous explorers have returned high grade copper and zinc drill
intercepts.

e Jerangle

The Jerangle Prospect is located at the southern end of the project area and
drilling over a strike length of 1.5 kilometres has returned drill intercepts such as:

JRS: 1.05m from 113.45m @ 4.3% Cu, 7 g/t Ag
2.25m from 227.5m @ 5.25% Cu, 19 g/t Ag
1.55m from 244.75m @ 3.66% Zn

JR4: 1.0m from 218m @ 2.8% Cu, 9 g/t Ag
294m @ 0.5% Cu, 2.17% Zn, B gt Ag
—including 1.9m @ 4.89% Cu, 6.3% Zn, 17 g/t Ag

+ Lake George Mine

The high-grade Lake George Mine produced approximalely 4Mt of ore at 0.7% Cu,
6% Pb, 10% Zn and 55 g/t Ag and remains prospective for remnant ore at current
base metal prices as well as at depth where results such as 1.22m @ 12.4% Zn,
5.4% Pb were returned over a strike length of at least 300 metres. Mineralisation is
open at depth and may represent possible repeats of the historically mined areas.
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s Vanderbilt Hill

The Vanderbilt Hill prospect is located to the east of the Lake George Mine and
drilling has returned results such as 3.8m @ 10% Zn, 5.3% Pb, 0.1% Cu.

Consideration for the acquisilion is an initial $50,000 payment followed by a progressive
farm in agreement in which Ironbark manages exploration. Monaro will be free carried by
Ironbark culminating in lronbark earning a 75% interest in the project on a Decision to
Mine. In addition Ironbark will be required to keep the project in good standing by meeting
all statutory expenditure requirements for at least two years. A formal Farm in Agreement
will be negotiated and entered into within two months.

Jonathan Downes
Managing Director

IRONBARK GQOLD LIMITED
Telephone: +61 B 9481 5600

The infarmation in this report that relates to Exploration Results, Mineral Resources or Ore Reserves is based on information
provided by Monaro Mining NL and the NSW Depariment of Primary Industries database and compited by Mr A Byass, B.Sc
Hon(Geol}, B.Econ, FSEG, MAIG an employee of lronbark Geld Limited. Mr Byass has sufficlent experience thal is relevant
to the slyle of mineralisalion and type of deposil under consideration and to the activily which he is undertaking to qualify as
a Competent Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploratien Results, Mineral
Resources and Ore Reserves, Mr Byass consents to the inclusion in the report of the matlers based on his information in the
form and context in which it appears.
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Inferest Notice

Rule 3.794.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

fnformation or documents not available now must be given to ASX as soon as availoble.  Information and
documents given 1o ASX become ASX s property und may be made public.

Entrduced 3002001

[Name of entity Ironbark Gold Limited

ABN 93 118 751 027

We (1he entity} give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
direcior for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director Jonathan Downes

Date of last notice 16 August 2006

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of a trust, this inciudes inferesis in the vust made availoble e the responsible enity of the irust

Nate: In 1he case o 3 company, imereats which come within parageaph (i) of the definition of “notifiable imerest ot'a director™ should be

disclosed in this part.

Direct or indirect interest

Direct

Nature of indirect interest

{including registered holder)

Mote: Provide detusts of the circinstupeds giviag 1ise fo the relevam
intorest.

Not Applicable

Date of change

25 August 2006

No. of securities held prior to change

Katrina Peta Downes (spouse of Jonathan
Downes)

1&K Downes Superfund A/C (an enlity in
which Jonathan Downes has a benelicial
mterest)

Gold Member Pty Ltd (a company in which
Jonathan Downes has a relevant inierest)

Direct
[0,000 fully paid ordinary shares
1,000,000 $0.30 options expiring 10/8/2011

Indirect
2,000,000 fully paid ordinary shares

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Class

Fully paid ordinary shares

Number acquired

50,000

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Number disposed

Nil

Value/Consideration
Note: ' consideration is pon-easl. provide defails and  estimated
valuation

$20,669.12

No. of securities held after change

Kairina Peta Downes (spouse of Jonathan
Downes)

J&K Downes Superfund A/C (an entity in
which Jonathan Downes has a benelicial
mterest)

Gold Member Pty Lid (a company in which
Jonathan Downes has a relevant interest)

Direct
60,000 fully paid ordinary shares
1,000,000 80.30 options expiring 10/8/2011

Indirect
2,600,000 fully paid ordinary shares

10,000 {ully paid ordinary shares

10,600 fully paid ordinary shares

Nature of change
Example: on-masket rade, off-marker weade, excreise of options, issue of
seearities under dividend reinvestenent plan, partivipiion in buy-back

On-market trade

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: bn the case of a company, interests which come within pacagraph {ii) of the definition of “aotidiable interest of a dirceeor” should be

disclosed in this pan,

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securitices)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to
which interest related prior to
change

Nole: Belails are saly required for o contract in refation
o which the interest bas changed

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

+ Sece chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Nofice

Value/Consideration
Nute: I consideration is non-cash, provide devails snd
an estimated valuaiion

Interest after change

+ Sce chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Change of Dircctor’s Interest Notice
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AN Appendix 3Y
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Bt Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not available now nusst be given to ASX as soon as availuble.  Information and
documents given (o ASX become ASX's property and may be made public,

Introduced 30432000 .

[Name of entity

Ironbark Gold Limited

ABN

93 118 751 027

We (the entity) give ASX the (ollowing information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director

Adrian Byass

Date of last notice

16 August 2006

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
I the case of a@ trust, this inchdes inferesss in the rust made available bu the responsible ensity of the irust

MNee: fo the case of 2 company. interests which come within parageaph (i) of the definition of “notifiable interest of a director™ should be

disclsed in This part.

Direct or indirect interest

Indirect

Nature of indirect interest
(including registered holder)

Note: Provide detsife of the circnstinces giving rise o 1be relevant
mterest,

Adrian Paul Byass ATF Byass Family Trust
(Adrian Byass is a trustee of the Byass
Family Trust)

Date of change

| September 2006

No. of securities held prior to change

Megan Byass
(spouse of Adrian Byass)

Megan Ruth Roberts
(spouse of Adrian Byass)

Adrian Paul Byass ATF Byass Family Trust
(Adrian Byass is a trustee of the Byass Family
Trust)

Direct
10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Iadirect
10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

1,510,000 fully paid ordinary shares

320,000 fully paid ordinary shares
LOOO0O0G $0.30 options exercisable on or
before 10/8/2011

Class

Fully paid ordinary shares

Number acquired

55,000

Number disposed

Nil

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Megan Byass
{spouse of Adrian Byass)

Megan Ruth Roberts
{spouse of Adrian Byass)

Adrian Paul Byass ATF Byass Family Trust
(Adrian Byass is a lrustee of the Byass Family
Trust)

Value/Consideration $24.475
Nete: H consideration is pon-cash, provide details and estimated

valuntion

No. of securities held after change Direct

10,000 tully paid ordinary shares
Indirect
10,600 fully paid ordinary shares

1,510,000 lully paid ordinary shares

375,000 fulty paid ordinary shares
1,060,000 $0.30 options exercisable on or
before 10/8/2011

Nature of change
Example: on-market frade, otl-markei trade, exereise of options, baue of
sceurities undes dividend reenvestrent pian, pasticipation in bay-fack

On-market trade

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note: In the case of 2 company, intcrests which come within paragraph (i) of the definition of “norifiable intersst ot a directar™ shoukd be

disclosed in this pan.

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities to
which interest related prior to
change

Naote: [xetails are only sequired for a contruct in rebation
ter which the interest has changed

Interest acquired

laterest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: If consideration is son-cash, provide detanls aml
an estinated vafuation

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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lsonbark Gold Limited
Level 2, 16 Allona Street,
West Parth, Wi, 6005,
Postal: PO Box 935,
Waost Perth, 6872

T +61 8 9481 58600

F +&1 8 68210 1872

E admin@ironbarkgold.com.au
W www,ironbarkgold com.au

21 September 2006

The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

IRONBARK ACQUIRES COPPER AND TUNGSTEN PROJECTS, EXPANDS
BELARA BASE METALS PROJECT

fronbark Gold Limited (lronbark) reports that it has acquired the Bogong copper project
and the Burrandana tungsten project, both located in New South Wales {Figure 1).

Further, Ironbark has expanded its landholding around its key, wholly owned Belara base
metals (VMS) project north of Orange.

KEY POINTS
Bogong — Copper

» Most recent drilling was in 1974 returning a best intercept of 200 feet (~61m) @
1% copper, which significantly started and ended in mineralisation.

High-grade mineralised shear zone previously the focus for copper mining.
Ironbark plans 10 test the potential for large, disseminated copper mineralisation as
mapped in the surrcunding altered felsic volcanic rocks.

Burrandana — Tungsten

« High grade 1ungsten hits of up to 1.9% WO3, mineralisation open in most
directions.

Bulk tonnage low grade tin-tungsten sheeted vein targets

Ironbark has commenced discussions regarding the Burrandana project with other
parties.

Belara — VMS: Zinc, Copper, Lead, Silver, Gold

» North and South strike extent of massive sulphide bearing sedimentary rocks
hosting Belara and Native Bee deposits acquired. Deepest drilling 10 date at Belara
has intercepted 6m @ 6.0% Zn, 2.5% Pb, 83 g/t Ag, 0.5 g/t Auand 0.6% Cu.

Further details of projects as follows:-




Belara
(Pb, Zn, Cu, Ag - Au)
EL 6576, ELA 2756
& ELA 2783

Stuart Town (Au)
EL 6575

Bogong (Cu)
ELA 2841

Burrandana
(W, 8n, Au)
ELA 2839 &
ELA 2842

Captain’s Flat
(Cu, Pb, Zn, Au-Ag)

EL 6381

Pambula (Au)

EL 6506 100km

AGDB4 Zone55

1000000m

Projects_location 12

Figure 1: Ironbark project location plan highlighting Exploration Licence (EL) and Exploration
Licence Application {ELA} numbers and target minerals.

Mineral element symbols:
Au — Gold, Ag — Silver, Cu — Copper, Pb — Lead, Sn — Tin, W — Tungsten, Zn - Zinc




Bogong Copper Project, ELA 2841 {100% lronbark)

The historic Bogong copper mine is located approximately 25 kilometres southeast of
Tumut. The mine was operated during the 1900's and produced 30 tonnes of ore at a
head grade of 26% copper. The mine was worked again in 1918 producing a further 50
tonnes of ore at a head grade of 10% copper.

While the historic mining was focussed on a mineralised shear, small pils and workings
are noted within the surrounding altered rhyolite host rock. This was characterised by
disseminated copper mineralisation {(bomite and chalcopyrite} peripheral to the
mineralised shear and with no particular structural control. Ironbark intends to investigate
the project area for large tonnage low grade disseminated copper mineralisation.

The most recent explorer o drill the prospect was A.O.G. Minerals Pty Ltd (AOG) and in
1974 returned a best drill intercept in hole “BOGONG16” of 200 feet (~61m) @ 1%
copper from 0 to 200 feet ending in mineralisation and “BOGONG17" returned 70 feet
(~21m) @ 1% copper including 30 feet @ 2% copper (See Figure 2).

The project area is generally obscured by overburden and several regions of mapped
outcropping and mineralised rhyclite identified by AOG have not been drill tested and
represent immediate drill targets.
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Figure 2: Plan of the Bogong copper project highlighting exploration targets and historic drill results




Burrandana Tungsten Project, ELA 2482 and ELA 2839 (100% lronbark)

The project area was explored and drilied by Shell Australia Pty Ltd in the lale 1870’s and
early 1980's targeting tin-tungsten (Sn-W) mineralisation. Three key prospects have been
identified (Tin Hill, Tungsten Valley and Pachmarhi) through mapping, soil sampling,
trenching, Rotary Air Blast (RAB), Reverse Circulation (RC) and Diamond {DDH) Drilling.

The geology of the prospect area is shown in Figure 3 and comprises metamorphosed
Ordovician sedimentary rocks, biotite-rich and tourmaline-rich altered granites.
Mineralisation is characterised by sheeted quartiz-vein sets hosting scheelite and
cassiterite mineralisation,

Significant drill intercepts from the limited drilling conducted at the Tin Hill prospect to date
include;-

o 1.5m @ 1.9% WOz from 26m (PBT14),

e 4.0m @ 1.2% WOz from 36m (PBT04),
6.0m @ 0.18% Cu and 0.6% WO3 from 18m including 2m @ 0.26% Cu and 1.6%
WOs (PBTOS5).

The mineralisation at Tin Hill is interpreted to be a flat lying greisen system and remains
open in almost every direction.

In the northern part of the licence at the Pachmarhi prospect one deep diamond drill hole
(DCP1) targeting a down dip position of outcropping anomalous tin-tungsten sheeted veins
intersected ore-grade W mineralisation {(0.9m @ 0.87% WOQ3) from 161.1 metres down
hole.

ronbark is targeting bulk tonnage sheeted-vein lin-tungsten mineralisation and has
commenced discussions with other parties to further advance this project.
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BURRANDANA PROJECT
GEOLOGY & DRILL HOLE PLAN
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Figure 3: Burrandana tungsten projecl geology and significant tungsten (WO3) assay results within
total drilting.




Belara Base Metal Project, ELA 2756 and ELA 2783 (100% ironbark)

lronbark has acquired further Exploration Licence Applications covering 322km? along
strike and immediately around the Belara base metals project (EL 6576) at which deep
drilting under historic underground mines has returned intercepts of 6m @ 6.9% Zn, 2.5 %
Pb, 0.6% Cu and 83 g/t Ag from 308m downhole. This intercept was from one of two
completed diamond holes drilled by Aztec Mining Company Limited in1993. Mineralisation
is open at depth.

Targets within ELA 2756 and ELA 2783 were identified and Exploration Licences applied
for based on the results of field mapping in conjunction with interpretation of reprocessed
aeromagnetic data. Interpretation of the regional geology and observation of similar, finear
magnetic anomalies in adjacent ground which were comparabie 1o that exhibited at Belara
and Native Bee (host of significant base metal mineralisation) are located within new
Ironbark tenure (Figure 4).

Other historic copper and gold prospects subject to limited exploration were also acquired
in the same applications (ELA 2756) in the north eastern area.

The extended project tenure will be incorporated into the Belara and Native Bee
exploration and development programmes. Ironbark is planning to conduct confirmation
driling at the Belara and Native Bee deposits in the upcoming months with the aim of
obtaining a quotable base metal resource figure. This drilling will provide metallurgical
samples and confirm high-grade zones within the mineralisation delineated by
approximately 3,800m of mainly diamond drilling conducted between 1968 and 1993 into
the deposits.




Native Bee

Base metal
targets

Figure 4: Belara project tenure highlighting exploration targels in relation io known base metal
mineralisation at Belara and Native Bee overlain on 1* Vertical Derivative TMI {Total Magnetic

Intensity} geophysical image.




For further information, contact;

Jonathan Downes
Managing Director

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Telephone: +61 8 9481 5600

The information in this report that relates to Expleration Results, Mineral Resources or Ore Reserves is based on information
provided by the NSW Department of Primary Industries database and compiled by Mr A Byass, B.Sc Hon(Geal), B.Econ,
FSEG, MAIG an employee of lronbark Gold Limited. Mr Byass has sufficient experience that is refevant to the style of
mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration and to the activity which hs is undertaking 1o qualify as a Competern
Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Reasources and
Ore Reserves. Mr Byass consents to the inclusion in the report of the matters based on his information in the form and
context in which it appears.




QUARTERLY ACTIVITIES REPéF&I" B -

July to September 2006

ronbark Gold Limited (lronbark) is an Australian mineral exploration and
development company that owns a suite of base metal and precious metal
projects. lronbark is initially targeting its advanced high grade base metal (primarily
zinc) projects in New South Wales.

Highlights
o Listed on the ASX after raising $3,000,000
s Subsequent to the quarter, resource drilling has commenced at the Belara
base metal project with 10 holes for 1,150 metres of RC drilling and 625
metres of diamond drifling

o EM geophysical survey commenced at the Belara project

o Entered into a farm in agreement to earn up to 75% of the Captains Flaf
base metal project

s Drilling planned at Jerangle base metal prospect south of Captains Flat
project with 4 to 6 holes for at least 1,100 melres of dnilling following the
Belara programme

o Project base expanded following the acquisition of the Burrandana
tungsten-tin project, Bogong copper project and Kiawarra tin project

» [P survey planned at the Stuart Town gold project following the Belara EM
survey

» Expanded ground position around Belara base metal project with three
further Exploration Licence Applications covering extensions to the Belara
stratigraphy and other gold and copper prospects




LISTING ON THE AUSTRALIAN STOCK EXCHANGE

lronbark lodged its prospectus with the Australian Stock Exchange to raise
$3,000,000 on 10 July and due to strong public interest the Directors were able to
close the offer early and oversubscribed.

Ironbark commenced trading on 16 August and debuted strongly in recognition of
its quality projects, proven management and exceptional capital structure.

The Directors remain appreciative of the strong support and faith shown by
shareholders and look forward to delivering positive resuits.

PROJECT UPDATES

Belara base metal project

lronbark believes that its wholly owned Belara base metal project (zinc-lead-
copper-silver-gold) represents a significant accumulation of potentially exploitable
base metal mineralisation with a strike length of approximately 610 metres
(excluding Native Bee) and known depth extent of at least 250 metres.

ironbark has commenced a programme of ground Electro-Magnetic (EM)
surveying and a drilling programme consisting of a combination of reverse
circulation {RC) drilling and Diamond drilling.

The drilling programme will primarily target zones of previously identified
mineralisation and it is expected that the drilling density will be sufficient so that a
publicly quotable resource estimate can be released and confirm the previous
explorer's resource potential estimations. The drilling programme will comprise a
total of 10 holes for 1,150 metres of RC drilling and 625 metres of diamond drilling.
The programme is likely to be modified or expanded as a result of the levels of
encouragement encountered.

The EM survey is hoped to allow the relatively conductive ore body to be modeled
in three dimensions to a depth of at least 300 metres and will help direct future
driling programmes.

Two new exploration licences were applied over regions of interpreted strike
extensions of the Belara geology and cover a series of historic copper workings
located to the south.
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A long section diagram of the historic drilling and the current drilling programme is
shown as Figure 1.
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Figure 1. Long section showing historic drilling and ptanned drill hole pierce points




Captains Flat base metal project

Following the reaching of an agreement with Monaro Mining Limited, lronbark has
commenced the work necessary to earn an interest in the Captains Flat base metal
(zinc-lead-copper-silver-gold) project. This involves a drilling programme planned
for the December quarter this year at Jerangle (south of Captains Flat) where 4 to
6 holes for a total of up to 1,100 metres is planned

Captains Flat represents a well endowed belt of Volcanic Massive Sulphide (VMS)
base metal mineralisation with numerous base metal occurrences and covers the
historic Captains Flat Mine that has produced 4 million tonnes of high grade zinc-
lead-copper-silver-gold valued at aimost one ounce of goid equivalent per ton at
current metal prices (October 2006). The mineralisation remains open at depth and
numerous historic drill results along strike require follow up- Figure 2.
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Figure 2: Plan view of the Captains Flat Licence and prospects

The initial exploration target to be tested is the Jerangle prospect on the southern
end of the Captains Flat licence where Amoco (1981) intercepted significant zinc




and copper intercepts over a strike of 1,500 metres and remains open to the north
and south. Two blind {(does not reach surface) zones were identified, a copper
zone and a zinc zone commencing at depths of approximately 100 metres. There
is no drilling between the two zones - see Figure 3. In addition, historic soil
sampling has identified a zone anomalous for zinc at a southern portion of the
project that remains to be drill tested.
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Figure 3: Plan View of historic drilling results { the complexity of the mineralisation and continuity
between holes has nol yet been ascertained}.




Stuart Town

The Stuart Town goldfield comprises over 80 guartz vein and alluvial occurrences.
Gold mining first commenced in the 1850’s and more than 170,000 ounces of gold
was produced between 1875 (when mine records were first kept in NSW) and the
turn of the century.

Ironbark geologists have mapped several of the sites and have prepared an
Induced Polarisation {IP) survey to map underlying alteration below the overburden
to identify targets for drilling. The IP survey should be complete by the end of
December quarter.

Gold occurs in structurally controlled often laminated quartz veins in stockwork with
pyrite and minor arsenopyrite, galena, chalcopyrite, and sphalerite. The veins are
structurally controlled by faulting, jointing, cleavage and bedding planes and
believed to represent leakage from an underlying mineraiised intrusion.

In order to determine the potential for an intrusive porphyry source at depth below
the Stuart Town area, previous explorers commissioned a reconnaissance gravity
survey. The most prominent feature identified by this survey was a residual gravity
low anomaly centred in the region of the Quartz Hill and Manna Hill mines. The
feature was virtually coincident with the centre of a magnetic low anomaly.
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Figure 4: Stuart Town exploration model



Pambula

Mapping and sampling at the Pambuia gold project was used to complete the
drilling data base which has been audited and a modelled using 3D software. The
review has highlighted that, while ore grade gold results were returned by earlier
explorers, the rugged terrain greatly constrained their expioration efforts. ironbark
is currently using a track mounted drilling rig that may be capable of advancing this
project however no work is planned at Pambula during the December quarter.
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NEW PROJECTS

Burrandana

During the quarter, Ironbark acquired the Burrandana tungsten and tin project. The
project area was explored and drilled by The Shell Company of Australia Limited in
the late 1970’s and early 1980’s targeting tin-tungsten (Sn-W) mineralisation.
Three key prospects have been identified (Tin Hill, Tungsten Valley and
Pachmarhi) through mapping, soil sampling, trenching, Rotary Air Blast (RAB),
Reverse Circulation (RC) and Diamond (DDH) Drilling.

Ironbark is targeting bulk tonnage sheeted-vein tin-tungsten mineralisation and has
commenced discussions with other parties to further advance this project.

The geology of the prospect area is shown in Figure 5 and comprises
metamorphosed Ordovician sedimentary rocks, biotite-rich and tourmaline-rich
altered granites. Mineralisation is characterised by sheeted quartz-vein sets
hosting scheelite and cassiterite mineralisation.

Significant drill intercepts from the limited drilling conducted at the Tin Hill prospect
to date include:-

« 1.5m@ 1.9% WOa3 from 26m (PBT14),

« 40m @ 1.2% WO3 from 36m (PBT04),

« 6.0m@ 0.18% Cu and 0.6% WO3 from 18m including 2m @ 0.26% Cu and
1.6% WOs3 (PBT05).

The mineralisation at Tin Hill is interpreted to be a flat lying greissen system and
remains open in almaost every direction.

in the northern part of the licence at the Pachmarhi prospect one deep diamond
drill hole (DCP1) targeting a down dip position of outcropping anomalous tin-
tungsten sheeted veins intersected ore-grade fungsten mineralisation (0.9m @
0.87% WOQ3) from 161.1 metres down hole.
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Figure 5: Plan of Burrandana Tungsten and Tin Field, tenure and drill hole locations




Bogong

During the quarter, Ironbark acquired the Bogong copper project located 20
kilometres south east of Tumut. Most recent drilling was in 1974 returning a best
intercept of 200 feet (~61m) @ 1% copper, which significantly started and ended in
mineralisation (Figure 6).

A high-grade mineralised shear zone was previously the focus for copper mining.
Ironbark plans to test the potential for large, disseminated copper mineralisation as
mapped in the surrounding altered felsic volcanic rocks.
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Figure 6: Plan view of historic copper workings, drill collars and anomalous soil geochemistry

The historic mine was operated during the 1900's and produced 30 tonnes of ore
at a head grade of 25% copper. The mine was worked again in 1918 producing a
further 50 tonnes of ore at a head grade of 10% copper.

While the historic mining was focussed on a mineralised shear, small pits and
workings are noted within the surrounding altered rhyolite host rock. This was
characterised by disseminated copper mineralisation (bornite and chalcopyrite)
peripheral to the mineralised shear and with no identified structural control.
Ironbark intends to investigate the project area for large tonnage low grade
disseminated copper mineralisation.

T ——————— L e



The most recent explorer to drill the prospect was A.O.G. Minerals Pty Ltd (AOG)
and in 1974 returned a best drill intercept in hole “BOGONG 16" of 200 feet {(~61m)
@ 1% copper from 0 to 200 feet ending in mineralisation and hole "BOGONG17"
returned 70 feet (~21m) @ 1% copper including 30 feet @ 2% copper.

The project area is generally obscured by overburden and several regions of
mapped outcropping and mineralised rhyolite identified by AOG have not been drill
tested and represent immediate drill targets.

Kiawarra

During the quarter, Ironbark acquired the Kiawarra tin prospect located 35
kilometres northeast of Yass in New South Wales.

The project area was explored and drilled by Shell Australia Pty Ltd in the late
1970's and early 1980's targeting tin (Sn) mineralisation. The key prospect area is
known as the Tin Mines Grid and is situated around numerous historic tin
workings. The area has been mapped, soil sampled, trenched, Rotary Air Blast
(RAB), Reverse Circulation (RC) and Diamond {DDH) Drilled.

The Kiawarra Tin Field was predominately worked between 1932 and 1965 in a
series of mines comprising small pits and shafts over a strike of 1,500 meters
targeting stockwork and sheeted vein tin ore. Alluvial tin mining was also
conducted from the wash off material derived from the main and hard rock
workings (Figure 7).

Commencing in 1980 The Shell Company of Australia Limited represented the first
phase of serious modern exploration. Following the mapping, rock chip sampling,
costeaning (returning up to 5m @ 1% Sn) and several phases of drilling confirmed
the stockwork nature of the mineralisation. The target for the exploration is a bulk
tonnage - low grade tin resource.
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Figure 7: Kiawarra Tin Field and tenure.

For further information please contact:

Jonathan Downes

Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

Level 1, 350 Hay Street,

Subiaco,
WA 6008

Tetl (08) 6461 6350
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Mining exploration entity quarterly report

Appendix 5B

Rule 3.3

Mining exploration entity quarterly report

Introduced 706, Origin: Appendin 8. Amendod 172097, 17798, 30/9:2001.

Name of entity

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

ABN

03 118 751 027

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash flows related to operating activities

b1

1.2

Receipts from product sales and related debtors

Payments for

(a) exploration and evaluation

(b} development

(c) production

(d) administration

Dividends received

Interest and other ienms of a similar nature
received

Interest and other costs of {inance paid
Income taxes paid

Other (provide details if material}

Net Operating Cash Flows

Quarter endad (“current quarter™)

30 September 2006

Current quarter
$A000

Year to date (3 months)
SA000

(88)

(61;

{135)

1.8

1.9

13

Cash Nows related to investing activities
Payment [or purchases of:
(a)prospects

{bjequity investmenis

(c)other fixed assets

Proceeds {rom sale of:
(aYprospects

(b)equity investments

(c)other fixed assets

1 oans 10 ciher entities

Loans repaid by other entities
Other (provide details if material)

Net investing cash Aows
Total operatmg and investing cash f{lows
(carried forward)

(50)

(50)

{50

(185)

(185)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

30972001
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Mining exploralion entily quarterly report

1.13  Total operating and invesiing cash flows
(brought forward) {185) {185)
Cash flows related to financing activities
1.14 Proceeds from issues of shares, options, elc. 3.000 3,000
1.15  Proceeds [rom sale of forfeited shares - -
1.16  Proceeds from bommowings . -
1.17 Repayment of borrowings - -
1.18  Dividends paid - -
1.19  Other - costs to issue (16 (160)
Net financing cash flows 2840 2.840
Net increase (decrease) in cash held 2,655 2,655
120 Cash at beginning of quarter/year to date 367 367
1.21 Exchange rate adjustiments to item 1.20 - -
1.22 Cash at end of quarter 3.022 3.022

Payments to directors of the entity and associates of the directors

Payments to related entities of the entity and associates of the related entities

Current quarter

$A'000
1.23 Aggregate amount of payments to the parties included in item 1.2 27
1.24 Aggregale amount of loans to the parties included in item 1.10 -
[.25 Explanation necessary for an understanding of the ransactions

1. Payment of consulting and directors fees 1o direclors.

Non-cash financing and investing activities

2.1

22

Details of financing and investing transactions which have had a material effect on consolidated

assets and liabilities but did nol involve cash flows

Details of ouilays made by other entilics to establish or increase their share in projects in which the

reporting entity has an inlerest

Financing facilities available

Add notes as necessary for an understanding of the position.

3.1

32

Loan facilities

Credit standby arrangements

Amount available
EAT000

Amount used
SAT000

+ See chapter 19 for defined 1erms.

30/49/2001

Appendix 5B Page 2
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Mining exploralion entity quarterly report

Estimated cash outflows for next quarter

$A’000

4.1 Exploration and evaluation 400
42  Development -
Total 400

Reconciliation of cash

Reconciliztion of cash at the end ol the quarter (as Current guarter Previous quartes

shown in the cousolidated siatement of cash (lows) to SA'000 $A000

the related items in the accounts is as follows,

51 Cash on hand and at bank 3 367

5.2 Deposits at call 3.019

5.3 Bank overdraft ) -

5.4  Other {provide details) } i
Total: cash at end of quarter (item 1.22) 3.022 367

Changes in inferests in mining tenements

6.1

6.2

Tenement Nature of interest Interest at | Inierest at
relerence (note (2)) beginning | end of
of quarter | quarter

Interests in mining NIL

tenements relinquished,

reduced or lapsed

Interests in mining EL6506 100% 0% 100%

lenements acquired or EL6575 100% 0% 100%

mereased EL6576 100% 04 100%
ELA 2756 100% 0% 1060%
ELA 2783 100% 0% 100%%
ELA 284] 100% 0% 100%
ELA 2839 100% 0% 100%
ELA 2842 100% 0% 100%
EL 6381 Earn in - up to 75%

+ 8ee chapter 19 for defined terms.,

30922001

Appendix 5B Page 3
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Mining exploration entity quarterly report

Issued and quoted securities at end of current quarter

Description includes rate of interest and any redemption or conversion rights together with prices and dates.

Total number

Number guoted

Issue price per
security (see nole
3} (cents)

Amount paid up per
securily (see note 3)
(vents)

71

1.2

Preference
*securities
{description)
Changes during
quarter

(a) Increases
through issues
(b) Decreases
througl returis
of capital, buy-
backs,
redemptions

7.3

7.4

*Ordinary
securities

Changes during
quarter

(a) Increases
through issues
(b) Decreases
through returns
of capital, buy-
backs

22,500,000

17,000,400

15.000,000

15,000,000

7.5

7.6

*Convertible
debt securities
(description)
Changes during
quarter

(a) Increases
through issues
(b) Decreases
through
securitics
matured,
converted

7.7

1.8

79

710

Options
fdescription and
conversion

Jactor)

Issued during
quarter
Exercised during
quarter

Expived during
quarter

2,000,000

Exercize price

30.30

Expiry date
10 August 2011

2,000,000

$0.30

10 August 2011

Debentures
(totals only)

Unsecured
notes {fotals
anly)

+ See chapter 19 for defined torms.

30:9/2001
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Mining exploration entity quarterly report

Compliance statement

1 This statement has been prepared under accounting policies which comply with accounting
standards as defined in the Corporations Act or other standards avcepiable to ASX (see nole 4).

2 This statement does give a true and fair view of the matters disclosed.
¢
<

Sign here: Stiephen Brockhurst Date: 26 Oclober 2006

{Company secrelary)

Notes

1 The quanerly report provides a basis for informung the market how the entity’s activities have
been financed for the pasi quarter and the effect on its cash position. An entity wanting Lo disclose
additional imformation is encouraged to do so, in a note or notes attached to this report.

2 The “Natwe of interest” (items 6.1 and 6.2) includes options in respect of interests in mining
tenements acquired, exercised or lapsed during the reporting period. 1f the entity 1s mvolved in a joint
venture agreement and there are conditions precedent which will change its percentage interest in a
mining tenement, il should disclose the change of percentage interest and conditions precedent in the list
required for ilems 6.1 and 6.2.

3 Issued and quoted securities The issue price and amount paid up is not required in items 7.1
and 7.3 for fully paid securities.

4 The definitions in, and provisions of, AASB 1}22: Accounting for Extractive Industries and
AASE H26: Statement of Cash Flows apply to this report.

5 Accounting Standards ASX will accept, for example, the use of Infernational Accounting
Standards for foreign entities. If 1he standards used do not address a lopic, the Australian standard on that
topic (i any) must be complied with.

+ See chapter 19 for defined ferms.

30:9/2001 Appendix 5B Page 5
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4 December 2006 ] L0 A oo
The Manager, CTIAC OE T
Company Announcement Office, SUn
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

IRONBARK AND GRAYNIC DIVEST TUNGSTEN AND TIN PROJECTS

l[ronbark Gold Limited (lronbark) reports that it has entered inlo a co-operative divesiment
agreement of its wholly owned Burrandana and Kiawarra tungsten and tin projects to Wolf Minerals
Limited (Wolf) for a consideration of 3 million Wolf shares. The divestment will see these projects
receive the attention they deserve allowing lronbark to continue 1o focus on its base metal and gold
projects in NSW. In addition Wolf has entered into an agreement with Graynic Metals Limited
(Graynic) lo acquire the tin and tungsten rights at the Yanco Glen project in exchange for 2 million
Wolf shares. Graynic will continue to focus on its base metal projects in WA and NSW.

A map showing the location of the Wolf projects is attached.

Wolf is an unlisted public company with intentions to list on the Australian Stock Exchange in the
first quarter of 2007 and raise approximately $3 million under a prospectus offer at $0.20 per share.
Wolf has appeinted Mr Humphrey Hate as the Managing Director and Mr Peter Mullins as the non-
Executive Chairman. Representatives of Ironbark and Graynic will be also be invited to join the
Wolf Board.

Mr Peter Mullins, BA (Hons), has a weallh of experience in organisafional devefopment,
governance and international economic and political affairs. With a career that includes
experience as an Australian diplomat and positions with Ernst & Young and ACIL Economics,
plus various CEO appointments over the past decade. He is a Member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors (AICD). Peter's background inciudes environmental and land
management and will assist the company to adopt leading-edge praclices in all these areas.
Peter is a former CEQ of the Rural Lands Protection Boards in NSW and a former CEQO of
Greenpeace Auslralia Pacific.

Mr. Humphrey Hale, B.Sc. (Hons) Exploration and Mining Geology, has over 14 years
experience in the exploration and mining industry. This experience has principally been gained
through exploration, resource development and mine feasibility roles for mining and exploration
companies in various commodities. Humphrey was a founding director of a private gold
exploration company in QLD, he spent 5 years with an exploration and mining consuftant where
he gained experience in multiple commodities, before faking on management of near mine
exploration including a major feasibility siudy ta establish an underground mine for AngloGold
Ashanti.

ronbark and Graynic have secured a commitment from Wolf to offer tronbark and Graynic
shareholders a priority entilement to subscribe for Wolf shares. The terms of the priornity offer
including the record date to determine entitlement will be advised when the Wolf prospectus has
been lodged and is generally available.

Thae directors of lronbark and Graynic wish to highlight that they will only participate in Wolf through
their shareholding in Ironbark and Graynic respectively. No promoter or seed capital securities
have been offered to the directors of either company. The directors have however unanimously
indicated their interest in subscribing for shares in Wolf through the public offer prospectus.

Jonathan Downes Ron Thom
Managing Director Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED GRAYNIC METALS LIMITED
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4 December 2006

The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

IRONBARK AND GRAYNIC DIVEST TUNGSTEN AND TIN PROJECTS

ronbark Gold Limited (lronbark) reports that it has entered into a co-operative divesiment
agreement of its wholly owned Burrandana and Kiawarra tungsten and tin projects to Wolf Minerals
Limited (Wolf} for a consideration of 3 million Welf shares. The divestment wili see these projects
receive the attention they deserve allowing ironbark to continue to focus on its base metal and gold
projects in NSW. In addition Wolf has entered into an agreement with Graynic Metals Limited
(Graynic) to acquire the tin and tungsten righis at the Yanco Glen project in exchange for 2 million
Wolf shares. Graynic will continue to focus on its base metal projects in WA and NSW.

A map showing the location of the Wolf projects is atlached.

Wolf is an unlisted public company with intentions to list on the Australian Stock Exchange in the
first quarter of 2007 and raise approximately $3 million under a prospectus offer at $0.20 per share.
Wolf has appointed Mr Humphrey Hale as the Managing Director and Mr Peter Mullins as the non-
Executive Chairman. Representatives of Ironbark and Graynic will be also be invited to join the
Wolf Board.

Mr Peter Mullins, BA (Hons), has a wealth of experience in organisational development,
governance and international economic and political affairs. With a career that includes
experience as an Australian diplomat and positions with Ernst & Young and ACIL Economics,
plus various CEQ appointments over the past decade. He is a Member of the Australian
Institute of Company Directors (AICD). Peter’'s background includes environmental and fand
management and will assist the company lo adopt leading-edge practices in all these areas.
Peter is a former CEQ of the Rural Lands Protection Boards in NSW and a former CEQ of
Greenpeace Australia Pacific.

Mr. Humphrey Hale, B.5c. (Hons) Exploration and Mining Geology, has over 14 years
experience in the exploration and mining industry. This experience has principally been gained
through exploration, resource development and mine feasibility roles for mining and exploration
companies in various commodities. Humphrey was a founding director of a private gold
exploration company in QLD, he spent 5 years with an exploration and mining consultant where
he gained experience in mulliple commodities, before taking on management of near mine
exploration including a major feasibifity study fo establish an underground mine for AngloGold
Ashanti.

lronbark and Graynic have secured a commitment from Walf to offer lronbark and Graynic
shareholders a priority entillement to subscribe for Wolf shares. The terms of the priority offer
including the record date to determine entitlement will be advised when the Wolf prospectus has
been lodged and is generally available.

The directors of ironbark and Graynic wish to highlight that they will only participate in Wolf through
their sharehelding in Ironbark and Graynic respectively. No promoter or seed capital secunties
have been offered to the directors of either company. The directors have however unanimously
indicated their interest in subscribing for shares in Wolf through the public offer prospectus.

Jonathan Downes Ron Thom
Managing Director Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED GRAYNIC METALS LIMITED
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Drilling

Ironbark: Focused on Gold and Base
Metal Exploration and Development
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Disclaimer

This Presentation has been prepared exclusively for the recipient and is not to be
relied upan by anyone else. fronbark Gold Limited (IBG) believe that the advice
and information herein has been obtained from sources that are accurate and
reliable. but it has not checked or verified the information and no warranty of
accuracy, reliability or completeness is given and (except insofar as liability under
any statute cannot he excluded) no responsibility arising in any other way for
errors and omissions or in negligence is accepted by IBG or any employee,
agent or Director. IBG accepts no liability for any loss or damage caused by any
error in or omission from this report. This document is not intended to be an offer,
or a solicitation of an offer, to buy or sell any relevant securities (i.e. securities
mentioned herein or of the same issuer and options, warrant, or rights with
respect to or interests in any such securities). IBG does not guarantee the
accuracy or completeness of the information herein, or upon which opinions
herein have been based. Unless otherwise stated all views expressed herein
(including estimates or forecasts) are solely those of IBG and subject to change
without notice. Whilst this document is based on information and assessments
we believe are current at the date of this publication. IBG has no obligation to
provide revised assessments in the event of changed circumstances. This
document may not be reproduced or copies circulated without authaority.




Directors and Officers

Peter Duncombe Bennetto- Non Executive Chainman
Banking and Investment +30 years experience

Jonathan Charles Downes — Managing Director

B.5c¢ Geol, MAIG

Geologist { exploration and acquisition ) + 12 years experience

Adrian Paul Byass — Technical Director

B.Sc Hon (Geol), B.Econ, FSEG, MAIG

Geologist (exploration and resource evaluation ) + 12 years experience
Gregory Clyde Campbeli — Non Executive Director

BE {Chem) Hon

Process Engineer (project design through to commissioning) +17 years
experience.

Strong technical background with a track record for delivering value.

Corporate: ASX code IBG

+  Shares on Issue: 22.5M

»  Market Capitalisation @ 70c: $15M

+  Cash following Listing: $3M
+  Options on issue: 2M @@ 30c exercise
Website

www.ironbarkqgold.com.au
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Core Projects

Ironbark has 'wo advanced base-metal project in NSW which the company is

currently focusing expicoration activities on;-

Belara: Advanced Cu-Pb-Zn-Ag project — currently heing drilled,

modeled and evatuated

Immediate Target 1-2MT @ 8% Zn eqv

Captains Flat: Major Cu-Pb-Zn-Ag-Au producer until 1962 —~ currently
being evaluated and modeled with drilling planned

Immediate Target 4MT @ 8% Zn eqv
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Going Forward

Within 6 months

- Define a resgurce at the Belara hase metal project through driling. Target
+1MT from 1st phase

+ Explore the Jerangle base metal project {South of Captains Flat)

+  Compile historic data at the Captains Flat base metal project and assess
extensional and remnant ore potential

+ Evaluate potentia! tailings resource at Captains Flat

+ Divest tungsten and tin projects into Wolf Minerals Limited IPO

Within 12 months

« Evaluate full potential of the Belara base metal project

+ Evaluate resource potential at the Captains Flat base metal project
including drilling tailings and underground

+ Evaluate potential resource at the Jerangle base metal project

+ Identify supportive partner lo commence development appraisals

The other projects held by lronbark will be dealt with as the Board sees fit and
may include exploration, joint venture or sale.
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Belara
History

«  Discovered < 1875 and worked intermittently to 1907. Mined grades 3-5%
Cu, 2-4.5g/t Au and 60-90g/t Ag.

« 16 Diamond holes drilled by Cominco in 1968. Cominco estimated a strike
length of 610m for Belara lode.

+  Newmont (1980) estimated a mineral inventory of 700,000t at 0.85% Cu,
5.9% Zn, 2.3% Pb and 55 g/t Ag based on Cominco drilling.

¢ Repoit available from NSW Department of Primary industries web site open file at
hftndiminview. minerals.nsw.qov.aul ELB576, Report G51984_332_12196

«  Tetal 23 diamond drill holes for 3,905m completed at Belara — Native Bee
to date.

+ Most recent diilling (2 diamond holes) completed by Aztec in 1993 .
returned the deepest and best intercept to date of Gm @ 6.9%Zn, 2.5%
Pb. 83 g/t Ag, 0.6% Cu and 0.46 g/t Au. which equates to (Em @ 21.0 g/t

Au eqv) Assuming USE645102 Au, US314j0z Ag, USS2.00ib Zn, USSE 0.75/ib Pb, USS
3.25ik Cu - as at 4" December 2006
« Current {ongoing) drilling planned for 1,800m or diamond and RC drilling.

Current Exploration

Ironbark is currently drilling at Belara and is preparing a resource estimate based
on historical and recent confirmation drilling resulis. This resource will be
reteased in early 2007,
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section. The current programme drilling density is targeted to allow a resource
estimate to be calculated at a moderate (Indicated) level of confidence.
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lronbark has acquired considerable exploration tenure along strike and around
the Belara Project. Upon completion of the first phase of drilling at Belara —
Native Bee, regional exploration will commence with focus being given to
previously defined CRAE Cu-Au targets within areas of historical Cu mining.




Captain’s Flat

“Captain's Flat is second only to Broken Hill as a source of lead and zinc. In
addition it will furnish farge quantities of sulphur for the manufaciure of
superphosphates - so valuable to our agricuftural industry.”

NSW Pariamentary Debatas, 8 December 1937 after the railway was constructed to the mine sile,

History

« Gold discovered in 1864

o First productive reef opened up in 1882 sparking the Molonglo River gold
rush

« 1883 saw first treatment plant built to recover gold but suffered due to high
lead and silver in ore

» 1885 saw first smelter and the focus turned to lead and silver

« In 1887 BHP purchased part of the Captain’s Flat mine (Commaodore) and
built a Calcination plant — that failed to effectively treat the cre

+ 1890 saw ore “heap roasted” using local timber burnt under the ore

e In 1894, the Commodore-Vanderbilt and Koh-i-noor mines were merged
and became the Lake George Mining and Smelling Company. Major
infrastructure was built including tramways, electricity, phones and pyritic
smelters

4
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« In 1899 base metal production ceased and the mine became focused on
gold again

« In 1936 the Government finally built a railway to Captain’'s Flat and a
major mining operation commenced

« After mining over 4 million tons of ore and producing metals valued at
$3.1B at current prices for a recorded production of 406,418 tonnes of
zing, 243,851 tonnas of lead, 27,230 tonnas of copper, 7.4 million ounces
of silver and 220,000 ounces of gold. the mine was closed in 1962
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Lake George Mine (Captain’s Flat)

Returning the LLake George Mine at Captain's Flat to production will be a high
priority for lronbark.

Deep drilling beneath the historical workings has intersected primary
mineralisation which is thought to represent a possible repeat of the Lake
George mineralisation. Intercepts at depth include 1.2m @ 12.4% Zn and
5.4% Pb.

The historical production from Lake George yielded in excess of 4Mt @ 10%
Zn, 6% Pb, 0.7% Cu. 55 g/t Ag and 1.8 g/t Au. Considerable amounts of
remnant mineralisation are contained within the area of previous mining and
within the tailings from historical treatment.

Captain's Flat Tailings

As with all major historic mines, a significant amount of tailings have been

produced and may represent significant “future value”. Geological Survey of NSW,
Department of Mines, Captain’s Flat Tailings Repornt 1965

The tailings are deposited in 7 main dumps and are estimated to contain the
following volumes — in cubic yards: (1 cubic yard = ~0.75 cubic metre or BCM)

Dump 1 45,200
Dump 2 38,600
Dump 3 50,200
Dump 4 3.400
Dump 5 16,900
Dump 6 650,500
Dump 7 665,000

Total 1,473,800 cubic yards

The tailings typically have a grade of 28% sulphur. The grade of zinc-lead-
copper-silver-gold in the tailings is not known.

lronbark will appraise the potential of the tailings as a matter of high priority.
This will include drill testing as part of the related Jerangle Prospect drilling
south of Captain’s Fiat scheduled for December 2006 - January 2007.
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Other Projects:

Ironbark has a selection of other wholly owned gold and base metal projects
in NSW. These projects are considered to be valuable assets of the Company
and will be evaluated in due course.

« Stuart Town

Historic goldfield that has a production history of at least 170k oz of gold.
The project is prospective for large scale Intrusion Related gold
mineralisation.

+ Bogong

Broad disseminated copper mineralisation identified by previous explorers
returning drill intercepts such as 60m at 1% copper. The project is
. considered to be prospective for large tonnage copper mineralisation

+ Pambula

Historic goldfield that has a production history of at least 100k oz of gold.
The project is prospective for high grade Intrusicn Related gold
mineralisation. Historic drill intercepts include 2m @ 22.9g/t gold and 5m
@ 7.6 g/t gold

+ Majors South

Large licence covering the southern portion of the Bratdwood Granodiorite,
including occurrences of "Majors Creek” styles of mineralisation and a
large portion of the “Majors Creek” fault that underlies the +1Moz alluvial
Araluen gold field.

+ FElsienora

Historic drilling returned multi lode base metal mineralisation over a strike
of at least 500m. Better results include:

Hole
No.

From
(m)

To

(1)

L.ength
(m)

Lead

(")

Zine
{0

Silver
{a/)

Gold
(e}

DD |
DO 4

§1.8
318.5

838
321.1

2.0

2.6

348
116

724
$.54

36
74

Not assaved
.66
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IRONBARK AND GRAYNIC TUNGSTEN DIVESTMENT:
WOLF MINERALS LIMITED RECORD DATE FOR PRIORITY OFFER

Ironbark Gold Limited (Ironbark) and Graynic Metals Limited (Graynic) report that
the co-operative divestment of the tungsten and tin projects into Wolf Minerals
Limited (Wolf) has progressed with a prospectus that has been lodged with the
ASIC on Friday 22 December 2006. Wolf is an unlisted public company with
intentions to list on the Ausltralian Stock Exchange in the first quarter of 2007 and
raise approximately $3 million under a prospectus offer at $0.20 per share. Wolf
has appointed Mr Humphrey Hale as the Managing Director and Mr Peter Mullins
as the non-Executive Chairman.

An indicative timetable is presented below. While the general public are invited to
subscribe for shares in Wolf, shareholders in fronbark and Graynic at {he Record
Date will be granted a priority to subscribe for shares in Wolf, The Board will retain
the right to allot shares at their sole discretion in the event the offer is
oversubscribed.

Lodgement of Praospectus with the ASIC 22 December 2006
Priority Record Date 12 January 2007
Opening Date 22 January 2007
Closing Date 5.00pm WST on 2 March 2007
Despatch of Holding Statements 7 March 2007
Expected date for listing on ASX 13 March 2007

These dates may be subject to change. The Company reserves the right to extend
the Closing Date or close the Offer early.

Shareholders in fronbark and Graynic are advised thal the issued capital of Wolf
will be 23,500,000 shares immediately following the listing of Wolf. Wolf has
allotted no promoter shares and no shares or options have been granted to the
Directors of tronbark and Graynic. 1,000,000 options with a 30 cent exercise price
will be granted to the Managing Director an listing. Wolf will hold in excess of $3
million after all costs associated with the listing.
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The Directors of Ironbark and Graynic have unanimously indicated their interest in
subscribing for shares in Wolf through the public offer prospectus. The offer is
expected to be keenly received and the Directors of lronbark and Graynic
recommend prompt action following the Opening Date by shareholders interested
in subscribing for shares in Wolf.

Jonathan Downes Ron Thom
Managing Director Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED GRAYNIC METALS LIMITED
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IRONBARK COMMENCES DRILLING AT CAPTAINS FLAT ~ JERANGLE
PROSPECT

Ironbark Gold Limited (Ironbark) reports that it has commenced drilling al the Jerangle
Prospect at Captains Flat, located on the southern end of the Captains Flat licence in New
South Wales (Figure 1) where Amoco {1981) intercepted significant zinc and copper
intercepts over a sirike of 1,500 metres and remains open to the north and south. Two
biind (does not reach surface) zones were identified, a copper zone and a zinc zcne
commencing at depths of approximately 100 metres.
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~ Figure 1: Plan view of the Captains Flat Licence and prospects
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There is no drilling between the two zones - see Figure 2. In addition, historic soil sampling
has identified a zone anomalous for zinc at a southern portion of the project that remains
to be drill tested.

The initial programme will see approximately 6 holes drilled for 1,100 metres to confirm
and extend historic copper/lead/zinc/gold and silver mineralisation returned by previous
explorers.

Jerangle prospect drilling
with significant historical results
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Figure 2: Plan View of historic drilling rasults (the complexity of the mineralisation and continuity between

holes has not yet been ascertained).
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Captains Flat Base Metal Project

Following the execution of an agreement with Monaroe Mining Limited (Monaro),
Ironbark has commenced the work necessary to earn a targeted 75% interest in
the Captains Flat base metal (zinc-lead-copper-silver-gold) project. Monaro will
retain a free carried interest to a decision to mine.

Captains Flat represents a well endowed belt of Volcanic Massive Sulphide (VMS)
base metal mineralisation with numerous base metal occurrences and covers the
historic Captains Flat (Lake George) Mine that has produced 4 million tonnes of
high grade zinc-lead-copper-silver-gold. The mineralisation remains open at depth
and numerous historic drill results along strike require follow up.

For further information please contact:
Jonathan Downes

Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Level 1, 350 Hay Street,
Subiaco,

WA 6008

Tel: (08) 6461 6350
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DRILLING RESULTS - BELARA PROJECT

Ironbark Gold Limited is pleased to report that results frem the first stage of drilling
at Belara have been received. Highlights are summarised below:

Resource drilling confirms continuity and grade of zinc-lead-copper-silver-
gold mineralisation with results such as:

Hole B30: 8 metres @ 4.2% Zn, 1.8% Pb, 0.5% Cu, 62 g/ Ag, 0.5 g/t Au
(12.8 g/t AuEq, 6.5% ZnEq)
- including 2 metres @ 6.6% 4Zn. 5.3% Pb, 1.2% Cu, 178 g/t Ag,
1.3 g/t Au (25.4 g/ AuEq, 12.8% ZnEq); and
3 metres @ 5.7% Zn,0.9% Pb. 0.1% Cu, 22 g/t Ag, 0.1 g/ Au
(12.72 gt AukEq, 6.5% ZnEQ)

Peak grade results returned from the drlling include 14.5% Zn, 8.8% Pb,
2.3% Cu, 307 g/t Ag and 2.1 g/t gold over (1.5 metres intervals

The drilling density is considered sufficient to allow a maiden JORC
Compliant resource to be caiculated and released in the March quarter

Mineralisation remains open and is in¢reasing in widih and grade at depth
Extensional drilling program currently being planned to commence in March
Rock chip sampling fo the south of the Project has exiended the strike of
mineralisation a further 140 metres to the south with grades of up to 3.7%
Pb

Rock chip assay results from sampling to the north have not been returned
yet however historic sampling 500 metres to the north of the main historic

Belara workings have returned grades of up to 29% copper and 7 g/t gold

Total strike of identified mineralisation at Belara now exceeds 2,200 metres
and remains open to the North, South and at depth




The Belara Project is located east of Wellington and approximately 90 kilometres
north of Orange in New South Wales. Previous explarers have identified significant
zinc, lead, copper, silver and gold mineralisation from drilling undertaken between
1668 and 1983. The mineralisation has been identified over a strike of 2,200
metres.

The drilling results are tabled below (Table 1) and each mineralised hole returned
intercepts comprising of 5 elements. To understand the collective value of each
intercept, a gold equivalent (AuEq) and a zinc equivalent (ZnEq) column have
been added according to the contained metal values shown in Table 1.

The average width of the lodes intersected was 3.0m and the average unweighted
grade as a gold equivalent was 16.0 g/t and the average unweighted grade as a
zine equivalent was 8.1%. The price assumptions are attached to Table 1.

The drilling program comprised 9 holes for 1,104 metres of reverse circulation (RC)
drilling and 707.4 metres of diamond drilling (see Figure 1). The drilling has
successfuliy confirmed the continuity of previously identified mineralisation and the
tenor of the mineralisation between earlier drill holes. The drilling data is now
considered of sufficient density to allow a JORC compliant resource to be
calculated. This process has begun and results are expected in the March quarter
of 2007.

A program of extensicnal drilling is currently being planned to expand on the
resource and to test the mineralisation at depth, which appears to be increasing in
grade and width, and on strike in several areas of the deposit.

Assays for hole B31 have not been received. Hole B23 deviated from its planned
focation as the hole lifted (from -60 degrees to -35 degrees) and missed the target
zone. This hole is planned to be re-drilled in March. Hole B25 intercepted a
porphyry rock that was not mineralised.




Table 1

Belara Project

Significant Drilling Intercepts

IRONBARK DRILLING NOV-DEC 2006

B.Om @ 4.2% Zn, 1.8% Phb, 0.5% Cu, 62 g/t Ag, 0.5 g/t Au (12.8 g/t AuEq. 6.5% ZnEq) from 299m

Iincluding 2.0m @ 6.6% Zn, 5.3% Pb, 1.2% Cu, 178 g/t Ay, 1.3 g/t Au (25.4 g/t AuEgq, 12,9% ZnEq) from 299m;

and 3.0m @ 5.7% Zn, 0.9% Pb, 0.1% Cu, 22 g/t Ag, 0.1 g/t Au (12.72 g/t AuEqg. 6.5% Zn E£q) from 304m

Depth 10
Hole ID  From {m) (m} Width (m) n % Ph % Cu % Ag gt Auglt AuEgaglt ZnEq %
BO24 B1.G 82.0 1 31.48 1.36 0.18 a1 0.02 028 4.71
B024 §2.0 83.0 1 6.36 1.73 0.557 60 7.16 16.82 8.54
BO24 83.0 84.0 1 (.62 0.2168 0414 1 0.01 2.78 1.40
B024 84.0 85.0 1 4.19 1.2 1.69 50 0.04 14,81 7.57
4m @ 3.7 % Zn, 1.13% Pb, 0.71% Cu, 41 g/t Ag, 0.06 g/t Au {(11.1 g/t AuEa g/t. 5.6% ZnEq) from §1m
B026 132.0 132.5 0.5 12.7 4.85 G.01 148 .05 35.85 16.22
BO26 132.5 133.0 0.5 6.91 0.846 G.02 22.5 5.03 14.88 7.55
BO26 133.0 133.5 0.5 1.26 0.303 0.23 12.9 3.01 3.63 1.84
1.5m @ 7.0% Zn. 2.0 %Pb, 0.1% Cu, 61 g/t Ag, 0.03 g/t Av (16.8 g/t AuEq. 8.5% ZnEqg) from 132m
BO27 186.5 187.0 0.5 7.5 2.88 0.1 132 3.04 10.87 10,14
BO27 187.0 187.5 0.5 2.09 0.32 G4 16.5 0 4.83 2.580

.8027 187.5 188.0G 0.5 0.483 0.09 2.0 12.7 0 1.40 .71
BOZ27 185.0 189.6 1.0 0,173 0.06 a.1 t4.6 0 .54 O 48
1.0m @ 4.8% Zn, 1.6% Pb, 0.1% Cu, 15 g/t Ag, 0.02 g/t Au (12.45 git Au, 6.3% ZnEg} from 186.5m
B028 164.5 165.0 0.5 1.39 0.32 0.02 6.4 0.03 3.2 1.63
BG28 165.0 165.5 0.5 12.9 5.22 0.08 100 0.06 31.84 16.16
BO28 166.58 166.0 0.5 5.28 1.6 1.27 228 0.97 20.85 10.58
BG28 166.0 166.5 0.5 1.57 0.22 1.87 109 1.5 12.16 6.17
BO2§ 168.5 167.0 0.5 n.22 0.1 1.71 44 1.77 7.89 200
BO28 167.0 167.5 0.5 0.3 0.06 1.22 242 0.84 5.33 2.71
BOZR 167.5 168.0 0.5 0.15 .08 6 4.7 277 .08 1 66
BO28& 168.0 168.5 0.5 G.11 0.05 0.8 17.9 1.55 337 1,71
20m @ 5.0% Zn, 1.8% Pb, 120 git Ag, 1.1 g/t Au (18.2 g/t AuEq, 9.2% Zn Eq} from 165 metres
including 1.0m @ 9.1% Zn, 3.4% Pb, 1.2% Cu, 120 git Ag, 1.1 g/t Au (26.34 g/t AuEqg, 13.4% ZnEq} from 165m
BO29 253.5 254.5 1 1.5 G.4 0.10 223 .01 3.92 1.99
B029 254.5 255.0 0.5 3.0 0.9 .05 58 0.03 7.89 4.0t
BO2YG 255.0 2555 0.5 1.9 1.0 (.06 41 0.02 4.96 2.52
BO2G 255.5 256.0 0.5 14.5 54 0.03 153 0.08 36.09 18.32
1.5m @ 6.4% Zn, 2.4% Pb, 0.1% Cu, B4 g/t Ag, 0.08 g/t Au (16.3 g/t AuEqg, 8.3% ZnEy) from 254.5m

.8030 299.0 299.5 0.5 13.00 4.47 0.28 96 0.57 32.38 16.44
B30 299.5 300.0 0.5 1.37 1.29 .66 67 1.72 8.62 4.37
8030 300.0 300.5 0.5 3.05 8.76 2.25 367 2.14 27.64 13.93
8030 300.5 301.0 0.5 8.84 6.62 1.76 245 0.88 33.34 16.92
8030 30%.6 301.56 0.5 072 0.26 1.50 56 075 7.65 3.88
iBOSO 301.5 302.0 0.5 0.75 0.44 0.20 a3 0.3 3.36 1.71
BO3AO 302.0 303.0 1 1.87 0.40 0.06 14 n.06 4.50 2.29
8030 303.8 304.0 1 0.32 0.32 0.12 13 0.08 1.566 0.79
B030 304.6 304.5 0.5 5.95 0.36 0.26 18 0.15 13.26 6G.73
8030 304.5 305.0 0.5 10.15 1.70 0.18 42 0.12 22.83 11.59
8030 305.0 3055 0.5 3.98 0.70 0.02 16 n.03 .82 4 48
8030 305.5 3G6.0 0.5 6.32 0.37 .15 14 0.2 13.68 £.90
BO30 306.© 307.0 1 3.83 0.99 0.03 21 0.07 5.91 4.53

AuEq and ZnEkq use the following price nssumptions:

Zn USS1.80/1b, Pb USS0.7/b, Cu USS2.75/tb. Ag LSS 13/oz, Au LISS625/0x
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A program of rock chip sampling to the south has extended the strike of
mineraiisation a further 140 metres to the south with grades of up to 3.7% Pb, 0.4
g/t Au, 28 g/t Ag and 0.5% Cu from outeropping mineralisation.

Rock chip assay results from sampling to the north of the Belara have not been
returned however historic sampling 500 metres to the north of the main historic
Belara workings have previously returned grades of up to 28% Cu and 7 g/t Au
from outcropping chalcocite mineralisation.

This takes the total potential strike of identified mineralisation from the south of
Native Bee to the north of Belara to 2,200 metres and open (Figure 2).

The ore type at Belara is classified as Volcanogenic Massive Sulphide (VMS). This
model typically occurs as lenses of polymetallic massive sulphide that forms at or
near the sea floor in submarine volcanic environments. Many VMS deposits occur
in Canada and have contributed to approximately 50% of all the zinc produced
there. Because of their polymetallic content, VMS deposits continue to be cne of
the best deposit types for security against fluctuating prices of different metals.
Belara is believed to belong to the Silici-Clastic-Felsic model that has average
grades in Canada of 4.7% Zn, 2% Pb, 0.9% Cu, 53 g/t Ag and 0.8 g/t Au with an
average size of 9.2 million tons.

Table 2
Tolal Diamona

Prospect| Hele_id| GDA_E] GDA_N Depthi RC Depth Depth| Collar dip| Collar azi
Native Bee B023] 710524] 6414780 103 103 0 -64.14]  247.62
Native Bee BO24{ 710475| 6414960 138 138 0 -58.67 24533
Native Bee BO25| 710256| 6415823 133 133 0 -65.09 247 .49
Belara BO27{ 710227| 6416022 2074 138 62.1 -68.36 200.77
Belara BO26| 710148| 6416084 156.2 90 66.2 -68.22 238.41
Belara B028| 710208| 6416181 187.5 157 30.5 -70 226
Belara B029| 710327] 6416217 260 109 151 -70 228
Belara BO30[ 710347 6416367 312.8 121 191.6 -70 226
Belara B031 710301 6416494 az1 115 206 -60 240
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Bolara - Native Bes Long Soction and planned drilling
looking west +/-150m. Historical drilling and lronbark driiling intercepts
showing gold equivalent {9/t AuEqv) and zinc equivalent (% ZnEqv) intercepts
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The information in this report that relaies 1o Exploration Results, Mineral Resources or Ore Resarvos is based on information
compiled by Mr A Byass, B.Sc Hans(Geol), B.Econ. FSEG. MAIG an employee of tronbark Gold Limited. Mr Byass has
sufficiont expericnce that is retevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under congideration and fo the activity
which he Is undenaking 1o quality as a Competant Person as defined In the 2004 Zdition of the Australasian Cada for
Reporting af Exoploralion Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. Mr Byass consents ta the inclusion in the report of
the matters based on this information in the form and contaxt in which it appears.

For further information please contact:
Jonathan Downes

Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Level 1, 350 Hay Street,
Subiaco,

WA 6008

Tel: (08) 6461 6350
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fronbark Gold Limited (lronbark) is an Australian mineral exploration and
development company that owns a suite of base metal and precious metal
projects.

Highlights

-

Belara
Resource drilling at Belara confirms continuity and grade of zinc-lead-
copper-silver-gold mineralisation with results such as:
Hole B30: 8 metres @ 4.2% Zn, 1.8% Pb, 0.6% Cu, 62 g/ Ag, 0.5 g/t Au
including 2 metres @ 6.6% Zn, 5.3% Pb, 1.2% Cu, 178 g/t Ag, 1.3 g/t Au
(25.4 g/ AuEqg, 12.9% ZnEq) ; and
3 metres @ 5.7% Zn,0.8% Pb, 0.1% Cu, 22 g/t Ag, 0.1 g/ Au (12.72 git
AuEqg, 6.5% ZnEq)

{ Full detail Metal Equivalent values and calculation formula are shown in Table 1)

The drilling density is considered sufficient to allow a maiden JORC
Compliant resource for Belara to be calculated and released in the March
quarter

Mineralisation remains open and is increasing in width and grade at depth.
Extensional drilling program currently being plannad to commence in March

Rock chip sampling to the south of the Project has confirmed continuity
along the strike of mineralisation a further 140 metres to the south of B23
(southern lronbark hole) with grades of up to 3.7% Pb. Historic sampling
500 metres to the north of the main historic Belara workings have returned
grades of up to 28% copper and 7 g/t gold. ldentified mineralisation at
Belara now exceeds 2,200 metres and rernainsg open

Captains Flat
Drill rig mobilised to Jerangle in January with drilling angoing and evaluation
of the potential of the tailings project at Lake George mine site

Wolf Minerals Limited IPO

Prospectus lodged for Wolf Minerals Limited 1PO date 22 December 2006 —
Ofter opens 22 January 2007

Continued Project Acquisition
Projects acquired for gold, zinc and copper mineralisation within the quarter



1 Belara base metal project

The Belara Project is located east of Wellington and approximately 90 kilometres
north of Orange in New South Wales. Previous explorers have identified significant
sediment-hosted zinc. lead. copper, silver and gold mineralisation from drilling
undertaken between 1968 and 1993. The mineralisation has been identified over a
strike of 2,200 metres.

The drilling results are tabled below {Table 1) and each mineralised hole returned
intercepts comprising of 5 elements. To understand the collective value of each
intercept, a gold equivalent (AuEg) and a zinc equivalent (ZnEq} column have
been added according to the contained metal values.

The drilling program comprised 8 holes for 1,104 metres of reverse circutation (RC)
driling and 707.4 metres of diamond drilling (see Figure 1). The drilling has
successfully confirmed the continuity of previously identified mineralisation and the
tenor of the mineralisation between earlier drill hcles. The drilling data is now
considered of sufficient density to allow a JORC compliant resource to be
calculated. This process has begun and results are expected in the March guarter
of 2007.

A program of extensional drilling is currently being ptanned to expand on the
resource and to test the mineralisation at depth, which appears to be increasing in
grade and width.

Assays for hole B31 have not been received. Hole B23 deviated from its planned
location as the hole lifted (from -60 degrees to -35 degrees) and missed the target
zone. This hole is planned to be re-drilled in April. Hole B25 intercepted a intrusive
parphyry rock that was not mineralised and interpreted to be post-mineraiisation in
age.
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Table 1
Belara Project IRONBARK DRILLING NOV-DEC 2006
Significant Drilling Intercepts
Depth Depth 1o
Hole ID  From {m) Width (m) Zn Y% Pb % Cu % Ag glt Augit AuEgglt ZnEgq%
8024 B1.0 82.0 1 1.48 1.36 .18 41 0.02 .28 4.71
B024 82.0 83.0 1 6.36 1.73 0.557 60 2.18 16.82 8.54
8024 83.0 84.0 1 0.62 0.216 0.414 1 0.01 276 1.40
BO24 B4.C 85.0 1 4.19 1.2 1.69 50 0.04 14.91 7.57
am @ 3.7 % Zn, 1.13% Pb, 0.71% Cu, 41 g/t Ag, 0.06 g/t Au (11.1 g/t AuEqg g/t, 5.6% ZnEq) from 81m
B026 132.0 132.5 0.5 12.7 4.85 0.M 148 0.05 31.95 16.22
BO26 132.5 133.0 0.5 6.91 0.856 0.02 225 0.03 14.88 7.55
BO26 133.0 1335 0.5 1.26 0.303 0.23 12.9 0.01 3.63 1.84
1.5m @ 7.0 % Zn. 2.0 %Pb. 0.1% Cu, 61 g/t Ag, 0.03 g/t Au (16.8 g/t AuEqg. 8.5% ZnEqg)} from 132m
BO27 186.% 187.0 0.5 7.5 2.88 0.1 132 3.04 14.87 10,14
8027 187.C 187.5 0.5 2.09 0.32 G 16.5 Q 4.483 2.40
.8027 187.5 188.0 0.5 (3.483 .09 G.0 12.7 0 14D .71
BO27 188.0 188.0 1.0 0173 0.06 0.1 14.8 0 0.54 0.48
1.0m ¢ 4.8% Zn. 1.6% Pb, 0.1% Cu, 15 g/t Ag, 0.02 g/t Au {12.45 gft Au, 6.3% ZnEq) froam 186.5m
BO28 164.5 165.0 0.5 1.39 0.32 ¢.02 6.4 0.03 3.21 1.63
B028 165.0 165.5 0.5 12.9 5.22 G.08 100 0.06 31.84 16.18
BO28B 165.5 166.0 0.5 5.28 1.6 1.27 228 0.97 20.85 10.58
BO24 166.0 166.5 0.5 1.57 0.22 1.87 109 1.5 12,16 617
Bo28 166.5 167.0 0.5 0.22 0.1 1.71 a4 1.77 7.89 4.00
Bozs 167.0 167.5% 0.5 0.3 0.08 1.22 243 0.84 5.33 2.1
BO2& 167.5 1680 0.5 0.15 0.08 0.6 4.7 0.77 3.08 1.56
B0O28 168.0 168.5 0.6 0.11 0.05 0.8 17.9 0.55 .37 1.71
2.0m @ 5.0% Zn, 1.8% Pb, 120 g/t Ag, 1.1 g/t Au {18.2 git AuEq, 9.2% Zn Eg) from 165 metres
including 1.0m @ 9.1% 2Zn, 3.4% Pb, 1.2% Cu, 120 g/t Ag, 1.1 g/t Au {26.34 g/t AuEq, 13.4% ZnEqg) from 165m
B029 253.5 2545 1 1.8 0.4 .10 22.3 0.01 3.02 1.99
B0O29 254.5 255.0 0.5 3.0 0.9 0.05 58 0.03 7.89 4.01
B0O29 255.0 255.5 0.5 1.6 1.0 0.06 41 0.02 4.96 2.52
BO2G 2h58.5 256.0 0.5 14.5 5.4 0.03 153 0.08 36.09 18.32
1.5m ¢ 6.4% Zn, 2.4% Pb, 0.1% Cu, 84 g/t Ag. 0.08 g/t Au {16.3 g/t AuEq, 8.3% ZnEq) from 254.5m
.BOSO 299.0 299.5 0.5 13.00 4.47 0.26 96 3.67 32.38 16.44
B3O 28995 300.0 0.5 1.37 1.29 .66 67 1.72 B.62 4.37
BO3D 00.0 300.5 0.5 3.05 8.76 2.25 307 2.14 27.44 13.93
BO30 300.8 301.0 0.5 8.84 6.62 1.76 245 0.88 33.54 16,92
BO30 301.0 301.5 0.5 0n.72 0.26 1.50 56 0.75 7.65 3.88
BO3D 301.5 302.0 0.5 0.75 Gaa 0.20 33 03 3.36 171
BO3D 302.0 303.0 1 1.7 G.40 006 1a 2.06 a.50 229
BO30 303.0 304.0 1 (.32 0.32 0.12 13 0.08 1.66 0.79
BO3D 304.0 30405 0.5 5.95 (.36 (.28 18 0.15 13.26 6.73
BO3O 304.5 305.0 0.5 10.15 1.70 G.18 42 D12 22.83 11.59
BO30 305.0 308.5 0.5 3.98 Q.70 0.02 16 0.03 8.82 4.48
B30 305.5 306.0 0.5 6.32 0.37 .15 14 n.12 13.58 6.90
BO3O 306.0 307.0 1 3.83 0.99 0.03 24 0.07 8.91 4.53
8.0m @ 4.2% Zn, 1.8% Pb, 0.5% Cu, 62 g/t Ag, 0.5 g/t Au {12.8 git AuEq, 6.5% ZnEq) from 239m
including 2.0m @ 6.6% Zn, 5.3% Pb, 1.2% Cu, 178 y/t Ay, 1.3 g/t Au (25.4 g/t AuEqg, 12.9% ZnEy) from 299m;
and 3.0m @ 5.7% Zn, 0.9% Pb, 0.1% Cu, 22 g/t Ag, 0.1 g/t Au {12.72 git AuEqg. 6.5% Zn Eq) from 304m

AuEq and ZnEqg use the following price assumptions:
Zn USS1.80/1b, PL USE0.70/1b, Cu 1ISS$2.75/1b, Ag USS 13/0z, Au UUSS625/02
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A program of rock chip sampling to the south has extended the sirike of
mineralisation between Native Bee workings and the accessible southern imit of
lronbark drilling (B23). Samples taken 140 metres to the south of B23 returned
grades of up to 3.7% Ph, 0.4 g/t Au, 28 g/t Ag and 0.5% Cu from outcropping
mineralisation and shallow pits on the side of the hill slope.

Rock chip assay results from sampling to the north of the Belara have not been
returned however historic sampling 500 metres to the north of the main historic
Belara workings have previously returned grades of up to 29% Cu and 7 g/t Au
frorm outcropping chalcocite mineralisation.

This takes the total potential strike of identified mineralisation from the south of
Native Bee to the north of Belara to 2,200 metres and open (Figure 2).

The ore type at Belara is classified as Volcanogenic Massive Sulphide (VMS). This
model typically occurs as lenses of polymetallic massive sulphide that forms at or
near the sea floor in submarine volcanic environments. Many VMS deposits occur
in Canada and have contributed to approximately 50% of all the zinc produced
there. Because of their polymetallic content, VMS deposits continue to be one of
the best deposit types for security against fluctuating prices of different metals.
Belara is believed to belong to the Silici-Clastic-Felsic model that has average
grades in Canada of 4.7% Zn, 2% Pb, 0.9% Cu, 53 g/t Ag and 0.8 g/t Au with an
average size of 9.2 millicn tons.

Table 2
Tola Oiamond

Prospect| Hole_id GDA E GDA_N Depth| RC Depth Depth| Collar dip| Collar azi
Native Bee B023 710524 6414780 103 103 0 -64.14 247 .62
Native Bee BO24 710475 6414360 138 138 0 -58.67 245.33
Native Bee B025 710256 6415823 133 133 0 -65.99 247.49
Belara BO27 7102271 6416022 207 1 138 62.1 -69.36 200.77
Belara B026 710198] 6416084 156.2 a0 66.2 -68.22 238.41
Belara B028 710206 6416181 187.5 157 3056 -70 226
Belara B029 710327 6416217 260 109 151 -70 226
Belara B0O30 710347 6416367 312.8 121 191.6 -70 226
Beiara BO31 710301 6416494 321 115 206 -60 240
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Figure 1: Plan view on the surface expression of Belara line of mineralisation




Belara - Native Bae Long Section and planned drilling
looking west +/-150m. Historical drilling and Ironbark drilling intercepts
showing gold equivaient (g/t AuEqv) and zinc equivalent {% ZnEqv) intercepts
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Figure 2: Long section of the Belara mineralisation



2 Captains Flat base metal project

Following the execution of an agreement with Monaro Mining Limited (Menaro),
lronbark has commenced the work necessary to earn a targeted 75% interest in
the Captains Flat base metal (zinc-lead-copper-silver-gold) project.  Monaro will
retain a free carried interest to a decision to mine.

Captains Flat represents a well endowed belt of Volcanic Massive Sulphide (VIMS)
base metal mineralisation with numerous base metal occurrences and covers the
historic Captains Flat (Lake George) Mine that has produced 4 million tonnes of
high grade zinc-lead-copper-silver-gold. The mineralisation remains open at depth
and numerous historic drill results along strike require follow up.

ronbark commenced driling at the Jerangle Prospect at Captains Flat on 11
January 2007, located on the southern end of the Captains Flat licence in New
South Wales (Figure 3) where Amoco (1981) intercepted significant zinc and
copper intercepts over a strike of 1,500 metres and remains open to the north and
south. Two blind (does not reach surface) zones were identified, a copper zone
and a zinc zone commencing at depths of approximately 100 metres.

There is no drilling between the two zones - see Figure 4. In addition, hisloric soll
sampling has identified a zone anomalous for zing at a southern portion of the
project that remains to be drili tested.

The initial programme will see approximately 6 holes drilied for 1,100 metres to
confirm and extend historic copper/lead/zinc/gold and sifver mineralisation returned
by previous explorers.
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holes has nol yet been ascertained).
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3 Wolif Minerals Limited IPC

lronbark entered into a co-operative divestment agreement of its wholly owned
Burrandana and Kiawarra tungsten and tin projects to Wolf Minerals Limited (Walf)
for a consideration of 3 million Wolf shares. The divestment will see these projects
receive the attention they deserve allowing lronbark to continue to focus on its
base metal and gold projects in NSW. In addition Wolf has entered into an
agreement with Graynic Metals Limited (Graynic) to acquire the tin and tungsten
rights at the Yanco Glen project in exchange for 2 million Wolf shares (Figure 5).
Graynic will continue {o focus on its base metal projects in WA and NSW.

Wolf is an unlisted public company with intentions to list on the Australian Stock
Exchange in the first quarter of 2007 and raise approximately $3 million under a
prospectus offer at 50.20 per share. Wolf has appointed Mr Humphrey Hale as the
Managing Director and Mr Peter Mullins as the non-Executive Chairman.

Mr Peter Mullins. BA (Hons). has a wealth of experience in organisational
development, governance and international economic and political affairs. With
a career that includes experience as an Australian diplomat and positions with
Ernst & Young and ACIL Economics, plus various CEQ appointments over the
past decade. He is a Member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors
(AICD). Peter’s background includes environmental and land management and
will assist the company fo adopt leading-edge practices in all these areas.
Peter is a former CEQ of the Rural Lands Protection Boards in NSW and a
former CEQ of Greenpeace Australia Pacific.

Mr. Humphrey Hale, B.Sc. (Hons) Exploration and Mining Geology, has over
14 years experience in the exploration and mining industry. This experience
has principally been gained through exploration, resource development and
mine feasibility roles for mining and exploration companies in various
commodities. Humphrey was a founding director of a private gold exploration
company in QLD, he spent 5 years with an exploration and mining consultant
where he gained experience in multiple commodities, before taking on
management of near mine exploration including a major feasibility study to
establish an underground mine for AngloGold Ashanti.

lronbark and Graynic have secured a commitment from Wolf to offer fronbark and
Graynic shareholders a priority entittement to subscribe for Wolf shares.

The directars of lronbark and Graynic highlight that they will oniy participate in Wolf
through their shareholding in Ironbark and Graynic respectively. No promoter or
seed capitat securities have been offered to the directors of either company. The
directors have however unanimously indicated their interest in subscribing for
shares in Wolf through the public offer prospectus.
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Figure 5: Location plan of Woll Mineral Limited projects
4 Further project Acquisitions

lronbark lodged applications over prospecfive gold and base metals projects at
Majors South (ELA 2894, 2897), Captains Flat North (ELA 2923), Eisienora (ELA
2924} and Boomerang (ELA 2958).

Majors South ELA 2894 and 2897

This large licence covers the southern extensions of the Braidwood Granodiorite
unit — the host for the mineralisation at Majors Creek located off the licence to the
north, the Krawarree prospect. a portion of the Majors Creek/Araluen Fault over
which a significant amount of alluvial gold (+1Moz) has been produced and the
Snowball Goid mine.

Captains Ftat North (ELA 2923)

This lcence covers the northern extension of the Kehinoor volcanic belt, the host
rock to the Lake Gearge Mine. The licence is considered to be prospective for
further base metal mineralisation beneath regions of extensive soil cover,

Elsienora (ELA 2924)

This licence covers a series of historic base metal occurrences known as Elsienora
around the Peelwood base metal mining centre. Historic driiling identified a multi
lode system over a strike length of at least 500 meltres and returned results such
as 2.6 metres at 8.54% Zn, 3.16% Ph, 74 g/t Ag and 0.33 g/t Au.




Boomerang (ELA 2858)

The Boomerang project is located 14 kilometres west of Bodalla and covers
nurmerous historic gold workings.

The project returned a best drill intercept of 8 metres at 3.1 g/t Au from a 9 hole
program in 1987. The gold distribution has proven to have a high nugget effect with
one drill hole assay reporting a Fire Assay grade of 1.1 g/t Au but a Fire Screen
Assay returning 16.1 g/t gold for the same interval.

Thaer intformartion in this report that elates to Exploration Results, Minerat Resoorces or Qre Resarves is based on infermation
compiled by Mr A Byass, B Sc RHors(Geol), 3.Econ, FSEG. MAIG an employes of Ironbark Gold Limitad. Mr Byass has
sufficient experience that is relevasnt 1o the style of mineralisation and type of deposit under consideration and 1o the activity
whicn he is undertaking to gualify as a Competant Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the Australasian Code for
Reporting of Exoploration Residis, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. Mr Byass consents to the inclusion in the report of
tha matters based aon his information in the [orm and context in which it appears.

For further information please contact:
Jonathan Downes

Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Level 1, 350 Hay Street,
Subiaco.

VWA 6008

Tel: (08) 8461 6350
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Appendix 5B

Mining exploration entity quarter(y report

Tmroduced 17296, Qi Appendic 8 Amendsl 173497, 07 98, 30:922000

Name of entity

Rude 3.3

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

ABN

93 118 751027

Consolidated statement of cash Tows

Ouarter endad (current quanter’)

31 December 2006

Current guarter

Year 1o date {6 montihs}

Cush Hows related to operating activities FATODO SATONH
11 Receipts rom product sales and related debtors - .
1.2 Payments for
() cxplormion and evaluation e (2013
by development - -
(¢} production - -
(Y adinnnstration (751 (187
1.3 Dividends received - -
1.4 Interest and other sens of o sinibur notare () 73
received
1.5 Interest and other costs of inance paid - -
1.6 Iteome taxes paid - -
1.7 Other (Boud) {0 (9
Net Opurating Cash Flows 187 {322}
Cush Nows related 1o investing activities
1.8 Paymiem for purchases ol
(adprogpects - {30)
(Plequity investments - -
(cyother fixed assets - -
1.9 Proceeds Irom sale ol
(ammospects - -
(Bicquity mvestments - -
(cyother Nixed nssets - -
110 Loans 1o other entities ) (2
1.11 Louns repaid by other entities
112 Other (provide details if neneriall - -
Net investing cash flows {2 (34
V13 Total operating and  investing cash Tows
(carried furward) {187 (374}

+ See chapter 19 for defined werms,

30a0:20001
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1.13 Total operating  and  invesiing  cazh  {lows
(hrought Torwardy {189 {374}
Cash Rows related to financing sctivities
114 Proceeds Mrot issies of shares, options, cte. - 3,000
[ Proceeds from sale ol torfeited shares - .
116 Proceeds Trom borvow igs - -
i.17 Repayviment of borrowings - -
1.1& Dhvidends paid - -
110 Crher - cusls Lo 1ssue (41i) (201
Net financing cash Nows (41 2,799
Netincrense (deerease) in cash held (230} 2425
1.20 Cash at beginning of quarter/year 1o date 3,022 Jo7
1.2 Exchanye rate adiustinents to item 1.20 - -
\ . 2792 2792 (1]
1.22 Cash at end of quayter ’

Payments to dircctors of the entity and associates of the directors

Payments to related entities of the entity and associates of the related entities

Currenl guarter

$A'000

1.23 Aggiregale amount of payimenis to the parties included m item 1.2 27

[.24 Apgreaate anwonnt of loans 1o the parties meluded i item O -
1.25 Explagation necessary for an understanding of the tansactions

[ Pavinent of consulting and directors fees 1o dircelors.
Non-cash financing and investing activities 0
2.1 Deinils of financing and imvesting nansactions which have had a maserial elfect on consolidated

assets and labilites bt did not involve cash Tows

L |

22 Details of oatlays made by other entities o establish or increase their share in projects in which the
reporling entity lias an inerest

L |

Financing facilitics available

Adid rotes wy necessary for an understanding of the position,

Amount avaiable Amount used
SATO00 SAT0N0

3 [oan facthities - -

3.2 Credit standby arrangrements - -

o 8ee chaper 19 Tor defined tenns,

39201 Appendis 5B Page 2
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Estimated cash outflows for next quarter

$ATO00

4.1 Exploration and evaluation 250
42 Developmemnm -
Total 250

Reconciliation of cash

Reconciliaaon of cash @ the end of the quarter {as

Current guarer

Prewions quarter

shown 1 the consolidated stmemem of cash Nows) to LATLON FATG00

the related iems in the accounts s as foltows,

5.1 Cash on hand and at bank {34 3

2 deposiis af o -

52 Deposits at call 3826 3019

53 Bank overdratl |

5.4 Other (provide defails) )
2,792 3.022

Total: cash at end of quarter {item |

Changes in interests in mining tenements

¢!

6.2

Interests in mining
tenesients relinguished,
reduced or lapsed

listerests L mining
tenements acquired or
merensed

Tenement
relerence

Nahwre of interest
{nete (20

Imterest at
bepinning
ol guarter

Interest m
end of
quarer

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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Issued and quoted securities at end of current quarter

Deseription includey rate of inerest and any redempiion or conversion righis together with prices and dates.

Total number

Number gquoted

[ssue
security [see note
3} {cenis)

price  per

Amount paid up per
securily (sge nole 3)

(cehis)

~J

~l
2]

I'reflerence
Tsecurities
fodeseriptiong)
Chatges durmg
aquarter
fay lnere:
throuph tssues

INCE

by Decreases
througzh renems
of capital, buy-

bachs.
redenplivng

‘Ordinary
secnrities

Changes during
quarter

{a) lncseases
through issues
by Decrcases
through returns
ol capital, buy-
backs

22,500,000

17,000,600

"Convertible
debt securities
(dexcriprion)
Changes during
uarter

(a) Increases
through issues
M Decreases
ihrough
securilies
miaiured,
convaeried

7.9

Options
fdeseription ard
COMATsion

jactarg

Issued during
quarter
Exercised during
quarter

Expired during
quartar

2,000,060

Exereive price
30.30

Fxpiry dute
10 Augrust 201 |

PDebentures
fiials only)

Unseenred
notes ffotals
only)

= Qee chapror 19 for defined weems.
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Compliance siatement

| This statement has been prepared under accounting policies which comply wilh accounting
standards as defined in the Corporations Act or olher standards aceeptable (0 ASN (see nole 4},

2 This stitement does pive 3 true and Fair view of the maners disclosed.
.
\.,._.._j\ o -
el _)f". ¢ ‘-\J\

Sign here: Stephen Brockhurst Date: 30 January 2007

{Company secrelary)

Nuotes

] The quarterty report provides a basis for informing the market how the entity's activitics have
been finunced for the past quaner and the effeat on its cash posilion. An entity wanting lo dizclose
additional information is encovraged to do o, 104 note or nates auached 1o s reporl.

2 Fhe “Nature of interest™ (ilems 6.1 and 6.2) includes options i respect of inferests in mining
lenements acquired. exercised or lapsed during the reporting period. 1 the entity is involved in a joim
venhire agreement and there are conditions precedent which will shange its percentage interest in a
mining tenement, it should disclose the change of percentage interest and conditions precedent m the Jist
reguived for items 6.1 and 6.2.

3 Essued nnd quoted seeurities The igsue price and amount paid up is not required in ftems 7.1
and 2.3 for fully paid securities.

o The definitions in, and provisions of, AASH TO22: dccoteting for Extractive {ndusivies and
AASB 1026; Starenwent of Cush Flows apply 10 his report,

5 Acvounting Standards ASN will seeept, for example, the use of Inlernational Avconnting
Standards for foreign entities. 11 the standards used do not address a topie, the Anstralian standard on tha
topie (5 any) mast be eomplied with.

# See chapter 19 101 defimed terms,
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The Manager,
Campany Annmmm ment Office,
Australlan Stock Exchange Linited

MAJOR ZINC PROJECT ACQUISITION

SUMMARY

lronbark Gold Limited (Ironbark} has entered into an agreemaent
to acquire 100% of the Citronen Zine Project (Citronen) in
Greenland,

Citronen represents one of the worlds largest undeveloped zine
resources. Citronen is located in northern Greenland (Figure 1),
a self governed territory of the Kingdom of Denmark. This major
acquisition significantly increases the scope of Ironbark towards
becoming a substantial zine producer.

The most recent resource estimate stands at ~17 million tons
at 7.8% zinc and 0.9% lead (~8.3% zinc equivalent). This is
hascd on 32.826 metres of diamond drilling conducted beoween
(993 and 1996 returning intercepts such as 28.8 metres @
9.7% zinc (including a hldh(‘] grade zone of 8.5m @ [9.0% zinc).

ronbark considers that Citronen offers exceptional large scale,
low risk, long life and high margin production potential as
well as an outstanding exploration opportunity with the
extent. of mineralisation vet. to be determined.

The mineralisation is considered {0 be of a SEDIEX siyle zine
deposit  and  this  model is  potentially - very  large. The
mineralisation starts from the surtace and is shallow, Qat lying
and adjacent o a deep water {jord that may provide near mine
ship docking and loading opportunities.

Following successful due diligence, lIronbark has agreed to
purchase 100% of Citronen for S6M cash and 8M shares in
Ironbark, plus 16M options in Ironbark with an exercise price of
$1.50 and maturity date of 1 Fehruary 2010.

Separately. a 2.5% net smelter rovalty (NSR) is payable,
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Figure 10 Location Plan - Citronen Zine Project and other historic zine mines
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Discovery

The Citronen Zine Project was discovered in 1993 by Plalinova A/S
{partially owned by (he Government of Greenland) and was the subject ol 4
further campalgns ol Investigation until 1998 and  al a dime of
excepiionally low base metal prices (Zine ~US$0.40/1b).

Exploration Potential

As a result of being a recent discovery (1993) and the poor prevailing metal
prices at that time. Citronen is considered io offer o rare level of true
exploration potential as [t 1s under explored and open ended. lronbark
cannot. comment on the toltal potential size of Ciironen at this time.
although 16.8Mt are currently either at indicated or inferred level
Exploration to date (19932-1997 drilling) was curtailed prior to delineation
ol the exients ol mineralisation due to a combination ol factors, such as a
worldwide  coniraction  in explordlon  expenditare resalting from
historleally low maeial prices (<$US 0.40 /i Znin 1998) and continued
exploration success not defining the limils of significant mineralisation. A
targel resource ol at least 20M1 (o 25 My was estimated by Platinovia A/S
based on surface mapping and gravily data to date within the main project
arca.

There 1s considerable further cxploration potential such as endifted by
the most south-castern drill hole that intercepled 12% zine over 2 metres
from 95.5 metres depth (see Figure 2}, This hole is located 550 metres
from the nearest drill hole. There is no drilling beyond this poini,

The Tronbark geological ieam is very excited hy the opportuniiy to advance
Citronen from both an exploration amd a development perspective and has
already commenced plans o aggressively explore the property as soon as
possible.

Resource

The Citronen resource (sce Table 1) was reporied (o the Toronwo Stock
Ixchange in 1999 and was caleatated from 147 diamond drlll holes lor
32,826 meires of dinmond drill core. The majority ol The diilling is vertical
and mineralised intercepts represent clese to rue width of the ore hody
that dips at between 5 and 7 degrees 10 the North. The ore body starts
from surface with the bulic of the resource to date recorded at less than
200 metres depih,

A scoping study was conducteed by Kvaerner un a high grade porilon of the

resource known as the Beach Zone The Beach Zone resource was
reviewed by Strathcona - an independent geological consultant.

Table 1: Citronen Resource lstimate




Citronen Project Resource Estimate (1)

Million % Zinc | % Lead Category

tonncs (Zn) (Pb)
{Mt)

Indicated

7.1 8.8 1.1 )

9.7 7.1 0.7 | Inferred

16.8 7.8 0.9 Total

Nates

1) Besoueee estimate taken rom the Phadnova AyS 19094
Annal Repart as lodged with the Torante Stoek Fxehange
(15X) aod eateubated ustag polygonal methodology

2} Indicated Resceuress estimated usitg >2m vertleai ilickness
W B Zn

3 Inferred Resonrees estiniatedd using > Lo vestlead thilckness
v O Zo atisioe Trolieated preas

The mincralisation is hosted by Ordovician sediments of the Franklinian

yasin and is considered (o be contemporancous with other base metal
deposits in Canada such as Polaris {operated by Teck Cominco between
FH80 and 2002). Tronbark has lodged a larger green ficld exploration
licence application surrounding the Citronen exploration licence to further
expand on its hoelding in the region. Ironbark now hold over 560 square
kilometers of prospective ground and ac least 35 kilometres ol strike over
the mincralistion trend.

Further informatlon regarding the supportive operating [ramework of
Greenland can be {found on the Greenland Bureau of Minerals and
Petroleum website:

bt/ /www. bmp. gl administradon /periodical shell/IEC2 30aa balQ min
ing-journal-suppl padf

Further information on the geology of Cleronen Is readily ohtained from the
Geologleal Survey of Denmark and Greenland (GEUS) by going to the
following link and opening or downloading the PDIF document at the
hottom of the page:

www, geus.dk/publications /review-greenland-96/gsh 1 76p44-49-dk.htm
fronbark has engaged SRK Consulting to assist in the due diligence

process and to work witht Ironbark in developing exploration targeting and
resource/optimisation studies.

N e
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Consideration

franbark has entered into a purchase agreement to acquire a privale
company, Dedlord (No.3) Limited, a company which is sceking governmeni
consent to the transfer to 1t ol an exploration license in respeet ol
Cilronen.

lronbark has agreed to pay Bedford Resource Holdings Limited $6M cash,
8M shares in Ironbark and 16M options in Ironbark with an exercise price
ol 81.50 at any time prior to | I'ebruary 2010.

Separately a 2.5% net smelier rovally will be pavable. The necessary
sharcholder approvals will be sought in due course. The Vendor is also
entitled to nppoint a non-exceutive director to the Board of Ironbark.

Logistics

Working and operating In norihern Greenland 1s not dissimilar Lo thosc
conditlons experienced in numerous operations i northern Canada and
Ironbark has secured the services of Mr Andrew Stocks in the role of
Loglstical Consultant. Mr Stocks spent several years working as the Vice
President of Operations for Crew Gold Corporation. In this role, Mr Stocks
was responsible for the commissioning ol the first gold mine and
associated ship loading facillities In Greenland. the Nadunaqg Gold Mine,
which wns also the first mine (o be commissioned in Greenland in 30
vears and remains inooperation. Mr Stocks has previously run mines
throughout the world for Barrlck Gold. Several new mines are now
opurating or preparing to operate in Greenland,

Access to the site is by alreraft or boat — with the last explorers utiltsing
the services of varfous alreraft including helicopters, Boeing 727, C-130
Hercules and Twin Otter aircraft. The climate is very dry with minor rain
or snowlall and during the 1997 licld program the temperature averaged ~
I degree Celsius from May to September (5 months] with a highest
recorded  temperature of 9 degrees Celsius and a  lowest recorded
temperature of -13 degrees Celsius,

During winter pack ice will lmit the access 10 Citronen Fjord by ship as is
the casc with many northern Canadian mining operations such as al Red
Doy. the world’s largest zinc mine. Readers inierested In o turther
understanding the logistics of operating in such a climate please refer (o
an excellent summary of the Polaris operatlon (one ol the lowest cost zinc
mines in the world) that was partially owned by Teck Cominco at the
following website:

www. teckeominca.com/articies /operations/pol-pd-overview . hum




Corporate

Ironbark is a Iocused and  dedicated base metal exploration and
development Company listed on only the Australian Stock Exchange. The
Company has a technically strong Board with  significant relevant
experience,

lronhark mainfains a suite of base metal and gold projects in New South
Wales - Australla. [ronbark will maintaln Its aggressive exploration and
evaluation of the Belara zine project and Captains Flat base metal (zinc,
lead, copper. silver and gold} project in conjunction with the major project
acquisition ol Clironen.

The Board ol fronbark would like to thank all our sharchelders lor their
support in our yvoung Company and for sharing in our focuscd vision (o .
huild Ironbark into a major mineral producer. We feel that this acquistition

Is o signilicant siep o this direction and look forward 1o delivering

contnued strong growth In assct building and shareholder wealth.
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The Information in this report that relaces o Bxploration Results, Minerat Resonrres er Ore Reserves s bhased
on Infurmation compidad by Mr A Byass, B.85c Hons(Geol), B.Econ, FREG. MAIG ai employee of Lunharlo Golbd
Limhed, Mr Byass has sulficlent experleniee thag 18 relevant to the sty of oineeslisadon and avpe of deposi
uraler consideratlon and o the getviy which be s onderiaking 1o gquallly as o Canpelent Persen as delined i
thi: 2004 Edltton of the Austmlasian Code (or Reporting of Bxpltoration Besulis, Mioneral Resources and Ore
Reserves, Mr Bvass comsents o the etuslon nthe sepon of (he matters based on this nformadon Incthe form

atncl context nowhileh I appears,

For further information please contact:

Jonathan Downes

Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Leve! 1, 350 Hay Street,
Subiaco,

WA 6008

Tel: {08} 6451 6350




The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

Media Release 2 March 2007

IRONBARK ACQUIRES MAJOR ZINC PROJECT

lronbark Gold Limited {fronbark) is pleased {o report that il has entered into an agraement 1o purchase 100%
of the 17 mitlion ton Citronen Zinc Project (Citronen). Citronen repressnls one of the worlds largest
undeveloped zing resources and is located in northarn Greenland {Figure 1).

The mos! recent resource estimate stands at ~17 million tons at ~8.3% zinc equivalen! {7.8% zinc and
0.9% lead) based on 32.B26 metres of diamond drilling conducted between 1993 and 1996, which returned
intercepts such as 28.8 metres @ 9.7% zing (including a higher grade zone of 8.5metres @ 19.0% zinc).

fronbark Managing Director Jonathan Downes said “The major Citronen acquisttion delivers full ownership of
a large scale and polentially long life and profitable zinc project. This stralegic acquisition {its well with our
plans to become a significant zing producer and through our energetic exploration and evaluation will provide
fronbark with an oppoitunily to deliver strong share price appreciation into the foreseesable fulure, Most
imporlantly all this can he achieved within the stable fiwst world security of Greenland, a seli governed
teriitory of the Kingdom of Denmark.”

fronbark considers that Cilronen oifers an outstanding exploration opporiunity with: the extent of
mineralisation yel to be delennined.

Ironbark Technical Director Adrian Byass claims thal "Being a recent discovery (1993} and explored during a
period of very weak base metal prices, Citronen provides a rare lavs! of exceptional exploration potential.
While 16.8 million tons are currently either al indicaied or inferred level the project remains undar explored
and mineralisation is open ended, we cannot comment on he 10tal poteniial size of Gitronen at this lime, The
mineralisation is considered to be of a SEDEX slyle zinc deposit. This model is potentially very large and
includes examples such as Teck Comico's Red Dog mine in northern Alaska, the largest zinc mine in the
world.”

The minerakisation slarts from the surface and is shallow, flat lyving and adjacent 1o a deep walet {jord thal
offers near ming seasonal ship docking and loading opportunities.

Ironhark has engaged SRK Consulting to assist in the due diligence process and 10 work with Ironbark in
developing exploration targeting and resource/optimisation siudies. lronbark plans 1o explore Citronen 1o
significantly expand on the existing resource and to also commence a {easibility sludy on the existing
resource.

The consideration for the purchase of 100% of Gitronen, subject 1o due diligence, will be $6M cash and 8M
shares in lronbark, plus 16M options in Ironbark with an exercise price of $1.50 and maturity dale of 1
February 2010. Separalely a 2.5% Nel Smelter Royalty (NSR} is payable.

- LNDS -

For further information please comuct: _ 4 3
Jonathan Downes e R
Managing Direclor — Ironhark Gold Lintited s -
Tel +61 (MY 6461 6330 T - A
: p) e
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Change of Director’s Interest Nofice

~ T 'ﬁf:“a”:ﬁ
-

Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not avaifabie now st be piven to ASN as soon as availuble.

I'\’I.'f',‘..i._‘; ’J/li.;’i

Information and

documents given 10 A8N become ASX s properiy and way he muade pubiie.

Introduced 3042001

|

- f

Name of entity

tronbark Gold Limited

ABN 93 118 751 027

We (ibe entity) grve ASX the ollowing information under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 2050 of the Corporations Act.

Nuame of Director

Jonathan Downes

Prate of last notice

29 August 2006

Part 1 - Chanye of director’s relevant inlerests in seeurities
In the ceve of @ truse, this includos Derevie in the trust made available b the responsibby ontine of e trust

Note Inthe case of 3 comipary, intereais wlich comne within pasaueaph tig ol e dehniten of “auidiaizle smerest of a dirnc o™ shonld be

dikelosed in 1 part.

Direct or indivect interest

Diredt

Nuture of indbrect interest
{including registered holder)

Note: Provude detoiis of the givcmmsmness giving nse sa the relevine
MKCrest

Not Applicable

Prate of chunge

G March 2007

No. of securities held prior to chanpe

Katrina Peta Downes (spouse of Jonathan
Downes)

JE&K Downes Superfund A/ (an entity in
which Jonmhan Downes has o benclicial
interest)

Gold Member Pty Ltd (2 company in which
Jonathan Downes has a relevant interest}

Direct
GO000 fully paid ordinary shares
1,000,000 $4.30 options expiring 1/8/2011

Indirect
2,000,000 Tully paid ordinary shares

10,0060 fully paid ordinary shares

11000 fully pmid ordinary shares

Class

Fully paid ordinary shures

Number acquired

60,000

+ See chapter 19 Tor defined torms,

117372002

Appendix 3Y Page ]
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Number disposed

Nil

Vidue/Consideration
Note: 1 considernnan is non-oaadl provide  details and  esemated
valuation

$157.635.70

No.of securities held after change

Katina Peta Downes (spouse of Jonathan
Downes)

JI&K Downes Superfund A/C (an entity in
which Jonathan Dewnes has a  beneficial
interest)

Gold Member Pty Lid (a company in which
Jonathan Downes has a relevant interest)

Direct
120,600 fully paid ordinary shares
1.000.000 %0.30 options expiring 10/8/2011

Indirect
2,000,000 tully paid ordinary shares

10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

10,000 lully paid ordinary shares

. .
Nature of change

Exarmple on-market trade, olfamarket trade, exercrse ol eptinns. issue off
saverities nndzr dividend reinvestowent plan, pasticipation in bay-baock

On-market trade

Part 2 — Change of dircctor’s inlerests in contracts

feotes I the case ot a cempany, interests which come wibm paraeenph (i) ol ihe detiniion of “eofifiable intereat of A directar”™ should e

Jisolowd an s i

Detatl of contract

Wature of interest

Name of vegistered holder
(f issucd seenrities)

Date of change

No. and class of sccuritics 1n
which interest related prior to

change
Nete: erails wee only requived tor a contrics in retanon
fir whielt the imerest bus changed

futerest acquired

intercst disposed

Vatue/Consideration
Note: I considaranon o non-cash, pmvide details
and anestmated valuaion

Interest after change

+ Nee chapter 19 for dafmed terms,

Appendia 3Y Puge 2

1173720002




Change of Dircetor’s Inlerest Notice

Rule 3.104.2

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Informerion or documents nat avaitahle now suist be ghven 1o ASY as soon as availabfe
g

ifarmation and

docimenty given 1o ASX heeome ASX's properte and sy be mede pablic,

Inrroduced 30:9-20801

Name of entity

[ronbark Gold Lintited

ABN 9y 118 751 027

-

We (1he entityy give ASX the following information under listing rule 3.19A2 and ag agent forihe
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Director

Adrian Byass

Date of lust notice

4 Seprember 2000

Part T - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In the case of areast, this iueludes inrereds in the rust surde availnbfe i the reiponsihbe ontice of the irng

Note I the case ol a cotmpany, interests which come within paragraph (03 of e definioon of “nutiliadle meres ot wdine e shackd be

diselosad inils part

Direct or indirect interest

Fandirect

Nature of indirect interest

{including registered holder)

Note: Provide detnils ol the circumstances giving b to 1me relevam
interest

Adrian Paul Byass ATV Byass Family ‘Ttust
{Adrian Byass is o trustee ol the Ryass
Family Trust)

Pate of change

3 March 2007

No. of securities held prior to change

Megan Byass
(spouse of Adrian B3yass)

Mean Ruth Roberts
{spouse of Adrian Byass)

Adrian Paul Byass ATE Byass Fanily Trust
{Adrian Byuss s a trustee of the Byass Family
Trust)

Direct
10,006 fully paid ordinary shares

Indirect
10,0006 fully paid ordinary shares

130,000 fully paid ordinary shares

375,000 fully pard ordinary shares
1.000.000 $0.30 options exercisable on or
before 1O/R/2011

Class

Fully pard ordimary shares

Nuwmber acquired

20,000

Nuomber disposed

N1l

+ See chapter 19 5or delined terms,

F1A3F 24152
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Chanee of Director’s Interest Notice

Value/Counsideration $350.000
Noter 1 considengion o non-emdy provide dofanls and  estimated

valuntion

No. ol securities held after change Direct

Megan Byass
(spouse of Adrian Bviss)

Megan Ruth Robens
(spouse of Adran Byass)

Adrian Paol Byass A'VE Byass Family Trust
(Addrinn Byvass (s o trustee of the Byass Family
Trust)

16,000 fully paid ordinary shares
iadirect
10,000 (ully patd ordinary shares

1,510,000 (ully paid ordinary shares

393,000 fully paid ordinary shares
1000000 $0.30 options excrcisable on or
before 10/8/2011

. "
Nature of chanpe

Peample: on-rarket rade, off-market trade, excreise of options, issue ol
scvurities witdey disidened remnvestmem plan, gareipaion in boy-back

On-market trade

Part 2 - Change of director’s interests in contracts

Note In the case ol 4 company, inerests which come within paragraph (0 of the detiniton of “nariftabke intersst oty director” shoald be

disciased in (his pan

Detail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. aud class of sccurities to
which interest related prior to
change

Note: Detaths aee caly requaned o aosentract in retaism
fa whieh e inrerest Bas changed

Interest acquired

Inierest disposed

s .
Value/Cansideration

RNote: It consideration ix aon-cush, provide daats amd
an gstimated valustion

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined 1enns,

Appendin 3Y Puge 2
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Chanue of Dircctor's Inferest Notice

Rudoo 30042

Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents not availuble now must be given ta ASN as soon ax avatlable. Wformation amd
documenis given 1o ASX become ANX s properiv und may be made public,

Introduced 3042004

Name of entity

tronbark Gold Limired

A BN 93 118 751 027

We (ihe cntity} give ASX the following infornution under listing rule 3.19A.2 and as agent for the
director for the purposes of section 203G of the Corpuorations Act,

Name of Direcior

Peter Benneno

Irate of lust notice

16 August 2000

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
In thee cane af @ trpasi, ki inclnhes interesds i thie teeese sode avandabde e the eesiionnddie ey Gf e Jriea

Rase o the case ob a conpany, éereals which conre within garancaph Pl e deiimboem ol motd ke werest ot g liecc s shuadd by

diselosed in s pan

Dircect or indivect inferest

Indireet {2)

Nuture of indircet interest

{including registered holder)
Note' Provude detsils of e eivmmstinces giving e 1o iha relevim
interess

[ndirees (1)
Gillie Bennetto (spouse ol Peter Bennetto)

tndivect (2)

Canonbar Investments Py Lid (an entity in
whicih  Peter Rennette has a benelicial
mterest}

Indircet (3)

Corporate Momentuin Py Lid
which  Pater  Benneto
nterest)

(an cntity I

has  a  benelcial

Indirect (4)

Security Discount & Finance My Lid (an
entity o which  Peter Bennctlo
beneficial interest

has a

Date of chunpe

2 March 2007

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

1 1342002
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Noo ol securitics held prior to chunpe
Giillie Bennetto (spouse ol Peter Bennetia}
Cononbar Invesuneimts Py L (an entity in

which Peter Bennetio has o benelicial interest)

Corporate Momentum Pty Lid (an entity in
which Peter Bennetto has a beneficial interest)

Security Discount & Pinance Pry Ltd (an entity
in which Peter Bennetto has a beneficial
interest)

Direct
360,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Indireet {1)
L0000 fully paid ordinary shares

Indireet (2)
10,000 Tully paid ordinary shares

Indireet (3)
10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Indirect (4)
10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Class

Fully paid ordinary shares

Gillie Bennento (spouse ol Peter Bennetto}

Cononbar Invesimems Pty Lid {an eptity in
which Peter Bennetio has a benelicial interest)

Corporate Momentm Py Lid (an entity in
which Peter Bennetto has a beneficial imerest)

Seeurity Discount & Finance Pty Lid (an entity
m which Peter Bennetto has a benehicial
erest)

Number acquired 50,000
Number dixposed Nil
Vaulue/Coosideration L1306, 500
Nuoter 17 consideration 1y pur-cash, prosude dotalh and estimaned

vaiuation

No. ol securities held after change Dircct

360,000 fully poid ordinary shares

Indirect (1)
1,060 Tully paid ordinary shares

Indireet (2)
60,000 fully paid ordinary shares

lndirect (3)
10,000 [ully paid ordinary shares

Indirect (4)
10,000 tully paid ordinary shares

Nature ol chanpe

securities wiider dividend reinvestnent plan, paricipation i hoy-tuek

Exanple on-maikel trade, olfmaskel trade, sacreize of oplions, issuce ol

On-market trade

+ See chapter 19 {or defined erms.
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Change of Director's Inierest Nutice

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Norg bnthe oase of & company. interesi wlngl come wishin patanraph Gt od the defimbion of "aotitabhle snleesn o o doecione shoal] e

diselisad in this pan

Detadl of contract

Nature ol inferest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of securities (o
which tnterest related prior (o
change

Nowe: Deinils are onfy requued fir a contrae i telaion
L whicl the isterest has thinged

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Valoe/Consideration
Note' If cansideention is non-¢ash, provide detatls and
an eshimated vilusnon

Interest after change

+ See chaprer 19 for defined rerms.

1 §/3/2002
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IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ABN 93 118 751 027
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES
HALF-YEAR FINANCIAL REPORT

DIRECTORS REPORT

Your directors submil the [nancial repori ol the Economie Eantity for the hatf-year ended 31 December 2006.
DIRECTORS
The nantes of Directors who held office during or since the end of the half year:

Peter Bennetlo
Jonathan Downes
Adrian Byass
Greg Canpbell

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

ronbark Gold Lizmied (fronbark) is an Austrahan mineral exploration and development company that owns
a suite of base metal and precious metal projects. Tronbark lodged its prospectus with the Australian Stock

Exchange w mise $3,000,000 on 10 July 2006 and due o strong public mterest the Directors were able o
close the offer carly and oversubseribed.

Drilling began at Belarn fn October 2006, Resource drilling ot Belara conlrms continuniy and grade of zme-
lead-copper-silver-gold mineralisation with resulis such as:
Hole 3300 8 metres w 1.2% Zn, 18% Ph. 003% Cu, 02 g/ Ap, 0.3 g/t Ao

cluding 2 metres g 6.6% 2 5.3% Ph 1.2% Co, 178 g/t A, 1.3 g/t Au
Following the execution of an agreement with Monaro Mining Liniled (Monaro), ronbark has commenced
the work necessary (o carn a largeted 75% interest in the Captaing Flat base nietal (zine-lead-coppur-silver-

gold) project. Monaro wall retain o [ree carried interest o a decision to 1nine.

fronbark has also acguired further base mewal and gold properties in NSW encompassing the Majors South,
Elsinora. Bogong, Boomerang and extensions to Belara and Captains Flat projects.

OPERATING RESULTS
The loss of (he Leonomie Entity after providing for income 1ax amounted to $262,597.
CORPORATE

On 30 June 2006 the Company fedged a Prospectus with ASIC for the proposed issue of up to 15,600,000
Ordinary shares al an issue price of 20 cenis each 1o raise a total of $3,000,000.

On 14 August 2000, 20000000 shares were issued ar $G.20 10 subseribers to the offer set out in the
Prospectus dated 30 Jue 20006,

On 16 August 20006 the Company comnenced trading on ASX.
On 4 December 2006 the Company announced it had entered into a co-operative divestment agreenient ol

its wholly owned Borrmpdana and Kirnwares ngsten and tin projects to Wolfl Minerals Limited (Wolf) lora
consideration of 3,006,000 Woll shares.

t2



LEAD AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 107C OF THE
CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

The Tead auditor’s independence declaration for the period ended 31 Decemnber 2000 has been ceceived and
can be found on page 16 of this repor.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

-

e

oL
Al S yttan
/ . LRy
. ,"

y

%,

Fonathan Downes
Muanaging Director

I*erth
Dated © 13™ March 2007



IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ABN 93 118 751 027
AND ECONOMIC ENTITIES

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the Hall-Year Ended 31 December 2006

lLeconomic
Entity
A1 Devembwer
2006
Revenue for contneing operations 74,807
Emploves benefits expense (57.223)
Drirectors lees (3t,250)

EXrector oplions 1ssug
Compliance and regulatory expenses

1124.600)
(13.661)

Administration expenses (3h472)
Consultancy cosis (289
Qeeupancy costs (33,991)
[nsurance expenses {(16,918)
Operating loss belore income tax (expense)/benefit {262.597)
fncome tax (expense)/benefit -
Loss atbutable o members of the parent entity {262.597)
Overall Operations

Basic carmnings /7 (loss) per share (cents per share) {1.39)
Liluted earnings 7 (loss) per share {cents per share) (1.28)

The accompanying nates form part of this linancial report.
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IRONBARK GOLD LIMITLED
ABN 93 118 751 027
AND ECONOMIC ENTITIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Asar 31 December 2006

Economic Eniity

A1 Decemlser 2006 A dange 2006
s 3

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 37641535 337,982
Trade and other receivables 52,478 31,441
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2817231 169,423
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Trade and other receivables G330 -
Finaneial agsews 0000
Plant and equipinent 3312 -
Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure 485,429 14,710
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 528121 10,710
TOTAL ASSETS 3,345,352 380,133
CURRENT LIABILITLES
Trade anet other pavables 295,134 34.027
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 293,134 34027
TOTAL LIABILITIES 293,134 34,027
NET ASSIEETS 3030218 346, 106
EQUITY
Issucd Capital 3.204,081 359,872

Option reserve
Accumualated losses

TOTAL PARENT ENTITY INTEREST

124,600
(2760.303)

‘

(13.766)

5,050,218

346,106

The accompanying notes form part of this [inanciat report.



IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ABN Y3 118 751 027
AND ECONOMIC ENTTTIES

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the Hall-Year Fnded 31 December 2006

CASHFLOWS FIRROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Paymemis to suppliers and emplovees

Interest andd bili discounts received

Borrowing cosis

Other

Net cash used in operating activities
CASHFELOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Paywents Tor exploratien and evalnatian

Purchase of investiment,

Purchase of properiy, plant and cagmpment

Net cash nsed i mvesing activities

CASHFLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procecds from issue ol shares
Paviments Tor costs of issue of shares

Net cash used in linancing activities
Net decrease in cash held
Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of period

. . . { . .
Caxzh and cash eqguivalenis o end of reporting period

Leonontic Entity

A1 December 2006

1)

(218,731)
74 807

(11,332)

{155,256)

1225,993)
(30,000)
{(4,08%)

(260,082)

3,000,000
(157.891)

2,842,109

2,426,771

337.982

2,764,753

The sccompanying notes form part of this lnaneial report.
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IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ABN Y3 118751 027

AND CONTROLLLED ENTITIES

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For The Half-Year Ended 31 December 2006

Balance at 10 March 2006

Profit/ (loss) aitributable 1o members
Shares issued during the year

Issue ol options

T'eansaction costs

Balance af 30 June 20006

Balance at 1 July 2006

Shares issued during the vear
Prireclors options

Transaction costs

Profit 7 (loss) atiributable to members

Balance at 31 December 2006

Issued Capital  Accumulated Option Toral
Losses Premium
Reserve
8 $ S Y
- {13,766 - (13.766)
400,352 . 400,352
(40,430} - (40 48M
359,872 {(13.760) - 346406
339,872 {13,760) - 340,106
5.000,000 - - 3,000,000
- - £24.600 124,600
{157,801 (157.591)
- (262,597 - (262,597}
3.201 981 (276,563 124.600 3,050,218

The accompanying notes form part of these Tinancial momenis,
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ABNOITIR 751 027
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Hall>Year Ended 31 December 2006

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The half-year consolidated finanein! stalemeat is 2 general purpose financial report, which has been
prepared an o accordance with the vequirements of (the Corporations Act 2001, AASB 15340 Interim
Financial Reporting, Urgent Issues Group [oterpretations and other authoritative pronouacements of
the Australian Accounting Standards Board,

It is recommended that this Ninancial report be read in conjunction with the annua! [inancial report lor
the year eaded 36 June 2006 amd any public announcements made by lronbark Gold Limited and its
contrelted entities during e hall~var in accordance with continuous disclosure reguirements arising
under the Corporations Avs 2001,

The haliyear financial report does not include notes of the type normally included in an anoual
fimancial veport and should be vead i conpunction with the 2006 annual financial report.

This is the first hall-vear financial repont prepared lTor lronbark Gold Limited, and therefore no
comparative resulls are available,

(a)  Principtes of Consolidation

The consolidated financial siatements are prepared by combining the nancial statements of alt the
entities that comprise the Leonomic Entity, being the Company (the parent entity) and its subsidiaries
as defined in Accounting Standard AASB 127 “Consolidated and Separale Financial Statements™.
Cousistent accounting policies are employed in the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
financial statements, On acquisition, the asscts, liabitities and contingent labilities of a subsidiary are
measured a1 their fair values at the date of ncquisition, Any excess ol the cost of acquisition over the
fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired s recognised as goodwill H afler reassessinent, the
iir vatues of the identilinble asses acquired excecd the cost of acquisition, the dehiciencey is credited
1o prolit and loss inhe period ol acquisition.

The consolidated financial statements include the information and resulls of each subsidiary Irom the
date on whicly the Company obtains control and untii such time as the Company ceases to conirol such
ChLity,

fa preparing he consolidated laancial staweaients, ali mtercompany batances and temnsactions, and
tnrealised profits arising within the Economic Emity are eliminated in [ull.

(b)  Inceme Tax

Deferred income tax s provided on all temporary differences ot the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assers and liabililies and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income ax labilities are recognised for all taxable temporary dillerences:

¢ except where the deferred income tax liability arises froin the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the ume of the wansaction,
affects neither that accounting profM nor laxable profit or loss; and

¢ in vespect of Laxable temporary differences associaied with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal ol the tewmporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable Tuture.




ABNYI IR 751027
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Half-Year Ended 31 December 2006

Deferred income 1ax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. carry-forward of

unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that wxable profit will be

available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward ol vnused 1ax
assets and unused tax Tosses can be uiihsed:

o except where the deferred income tax asset relating 1o the deductible temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or Habilily in a transaction that s ot a business combimation
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accouniing profit nor waxable orefit or loss;
and

s in respect of deductible temporary differences with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred 1ax assets are only recognised to the extent that it 15 probable
that the wmpaorary differences will reverse in the foresceable fubire and vaxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrving amount of deferred income 1ax assets is reviewed ar each balance sheet date and reduced
te the extent thal 1t is no longer probable that sutficient taixable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the delerred income tax asset 1o be utihised,

Deferred fncome tax assels and labilities are measured at the ax rates that are expected @ apply Lo the
year when the asset is realised or the Lability 15 settled, Dased on i rtes (and 1ax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

Income taxes refating o ilems recognised divecly in equity are recognised i equity are not in the
income statenment,

(¢} Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure incurred is accumuaimted in respect of cach
identifiable arca of interest. These cosls are carried forward only if they refate to wn urea of interest
for which rights of tenure are current and in respeet of which:

(i} such costs are expected to be recouped through successiul development and explo.tation or from
sede of the area; or

(iexpioration and evaluation activities in the area have not, at balance date, reached a stage which
permit a reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise of coonomically recoverable reserves,
and active operations i, oy relating to the awrea are continuing,

Accumulated costs in respect of areas of interest which are abandoned wre written off in full against
profit in the vear in which the deeision 1o abandon the area is made.

A regular review is undertaken of ench ares ol interest W detenmine 1he approprialencss of continuing
to carry forwiard costs in rebation to that area of interest.

9
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ABNYI IR 751 027
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IFor The Hall-Year Ended 31 December 2006

() Leases

Leases of xed nssets where substantially atl the visks and benefis incidental to the ownership ol the
azxet. but not e legal owntership, are ranslerred Lo entities in the Economic Entity are classified as
(mance leases. Finance leases are capitalised, recording an asset and a fability equal 1o the present
value of the minimum lease pavments, including any guaranteed residual valoes. Leased assets are
deprecialed on a diminishing value basis over their estimated useful lives where it is likely that the
Leononuc Entity will obtain ownership of the asset or over the terin of the lease. Lease payinents are
atlocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the lease interest expense for the period.

Lease pavments [or operating feases, where substantially all the risks and benefits vemain with the
lessar, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

(e} Earnings Per Nharee

Basic carnings per share (“12P'S7) is caleulated by dividing the net profit atiributable 1o members for
1he repariing pertod, alter excluding any costs of servicing cquity, by the weighted avernge number of
ordisary shares of the Company. adjusted Tor any bonus issue,

], Revenue

Revenue s recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that the ceonomic benefits wilt flow to the
Liconomic Fmity amd the revenue can be reliably measured, The following specific recognition crileria
must also be et belore revenue is recognised:

Interest

Revenue iy recognisad as the interest acernes {fusing the elfective interest method, which is the rate
that exaetly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
nstrument) Lo the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

() Cash and cash equivalenty

Cash and short-term deposits in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank and i hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity ol three months or fess.

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalens consist of eash and cash
cquivalents as defined above, net of ouistuding bank overdrafls.

(hy  Employee Bencfits

Provision is made for the Economic Entity’s Hability for employee benefits arising from services
rendered by cplovees to halance date. Emplovee benelits expeeted to be setiled within one year
logether with entitlements arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave which will be
sefled alter one year, have been neasured an the amounts expected to be paid when the lability is
settled, plus related vuscosts, Other ciaployas benefits payable [aler than one year have been measured
al the present vadue of the estimated unure cash outflows 1o be made Tor those benelits,

Contributions are made by the Econamic Fntity 1o employee superannuation lunds and are charged as
expenses when meurred.
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ABN Y3 118 751 027
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Hall-Year Ended 31 December 2006

(i) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the mimount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Tax Office " ATO™. Iy these cirenmstanees the
GST s recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an e of the expense.
Receivables and payables in the starement of financial position are shiown inclusive of G3T.

The net amount of OGS recoverable jronu or payable to, the ATO 3 meluded as o current asset or
fabilily n the statement of financiai position.

Cash [tows are included o the stalement of cash flows on a gross basis. Fhe GST compaonents of cash
flows arising Mrom mvesting and finmcing activities winch are recoverable from, or payable 1o, the
A'TO arve classified as operating cash [lows,

(k) Recoverable amounts of Non-Current assets valued an cost husis

Al each reporting date the Economic Entity assesses whether there is any indication whether there is
any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an indication ol inpainment exists, the Economic
Eatity makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where carrying amount of an asset execeds its
recoverable amount the asser is considered unpaired and is wreiten down 1o its recoverable amount.

Recoverable mmount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and valune in nse. Bas determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset’s value inuse cannot be estimated 1o be close (o ity Lair vahue less
costs to sell and it does not generate cash inflows that are largely mdependent of these from other
assets or Leonomic Emity's assets, i which case. the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit 1o which the asset belongs.

It assessing value in use, the estimated future cash ilows are discowned (o ther prosent value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the assel.

{1 Joim Ventre Entitics

A joint venture entily is an entity in which broabark holds a long-term mterest and which is jointly
controlled by lranbark and one or more other venturers, Decisions regarding the financial and
operating policies essential 10 the activities, economic performance and financial position of that
venitire require the consent of cach of the ventrers that together joinily control the entity.

Joint Venfure Operations

fronbark has certain contmetual arrangements with ofher participants to engage in joinl aclivities
where all significant matters of operating and financial policy are determined by the participants such
that the operation itself hag no significant independence to pursue its ewn commercial strateygy. These
contractual arrangements do net create a joint ventare entity due 1o the et that e pehicies are those
of the participants, not a separate entity carrying on a irade or o business ol its own,

The hnancial statemeats of ronbark melude its share ol the assets, Dabvines and cash flows in such
Joint ventuse operations, measured in accordance with the lerms of each arrngement, wwhich is usoally
pro-rata 1o Banperman™s interest in the join venture operitlicns,



ABN 93 118751 027
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FFur The Hall>Year Ended 31 December 2006

fm) Financiol Assets Held for Trading

All investments are imbally recognised at cost, bemng the Tair value of the consideration given and
tncluding acguisition charges associaled with the invesitment.

Afier intlinl recognition, investments, which are classificd as held for wading and available-for-sale,
are measured at kar valoe, Giuins or losses o dovesunents held for trading are recognised i the
eome sitement.

Gains or losses on avallable-for-sale mvestments are recognised as a separate component ol equity
until the investunent is seld, collecied or otherwise disposed of, or until the invesunent is determined to
be mpaired, at which tme the cumulative gain ov toss previously reported s equity 1s included i the
meone statement.

For mvestients that are actively traded in organised [nancial markets, fhir value is determined by
refercnce o Stock Lxchinge guoted iarker d prices an the close of business on the balance sheet
date.

() Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Econontic Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as
a tesult of a past event. il 1s probable that an outlay of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required Lo seitle the obligation and a reliabic estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Economic Bntity expects some or all of a provision o be reimbursed, Jor example under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement s recognised as a separate asset bat only when the
retmbursement 1s virlually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presenied in lhe income
statemuent net of any reimbarzement.

I the effect of the nme value o money is material, provisions are deternmined by discounting the
expected Tutare eash Hows ot g pre-tax rate that reflecis curremt market assessments of the nme value
ol ey and. where appropringe. the risks specific (o the Lability,

Where discounting is used, the increase 1o the provision due to the passage of time s recognised as a
finance cosL

(v)  Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment is staled at cost tess accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value,

Tmpuairment

The currving mmounts of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or chianges m
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. For an asset that does not generate
largely independent cash {lows. the recoverable mnoum is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the assel belongs, 11 any such indication exists and where the canving values exceed the
recoverable amaunt, the agsets or cash generating units are wrnten down to their recoverable amount.



ABN Y3 TI8 731027
AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Half-Year Ended 31 December 2006

The recoverable amount of plant and equipment 15 the greater of G vidae Tess costs to el and value
in use. Inassessing value i use, the estinmaied future cash flows are diseonmed 1o their present valoe
using a pre-tax discount rate that reftects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are recoynised in the income statement in the cost of
sales line item.

lepreciation

The depreciable amonmt of all fixed assets is depreciated on a diminishing value basis over their uselul
lives to the Lconomic Entity commencing {rom the tUme the assel s held ready for use. The
depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:

Class of Fixed Asset Depreciation Rate
2007
Plant and equipiment G0 (1,

(1) Share-hased paymnent transactions

The Company provides benelMs 1o emplovees (including directors) ol the Company o the form of
share-based payiment transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange lor shares or rights
over shares (equity-scttled ransactions’ ).

There s corrently an Bmplovee Share Option Plan (ESGPYL which provides benefits 1o divectors and
SeIOr execulives.

The cost of these equity-setled transactions with employees is measured by relerence 1o the fair value
at the date a1t which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
hinomial moded.

In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is 1aken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked 1o the price of shares of lranbark Gold Limited ("market conditions™).

The cost ol equity-settled transactions is recognised. together with & zorresponding increase in eqguity,
over the period in which the performance conditions are fullilled. ending on the date on which the
relevant emplovees become fully entitled to the award (Cvesting date’ s

The cumulative expense recognised for equity-setiled transactions ar each reporting dite until vesting
date reflects (1) the extem 1o which the vesting period has expired and (1} 1he number of awards that,
m the opiion of the directors of 1the Economic Ennity . will ulumately vest. This opinton is formed
based on the best available information at balance date. No adjusunznt is made [or the hkelihood of
market performance conditions being met us the effect of these conditions is included in the
determination of fair value ot grant date.

No expense is recognised for awards that Jo not ultimately vest, exvept tor awards where vesting s
conditional upon a market condition.

wWhere the terins of an equity-setded award are modified. as o minimum an expense is recognised as if
the erms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised [or any inerease in Lthe vatue of
the transaction as a result of the modifieation, as measured at the date ol modification.
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AND CONTROLLED ENTITIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Hall=Year Ended 31 December 2006

Where an equity-scttled award is cancelled. it is treated as if7 it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense noi vet recognisad for the award is recognised immediately. However, if o new award
is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement award on the dae that it is
granted, the cancelled and new award are teated as if they were a modification of the eriginal award,
as deseribed in the previous pavagraph,

The dilutive etlect, il any. of ouwtstanding options 1s reflected as ndditional share dilution i the
computation of carnings per share (sce note 7).

The Yeonomic Entity has applied the requirements of AASB 1| First-time Adoption ol Australian
Equivalents to International Finaneial Reporting Standards” in respect. ol equity-settled awards and has
applicd AASE 2 ‘Share-Bascd Payments’ only 1o equity instruments granied afler 7 Novemnber 2002
that had not vested on or belore | January 2005,

(g Comparative

The Company was incorporated on 19 March 2006 and accordingly no comparative anounis are
available for the Income Starcoment.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 2 Mareh 2007, he Cotnpany announeed that it had entered into an agreement 10 acquire 100% of
the Crivonen Zine Projeet in Greenland, The Company had agreed to purchase 100% of Citronen for
$6,000.000 cash and 8,600,000 shares and 16,000,060 options exereisable at $1.50 on or before |
February 2010 in lronbark Gold Limited. The agreement is subject (o sharcholder approvai for all
funds raised and shares and options issued.

The Board of Direciors are confident that the Company will be successful m raising the required lunds
and receive the approval of sharcholders 1o complete the agreement to acquire the Citronen Zine

Project.

No other evem has arisen that would be likely 1o materially affect the eperations of the company, or
the state of afTaivs o the company not otherwise disclosed in the Leonomic Entity’s financial report.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There has been no change in contingent tabilities since the last annuad reporting date.

SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Economie Entity operates predominanly in one geographical segment, being Australia, and in one

business segmuent, mineral mining and exploration and substantially all of the entity’s resources are
deployed for this purpose.




IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ABN 93 118 751 027
ANIY CONTROLLED ENTTTIES

MRECTORS' DECLARATION
For the Hall Year Ended 31 December 2006

The Divectors of the Company declare thal:
1. The financial statements and notes. as set out on pages 4 10 1d:

(ay comply with Accounting Standird AASE 134 Interim Financial Keponting and the
Corporations Regulations; and

{by give a wue and Lnr view ol the Economic Entity™s Iinanciad position ax ut 31 December
2006 and 11s performance lor the hall=vear ended o that date.

2 in the dirccrors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds 1o believe that the Economic Entity’s will
be able to pay its debis as and when they become dee and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board ol Direciors.

-
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Jonathin Downes
Muanaging Director

PERTH
Dated this 13™ day of March 2007
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AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 367C
OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001
TO THE DIRECTORS OF IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

I declare that to the best of my knowledge and beliel, during the half year ended 31 December 2006
there have been:

a no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as sel out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the review; and

b. no contraveniions of any applicable code of professiona]l conduct in relation 1o the
review.

ik ¥ L 2 L ﬁ

Mack & Co N A Calder
Chartered Accountants Partner

2" Floor, 35 Havelock Street

WEST PERTH WA G005

Date: /& #2707 20 7

16
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INDEPENDENT REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

SCOPE

We have reviewed the financial report of Irombark Gold Limited for the half year ended
31 December 2006 comprising the balance sheet, income statement, cash flow stutement, statement
of changes in equity, accompanying noles to the financial statcments and directors’ declaration of
the consolidated entity. The company’s directors are responsible for the financial report. The
financial report includes the consolidated {inancial statements of the consolidated entity comprising
the company and the entities it controlled at the end of the half-vear or from time to time during the
half-year.

Director’s Responsibility for the Half-Year Financial Report

The directors of Ironbark Gold Limited arc responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
the half-year financial report in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards (including the
Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporaiions Act 2001, This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining infernal control relevant to the preparation and fuir
preseatation of the half-year financial report that is free from maerial misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error: selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies: and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express a conclusion en the half-year {inancial report based on our review.
Our review has been conducted in accordance with Auditing Standards on Ruview Lugugements
ASRE 2410 Review on an Interim Financial Report Performed by ihe Independent Auditor of the
Entitv, in order to stale whether, on the basis of the procedures described, we have become aware of
any matter that makes us believe that the financial report is not in acoordance with the Corporations
Aet 2007 including: giving a truc and fair view of Ironbark Gold Limited’s financial position as at
31 December 2006 and its performance for the half year ended on that date; and complying with
Accounting Standard AASB 134 Jnrerim Financial Reporting and the Corporation Regulations
2007 As the auditor of lronbark Gold Limited, ASRE 2410 requires thal we comply with the
ethicat requirements relevant o the andit of the annual financial report.

A review is limited primarily to inquincs of company personnel and analytical procedures apphed
w the financial data. These procedures do not provide all the evidence that would be regpiired 1 an
audit. thus the leve! of assurance provided is less than given in an audit. We have not performed an
audil and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opmion.

INDEPENDENCE
(n conducting our review, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian
professional ethical pronouncements and the Corporaiions Aci 2001,
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STATEMENT
Based on our review, which is not an audit, we have not become aware of any maller thal makes us
believe that the haif vear financial report of Ironbark Gold Limited is not in accordunce with:

{1} The Corporations Aci 2001, including:
{1 giving a true and fair view of the consolidated catity’s financal position as at

December 31 2006 and of its performance for the half year ended on that date; and

(i} complying wiih Accounting Standard AASB 134: Interim Financial Reporting and
the Corporations Regulations 2001, and

b other mandalory professional reporting requirements in Australia.
Y1 p greg

2P o e L @4&9

Mack & (o N A Calder
Chariered Accountants Partner

2" Floor, 35 Havelock Streel

WEST PERTH WA 6005

Dale: /3 ot #rts pr S
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Gorporations Act 2001 o A et
Saction 474H S TR I GV AN P

Notles of initial substantial holder

Io Company Nama/Schamg Wel Minerals Limited

ACNIARSN 121 831472

1. Datalls of substantial halder "
Name trenbark Qold Limited

AGCNIARSN {if appiicabia) 118 751 027

The haolder becgame & substandial holderon 1372707

1 Detalis of voting powar

The tote) numbar of volas altachad tn Al the voting sharas in tha company or veting intsmeis in the schama that tha substantial haldar or
an associate (2) hod a relevant Interest {3) 1n on the date ths substontlnd halder bacarmne a substantial halder are o follows:

Clasa of securition {4) Number of secutites Parson's votas (5) Voting pawer (8)

Fully pald ordingry shares 3,000,000 3,000,000 1277%

3. Detuils of relevard interesis

The nature of the redevant interest the substanta! holder or an associats had in tha folowing vollng sacurtties on the date the substantisl
holder becama a substantial hakiur are ga follows:

Holdar of smtmvant Irderast Nature of reievant intarest (7} Clasx and number of gecurities
Ironbark Gold Limtad Regislered hoidor of sharos 3,000,000 tuly paid ordinary

4, Detoils of prosont regletorod hokdars )
The persors registered g3 holdery of the socuritios refamad to In paragraph 3 above are a3 folowe:

Helder of relevant Ragistered hakisr of Persan entiied B bo Clazs and hirnbey of socurfios |
Ininrest soouriiog reqtatered a2 holder (8)
f 1
tronberk Gold Limied lronbark Gotd Limitsd fronbark Goid Limited :’-ﬁfw fully paid ordinary
j
5. Consideration

The consideration paid for each relevsnt interest refarred to in paragraph 3 above, and gequired in the four months prior to the day that the
substantial holder bacama a eubsiantis) holder is pe foliowa:

Holder of retavant Date of atxjuistion Conaideration (8) Class and number of secuntios
miarest
Cash Non-cash

Per sgreamunt -

Rights to .
lronbark Gold Limited 13 Fabruacy 2007 $30.088 Burrandana and 3&0{3;000 hally pakd ardinary

Klowarra

Projacrs.
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8. Assoclatns
The rcasons the persons named In paragraph 3 abova are assosdates of the substantia) holder 3re as fokows:

Name and ACN/ARSN (if applicable) | Nature of mesociatian
irenbark Goid Limfed Ragistersd holdar of shares
1. Addreaznay
The addresses of persona nomed in this fom are 0o follows:
Namo Addrass
rontbark Gold Limitad Lavel 1, 350 Hay Streat, SUBIACO WA 6008
1 .
Signature
print nama vonatnanp Downe capacty  Manaping Direddor
o 2\
sign hara dato 13 March 2007
[ 4
y Ly

DIRECTIONS

(1) If there are n numbar of substantlsl haldem with gimilar or retated relevant inlarosts (g 3 corparatian and Iis related corpatations, or the
manager and trustas of an equlty truat), the narnes could be included in an annexurs to tha farm. if the relevant intatssis of 2 group of
pamacm ane exscntialy simiar, thoy may be referred to throughout the form as @ apecifically named growp if the membership of each
group, with the names and addrestes of mambars ia dearly sel tut in paragraph 7 of tha fonm

{2) See tha dafintion of "azzeciate” in gection @ of the Corporptions Adt 2001.
(3) See the definiion of “relevent inticest” n acctions 808 and GT1B{T) of the Carporationa Act 2001,
(43 The voung shams of a company conslftute one class unieas divided Into ceparain claxses,

(6) The total rurnber of votns siizched to gil e voting shares In the company of veting interests in the achams (if any) that the penson or an .
essociate hes a rolovent inlarest in.

{5) The parsons vatns dividod by tha iotal votes in the body corporate or schama muttiplied by 100.

(M include details of:

@) any relovant agreemant ar cinar citumetences by which the relsvant (nterst was acquirad, i subsectinn §71B{4) sppilas, a copy of
any document sotting out the tarms of any relevant wgrocmant, and a statament by tha pofaon giving full and sccurate datolls of aay
contract, scheme or amangamant, must sccompany thia form, Logethor with a written staterment cortifying this contract, scheme of
arIngeMat ond

{6)  any quskfication of tha power of a parsan to exerciae, control the exerclee of, or influence the exsrcia of, the voling powors of
dizposal of the securiics to which the felevont intarsst relstes (indicating deary the parficular securitias to which the qualification
epplias).

Sec tha definition of *rolavant egreemant” in section § of the Corporstione Act 2001.

(8) M tha cubstantiat hatder @ unabia to detemmine the kientity of the person { eg. I the relavant intercst arkkos becauss of an option) writs

() Detalls of the considetation must inctude any and al bensfts, monay and cthey, that ey person from whom a relavant intefest wis
acquirad has, or may, became ontitisd to receiws in relation to that acquisitian, oemsmumwmmmqnm benafit 2 condifional on
the happoning or not of a cantingency, Detoila must be nchadad of any benoft pald on behalf of the substantial hotder ¢f s eseocite n
ralation o tha acquinitiona, even If thay are net pald directty 16 tha parson from whom the rolsvant intamst wag scquired.
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Company Announcement Office, -

Australian Stock Exchange Limited - <~ o7 10 77

CITRONEN PURCHASE OPTION EXERCISED AND
DIRECTOR APPOINTMENT

Option Exercise

lronbark Gold Limited {lronbark) is pleased to report that it has exercised the option to acquire the
Citronen Zinc Project {Citronen) following the completion of the due diligence process. lronbark will
immediately pay $1.3M to the Vendors and lronbark will seek anproval to have the license
transferred by the Jeint Committee on Mineral Resources of Greentand.

Citronen boasts a current resource of 158.8 milfion tonnes at 7.8% zinc and 0.9% lead. Exploration
was curtailed in 1997 prior to delineating the limits of mineralisation. Ironbark has significantly
expanded on the tenement position ‘o approximately 1,700 square kilometres. [ronbark has booked
one diamond drilling rig and is planning to secure a second drilling rig. Ironbark is well advanced on
engaging the services of local logistical facilitaters and expecis to begin an aggressive drilling
campaign to significantly expand on the existing resource and advance the project towards a pre-
feasibility study.

Director Appointment

The Board of Ironbark is delighted to welcome Mr. Vinceni Hyde to the Board of lronberk Gold
Limited as a non-executive director,

Mr. Hyde is a member of the Australian Institute of Export and the National Institule of Accountants
and brings considerable financing skills and depth of experience to the board.

Mr. Hyde has over 40 years banking and corporate advisory experience. He was the managing
director of a merchant bank for many years and his responsibilities included averall management
and perfarmance of operations in Ausiralia, South East Asia, Republic of South Africa, Unied
Kingdom , France , Germany and North America. Mr. Hyde is also a director of ASX listed company
Prime Minerals Limited.

We look forward to Mr, Hyde's valuable confribution to fronbark as we commance this very exciting
phase in Ironbarks development.

Jonathan Downes
Managing Direclor
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Telephone: +61 8 6461 6350




AUSTRAL AN STOUGTHES EXCHANGE

MARKET RELEASE

10 April 2007

Ironbark Gold Limited
TRADING HALT

The securities of lronbark Gold Limited (the “Company®} will be placed in pre-open at the
request of the Company, pending the release of an anncuncement by the Company.
Unless ASX decides otherwise, the securities will remain in pre-open until the earlier of
the commencement of normal trading on Thursday, 12 April 2007 or when the
announcement is released to the market.

Security Code: IBG

Nicholas Ong

Senior Adviser, Issuers (Perth)

si\perth companiesiper-code hik\ibghibg2007.04.2 0mr-no.doc Psgz 1ol 1




Ironbark Gald | imttad
Leval 2, 16 Altona Stroat.
Wast Parth, WA, 6005,
Postal: PO Box 935,
Wast Parth, 6872

T +81 & 8481 5500
F+81 88210 1872

E adminimnbariagold.com.ay
W www.ironbarkgo!id.com.au

10 April 2007
Ry Electronic Lodgement

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
TRADING HALT REQUEST

Itonbark Gold Limited (“Ironbark™) hereby requests a trading balt from ASX
effective immediately, pending an apnouncement.

Tronbark requests the trading halt last from receipt of the request until the rclcgse
of the announcement, in any case no later than the commencement of trading
Thursday 12 April 2007.

Jronbark is not aware of any reason why the trading halt should not be granted.

Ironbark is not aware of any othey information necessary to inform the market
about the trading halt.

Should you have any queries regarding the above I will be happy to discuss such
matters with you.

Yours faithfully

Jonathan Dowpes
Managing Director

-1,
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18 April 2007

The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

BELARA INITIAL RESOURCE ESTIMATE

Ironbark Gold Limited (lronbark) is pleased to report the first JORC campliant
inferred resource estimate for the wholly owned Belara base metal project {copper,
fead, zing, gold and silver) following a recent drilling program. Belara is located
approximately 98km NNE of Orange in New South Wales, Australia. The resource
estimate has been prepared by independent minerals industry consultants
Ravensgate.

Ironbark considers the resource to be significant and is encouraged that the two
deepest holes have returned the highest grade and widths indicating that the ore
body is open ended at its thickest point. lIronbark plans to expand the resource by
conducting further drilling targeting extensions to mineralisation. Additional drilling
is planned to bring the resource to a higher level of confidence and increase the
overall grade of the ore body.

Belara Project Initial Inferred Resource Estimate

1.0 million tonnes at 5.0% zinc, 0.4% copper, 1.5% lead, 0.3 g/t gold and 50 g/t
silver (7.5% zinc equivalent, 10.2 g/t gold equivalent”) at a 4% zinc cutoff

Within a larger lower grade resource of:

3.8 million tonnes at 3.1% zinc, 0.4% copper, 1.0% lead, 0.2 g/t gold and 34 g/t
silver (4.9% zinc equivalent, 6.7 g/t gold equivalent”) at a 1% zinc¢ cutolt

Summary

The Belara ore body begins at surface and has been estimated to a depth of 350
metres. Importantly, the mineralisation has been logged as fresh sulphide reck
from near surface and not zinc oxide which is typically metallurgically problematic
and not recoverable through a standard flotation circuit.

As a measure of the significance of the larger resource estimate an inventory of
contained metal includes 115,500 tonnes of zing, 13,100 tonnes of copper, 38,600
tonnes of lead, 22,000 ounces of gold and 4.1 million ounces of silver for an in-
ground metal value exceeding $800 million*. lronbark cautions that no
metallurgical test work has yet been conducied.

- . . N yofy Ry
Equivalunts calculated at spot prices and oreign exchange rales as 17 April 2007
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The emphasis of the ongoing appraisal will be on zinc which accounts for
approximately 60% of the in-ground metal values. The mixed metal assemblage of
VHMS (volcanogenic hosted massive sulphide) ore bodies such as Belara are
widely regarded as an excellent hedge against fluctuating prices of any single
metal but are difficult to appreciate as a whole therefore zinc and gold equivalents
are provided as a guide only.

Many of the histaric drill holes were not assayed for gold and these intervals were
treated as having no gold mineralisation. Further drilling is likely to increase the
gold grade.

Ironbark considers that expanding and evaluating the Belara project fits well with
lronbarks’ maijor Citronen zinc project in Greenland. Citronen represents one of the
warlds largest undeveloped zinc resources and an intense exploration effort is
currently being planned. The most recent resource estimate stands at 16.8 million
tons at 7.8% zinc and 0.9% lead (~8.3% zinc equivalent).

Citronen and Belara cffer exceptional exploration potential with the extents of
mineralisation at both projects yet to be determined.

The information i this report thar rolndes o Exploralion Regults, Mineral Resources or Ore Roeserves is based on information
compled try Mr A Syass, B.Se Bons{Genli, 3 Econ, FSEG. MAIG an employee of Ironbark Gold Limited. Mr Byass has
suflicient exparicnce 1hat is rolovant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposil under consideration and to the activity
which he is urdlertaking 1o quality as a Campotent Porson as defined In the 2004 Edition of the Australasian Code for
Regarting of Exatoration Resulta, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. Mr Byass cansents 1o the inclusion in the report of
the matters basaed en ks informeation in the form and context in which it appears.

For further information please contact:
Jonathan Downes

Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Level 1, 350 Hay Street,
Subiaco,

WA 6008

Tel: ((O8) 8461 6350




IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ABN 93 118 751 027
® NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

TIME: 10:00 am (WST)
DATE: 21 May 2007
PLACE: The Cellic Club

48 Ord Slreet
West Perth, WA 4005

This Notice of Meeting shoufd be read in ifs entirety. If Shareholders are in doubt as to
how they should vole, they should seek advice from their professionol advisers prior fo
voling.

Should you wish to discuss the matters in this Nolice of Meeting please do nol hesitate
to contact the Company Secretary on (08) 6461 6350.
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2. Explanaiory Staiement {explaining the proposed resotutions)
3 Glossary
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TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING AND HOW TO VOTE

VENUE

The General Meeting of the Sharehalders of lronbark Gold Limited will be held at 10:00 am on
21 May 2007 at;

The Cellic Club
48 Ord Street
wWest Perth, WA 6005

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT

ihe business of the Genecral Maeting affects your sharegholding and your vote is important.

VOTING IN PERSON

o vote in persen, aitend the General Meeling on the date and at the place set out above.

VOTING BY PROXY

To vote by proxy, please comnlete and sign the proxy form enclesed and ether:

{SH deliver ing proxy form 1o the Company's registered oflice at Level 1, 350 Hay Sheet,
Subiaco, Western Ausiralia 4008; or

() by facsimile io the Company on facsimile number {61 8) 6210 1872; or

{c) deliver the proxy farm to the Company’'s share regisiry, Security Transfer Registrars Pty
Ltd, 770 Canning Highway. Applecross, Wesiermn Australia 6153,

so that it is received not laier than 10:00 am WST on 19 May 2007. Proxy iorms ieceived later
than this time will De invalid,

Your proxy form Is enclosed after the Explanatory Statement.

o




NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETING

Notice is given thal the General Meeting of Shareholders of ronbark Gold Lirnited will be held
at The Celtic Club, Weast Perth, Western Australia ot 10:00 am {WST) on 21 May 2007,

The Explanatory Stalement to this Notice of Meeting provides addifional information on
matters to be considered at the General Meeting. The Explanalory Statement and the proxy
form are pari of 1his Nolice of Meeling.

The Direclors have delermined pursuant io Regulation 7.11.37 of ihe Corporations Regulations
2001 {Cth) thal the persons eligible to vole at the General Meeting are 1hose who are
registered Shareholders of the Company at the opening of business on 19 May 2007,

Unless otherwise stated, all references te Shares and Optlions are prlor to the Company
undertaking the Share Split (the subject of Resolution 3).

Terms and abbieviolicns used in This Nofice of mMeeting and Explonalory Statement are
defined in the Glossary.

AGENDA

1. RESOLUTION 1 - ACQUISITION OF BEDFORD (NO 3) LIMITED

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or withoui amendmaeni, the iollowing
resolution as an ordinary resolution:

"Thet, for the purposas of ASX Listing Rule 7.1 and for ol other purposes, aprroval
is given for the Company fo alfoi and ssue 1o the parties set oul in the
Explanafory Statement.

{ctj 8,000,000 Shares; ond
(b} 16,000,000 Options,

in nart consideration for the acquisifion of all the issued capital of Baedford (No 3]
Limited (a company incorporated purseani to the laws of the Brifish Virgin
slands). on the terms and conditions sef oul in fhe Explonaiory Statement.”

Voling Exclusion: The Company will disregard any voles cast on this Resolulion by any
person who may padicipaie in ihe proposed issue and a parson who may oblcin o
bhenefil, excent ¢ benefil solely in the capacily of ¢ scourily hoeldaer i the Resolulion s
passed and any associates of thosa persons.

2. RESOLUTION 2 - PLACEMENT OF SHARES

fo consider and, if thoughi fit, to pass. with or withoul amendmeni, the following
resolulion as an ordinary resolution:

“That, for the purnosas of ASX Listing Rule 7.1 and for all other purnoses, approval
is given for the Company to allot and issue 10,300,000 Shares ai an issve price of
$2.50 per Share to raise $25.75 million, on the terms and condilians set out in the
Explanatory Staternent.”

Voling Exciusion: The Company will disregard any voles cast on this Resolution by any
person who may pariicipate in the proposed issue and o person who may obtain a
benefii, excent a benelil solely In the capacily of o securdly holder, if the Resolution is
passed and any associaies of thosa persons.




3. RESOLUTION 3 - SHARE SPLIT

To consider and. i thoughi it to pass. with or without amendment, ihe following
resolution as an ordinary resolution:

“That, for the purposes of Seclion 254H of the Corporations Act and for all other
purposes and foifowing compietion of the acguisition of Beciford (No 3} Uimited
{Resalution 1) and the Piccement {Resoiution 2), approval is given for the
Company to subdivide the issued capital of the Company on the basis that
evary one (1) Shore he subdivided inte five [5) Shares and that Oplions on issue
se adiusted in accordance with the Lisiing Rules. and otherwise on the terms
ared concitions sei out in the Fxplanctory Statement accompanying this Notice
of Meeling.”

DATED: 20 Aprit 2007

B8Y ORDER OF THE BOARD

JONATHAN DOWNES
MANAGING DIRECTOR

Voting Exclusion Note:

where a voling exclusion anplies. the Company nead not disregard a vote if it is cast hy @
person as a proxy for a person who is entiled 1o vole in cccordance with the directions on the
proxy ionm o it is cast by the person charing the meeating as proxy for a pesson who is entilied
o vole, in accordance with ¢ direction on the proxy form o vole as the proxy decides.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This Explanatory Statement has been prepared far the infarmation of tha Shareholders of the
Company in connection with the business to be conducted ai the General Mealing.

This purpase of this Explanatory Statement is to provide: intormuation which the Directors believe
o be maleral to Shareholders in decicing wheiher or not o pass the Ressiuiong e the Notioo
ot Meeating.

1.1

OVERVIEW OF ACQUISITION OF BEDFORD (NO 3) LIMITED
Overview of the Transaction

As announced o ASX on 7 March 2007, the Compoany has enlered inlo a share sale
agreement with Bedford Resources Holdings Limifed (Bedford Resources) to acquire
100% of the issued capilal of Bediord (No 3) Limiled [Bedfoerd), a compuny
ncorporated pursuant to Ihe laws of the Brilish Virgin Islands and benglicial owner of
Exploration Licence 2007/02 dated 30 Oclober 2006 granted by {he Government of
Greenland (licence) tor an area of Tarsarnaq in North Greenland, and known as the
Citronen Zinc froject (Share Sale Agreement).

The malerial terms of the Share Sale Agreement are as follows:
{c1) setilemeni of the Share Sale Agreemeni is condilional upon;

i) the Company completing its due diigence invaeshgations in respect
of Bediord and heing satisfied (acling reasonably] with ihe ocuicome
of those investigations {Due Diligence Condition). The Due Diligence
Condition has been salisfied;

{ii) the Company being satistied as at the Complation Date (as delined
in the Share Sale Agreementl Thal Bediord Resourcas has not
malterially breached the leims of the Shoare Sale Agreement o any of
ihe warranties provided by Bediord Rasourcas thaerein:

[This Condition is trecied as satisfied unless The Company nolifies
Bedtord Resources otherwise (giving reqasons) on or  before
salisfaciion or waiver of the other Condifions.)

(iit) the Company obiaining shareholder approval, 1o give effect to the
Transaction pursuant to ASX Listing Rule 7.1 and Chapler 11 of the
ASX Lisling Rules (if applicable] and ltem 7 of Seclion 611 of the
Corporalions Act 2001 {Cih) tif applicable}, for the issue of Shares
and Options {Resclulion 1);

{iv] the Greenland Home Rule Government consenting, under section 27
of the AMinaral Rescurces Act of 6 Junc 1991 [{Greenand), to ihe
transter of the Licence 1o Rediord and the indiraot ranster of the
licence in connection with the Transaction;

(V) the Company entering info a deed of assurmplion in respect of, and
in the manner required by, the Royally Agreement [as defined in the
Share Sale Agreement], as it applies 1o tha licenco:

{vi) compledion of the Bedtord Transaciion {as cefined in fhe Share Scle
Agreement) occuning; and
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(vii) neither Badford Resowces nor the Comparny being prevented from
completing the Transaction by vitue of receiving any nolice
whether written or verbal) from any Regulaiory Authority in relation
to non-compliance with any relevant faw by any aspect of the
Transociion.

{icyether, ine: Conditions):

{1} the Conditions must be salisfied or waived by 1 July 2007, otherwise the Share
Sale Agreement wil terminate;

() the consideration payable by the Company o Bedlord Rescurces for the
acquisition of the Bediord Shares is the following:

(i) $200.000 on execution of the Share Sale Agreement;

(i) $1.300,000 on thal date which is 30 days aler the date of the Share
Sale Agreement;

(i} 84,500,000 on completion of the Transaction; and

{iv) fhe ssue of 8000000 Shares and 16,000,000 Optlicns as soon Qs
praciicatde atter satistachen o waiver of the Conditions (and subject
to complation of Ihe Transaciion having occured).

The: paymenls refened o in paragraphs (i) and () cbove have been made
by the Company: and

(ch the: Share Sale Agreemen! conlains representations and warranties perfaining
to Bedtord and Bediord Resources and the Project which are typical for an
agreameant of this naiure.

Subject to the passing of Resolution 2, the Company intends to raise $25.75 million by
a plecement of Shares, the funds from which will be particlly uvsed for the
considerction for the Transaction and evaluation and exploration of the Project {refer
to Section 3.2{f) ior a detoiled use of the furnids).

Overvlew of Bedlord and the Citronen Zine Project

Bedlord is a company incomporaled pursuant to the lows ot the Brifish Virgin lslands.
Badtord s the legal and bensticial owner of Exploralion Llicence 2007/02 dated
3C Oclober 2004 granied by the Government of Greenland for an area at Tarsameq
in North Greenlend {ihe Project).

Summary of the Project

Citronen represents one of the world's largest undeveloped 7inc resources. Citronen 1s
loccded in varthen Creeniand, ¢ seli-governed terifory of the Kingedorm of Denmark.

Pravious astimaodes of mineralisation associaled with the Project were genearaied prior
o the initoduction of the JORC Code guidelines for the reporling of identitied mineral
resources and are resarves. On this basis, previous estimates can nol he reported as
“resources’ or reserves” under the JORC Code guidelines.  Whilst the Company
considers these previous estimates are malerial and provide o reasonable refleciion
of the quaniurm and grade mineralisation, there can be no guarantee ihat re-
classification will occur in goccordance with he Company’s objectives in the short
term or af all,




e mMost recent resowrce esimaie OfF Ine rrojedcl sIanas S appioximalely 16.0M1
tonnes at 7.8% zinc and 0.9% lead [approximately 8.3% zinc equivalentt, This is based
on 32,826 metres of diomond dilling conducted belween 1993 and 1924 retuming
infercepis such as 28.8 melres @ $.7% zinc {inciuding a higher grade zone of 8.5m @
19.0% zing). The most recent resource astimaie was iaken from ine Plalinova A/fS 1999
Annual report as fodged with ihe Toronlo Stock Exchange and was in complicnce
with the Conadian Instifute for Mining., Melallurgy and Pelroleum standard  for
reorfing mineral resourceas.

The Company considers that the Project offers exceptional large scale, low nsk, long
Hfe and high margin production potential as well as an cutstanding  exploration
opportunity with the extent of mineralisation yet 1o be determined.

The mineralisation s considered o be of ¢ SEDEX style zine deposit and this maodel is
notentiolly very forge. The mineraiisation starts from the surface and is shollow, fiai
fving and adjoceni to a deep waler fjord that may orovide near mine shin docking
and loading opportunities.

Discovery

The Cifronen Zinc Project wos discovered in 1993 by Piaiinova A/S [pariicily owned by
the Governmeni of Greenland] and was the subject of 4 further compaigns of
invesligation until 1998 and at ¢ lime of exceplionaly ow base meatal prices {(Zinc
~USH0 .40/ 1b),

Exploration Potential

As 0 result of being a recent discovery [1993) and the poor prevailing meial prices of
that iime. the Project is considered to offer a rare level of irue exploralion polenticl as
it is under explored and open endead. The Company connot comment an ine 1olal
potential size of the Project at this time., although 16.8MY are currendly either alf
indicated or inferred level. Exploration to date (1993-1997 diilling) was curtaited prior
to delineation of the extents of minerafisation due to a combinalion of faciors, such as
a worldwide contraction in exploration expendilure resulling rom hisiorically low
metal prices (<$US 0.40 /ib Inin 1998} and continued exploration sucaess net defining
the limits of significant mineralisation. A farget of ab least 20Mi 1o 2507 was eslimaled
by Platinova A/S based on surface mapping and gravity dala 1o date wilthin the main
projec! area.

There is considerable tutther exploralion poiential such s identified by tThe most south-
eastern drill hole that infercepted 12% zinG over 2 meires from 95.5 meaitres denth. This
hole is locoled 550 metres rom the nearest dill hole. There is no diling bheyond thig
point,

The Ironbark geological feam is very exciled by Ihe opportunily fo advance the
Projeci from boih an exploration and o development parspeclive and has already
commeanced plans to aggressively explore the property ns soon ¢s possible,

Resource

The Project resource [see Table 1] was reporied to The Taronio Stock oxchange in 1999
and was calculaied from 147 diamond dnil holes for 32.8286 meires of diamond drill
core. The majority of the driling is verfical and minaralised intercepis represent close
to true width of the ore body that dips at between 5 and 7 degrees to the North. The
ore body starts from surface with the bulk of the resouwrce o date riecorded ai less
than 200 metres depth,




A scoping siudy was canducted by Kvaemer on a high grade poriion of the resource
known as the Beach fone. The Beach lone resource was reviewed by Shathcona -
an independent geotogical consultant.

Table 1

Citronen Project Resource Estimate (1)

Mlllion tonnes (MB) % Line (In) % Lead (Pb) Category
7.1 8.8 1.1 Indicaled @
9.7 7. 0.7 inferred )
16.8 7.8 0.9 Total
Notes:

(1} Reseource estimaie token from the Platinova A/S 1990 Annual Reporl as ledged
with the Toronto Stock Exchange (T8X) and calculated using  polygonal
methodology

(2)  Indicated Resources estimated using >2m vertical thickness @ 6% In

3] Inferred Resowrces estimated uwsing >Ym veriical thickness @ 5% In ouiside
(3] g
Indicated areas.

The mineralisation is hosted by Ordovician sediments of the Franklinian Basin and is
considered 10 be conlemporaneous with ciher base metal depaosits in Canada such
as Polars {operated by Teck Cominco belween 1980 and 2002). ronbark has lodged
two larger green field exploration licence applications surounding the Cilronen
Project exploration licence to further expand on its holding in the region.  konbark
now hold agpproximately 1.754 square kilometres of prospective ground and atl least 60
kilonmeires of strike over the mineralisalion irend.

ranbark hos angaged SRK Consulling to assist in the due diligence process and to
work with renbxcnk in developing exploration targeting and resource/optimisation
studies towards @ full teasibility over the next 2 years.

Logistics

Waorking and operaling in northern Greenlomd is nol dissimilar fo thase conditions
expernenced in numerous aperations in northern Conada and fronbark has secured
the services of Mr Andrew Stocks in the role of Logislical Consuliant., dMr Stocks spent
severat years working a3 the Vice President of Operations tor Crew Gold Corporation.
In this role. Mr Stocks was responsible for the commissioning of the first gold mine and
associaled ship loading facilities in Greenland, the Nalunag Gold Mine, which was
calso the first ming to be commissioned in Greenland in 30 vears and remains in
operahon. Mr Stocks has previously run mines throughout the werld for Barrick Gold.
Several new mines are now operating or preparing to operate in Greenland.

Access 1o the site s by aircratt or boat — with the last explarers otitising the services of
various aircralt including helicoplers, Boeing 727, C-130 Hercules and Twin Otter
gircrati. The climaie is very dry with minor rein or snowlall and during the 1997 field
program the lemperclure averaged approximately 1 degree Celsius from may 1o
September (5 months) with a highest recorded iemperature of 9 degrees Celsius and
alowest recorded iemperature of approximately 13 degrees Celsius.

During winter nack ice willimit the access to Citronen Fjord by ship as is the case with
many northorn Canadian mining operations such as ot Red Dog. the warld's largest
ZINC mine.




Compeient Person

The information in this Explanaiory Statement thal relates o Exploralion Resulls,
Mineral Resources or Ore Rasarves s based on informalion compiled by M A Byass,
B.SC Hons(Geo), B.Econ, FSEG, MAIG an employee of the Company. M Byass has
sufficient experience thai is relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposil
under consideration and o the octivily which he s undertaking to quality as a
Competent Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the Ausiralian Code for Reparting
of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. Mr Byass consénis 1o the
inctusion in this Explanalory Stolement of the matters hased on this intormation in the
torm and conlext in which it appecrs.

1.3 Pro Forma Statement of Financial Position
Set out in the Schedule is on unaudiled staterment of Hnancic!t position of the
Company as at 31 December 2006, together with a pro forma sialemeni of financial
position following implementaiion of Resolutions 1 and 2 confained in this Notice.
1.4 Capltal Structure
The capital struciure of The Company tollowing impiemeniaiion of all of the
Resolutions contained in this Notice is set oul below.
Shares Number
Cunreni issuad Shares 272.500.00
Acquisition of Bediord - consideraiion [Reselution 1} 3,600,000
Placemeni [Resclution 2) 10,300,000
Total Shares 40,800,000
Share split {1:5) [Resohution 3)
Total Shares 204,000,000
Options
Current issued Oplions! 2,000,000
Acquisition of Bedford [Resolution ) 16,000,000
Total Oplions 18,000,000
Share split [1:5)
Total Oplions §0,000,000
Notes:
I. tHnlisted Oplions exercisable ol 30 cenls on o before The data which is 5 yeors
frorn The dote of ssue |o1e Share Split).
2. RESOLUTION 1 - ACQUISITION OF BEDFORD
2.1 General

ASX Listing Rule 7.1 requires a listed company 1o obtain sharehader approval prior to
the issue of shares, or secuwrities converiible into sharas, repraseniing more 1hen 15% of
the issued capital of that company in any 12 month Gerioc.

Resolution 1 secks Shareholder approval for the alloimen and issue of;

{a} 8,000,000 Shares; and

¥

i) 16,000,000 Cplions,
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as parl consideration ior the acquisition of all of the Bediord Shares pursuant 1o the
Share Sale Agreement {as summarised in Section 1.1 of the Explanatory Sictement).

The effeci of Resolution | will be to allow the Ditectors to issue 1he Shaies pursuant to
the Transaclion during the period of 3 months afler the General Meeting (or a longer
period, if alowed by ASX). without using Ihe Company's annual 15% placement
copacity.  ihe lransaction will nos complete untii the Placemernt (Resclution 2) s
completed.

ASX Listing Rule 7.1

The ftollowing informalion is provided in relation to the issue of Shares and Oplions
pursuant to Resclution 1 pursuant 1o and in accordance with ASX Listing Rule 7.3:

{a) the maximum number of securilies 1o be issued is 8,000,000 Shares and
16,000,000 Cpstions;

{1 the Shares and Options will be issued for nit cash consideration as they are
being issued in porl consideration for the acquisition by ine Company of all of
the issued capital of Bediord:

(<) the Shares and Oplions issued pusuan! o Resolufion 1 will be issued 1o
Bediord Resources {or ils nominee), which is not a related party of ihe
Caomoany;

{cd the Shares will be issued no later than three {3) months after ihe date of the

General Meeting (or such later date to the extent permitted by cny ASX
waiver or modification of the ASX Listing Rules;.  Completion of ihe
Transachion will not fake place undit she Plocement  [Resolslion 2} s
completed. 11 s intended that allotment of the Shares and Cplions will occur
on one doaie;

{e) he Shares are fully paid ordinary shares in the capital of the Compaeny and
will rank ecually with the Company’'s current issued Shares,

{f) {he Cplions will be issued on the lerms set out in Seclion 2.3; and

{g) no funds will be raised from ihe issue of the Shares and Optlions as they are
seing issued by the Company in consideration for the acquisition by ihe
Company aof all of the 8ediord Shares pursuant to the Share Sale Agreement
(surnmarised in Seciion 1.1 of the Explanatlory Statemenl).

Terms of Options

The following is o summary of the terms of the Options 1o be issued pursuant o
Reselution 1:

el ihe: Options wilt bhe exercisable at any time prior 1o 5.00pm WST on
| Febwuary 2010 (Expiry Date). Opliens not exercised on or before the expiry
daie will auiomaoancally lapse;

{1} tha excrcise price of each Option will be $1.50 each;

(<) the: Options may be exercised wholly or in part by completing an application
farrm for Shares (Notice of Exercise) delivered 1o the Company's share regisiry
and received by it any ime prior to the Expiry Dale;

() upon the exercise of an Oplion and receipt of all relevant documenis and

poyment, ihe holder will be allotted and issued a Share ranking parn passy

10




willn e hen issued ongras.  1Nge LCormpany wit GRply 10 AdX 10 have Ine
Shares granied official quolalion;

{e) a summary of the terms and condilions of the Oplions, including the Notice of
Exercise, wil be sent to all holdars of Optlions when the iniital holding
statement is sent.

{f) the Company does not presenily intend to apply to have ithe Opficns kted
on ASX;
G thare will be no narticioating entittermants inherent in the Oplions 1o

porticipate in new issues of capila! which may ba offered o the Combany’s
sharehelders during the cumrency of the COplicns. Prion to any new pro rata
issue ol securlies 1o she Shareholders, holders of Oplions will b netitied by fhe
Company and will he afforded 7 3usinegss Days before he record dale {lo
cdeiermine entitlermenis to the issue]. 1o exercise Qplions;

{h) in the event of any reconstruciion (inciuding consolidalion, sub-division,
reduction or return) of the issued capitol of the Company prior to ihe expiry
date. alt righis of an optionhoelder are to be changed in g manner consisternt
with the ASX Listing Ruies: and

i} Shares issued pursuant to the exercise of an Opiicn will be issued nol more
thon 14 days after the dale of the Notice of Exercise.

3.1

3.2

RESOLUTION 2 - PLACEMENT OF SHARES
General
A summary of ASX Listing Rule 7.1 1s set out in Section 2.1,

Resolution 2 saeks Sharegholder approval for the ollotment and issue of 10,300,000
Shares at an isste price of $2.50 per Share 1o raise $25.75 millon ny o plocement (o
sophisticated invesiors (Placement},

The effect of Resolution 2 will be o allow the Directors 1o issua the Shares pursuant 1o
the Placement during the pericd of 3 monihs ajter ine Goneral peaiing (O ¢ fonges
period. it allowed by ASX), withoul using the Company's annual 15% capacity,

The Placement will compleie prior 1o completion of ihe Transaction,
ASX Listing Rule 7.1

The tollowing information is provided in relation o the Placement pursuant ic and in
accordance with ASX Lisiing Rule 7.3

{a) the maximum number of Shares 1o be issued is 10,300,000,
() the: Shares will be issued ot an issue price of $2.50 each;
() ihe Shares will be ssued no laier than three (3) months affer the date of the

General Meeting [or such laler date 1o the extent nemmilled by any ASX
waiver or medification of the ASX Lsting Rules) and i s infended that
alfotment will occur on the same dale;

{dd) the alicliees of ithe Shores ore insiitutional and sophisticated  investors.
Following completion ¢f the Placement, Maurill Lynch cquiiies [Austialial and
Glencore Intemational AG will become subsiantial sharchaiders holding 7.1 1%
and 6.13% of the ihen incurred capilal respecively. The Piccement will be
made pursuant to a prospecius bul no allnitee will he « rolated pariy of the
Company:

I




(e) the Shares ssued will be fully poid ordinary shares in the capital of the
Company and will rank equally with the Company's current issued Shares;
andi

(f) the iunds raised by the Placement $25.75 miillion will be used by fhe Company
in the fellowing manner:

Use of Funds 3

Consideraiion tor agguisition of Bediord 4,500,000
Citronegn Project (o feasipility) 15,500,000
Expenses of Placement 1,500,000
Corporote and Administration Working 3,150,000
capital

Fxisting projects 1,000,000
Rediord Transaction Cosis 160,000
Total 25,750,000

41

4.2

RESOLUTION 3 — SHARE SPLIT
Background

The Corporations Act enables o company o convert all or any of its shares into a
larger number of shares by resolution passed al a general meeling (Shate Split). The
ASX Listing Rules aiso requires that the number of options on issue be subdivided in the
same ralio as the ordinary capifal and the exercise price be amended inverse
proportion to that ratio.

Resohiion 3 seeks Shareholder approval for the share copital of the Company 1o be
split ona 521 Basis. [ Resoluiion 3is approved, gach existing Share will e subdivided
into 5 Shares and each existing Option will be subdivided into 5 Opticns. In addition,
the exercise price of each Option will be decreased by a factor of 5. For example,
the exercise price of the existing Options is $0.30. On completion of the Share Split, the
exercise price of the Oplions will be $0.06.

e Share Split will icke eifect alter completion of the Placement (Resolution 2) and
completion of ihe ronsaction (Resotution 1).

The capital struciure of ihe Company before: and afier the Share Split is contained in
Section 1.4 of the txplanaiory Statement.

Etfect of Share Split

iImmediately affer the Share Split, o Shareholder wil still hold the same proportion of
the Company's share capital and its assels as before the Share Spiit, The current nghts
ailaching to the Shares and Cplions will nol be affected. Any fractional entilement
that woldd otherwise resudi from the Share Split will be rounded up to the nearest
whele Share or Option as the case may be.

It Resoiution 3 is passed {and Resolutions 1 and 2 are passed and implemented), the
nurmher of Shares in the Company will increase from 40,800,000 Shares 1o 204,000,000
Shares and the numbear of Options will increase from 18,000,900 Oplicns to 90,006,000
Options,

The: Share Split will benelil Shareholders by increasing the fiquidity and aliordability to
retail investors of the Company's Shares.

It s expected thal, tollowing the Share Split, the price for each Share in the Company
wiil decrease 1o 1/5% of its current price fallowing the commencement of the

12




4.3

4.4

company's SNAares raang on a aelerred sellicmant DO G0 Ada. ROWEVERr, NG
exten! of this reduction in price will depencd on the marke!.

New Holdlng Statements

As from the effective date of the Resolulion {which will nol e until completion of the
Placament and the Transaction). il holding stclements for Shares and Options will
cease to have any effect, except as evidence of enliiiement o ¢ cerain number of
post Share Split Shares and Options.

After the Share $plit becomes cifective, the Compeny will dispaich a notice 1o
Shareholders and Option holders advising them of the number of Shares and Oplions
held by each Sharehaolder and Option holder [as the case may be) both beiore and
after the Share Split. The Company will also arrange Tor new holding statements to be
issued lo Shareholders and Option holders.

Taxation Consequences

It s not considdered thail there will be any taxation consequences for Shareholders
arising from the Share Split. However, Sharehoiders are advised to seek their own lax
advice on the effect of the Share Split and neithaer the Company. the Direciors nor the
Company's advisers accept any responsihility for cny incdradual Shareholders faxation
consequences of the Share Splhit.




GLOSSARY

ASX means Australian Stock oxahange Limited (ABN 98 008 624 491).

ASX listing Rules or Listing Rules meaans the listing rules of ASX.

Bedford means Bediord (No 3) Limited (0 company incorporated pursuant to the laws of the
Britishy Virgin Islands, C/- PKFF Corporaie Advisory Services [NSW) Pty Lid, Level 10, No 1 Margaret
Shreet. Sydney, New Souih wWales.

Bedford Shares maans the tully paid shares in the capital of Bedford.

Board means the board of directors of the Company.

Company or lrenbark means honbark Gold Limited (ABN 93 118 751 027).

Corporations Act macns the Corporations act 2001 [Cthy.

Directors mecns the current directors of the Company.

Explanatory Statement meons the explanatory statement accompanying the Notice.

General Meeting or Meeling maans the meeling convengd by The Nolice.

Notice means the notice of meeiing accompanying ihis Explanatory Siqiemem.

Cption means an option o acquire ¢ Share on the ferms and conditions set out in Seclion 2.3
of the Explanatory Siatement,

Placement means 2 plocemend by the Company of 10,300,000 Shares to raise $25.75 milllion,
the subject of Resolution 2.

Project or Citronen Project means Exploration Licence 2007/02 granted by the Government of
Greenland for an area ol Tarsameg in North Greenland and known as the Citronen Zinc

Project.

Regulatory Authority means ASIC, ASX o the Jokeovers Ponel [as referred to in the
Corporations Act 2001 (Cih)} or any otherrelevant regulatory body.

Resolutton means a resclution condained in the Notice.
Share means a iully paid ordincry share in the capitat of the Company.
Shareholder means o holder of Shares,

Transacltion meaons the lransaction contempiated by the Share Sale Agreement as
summarised in Section 1.1 of the Explanatory Stalement.

WST means Wasiam Standard lime.

S mecns Austraian dolicrs,
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SCHEDULE

Set out below, {or the purpases of dlustralion only, is a oro forma statement of finangict position
of the Company |based on the assumptions set oul bhelow).

(CCURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

2,764,753

18,250,600

Unaudited Adjustments Proforma
31 December
2006
3 $ $

21014753

Trade and other receivales 87,478 h2.478
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,817,231 18.250,000 21,067,231
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

frade and other receivanles 9,380 - %.380
Financict assets 30.600 - 30,000
Piant ond equipmeni 3.312 - 3.312
Exploration, evaluation and 485,427 77.088,000 77,573,429
development expenditure

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 528,121 77.088.000 77,616,121
TOTAL ASSETS 3,345,352 5,338,000 98,483,352
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other poyabies 295,134 295,134
TOTAL CURKENT LIABILITIES 295,134 295,134
TOTAL LIABILITIES 295,134 295,134

NET ASSETS 3,060,715 95,338,000 GE 388,718
EQUITY

lssued Capital 3,201,981 A4G.770.000 52971981
Option reserve 124,600 45 548,000 45,492,600

Accumulated losses

TOTAL PARENT ENTITY INTEREST

(276,363]

(276.363)

3,050,218

3.000

[
0

5.3

94,388,218

Key Assumptions to the Pro-forma Balance Sheet

included in the pro-doma baolance sheel as ol 31 December 2006 are the {ollowing
adjusiments:

Q) the issue of 10,300,000 Shares at $2.50 per Share {o ralse 525,750,000 {(before expenses
of the Offer);

() the payment of expenses of the Offer tolalling $1.500.000 which are paid from the
proceeds of the Offer;



(c)

the consideration pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement consisting of:
Cash 56,000,000

Issue of 8,000,000 shares based 525,520,000
on the market price at 28 March
2007 of $3.19 per share

Issue of 14,000,000 options at 545,568,000
$2.848 per option

The option value was determined independently using the Biack Schaoles and Binomial
valualion meihodologies.  The opfions will be exercisable al a price of $1.50 per
option at any time on or prior to Spm (WST) on 1 February 2010




PROXY FORM

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ABN 93 118 751 027

[/We

neing a Member of onbork Gold Limied enblled io atiend and vole aof
the Meaeling, hergby

Appoint

Name of proxy

or faling the person so named or, if no person is named, the Chairman of the Meeling or the
Chairman's nominee, to vole in accordance with the following direciions or. if no diraciions have
been given, as the proxy sees fit at the General Megling to be held ol 10:00 am (Wesiern Standard
Time) on 21 May 2007 af The Cellic Club, Wasi Perth, Western Ausiralia and ¢l any adjoumiment
thereol, If no directions are given, the Chainman will vote in favour of all of the resolulians,

Voting on Business of the General Meeting
FOR AGAINST  ABSTAIN

Resolution 1 Issue of securities 10 noquire Bedfoid E} J__‘ T
Resoluiion 2 Placement of Shares L i E:‘ ]
Resolution 3 Share $plit L] [] ]
OR

In reladion {¢ ihe Resolutions, if he Chainman is 10 bea your proxy and il you do not wish 1o
direct your proxy how to vate, please placea a miark in Inis box.

By marking this box, you acknowledge that the Chainnan may exercise your proxy even if he hos
an interest in (he oulcome of the Resolution and votes cast by him oiher than as proxy holder will
be disregarded because of the interest. I you do nol mark this box, and you have not directed
yvour proxy how to vole, the Chainman of the Meeting will not cast your votes on the Resolulions
and your votes will not be countad in compieting the required maijerity if o poll is called on the
Rasolutions. The Chairmon will vete in favour of all of ihe Resolutions if no directions are given.

IF THE CHAIRMAN IS TO BE YOUR PROXY IN RELATION TO THE RESOLUTIONS. YOU MUST EITHER MARK
THE BOXES DIRECTING YOUR PROXY HOW TO VOTE OR MARK THE BOX INDICATING THAT YOU DO
NOT WISH TO DIRECT YOUR PROXY HOW TO VOTE, OTHERWISE THIS APPOINTMENT OF PROXY FORM
WILL BE DISREGARDED.

if you mark the absiain box for a particular item, you are direcling your prody nol 1o vole on inal
iterm on a show of hands or on a poll and ihat your shares are not to be counted in computing ibe
required majority on a poli.

Signed this vlay of 2007
By:
Individuals and jaint holders Companies {affix common seal if
approprioie)
Signature Director
Signature Director/Compuany Seareiary
Signoiute Sole Direcion and Sole Company Secretary




Lh

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ABN 93 118 751 027

Instructions for Completing ‘Appoiniment of Proxy' Form

A membea entited to attend and vole ol a Meeting is entitlied 1o appoint not more
han lwo proxies 1o oliend and vote on their behatf, Where more than one proxy is
appoinied, such proxy must be allocated a proportion of the member's voting righis.
If the shareholder appoints twe proxies and the appointment does not specity this
praporiion, each oroxy may exercise: half ihe voles.

A duly aoppointed prosy naed not e o member of the Company. In the case of joint
holders, ait must sign.

Corporate shareholders should comply with ihe execution requirements set out on the
proxy form or atherwise with the provisions of Section 127 of the Corporations Act.
Section 127 of the Corporalions Acl provides thal a compuny may execule o
document withoul using its commaon seal if the document is signed by:

. directars of the company:
. a direcior and ¢ company secrefary of the company; or
. tor o pronretary company that has a sole director whao is also the sole company

saoretory - thal direcior,

For the Company 1o rely on the assumplions sel oul in Section 129(5) and (4] of the
Corporatinns Act, o documans must appear to have been execuled in accordance
withy Section 12701} or 12). This elfectively means that the status of the persons signing
the document or witnessing the alfixing of the seal must be set oul and conform to the
requiremenls of Section 127(1) o (2) as applicabie.  In particular, a person who
witnessas the alfiiing of o comman seal and who is the sole direcior ond sole
company secrelary of the company must staie that naxt io his or her signature.

Completion of ¢ proxy form will nol prevent individual shareholders from aliending the
meeting in persen if they wish, Where o shareholder compietes and lodges a valid
proxy {onn and attends the meeting in person, then ihe proxy's aguthotity to speak and
vote for thal shareholder is suspended while the shareholder is present at the meeting
Where a proxy form or form of appointment of corporate representative is lodged and
is execuled under power of attorney, the power of altorney must be lodged in like
Manner ¢s this proxy.

o voie by proxy, plegse complete and sign the proxy form enclosed:

(0] deliver the proxy form 1o the Company's registered office at Level 1, 350 Hay
Shreet, Subiace, Western Australio 6008: or

(b} by facsimile ta the Company on facsimile number (61 8) 6210 1872; or

fc:] deliver the proxy torm 1o the Company's share regisiry, Security Transfer
Regishens Pry Lid, 770 Conning Highway, Applecraess, Western Aosiralia 4153,

sa that if is received not later than 10:00 am (Western Standard Time) on 19 May 2007.

Proxy forms received later than this fime will be invalid.
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[RONBARK GOLD LIMITED

ABN 93118 751 027

SHORT FORM PROSPECTUS

For the offer of 10,300,000 Shares at an issue price of 52.50 each to raise
$25,750,000 (Offer).

The Offer is conditional on Shareholder approval at a General Meeting to be
held on 21 May 2007.

IMPORTANT NOTICE

this Prospectus is a short form prospectus issued in accordanes with Seclion 712 of the
Corporations Act 2001, This Prospecius does nol of itsell contain all ine information that s
generally required to be set out in a document of this type bul rafers to another document,
the informalion of which is dearmed (0 be incomporated in this Prospecius,




IMPORTANT NOTICE
Ihis Prospecius is dated 20 Anrnl 2007.

A copy of this Prospectus was lodged with the ASIC on 20 April 2007. The ASIC and ASX
tcke no responsinility tor the contents of this Prospecius.

No Securities will be issued on the basis of this Prospectus later than thirteen (13) monihs
after the daie of this Prospecius. Application will be made to ASX within seven {7) days
afier the date of this Prosnactus tor admission of the Securities offered by this Prospecius
to Official Quolation.

This Prospecius will e issuad in paper form and as an electronic Prospectus. The ofter of
Securities pursuant to this Prospectus s available (o persons receiving an elecironic
varsion of this Prospectus in australia. The Corporations Act prohibils any person from
passing onio anclher parson  the Applicalion Form unless i s allached to o
accompanied by the complete and unaliered version of this Prospectus. During the
olfer parind a nerson may obicmn a hard copy of this Prospectus by contacting the
Campany.

Applicanis shouldd read this document iniis eniirety and., it in any doubl, consult with their
protessional advisers belore daciding wihether to apply faor Securnifies.  There are risks
associated wilh an investment in the Company and the Securities offered under this
Prospectus must he regarded as a specualive invasimeni. The Securilies offered under
this Prospecius camry no guarantee with respect io return on capital investment or the
future value of the Securities.

The distribulion o1 this Frospectus in jurisdictions oulside Australia moy be restricied by law
and persons who comae into possession of this Prospecius should seek advice and
observa any such restrichons, Any failure 1o comply with such restriciions may consiitule
a violaiion of applcable securities laws,

This Prospecius does not constituie an offer of Securities in any place in which, or 1o any
parsen lo whom. it would nol be lawlul 1o make the Offer.

Unlass otharwise noted all amoounis care in Australican dollars.

Ihis Prospecius is a shorl form prospectus issued in accordance with Section 712 of the
Comporations Act. This means that this Prospeclus does not of itself contain all 1he
informaiion that is generally required to be sel out in a document of this type. Ralher,
the Prospecius incomaraies by reierence infarmation conlained in documenis that have
heen iodged with 1he ASIC.

This Prospecius refers (o the prospaclus issuad by the Company daited 30 fune 2006 (1PO
Prospectus).

In refering to the IPO Prospectus, the Company:

{al identities the PO Prospecius as being reievant to the otfers of Securities pursuant
to this Prospectus and containing infarmation that will provide investors and their
orofessional  advisers  Information 1o assist them in making an  informed

assessment of:

(i) the nights and kabilities attaching 1o the Securities;

(&) the copacily of ithe Company 1o issug ihe Securities; and




(iii) the assels and licbilities, financial position and performance, profits and
losses and prospecis of the Company;

(o} refers invesiors and iheir advisers o Section 4 &f ihis Prospecius which
surmmarises the information in the IPO Prospectus deemead 10 be incorporated in
this Prospecius;

{c] informs investars and their advisers that they are able fo ablain, free of charge, ¢
copy of the (PO Prospecius by contaciing the Company al ils registered office
during normal busingss hours betweean the dale of this Prospectus and the
Closing Bate; and

() advises that the information in the IPG Prospectus will be pnmarily of nlerast to
invastors ana their prolessional advisers and analysis.

Electronic Prospectus

A copy of this Frospectus will be made available on ihe Company’s websile
www ironbarkgold. com.ay.  Any person gccassing e elecironic version of  this
Prospectus for the purpose of making an investment in the Company must bhe an
Ausiralian resident and must only access the Prospectus from veithin Agsiraiio.

The Corporations Act 2001 prohibits any parson from passing onio anoher person ihe
Application Form unless it is atiached 1o or accompanied by the completle and
unaltared version of this Prospectus, Duiing the Otfer Period, any person may obtain a
hard copy of ihis Prospecius by conlacting the Company.
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2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

INVESTMENT OVERVIEW

Important Notice

This seclion is not intended o provide tull information for investors irdending to
apply tor the Securibes oftered pursuant to this Prospectus.  This Prospectus

shiould be read and considered in its entirety.

Summary of the Offer

Offer price: $2.50
Nurnber of Shares offered under the Clfer: 10,300,000
Funds raised befoe expenses of the GlHer: $25.750,000

Summary of Bedtord Ofter

fThe Company intends to issue 8,000,000 Shares and 14,000,000 Bediord Options
urder ihe Bediord Giter. Relfer i Seciion 10 {or further details.

Indicative Timelable

Prospacius lodged with ASIC and Opening Dale 20 April 2007
Genercl Meaeting 21 May 2007
Closing Date (5:00pm WS 22 May 2007
Allotment of Securities under the Offer 25 May 2007
Selilemant of Acquisition 25 May 2007

These daies are indicative only and may change with lirme. The Company
reserves the right to close the Offer early.

Purpose of the Offer

The purpose of the Offer s to raise funds o complete the Acquisiion, explore
and develop the Citronen Frojec!. raise working capital lar existing projecis and
meel expenses associated with the Acquisition ond the Ofter. The Company will
not close the Otter until i is in a position to complete the Acquisition.

The pumbose ol 1he Bediord Offer is 10 comply with ihe secondary sale provisions
of ihe Corporations Act. No tunds will be raised pursuant to the Bediord Otfer.
They are baing issued in part consideration for the Acquisition. Refer 1o Section
1G. 1 for further details.,

Use of Froceeds from the Offer

s ilended to apply the funds ruised from the Offer as follows:

&




Description Note Amount

$
Consideralion under Acquisifion Agreemen! 4,500,000
Citronan Project (o feasibility) } 15,500.000
Expensas of the Offer 1,500,000
Comporate and aAdminisiration Waorking Capited 3,150,000
Existing projects 1,600,000
Baediord Transoction and Offer costs 100,000
Total 25,750,000

Capltal Structure

ihe capital structure of the Company tollowing comnlation of the Gifer s
summarised bhelow:

Shares Nole Number
Shares on issue al the date of Prospecius 22,500,000
Acquisition of Bedlord (see Seciion 3.4) 8,000,000
Shares now offered under The Oller H), 300,000
Total Shares on issue al completion of the Offer ! 40,800,000

Note 1: The Compeny proposes undertaking o Share Split on o 1:5 basis alfer completion of
the Qffer and Acquisifion {subject fo Sharehaider approvei ot the General mealing). After
implernentefion of the Shore Spilf, ihe Company wiill have 204,000,000 Shutes on issue.

Unlisted Options Note Number
Oplions on issue al the date of Prospecius I 2,000,000
. Bedford Options issued pursuant o Acquisition 2 16,000,000
Total Options on issue at completion of the Offer 4 18,000,000
Notes:

Lo Unfisted Oplicns exercisable of 30 cents on or belore 10 August 201

2. Fxercisable ar 51.50 on or hefore 1 February 2010,

2. the Caompany proposes underteking a Shore Spiit on o 11§ basis affer compiedion of e
Offer and the Acquisition [subjeci to Sharehaolder appraval of the Genoeral Meeling).
After implemeniaiion of ihe Share Spiil, the Compony will nove 90.000.000 Qofions on
I55UE.




3.

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

DETAILS OF THE OFFERS

By this Prospactus. the Company offers for subscription 10,300.000 Shares al an
issue price of $2.50 per Share to raise $25,750,000.

Only those investors inviled by the Boord may apply for the Ctter. Accordingly,
ddoe not complele the Dffer Application Form untess requested by the Board.

The Shares offered undar this Prospecius will rank equally with the existing Shares
onissue. Please reier to Saction 7.1 of this Prospectus for a summary of the righis
cltaching to the Shares olfered pursuant o this Prespectus.

The Ofler is conditional on Shareholder approval at the General Meeting and is
neretore a condiiional oifer. IF Sharehokder aporoval is nol oblained tor the
issue of the Shares pursuant 1o the Olfer, no Shares will be issued. A copy of the
Notice of Mecting has been sent to Shareholders and lodged wilh ASX,

Minimum Subscription

The minimum subscription of the Offer is $25,750,000. No Shares will be alioited or
issued by this Prospecius in respect of the Citer until the minimum subscription is
reachad, If the minimun subscription s not recaived within 4 months after ihe
dote of ihis Prospectus all application monies will be refunded in accordance
with the Corgporalions Act.

Oversubscriptions

Oversubscriptions will not bhe acceapied.

How te Apply tor Securities under the Offer

Applicaiions for Secunties under the Otter by invesiors must be made using the
Ofter Applicadion Form which is attached lo or accompanies this Prospedctus

(Ofter Application Form),

Only thase invasters invited by the Board may apply for the Ofier. aAccordingly,
do not complete the Offer Applicalion Form unless requested by the 3oard.

Poyment for Shares musl be rmade in full at the ssue price of $2.50 per Share.
Completed Offer Applicalion Forms and aoccompanying cheques musi be
mailed or delivered to:

By Hand or Post:
ronbark Geld Limited
tevel 1

350 Hay Street
SUBIACO wa 6008

by no later than tha Closing Date.

Cheaues and dratis should be maoade payoeble to “lronbark Gold Limited - Offer
Account” and ciossed "Not Negotiable”,

Underwriting

ine: Offedis not undorwriten,




3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Allotment

is anticipoted that alloiment of Shares oflered pursuoant 1o ihe Offer will 1ake
place in gccordance with the timeicble set out in Sechion 2.3 of ihis Prospacius,
The Company will not close the Clier and proceed to aliotment unlit i s v o
position 1o complele the Acauisiion. Prior to allotmeani of the Shores uncier the
Ofier, all cpplication mornies will be held in trust for applicants. The Comoany wil
retain any interest earmed on the applicaiion monics.

The Rirectors reserve the right fo allot Shares urder the Offer in tuil for any
application or to dllot any lesser number of 1o decline any appication. Whore
the number of Shares allotted under the Offer is iess thaen the number applied
for. or where no aliofment is made. ine surplus application monies will be
refurned by cheque to ihe apolicant within seven 7] days of The alloiment
dale.

The Company infends o issue and allot the Secuities pursuani 1o The Bediond
Offer (refer to Section 2.1) on completion of the Acquisttion,

No Securiies will be allclied and issued on the basis of this Prospectus later than
thirteen {13} months after the date of this Prospecius.

ASX Quotation

Applicalion to ASX for admission of the Shares ofiered pursuant fo This Prosneclys
lo Official Quotation will be made by the Company within seven [7) days of the
cdate ot this Prospectus. I the Shares are not admitied to Giicia! Quotation on
ASX within three (3) months after the date of this Piaspecius, o such ongot
pariod asis parmitted by the Corporations Act norc of The Shares olfored undicn
the OHer will he issued. In either of those circumistances, all appications will he
dealt with in cccordance with Section 724 of the Comoraiions Acl,

CHESS

The Company patiicipates in the Clearing House Hechionic Subregister System
(CHESS). CHESS is operaled by ASK Setflement and Transter Corporation Piy Lid
[ASTC). a wholly owned subsidiary of ASX, in accordancs with ine Listing Rules
and the ASTC Setilement Rules,

Under CHESS, the Company will not issue cerdiiicaies o investors. instead,
subscribers will receive a staiement of their holdings in the Company. If an
investor is broker sponsored, ASTC will send a CHESS statemenlt io the investor.

Financlial Forecasts

The Directors have considerad the matters sef out in ASIC Policy Statemant 170
and beleve that they do noi have o reasenable basis (o forecast tuture
gamings on the basis thal the operctions of he Company are inherently
uncerlain.  Accardingly, ony farecast o projecisd infonmation would confan
such a broad range of potenticl cutcomes and possibitifias thal i s nol possible
to prepare g reliable best estimaie forecast or prgjeciion,

Privacy Statement
The Company collects informaiion aboul each Applicant om ar Appiication

Form for the purposas of processing the Application Farm and, it “he Applicant is
syccessiul, o adminisier the Applicant's security holding in 1ha Company,



By submitling an Applicaiion Form, each applicant agrees that the Company
may use: the intormation in the Application Form {or the purposes set out in this
privacy disciosure statement and may disciose it {or those purposes to the
Company’s share regisity, the Company's related bodies corporate, agents.
contraclors and third party service providers, (including mailing houses), ASX, the
ASIC and other regulatory authorities.

it an Applicant becomes a security holder of the Company. ihe Corporations
Act requires the Company o include information about the security holder
(name, address and delails of the securnties held) in s pubbc register. This
information must remaoin in the register even if thal person ceases to be o
security holoer of the Company.  Informalion conlained in the Company's
tegisiers is abo used (o foclitate distribution paymenis ond  corporate
communications (including the Company's financial resulis, annual reports and
other intormation that the Company may wish o communicate to s security
holders) and complicnece by the Company with legal and regulatory
requUIremanis,

If you o not provde the information required on the Applicolion form, the
Caompany may not be able to accept or process your applicaiion.




4.1

INFORMATION DEEMED TO BE INCORPORATED
Short Form Prospectus

This Prospectus s a short form prospectus issued in accordance with Seclion 7172
of the Corporaitons Acl.  This means that this Prospecius does not of itself
contain all the informatlion that is generally reqguired fo be set oulin a document
ot this type, however i incorporates by reference information contained in
document thai has been lodged with the ASIC,

The Company informs investars and their prolessional advisaers that they are able
o abtain. ree of charge, a copy of the IPC Prospecius by conlactirg the
Company ol its registered office during normal Dusingss nours until the Closing
Date. The IPO Prosnectus will clso be available by secrching the ASICs records
in relaiion 1o the Company and the company ASYX anncurcemeris o
WWW CISX . COM ),

(PO Prospectus

Set out below is o summary of the information contaimed in the 1IPO Prospecius
that is deermed (o be incorporaled in this Prospectus to assist investors and their
professional advisers to determing whether, for the purpeses of moking on
informed investment decision in relation fo the issue of the Securiiies pursuant 1o
this Prospectus, iney should obicin a copy of the (PO Prospactus,

The Sections referred o below are arelerence o saciions in the IPO Prospaciug
of the Company.

Secllon 3: Investment Overview

Section 3 provides an investment overview of the Offer contained in tha PO
Prospectus. It details the objectives of the Company. indicalive imetable,
purpose of the Offer ond use of oroceeds, canital siruclure of the Compary
hefare and aiter the Offer and daetails of Securifies ithat will be resincied.

Section 4: Detalls of the Offer

Section 1 gives a general summary ol the olier and contains information refating
to the procedural aspecis of the offer under ine PG Prospecius. i delals o
number of aspects, for example. how o apply for shares. commissions on
application forms, the Company's privacy stalemeni anda lishing of the Company
an ASX.

Section 5: Project Review

Section 5 provides background details on the Company and the details of iis
assets.

Section é: Directors and Corporale Governance
Section & outlings 1he relevant expetience and gudiification of the Directors, the
key objeclives of the Compcny's corporale governonce process and the

primary responsibilifies of the Board,

Sectlon 7: Independent Geologist's Report




Section 7 coniains the Independent Gedlogist's Report prepared by Rovensgate
Pty Lkd which describes in detal the geologicat setting and mineralisation,
historical and recent exploration and production and mineral resource and
reserve sigiemeants inoreiotion 1o oll the Company’s assels.

Section 8: Investigaling Accountant's Report

Section § comprises Ihe Investigoting Accountant's Report prepared by Mack &
Co. The repart was included in the IPO Prospectus to qssist investors and their
professional advisers in making an assessment of lhe financial position of the
Company.

The invesiigaiing Accounkanis Report contains unoudited baianee sheet as ol
31 May 2006 and an unaudited pro-forma statement of tinancial position as al
31 mMay 20046 adjusted e show the linancicl effect on the Company assuming
various lransactions  (including the issue of Shares offered under the PO
Prospectus) had laken place as ot 31 May 2006, and noles on the actual and
pro-iorma financial information.

Section ?: Independent Soliclior's Report

Section ¢ comprises a solicitor's report prepared by Steinepreis Paganin on the
tenements held by the Company, the Company's tille to those tenements and
thirdd party inlerests in the tenements and relevan! legisiation.  Section 9 alse
includes o summary of the material lerms of agreemeanis alfecting the
tenements and o summaory of the stafus of any native litle claims existing over
the tenamenis.

Section 10: Investment Risks

Section 10 noles that an invesiment in the Company carries certain risks and
describes ¢ number of foctors ihat may impact on the success and future
profitability of the Company. The factors referred to include axploration sucaess,
developmeni and operaling risks, fransfer of tenements risk, reserve  and
resource astimales, commodily price volaliity and exchange rate sk, acdditional
requiremenis o caplial, reliance on key management, environmental risk,
native tille and fitle risk, share market condiion, economic risks and future
funding risks.

Section 10 notes that an invesiment in the Company should be considered
speculchve and that invaestors should consult ther professional advisers if they
are in any doubl as o aspects of the PO Prospectus, offer or any matter relating
io an investment in the Company.

Seclion 11: Material Contracts

Section Il containg a summary of the malerial contracts involving the Company
which are not sumimarised in the solicitor's repaort, being trust deeds, executive
services agreements and Director's deeds of indemnity.

Section 12: Additiona!l Information

Section 12 sets out addilional information required to be disclosed in the PO
Prospeacivs, including information relating to:

() ights aliaching (o Shares:




4.2

(0]
{cl
(d)

()

(f)

inferests of Directors in the Company and Direclonrs remuneration;

details of the consents of persons named in the PO Prospecius and
thase persons who orepared reparts for nclusion in the PO Prosnecius:

inierests ot persons named in the IPO Prospecius,
faxation informatlion

o breakdown of the estimaled expenses of the offer of Shares pursuant
to the PO Prospecius: and

a statement that the Company is not involved in any maierial liigation
or arbitration proceedings. nor, so far as ihe Sirecions are awore are ary
such proceading pending of thieaienad against the Company.

Section 14 Glossary

The glossary delines and explaing the various lerms and conditions used in the
IPO Prospectus.

Events subseqguent to the IPO Prospectus

Invesiors are referred to Seciion 5 of this Prospecius ior a summary of events
subsequeni to the IPO Prospecius.
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COMPANY OVERVIEW
Overview

The Company has been included in the Clficiol List of the ASX since
11 August 2006, A comprehensive overview of The Company is set oul in the IPC
Prospectus that was lodged with the ASIC on 30 June 2006. Persons considering
subscaribing for Secuiifies under this Prospectus should refer to Section 4 of this
Praspectus for a summary of the information contained in the IPO Prospectus
deemad to be incorporated in this Prospectus.

The Company was admilled to the Official List on 11 August 2006 with Official
Quotation of its Shares commencing on 16 August 2006.

Uncler the ASK Listing Rules, certain Shares and Oplions werg subject o escrow
restrichions. The numbar of Shares and Oplions and periods of escrow are s
follows:

fe] 3,500,000 Shares were escrowed tor 24 months from the date of listing of
the Company on the Official List;

(b} 2,000,000 Sharas were escrowed for 12 months from their date of issue,
being 31 May 20046, and

{c) 7.000,000 Onlions were escrowaed for 24 maonths from the daie of listing
of the Company on the Gificial List.

The baiance of the issued Shares of the Company being 17,000,000 Shares, are
Quoted an ASX.




5.2

5.2.1

Update on activities of the Company since IPO Prospeclus

Existing Assets

The Company has three wholly owned explorahion licences in New South Wales,
Ausiralio and has jodged iwelve new wholly owned exploation licence
applications in New South Wales, Australia and has lodged tive exploration
icence applications in Greenlend. in addiion the Company entered into a
Farm in Agreement with Monaro Mining NL fe eorm up to 75% of the Caplains
Flat Project (EL 6381} in New Scuth Wales, Ausiralia as releasad 1o ihe ASX on 21
August 2006. A complete fable of licences is shown below:

Location Project Tenement Number | Commodity Qwnership

Graenland Citronan EL2007/02 Zn. Pb 100%*

Greenland Cirronan South ELADALE Zn, Pb 100%

Greentand Citronen ELAO4TE Zn, Ph 100%

Greenland Mesters Vig ELAD460 Zn, Pb 100%

Washington

Greenland L.and ELARAGT Zn, Pb 100%

Greenland Navarana Fjord ELADA7S Zn, Pb 100%
Zn, Cu. Ph, Ag.

Australia Belara ELEDLTH Ay 100%
Zn, Gu, Ph, Ag,

Australia Belara ELAZTEBI Au 100%
Zn, Cu. Pb. Ag,

Australia Belara ELAZ2856 Au 100%
Zn, Cu, Pb, Ag,

Australia Belara ELAZ756 Au 100%

Australia Belimbha ELAZO58 Au 100%

Australia Bogong ELAZ841 Cu, Au 100%
Zn, Cu, Pb. Ag, earming

Australia Captains Flal ELB381 Au 75%
Zn, Cu, Pb, Ag.

Australia Captains Flat ELA2823 Al 100%
Zn, Cu. Pb. Ag.

Australia Elsienora ELAZ824 Au 1009,
Zn, Cu. Ph, Ag,

Australia Fiery Creek ELAZ2G81 Au 100%

Australia Majors Solth ELAZ2897 Al 100%

Ausiralia Majors South ELA2894 Au 100%

Australia Mount George ELA30G6 Th 100%

Australia Mulgulga ELA3CE7 Th 100%

Australia Pambula ELES06 Au 100%

Australia Stuart Town ELBS7H Au 100%

*subject to sharcholder approval

o




5.2.2

ronbark has compleled a diling programme at the wholly owned Belara
project {FL 6576) and released a JORC compliant inferred resource estimate on
T8 April 2007 of 1.0 milion tonnes ot 5.0% zinc, 0.4% copper, 1.5% lead, 0.3 g/
gold andd 50 g/t silver ot a 4% zine cutotf within a larger iower grade resource of
3.8 milion tonnes o 3.1% rinc, 0.4% copper, 1.0% lead, 0.2 g/t gold and 34 gt
silver at a 1% zinc cutoll.

Citronen Project
Overview of the Transaction

As anrounced 1o ASK on 2 March 2007 the Campany has entered into o share
sale agreemeni wiil Bedtord Resources to acquire 100% of the issued capifal of
Bedlord. a company incomotated pursuant fo the laws of the British Virgin
Istandds  and  benelicial owner  of  Exploration  Licence  2007/02  daled
30 Cotoher 2006 granted by the Government of Greanland (licence] for an
area of Tarsarned in North Greeniand, and known as the Cilronen linc Project.

The moterdal terms of the Acquisition Agreement are as follows:
fe)] settlerment of the Acquisiiion Agreement is conditional upon:

[i) ihe Company complating its due diligence investigations in
respect of Bediord and being salisfied {acting reasonably) with
fhe outcome of those investigations {Due Diligence Condition).
e Due Diligence Condilions has been salisfied;

{ii} the: Compeny being satisfied as al ihe Completion Date {as
detfined in the Share Sale Agreement} thal Bedford Resources
has not materdally brecched the terms of the Acqguisition
Agreement or any of the warrantias provided by Bedford
Resowaas therein:

(This Condilion s reated as salisfied unless the Company
natilies Bedford Resources otherwise (giving reasons] on of
betore satislaction or waiver of the other Canditions.)

{iii) the Company obtaining Shareholder approval, 1o give effect o
Ihe Acguisition pursuant to ASX Listing Rule 7.1 and Chapter 11
ol the ASX Listing Rules (it applicable) and Hem 7 of Section 611
of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cinh) {if applicable), ior the issue
of Shares and Options;

(iv) the Greenlond Home Rule Government consenting, under
seclion 27 of the Mineral Resources Act of 6 June 1991
{Greenland), to the transfer of the licence 10 Bediord and the
inclirect  bansfer of the Llcence i connection with  the
Acquisilion;

Iv) the Company enteling into a deed of assumplion in respect of,
and i the manner required by, the Royalty Agreement (as
delined in the Acquisiion Agieement), s it applies to the
Licence:




[vi) completion of the Bediord Transaction (@5 defined in the Shaie
Sale Agreement} occurting: and

{vii) neither Bedford Resources nor the Comobany boeing prevonied
from completing the Acquisition by viidua of recoiving ary
notice (whether writlen or verhal) rom any Regulaiory Auihorily
in relation 1o non-compliance with any relevari law by any
aspect of the Transaction.

ftogether, ihe Conditions);

(k) ihe Condilions must be salisfied or waived by | luly 2007, otherwise the
Acauisition Agreement will terminate;

(c) the consideraiion payeole by the Company o Bediord Resources for
Ihe Acguisition is the following:

(i} $200,000 on execulion of the Acquisition Agreemenit.  This
amount has bean paid by the Company,

{ii) $1.300,000 on that dale which is 30 days alicr the date of the
Acquisilion Aagresmeni.  This amount has been poid by he
Caompany;

i} $4.500.000 on completion ot the Acauisition; and

[iv} the issue of 8,000,000 Shares and 16,000,000 Bedloid QOpliong o

soon s praclicable abler satisfaciion o waiver ot the
Conditions {and subjaect io complelion of the Acquisition having
ocourred);

(cd) upon salisfaction or waoiver of the Due Diligence Condition and
payvment of the $1.300.000 referred {o n (¢)i] obove, Bedford
Resources will he entifled ioc nominaie | Direcior 1o the oard of ithe
Company and renlace that person from lime io mme! and

=) the Acquisiion Agreement contains epraseniclions ond warranties
pertcining o Bediord and Bediord Resowicas and ihe Cilronen Project
which are typical for an agreement of this nalure.

Overview of Bedford and the Citronen Iinc Project

Bedford is o company incorporated pursuant to the laws of the British Virgin
lslends. Bedford is the legal and beneficicl owner of Exploration ticence 2007 /G2
dated 30 Ociober 2006 granied by the Governmen! of Greenlandg tor an areo
at iarsarned in North Greenland {the Cilronen Preject).

Citronen is localed in northern Greenland, o sell govermad lemiory of ihe
Kingdom of Denmark,

fhe Citronen Project waos discovered in 1993 by Fialinova A8 (nartially owned
by the Government of Greenland] and was tha subjeat of 4 furtaer campaigns
ol investigation unlil 1998 and ¢t a fime of exceplionally 'ow base metal prices
{Zing ~ USS0.40/1t3}.

As @ resull of being a recent discovery (1993} and the poor prevailing metal
prices at that time, the Cilronen Project is considarad io offer aare level of frue

v/



exploration polentict as 11 is under explored and open ended. The Company
cannal comment an ihe toial potential size of the Cilronen Project at this time
bul tollowing completion of the ccquisifion. intends to aggressively explore the
Project to datermine tha extent of mineralisation and proceed to teasibility.

The informalion fn this Prospectus thal relates o Exploration Resulls. Mineral
Resources or Ore Raserves is based on information compiled by Mr A Byass, B.SC
Hons{Gen. BEcon, FSEG, MAIG an emplovee of ihe Company. Mr Byass has
sufficient experience thai is televant to the style of mineralisation and type of
deposit under consideralion and to the activily which he is undertaking to
qualify ¢s a Competent Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the Australicn
Code for Reporting of Exploration Resuils, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves.
M Byass consentis to the inclusion in this Prospectus of the maiters based on this
information in the foum and contexl in which it appears,




6.1

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Pro Forma Balance Sheet

Sel cut below, tor the purprses of illustration only, is ¢ ro forma stalemaent of
financial position of the Company after laking accouni of the Offer. 1t s based
on the unaudited statlement of financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2006. The pro forma slatemen! of fnancio! position ilustraies the
effect ot the Offer as if the issue of Securthies under this Prospecius hod occurred
on 31 December 2006 (based on the assumptions sei out below).

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and oithear receivables
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and oihet ieceivabies

Financial assels
Plant and equipment

Exploraiion, evaluaiion
cdevelopmen! expendilure
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade andg other payables

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILTIES

NET ASSETS

EQUITY

Issued Capital

Oplion reserve
Accumulaied losses

TOTAL PARENT ENTITY INTEREST

Unavudited Adjustmenls Frotorma
31 December
2004
3 S S

2,764,753 18,250,000 21,014,753

52478 52,478

2817.231 18,250,000 ARV LYY

9.380 - 9,380

30,000 30.000

3.312 - 33172

andd 485,429 770838000 77,573,429

228,121

/7.088.000

776161721

3,345,552

¥5.338.000

98,683,352

295,134 295134
295,134 - 295,134
295,134 295,134
3.050.218 ¥5,338,000 98,388,218
3.201.981 49,770,000 52,971,981
124,6C0 45,568,000 45,692,600

[274,343)

(27 4,363)

3,050,218

$5.338.000

28,388,218




6.2

Key Assumptions to the Pro-forma Balance Sheet

included in the pro-forma balance sheel as at 31 December 2006 are the

following adjustments:

(o) the ssue of 10.300,000 Shares al $2.50 per Share o rgise $25,750.000

[before expenses of the Ofter);

(b} the nayment of expenses of the Offer totalling $1.500,000 which are
naid from ihe proceeds of the ofter; and

(c) the consideralion pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement consisting of:

Cash

56,000,000

ssue of 8,000.000 Shates based

Option

on the market price at 28 March | $25,520,000
2007 being $3.19 per Share

lssue  of 16,000,000 Bediorg

Options ai $2.848 per Bedford | $45.568,000

The Bedtord Oplion value was determined using the Black Scholes and inomial
valuolion methodoiogies. The Bediord Options will be exercisable ol g price of

S1.50 per oplion at any time on or prior to Som {WST) on 1 Felbruary 2010,



7.1

7.1.1

RIGHTS ATTACHING TO SECURITIES

Rights Attaching to Shares

Fult delails of ihe rghis altaching 1o Shares are sel out in the Company's
Constituiion o copy of which can be inspecied, reg of chorge, ol the
Company’s regisiered office during normal business hours,

The following is o breod summary of the righis, privileges and resiriclions
attaching to all Sheres. This summary is nol exhaustive and does net constilute a
definitive sictement of the righis and liabilitigs of Sharenolders.

General

All Shares issued pursuant to this Prospecius will from ihe fime ihey are issued.
rank pari passu with all the Company’s existing Shares.

7.1.2 Voting Rights

Subjeci to any rights or rastrictions for the fime being aliachad o any cass or
classes of Shares (at present there are none), at meetings of Shareholdears of the
Company:

(<1 ecch Shareholder entiied o vole moay vois in person or by proxy,
atiomey or reprasentalive;

() on a show of hands. every person present who is ¢ Sharsholder or o
proxy, atiomey orrepreseniative of a Shareholdar has one voie; and

(c} On 4 noll, every person present whao is a Shareholder or o proxy, atiomey
or tepresentative of o Shareholder shall. in iespect of cach fully paid
Shcre held by him, or in tespect of which he is appairied a proxy,
atomey or represeniative, have one vole for the Share, but in respect
oif parlly paid Shares, shall hove such numbaer of voles os bears 1ho
same proportion which the amount puid (nol credited) s of the tolal
amounts pcid and payable {excluding omounis crediied).

7.1.3 Rights on Winding Up

Subject 1o the righis of holders of Shares with special rights in a winding up (ot
presaent there are none), on a winding up of the Company alf asses thal may be
legally distibuted among mempbers will be dishibuied in proportion 1o Ihe
number of tully paid Shares held by them (and o partly paid Share s counled os
a fraction of a tully paid share eqgual to tha amouni paid on i, divided by the
total issue price of the share).

7.1.4 Transfer of Shares

7.1.5

Subject to the Constitution of the Compaeny, the Corporaiions Act 2001, and any
other laws and ASTC Selilement Rules and ASX Listing Rules, Shoves are reely
fransferable.

Future Increases in Capital
The alloiment and issue of any Shares s under the conrer of ne Direcions.

Subject 1o restrictions on ihe alloiment of Shares o Directors or their associales,
the ASK Listing Rules, the Constitution of fne Company and the Comparations Adt

-
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2007, Ina Dreciors may allob or otherwise dispose of Shares on such terms and
conditions as they see fit,

7.1.6 Variation of Rights

7.2

2.2.1

7.2.2

7.2.3

Under {he Corporations Act, the Company may, with the sanction of a special
resclution passed ot ¢ meeling of Shareholders vary or abrogate ithe rnghts
aiiaching 1o shargs. I of any ime the share capital is divided inlo different
classes of shares, the righits aticched to any class {unless otherwise provided by
the terms of the issue of the shares of that class). whether or not the Company is
being wound upr may be varied or abrogated with the consent in writing of the
holders ot three guarters of the issued shares of that class. or it authorised by a
special iesotution passed ot a separaie meeting of the holders of the shares of
that class.

Terms and Conditions of the Oplons

The ierms and conditions of the Oplions currently onissue and offered under the
Bediord Ofter is:

Options currently on issue
{a} exarcisable at a pnce of $0.30 per Option: anc

b} exeraisohle ot any time on or prior to 5.00pm (WST) on 10 August 2011 by
completing an opiien exercise ferm and defivering it together with the
noyment {or the number of Shares in respect of which the Options are
exercised (o tha registered olfice of ihe Company.

Bedfard Options
{a) exercisable at a price of $1.50 per Bediord Option; and

(b) exercisable at any lime on or prior to 5.00pm (WST) on | February 2010
by completing an oplion exercise form and delivering it together with
the paymant for the number of Shares in respect of which the Bedford
Opiicns are exercised 1o the regisiered oflice of the Campany.

General Terms and Conditions of the Options

(@) the Opticns and Bedford Options may be exercised wholly or in porl by
completing an application form for Shares (Notlee of Exercise) delivered
o the Company’s share regisiry end received by it any time prior 1o the
expiy daie;

(b) vpon the exercise of on Option or Bediord Option and receipt of all
relevan: documents ardd payment, the holder will be alloted and issued
o Shore ranking pan passy with the then issued Shares. The Company
will cpply to ASX 1o have the Shares granted ofticial quotation;

(c} a summary of the ierms and conditions of the Options and Bedford
Options, ncluding ihe Notfice of Exercise, will be sant 1o all holders of
Options and Bedlord Options when the initial holding statement is sent;

{d) the Company does not presently intend to have the Oplicns or Bediord
Options listec on ASX;

22




()

(9}

there will be no parficipating entittemenis inherent in the Oplions o
Bediord Options to parlicipale in new issues of caopdal which may be
offered o the Company's shareholders duning the currency of the
Options or Bedford Options. Prior to any new pro raic issue of securiies
lo the Shareholders, holders of Options or Bedford Oplions will be
nolified by the Compaony and will he afforded 7 Business Days belore
the record dale (to determine entillements 1o the issua). (o exercise
Options or Bedlord Cptions;

in the event of any reconstruclion {including consclidaiion, sub-division,
reciuction or return) of the issued capital of the Company prior 0 ihe
expiry dote, allrighis of an oplionholder are to be changed in ¢ manner
consistent with the ASX Lisiing Rules; and

Shares isseed pursuan! fo the exercise of an Opton or Bedford Option

will bhe issued nol more than 14 cays atier the daic o the Notice of
Exarcise.

73



8.1

8.2

8.3

ADDITIONAL RISK FACTORS

As noled in Seclionn 10 of the PO Brospecius an investment in the Company
caries certain sk factors that may impact the tuture profitability of the
Comnany. The foctors refened to in the IPO Prospecius include exploration
success, developmaeni and operaling risks, ransfer of fenements risk, reseive and
resource  estimatas, commaedily  price  volallily and  exchange rate  risk,
environmental risk, native lilte and titte risk. share marke! condition, econamic
risks and future funding nisks.

Subseguaent to the issue of the IPO Prospactus the Company has entered info the
Acquisihion Agreement with Bedford Resources in respect o the Citronen
PFroject.  Additional risk tactors o be considered by investors subscrilsing for
Secunties under this Prospecius are outlined below.

The Securiies offered under this Prospectus should be considered speculative.
The opusiness acliviies of ihe Company are subjec! to various risks tThal may
impaect on the future parformance of the Company. Same of these risks can be
mitigoied by the use of sateguards and appropriagie systems and canirols. but
some are outside the control of the Company and cannol be mitigated.
Accordingly, an invesiment in the Company carries no gucrantee with respect
o the nayment of dividends, return of capital or price at which Shares will frade.
Neither the Company nor the Directors wairant the fulure performance of the
Company or an invesiment made pursuant 10 this Prospectus.

The Dieciors recommend ihat Shareholders and potential investors examine the
contents of ihe IPC Prospecius together with this Prospecius and rely on the
advice of professional advisers belore deciding whether or not 1o apply for
Securities pursuant 1o 1his Prospecius,

Sovereign Risk

ihe Company has enterad inlo the Acauisition Agreament in respect o the
Citronen Project in Greentend. Gresnland is a constituent part of the Kingdorm
of Denmark, Folure government activities concerning the economy, foraign
awnarstip o the operalion and regulation of facilities such as mines or rineral
exploration oneaions. could nave a signiiicant efiect on the Company.

Shoulc sovareign risks adse i could polentiolly have a significant adverse impact
on the piofitabiity and vicbility of the Company.

Future Funding Requirements

The Company will need to raise addilional funds in the tuture 1o explere the
Citronen Project and its existing projects. No assurance can be given thal such
funding will be available on sctisfactory terms or ot all. Any additional equity
raising may dilute ihe interests of Shareholders and any debt financing. if
available, may involve financial covenanls which  limii the Company's
operalions and tuture aclivities.

Sharehoider Approval Risk

The issue of Sacuriias pusuant to the Offer and complelion ot the Acquisition is
subject to Sharehaolder approval at o General Meeting 1o be held on 21 May
2007, No assurenzes cen be given thai Shareholder will approve these
resoiutions in which case the Ofter will not proceed and the conditions




8.4

8.5

precedent io the Acquisition Agreement will not be salisiied (and the Acquisiiion
will not completel.  In this situation the Compony will be torced to rcise
additional Tunds tor ils existing projects and there is no gucrenice that such
funding will bex available on cccepiable lerms o ai all,

Whilst the Ofter is nol condilional on complaeticn of "he Acausilion Paving
occuned, the RDirectors will noi close ihe Ctter and allot the Shares uniil it s in @
position to complele the Acquisidion.

Regulatory and Political Risks

The exploration, development and any future mining of the Citronen Project will
be subject to lows and regulations in Greenland govaming the acguisition ang
retention of iille to minerat ights, mine development, healih and worker safety,
employment standards, wastes disposal. profection of the enviionment, and
protection ot endangered ond protecled species aad olher matters. It s
possible that fulure changes in applicatie laws, regulations, agreements or
changes in their enforcemen! or regulatory interpretation could resull in changes
in legal requirements or in the terms of exidling oarmils and agracments
appliceble 1o the Citronen Project, which could hove o melenad and acvernse
impact on exploration activities, planned development projecis or 'uture mining
operations, including by requiing the Company 1o cease, malerially delay or
restrict, development or mining operations,

The Company will nead to obtuin necessary permits 1o conduci exploraiion or
mining operations which con be a complex and hme consuming process and
the Company cannol assure whelher any necessary permiis will be obtainable
on ccceptable ferms, in a limely monnmer or @ all. The cosis and delays
associoted with obtaining necessary permits and complying with these permits
and applicabie laws and requialions could stop, delay o restrict the Company
from proceading with the exploration adclivities or with development or future
rnining aperations at the Cihonen Project. Any tallure fo comoely with applicoble
laws and regulations or permils, even i inadverieni, aould rasuli in inlerruphions
or restriction of exploralion aciivities, devalopmeant or mining oparalions o ines.
penaliias or other iabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The current operations of the Company are in Ausiralia and therefore the cosls
of aperations are in Australian coliars. The Citronen Project s in Greenland and
therefore the majorily of the expenses in respect 1o the exploration and
development of the Cilronen Project will be in Danish Krong. The funds raised
through the Offer io finance part of the exploration aclivities are in Aushialian
doliars.

As the Company's financial reports will he prasented in Austclion dollars, the
Company will be exposad io the volalilily and fluctuciions of “he exchange rate
belween the United Slates dolar, Danish Krone and e Austroiion dolicr, An
appreciation of the Danish Krone against the Australan dollonr would increase
exploration costs (as well as any future produclion costs) which may adversely
impact on the Company's operaiing resulls,

Global currencies are affected by a number of faciors that are beyond the
conliol of the Company. these factors include economic condifions in ihe
relevani country and elsewhere and the ouilook for interest raies. inf'ation and
other economic factors.

)



§.1

9.2

9.3

7.4

9.5

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
The Bedford Offer

By this Prospecius, the Company makes o separate offer to Bedford Resources
{or its nomined) for the issue of 8,000,000 Shares and 16,000,000 Bedford Options
in part considearation for the Acquisifion pursuant 1o the terms of the Acguisition
Agreement,  Following completion of the Offer and the issue of the 8,000,000
Sheaves musuant to the Bediord Offer. Bediord Resources will have ¢ 19.5%
intergst in the Company (prior to the exercise of any Oplionsj.  Bediod
Resourcesis nol a related party of the Company.

The Bedford Offer is only availuble o Bedford Resources or its nominge.
Accordingly, only Bedicrd Resources should complete the Bediord Offer
Aapplicalion Form.

'he Bediord Gifer is conditional on Shareholder approval al a Genercl Meeting
fo be held 21 May 2007, A copy of the Naolice of Meeting has baen sent to
Shareholders on 20 Apdl 2007 and lodged with ASX.

Market Prices of Shares

Official Guotalion of the Company's Shares commaeanced on 16 August 2006 cndd
consequently, ihe rading history on ASX as at the date of this Prospectus is
limited 1o that period,

The lowast and nighest recorded market sale prices of the Company's Shares
gquoted on ASX duiing the perod from commencement of Cliicial Quotation to
20 April 2007 were 42.5 cenis on 14 August 2006 and $4.00 on 4 and 16 April 2007,

respyaCiivety,

ihe last rmarket sale price of the Company's Shares on ASX on the last day that
frading ook place in these Shares prior to the date of this Prospectus was $3.90
cents on 20 Aprl 2007.

Taxation

It is the responsibility of all persons 1o satisty themselves of the particular taxation
treatment that applies 1o them by consulting their own prafessional tax advisers
betore investing In the Shares. Taxation conseguences will denend on particular
ciicumstances. Neither the Company nor any of its officers accept any fiobiily
or respensibitity in respect of the jaxation consequences of the maiters referred
o above o any other lexation consequences connecled with an investment in
the Shares in the Company,

Legal Proceedings

There is na litigeiion, orbitrolion or proceedings pending against o involving ine
Caompany s af the date of this Prospedcius,

Continuous Disclosure Obligations

This cocument is issued pursyant (o Section 712 of the Corporalions Act and
does not of itself contain il the information that is generally required 1o be set
out in a document of this type. Rather the Prospecius incorpotates by reference
nformalion conlained in documents that have been lodged with the ASIC,
namely ihe IPQ Prospecius.
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The Caompany is a disclosing entily under the Corporaiions Act and. as such, s
subject to regular reporling and disclosure requirements. As a listed company,
the Company is subject 1o the Listing Rules that reguirs it to immedictely notily
ASX of any information conceming the Company of which it s or becomes
aware and which a reascnable person would expect 10 have a material effect
on the price or value of its Shares.

Copias of documents ladged in relation 1o the Company with tho ASIC may be
obtaned from or inspected ai any office of ihe ASKZ. This includes the 1IPO
Prospecius referred 1o n Seciion 4 of this Prospecivs.

The {allowing documents have been lodged with ASX sinca ifs listing on ASX:

Date

20 April 2007
18 April 2007
12 Aprit 2007
10 April 2007

28 march 2007

16 parch 2007
14 raarch 2007
& March 2007
7 March 2007
2 March 2007

2 March 2007

2 March 2007
1 March 2007
1 Meuch 2007
14 Februory 2007
31 January 2007
31 January 2007
17 Janugary 2007
1 Janyary 2007
11 Junuary 2007

ASX Announcement

Notice of General Mealing

Belara Initict Resource Esiimaia

Fund Raising andd Shraiegic Paringishin Fnakisec

Trading Halt

Cilronen  Purchaose  Oplion  Exercised & Director
Appoinimeni

Jecaming a substantic! holdar for Wil

Hali Year Accounis

Changs of Direclar's Inlerast Notice

Change of Director's Inlerest Nolice x 2

Company Presentation

Media Release lronbark Acaquires Major Zine Citronen
Project

Major Zine Citronen Proiect Acquisilion

Trading Halt Request

Trading Hatlt

WLEF: Closes ofter eary and haavily oversutiscribed
Second Quarter Cashflow Repori

Second Quarler Activitias Renor:

Crilling Resuits — Belara Cihronen Project

MR ann; Drilling {0 conmencae al larargle, NSW
Commences driting at Captaing Fal - Jerangle PFrospect

22 December 2006
5 Decembar 2006
4 Decembear 2006
4 December 2006

Waoll priotity offer record date - 1I8G and GYN

Broker Field Preseniaiion

GYN: ronbark & Graynic cives! lungsten & tin projects
ronbark & Graynic divest tungslen & tin projects

27 October 2006
19 Ociober 2006

2} September 2006
4 September 2006

29 August 2006
21 August 2006

21 August 2006
16 August 2006
16 August 2006
14 August 2006

First quarter aActivities & Cashilow Repaoris

Change of Reyistered cifice addrass

acquiras Copper/Tungsien Proj & Fxpands Belara Base
Melals

Change of Direcior's inferast Nolice

Change of Drecior's Inlerast Notice

MRQC: Farm in Agreement with ronbark Gold Limited -
Captains

ronbark Acquires further Zinc/Copper Cilronen Projects
Initial Director's interest Nolice x 4

Appointment of New Compony Secrelary

Consiitution
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14 August 2006 Appendix TA: ASX Listing application and agreement

1Y August 2006 Pre-Quotction Disclosure
11 August 2006 Adrmussion to Otficial List
11 July 2004 Disclosure Document

ASX maintaing files conlaining publicly avaiiable information for all fisted
companies on ils intemet sile (hitp//www.osx.com.aau). The Company's
announcemenis including the IPO Prospecius can be viewed on this site.

Interest of Directors and Advisors

AUl cisclosure ol the interesls of Direclors, experts and promelers of the
Company Tor the pariod commencing from incorporation of the Company ancdl
io the date of issue of the IPO Prospectus are set oul in section 12 of the PO
Prospacius and other than set out below, that information and disclosure
remains current,

Other than as set oul below o elsewhere in this Prospectus or the PO
Prospectus, no:

(@) Director;

{(b) persen named in this Prospectus as performing ¢ lunction in a
professional advisory or other capacily in conneclion wiih  the
preparaiion or distribution of Ihis Prospectus; or

{c) promioter of the Company,

has, of had within 7 years before iodgement of this Prospecius with the ASIC, any
interest in;

" the formation or promotion of the Company;

i) any preperly acqguired or proposed 10 be acquired by the
Caompany in connaction with its formation or promolion or in
conneclion with the ofier of Secunties under this Prospecius; or

it} the offer of Securities under this Prospectus,

and no amaounls iave booen paid or agreed to be paid and no benetils have
been given of agreed e ke given fo any of those persons as an inducement 10
bacome. or io quality as, a Director of the Company or for services rendered in
connection with the {formation or promotion of the Company or the offer of
Securities under this Prospectus.




Directors’ interests

Directors are not required under the Company’s Constifufian 1o hold any Shares.
As al the date of this Prospeclus, the Direclors hava ralevant inlerests n
Securities of the Company as set out in the table bhelow:

No. of Shares No. of Options
Director heid held
Peier Benneito 450.060 Nil
lornathan Downas 2140000 1,000,000
Adran Byass 1,925,000 F.O00000
Greg Camptell 300,000 Nil
Vincent Hyde kil Wil

The remunerction paid or payable to ecch Directors for the financial perod from
the date of the IPO Prospectus 1o the dale of this Prospecius is set oyt bhelow,

Salary’s, Fees, Share based Total
Commissions payments
(Options)
Name ] S 3
Peler Banelio 43,333 il 33,333
Jonathan Downeas L6667 Hil L6667
Ackian Byass 46,667 Nl Hé. 66T
Greg Campbell 16.667 Nl 16,647
Vincent Hyde 0 Nl 4]
183,334 Nil 183,334

Directors, companies associaled with the Directors or their associofes are also
reimbursed for all reasonable expenses incurred in the course of conduciing
their duties which include, but are not in any way iimited to, out of pockel
expenses, lravelling expenses, disbursemenis made on behall of the Company
and other miscellaneous expeanses.

Pursuant o the Company'’s Consiitution, the nen-executive Cireciors of the
Compoany are enfiffed (o receive remuneralion for their services as non-
executive Direciors in such amount which in aggregais does 1ot to exceed
5100000 per annum and does not consist of a commission on o parceniage of
profils or operaiing revenue.

interests of persons named

Steinepreis Paganin will receive professional fees of approximaiay 38.000
(excluding GST} tor legal work underdcken by them in connaclion wiih ihis
Prospectus, including a general review of the compliance ot ihe Prospacius wilh
the reguirements of the Corporaiions Aci, a reviow of 1he due dilgence procoss
and the summary of material agregments in Seclion 9.7 balkow,

Mack & Co will receive protfessional fees of approximately $2.000 tor their work
as investigaling accountants and auditor of the: Company and also therr work
on the received accounis included in Seciion é ol ihis Frospecius.
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9.8

Material Contracts

The Directors consider thal cerfoin conbracts are significant or maierial to the
Company and cre of such a nature thot an investor may wish o have
particulars of ihem when making cn assessment of whether to accept the Cifer.

Investors should note that o summary of many of the matericl contracts inveiving
the Company were ncluded in the IPO Prospecius and are incorparaied by
reference into this frospeaius pursuant 1o Section 4 of this Prospectus.

i addition lo ihe summaries of material contracls that are incorporated by
reference info this Prospectus. sel oul below are summaries of contracts to
which the Company is a parly, which are, or may be, material in terms of the
Offer or the operalions of the business of the Company or otherwise are, or may
be, ielevant 10 a potential investor in the Company.

Acquisition Agreement
A summary of the Azguisiion Agreement is contained in Section 5.2.2.
Farmin Agreement

in addition onbark paid $50.000 to Monaro Mining NL on 18 August 2006 as
partial consideration for a tarmin agreement on ELE3ET in New South Wales,
Austratica. konbatk manages exploraiion and Monaro Mining NL will be free
canried by ronbxark culminaling i ronbark earning a 75% inlerest in the project
an o Decision 1o Mine. In addition ronbark will be required to keep the project in
good slanding by meeting cll statutory expenditure requiremeants for at least two
YEQIS.

Consents
Each of the parties refered to in this section:

(a) does not make, or purpor to make, any statement in this Prospectus
other than those referred to in this section; and

i) o the maximum extent permitted by law, expressly disclam and take
no responsibility for any part o this Prespecius other than G reterence to
its name and a statement included in this Prospectus with the consent of
that pariy as specitied in this section.

Ravensgate Ply Lid whose Independent Geologst's Reporl is included in the PO
Prospectus, has given and at the time of Indgement of this Prospecius with ASIC
has not withcrown ils wiilten consent {o the inclusion of that report in this
Prospectus (by viriue of the incorporation of the IPC Prospectus inlo this
Praspactus by reference} in the form and context in which it is included.

Mack & Co whose Investigating Accounfant’s Report s included in the PO
Frospectus, has given and at the lime of lodgement of this Prospecius with ASIC
heis natb withcrown its vailten consent to the inclusion of that report in this
Praospecivs by vildue of the incorporation of the IPC Prospectus inlo this
Prospecius by reference) in the iorm and context in which it is included, 1o the
inclusion of e reviewed accounts in Section 6 and to being named in this
Prospectus as avuditar of the Company.
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Steinepreis Paganin, whose Independent Soliciior's Report is included in the IPO
Prospectus, has given and at the iime of lodgement of this Praspecius with ASIC
has not withdrawn its written consent to ihe inclusion of thal report in this
Prospeclus {by vitue of tha incoporaiion of the IPC Prospacius nio this
Prospectus by reference) in the form and coniexi in wnich it s included, and to
heing named as the solicitors to the Company in this Prospactus.

Electronic Prospectus

Pursuant to Class Order D0/044 ihe ASIC has exempied compliance with cerlain
provisions of the Corporations Act 2001 te allow dislibution of an elecironic
prospectus and eleclronic application torm on *he basis of o paper prosnectus
lodged with ASIC. and ihe publication of noiices efering o an elecironic
prospectus or eectronic application torm, subjec! o compliance with certain
conditions.

It you have received this Prospecius as an elechonic Prospectus, plense ensure
that vou have recelved the entire Prospeactus accompaniad by “he Apolicaiion
Form. I you have not, plecse contact the Comoany and the Company will
send you, either a hard copy or a turther elecironic copy of the Prospecius or
bhoth free of charge. Alternatively, you may obtain a copy of ihe Prospectus
from ihe Company's website ol www.ircribarkaold. com.au,

The Company reserves the right not o accep! an Application =orm from &
person if it has reason o believe that when thal person was given access to the
electronic Application Form, it was noel provided together with the electronic
Prospectus anc any relevant supplementary or replacement prospecius o any
of those documents were incompiere or aliered.

Expenses of the Offer

s estimaied that the Company will pay the following expenses fovcluding GST)
in conneclion with 1he preporadion and issue of e Prosneaius,

Expenses of the Offer

ASIC/ASX Feas $23.000
Advisory Fews FH000
Prirting and other miscellaneous expenses $2.000
Total $35,000
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DIRECTORS' AUTHORISATION

This Prospectus is issued by fronberk Gold Limited ang ifs issue has been
authorised by a resolution of the Directors.

In accordance with Section 720 of the Corporations Act, ecch Direcior has
consented to ihe lodgement of this Prospecius with The ASIC,

Jonathan Down(;s
For and on behalf of
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

]
[
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GLOSSARY

Where the lollowing terms arg used in this Prosnectus ihay aove the following
meanings:

AS or § means an Australian dollar,
Acquisifion means the proposed acquisilion by The Company of all the issued
capital of Bediord {No 2} Limifed, a company incorporated pursuard 1o the laws

ot the Brilish Virgin Island on the {erms set oui in the Acauisition Agreement.

Acquisition Agreement means the agreement bhetween the Company and
Bediord Resources in respect of the Acguisition as sumimarised in Section 5.2.2

Applicant means an applicant for Securities pursuant to this Prospecius.

Application Form mecns either the Offer Application Forrm or the RBediore Cller
Application Form aottached 1o or accompanying this Prospeacius.

ASIC means Australian Securilies & Invastments Commission.

ASX means ASX Limifed (ACN DO 624 691).

Bedford means Bediord [No 3) Limited (a company incarooraiad pursuant o
the laws ot ihe British Virgin slands) ¢/- 2KF Carmporale Advisory Sarvices (NSW)

Ply Lid. Level 10, No 1 Margarel Shreet, Sydney, New Souih Waiaes.

Bedford Offar means the offer ¢of 8.000,000 Shores and 146000,000 Options o
Rediord Resources as summarised in Seclion 9.1,

Bedford Ofter Application Form means the applicaiion {form fitled "Rediord Offar
Applicaiion Form” attached to or accompanying this Prospecius.

Bedferd Optlion means an oplion to subscribe tor one Share in the Company
issued in the Acquisition Agreemert on the terms and conditions described in
Section 7.2 of ihis Prospectus

Bedford Resources means Bed{ord Resources Hoklings Limiled.

Board means the board of Directors of the Company as conslituled from time {o
time.

Business Day meaans g week day when lrading banks are ordinegily opan for
business in Perth, Western Australo.

Citronen Project means the Cilronen JZing Cilronen  Project  comprising
Exploration  Licence  2007/02  daoted 30 Qclobe: 20056 grortad by ine
Government of Greenland for an area of Tarscenaa i NMorth Greenland,

Closing Date maans the closing date tor the Cfier.

Company or lronbark maans fonbark Gold Limited ABN 93 118 751 027,

Constifution or Company's Constitution rmaans the constitution ot the Company.

Corporations Act means the Corporations Act 2001 (Cihl.



Directors maan the direcions of the Company ot the date of this Prospectus.
General Meeting meaans a meeting of Shareholders o be held on 21 May 2007.

IPG  Prospectus maans the prospectus issued by the Company dated
30 June 2006.

JORC means Austraiasian Joint Ore Reserves Commitlee,

JORC Code means tha Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Resulls,
mincral Kesources and Ore Reserves (2004 edition).

licence means explorclion licence 2007/02 dated 30 Oclober 20046 granied by
the Governmeni of Greenland for an area at Tarsarneg in Norih Greenland.

Listing Rules means the official Listing Rules of the ASX.

Notice of Meeting maans the nolice of meeting issued by the Company and
dated 20 Aprit 2007 inrelation to the General Meeling.

Offer means the obier of 10,300,000 Shares ¢t an issue price of $2.50 per Share
descnbedin Seclion 3 of this Prospectus.

Ofter Application Ferm means the application form tilied Ofter Application Form
aficched lo or accompanying this Praspectus.

Ofter Period means the period commencing on the Opening Date and ending
on the ciosing daies for the Offer.

Official List mecans the Ofticial List of ASX.

Official Quotation means olficiat quatation by ASX in accordance with the Lsting
Kules.

Opening Date means the date on which the Offer opens.

Option means an oplion to subscribe for one Share in the Company on the fernys
and conditions described in Section 7.2 of this Prospecius.

Prospectus means ihis Prospectus dated 20 Aprit 2007,

Sechion means a sechon ot this Prospectus.

Securities mean Shares and Options.

Share means a lully paid ordinary share in the capital of the Comparny.
Shareholder means a holder of Shares.

Share Split means the proposed 15 share splif io be undertoken by the
Company alier complehon of the Qfler and the Acquisition, subject to

Shareholdor approval at the General Meeting.

S means Australion dollars.,
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OFFERK APPLICATION FORM

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

BROKER'S REFERENCE

ABN 93 118 751 027

PLEASE REFER TO THE PROSPECTUS TO WHICH THIS
PLACEMENT OFFER APPLICATION FORM ERELATES,
INSTRUCTHONS ARE SET OUT ON THE REVERSE OF THIS APPLICATION FORM. e e

FLEASE USE BLOCK LETTERS

fint yeuw full name {given ame theo sumame} or Company nanme [plus ACHIAREN]
-teter 1o the guide on the reversa of this Application form,

A

FLULL NAME

JOINT ARPLICANT 1132 OR ACCOUN T DESIGRATIO!N

JOINT ARPPLICANT 8O 3 OR ACCOURT DESIGNATICN

ADDRESS

SURURB/TOW STATC POSICOUE

CONTACT HANE TELZFHONE WORK l CLEPHONE WA

EdAlL AnDORESS

DATE / { 2007

1/ WE 1O QF SHARES

APPLY At 52,50 par Share = AS
for

CHEQUE DETANS

DRAWER BAMIL BRANCH LREN TN |

Lodge your Appicaiicn Form as 5000 as posiitia,

PIN YOUR
CHEQUE  CIMEZQUES SHOULD BE MADE FAYABLE 10 “IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED —~ OFFER ACCQUNY.”
HERE

This Apphcalion Forn does not nead 1o be signed. By lodging this apnbeation Foim ana g chague ton ithe Applicohon

Money tha Applcant hereby:

{11 applies for the number of Shares specifiad in 1he Application Form or such lesser numbzer as may ba offecered
by ihe Directors; and

{20 agress 1o Le bound by the fems and condilions sei out in the frospeclus and e Constitulion of she
Company: aned

{3)  auithorises the Directors 1o compslete or amend this Appiicaiion Form whare nacesany 1o COmest any emors o
ONHSsSIoNS

TAX FILE MUMBER(S] OR EXEMPTION CATEGORY ABNSTEN OF EXEMPIION
SURHAME CIVEM NABAE(S)

CHESS HIN {If appllcable}




GUIDE TO THE PLACEMENT OFFER APPLICATION FORM

Please completa dlizelevant while seclions ot the Application Foim using BEOCK LETTERS.

It you have any questions on how lo complele this Application Form please ielephone the Company
Secretary on 08 4441 6350 or contact your slockorokear, solicitor, accountant or fnancial or other professionol
adviser.

Please post of defiver the complsled Appllication Form logéther with your cheque in il payment ot the
Application Manies made paycbie 1o "IRONBARK COLD LIMITED and crossed "NOT MEGGHABLE" as follows:

Dellver To: OR Post To:

ronboark Gald Limiled ronbork Gold Limileg
Level 1, 350 Hoy Streat Level ), 350 Hay Slreet
SUBIACO WA 4008 SUBIACC WA 6008

To reach hol addias i 10 500 pm Wesien Standaid fime on the Closing Date - 22 may 2007

AL Wiile yout FULL RAME In Box AL this must be eithal your own name of ihe name of o company. It a
comnany pleuse also include ils ACNZARBN, You shoutld (¢ier 10 the botiorm of this page tot the correch
forms of nceme which can be regisiernsd. Applications using he incorrect fonm of name may Hhe rejected.

I you Application Foon s ned completed corectly, of i the accompanying payinent [s for the wrong
amcurd, i may gl e reotea as volicd by the Company. Any decision by the Comany s o whelner to
nenl your Appicaiion as volid, ang how 1o cansliue, amend o complete i, shall be final. You wilt not
Nowever Be reated as hoving offered o subsaibe for more Shares than i indicaisd by the amount of
the accompaonying chegue ior tha Application Menies retered 1o in Box H.

B, Fyouare appiving as JOINT APPLICANTS, complete Boxes A and 8. You should reler 16 the bortom of this
paagre forinsbuchons ot the corect toum of name. Up 1o hies Joinl Applicants may register.

C.  Entar your POSIAL ADCRESS for qif conespondence. All communicadions to you from ihe Share Regislry
{shareholding  statements, dividend cheques, annual/interim eporls, corespondence, efch will bé
mailed 1o the petson(s) and Gddress as shown, For Joint Applicalions, only one addrass can be entered.

D. PMease provide your TELEPMHONE NUMBER(S) and EMAIL ADDRESS and confoct name in case thate is a
neca o cantact vouin reiolion (o your Applicotion.

£, dnsert she date of cormpietion of the Form.
Fooolmsend e NUMBER OF 3HARES you wish to apply forin Box G,

G.  Enter ine amount of your Application Manies Nere. The ormount must be eguatl o the number of Shares
cpplied for muliiphed by 32.80 per Share.

H.  Complele chegue details as tequired. Chegues must be drawn on an Austrolion bank in Ausiralian
curency andt macke pavable 1o tironbaork Gaid Limited and crossed "Nol Megotiabie”. Do nol send
cash. A separate chegoo should accompany sach Apphcaiion Form lodged. No receipt will be issued.

. The Applicodion form does nol nesd o be signesd.

1. Enter your TAX FiLE BUMBER [IFN) or exempiion categary beside your name. Where applicable, please
anled e TFN i eGeh ot Applicant. Cellection ol TRNS Is authorised by 1axalicn 1aws but quotation of
yrour PRNs s ooty ane: will nat atiect your Aspiication.

&0 oyou e spumsoied i CHESS by g stockbroker of other pallicipant, olease enler your Holoken
Idenrification Mumisa (HIM).

CORRECT FORMS OF REGISTRABLE JITLE

Mate ot ONLY legat aniilies cao allowert 1o hotd shores, Application must e in the namealds) ot O natural
person{sl, companes of ofier egaoi entities aecepiable © the Company. Al leost ong full given norne Gnid
e surmname is ieguired 1o each natyral person. applications cannot pe made by pesons under 18 years of
cgge. Bxaraples of the conect iom of regisirable title are set oul below.

TYPE OF INVESTOR CORRECT FORM OF REGISTRABLE TITLE INCORRECT FORM OF REGISTRABLE TITLE
Individuat sohin Dovid Smith J D Smith

Cumpany Johin Smith Fresh Foods Ply Lid ACN 123 454 789 Jonin Smifh Fresh Foods

Tiusis Johry Dovid Smith {Smith Family Trust A /C) Jobhn Smith Family Trust

Deoceased Bsigies asichoel Petor Smith {Est. John Smith d.) John Sinith {Daceased)

Pattreshin John Dovid Simith and Michael Petar Srnilh John Smith & Son
Clubs/Unincomonated 3causs | onn Dovid Simih (Smithvinvestrant Club A/C) Smith Investrnant Club
Suparannoation Funcs Johin Smiith Py Lid {Superannoation Fund A/C) | John Smith Superannuation Fund.




IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
ABN 73 118 751 027

PLEASE REFER TQ THE PROSPECTUS TO WHICH THIS BERDFORD OFFER APPHICATION FIORM RELATES.
This occeptance torm relenes to an olfer by lionbark Gold timited (ABN 93 118 751 027} (Company) of
8,000,000 Shores and 16,000,000 Bediardd Options 0 Bediord Resources Holdings Limiled [ its nominea) as set

oul in the Prospecius {Bedford Offer),

()  DETAIS

Flease complele the delals below in respect 10 the Securifies 1o bo issved 1o Bediord Resources Holdings Llimited:

Addrass of Bedtord Resources Holdings Limiled:

Contacl name:

Contacl phone number:

This Acceptance Form does nol nead fo be signert by Bedlord Rosourcas Helongs Uimied, By completing and

iodging this Acceplonce Form the Bedlord Resources Holdings Limited berby:

{11 opplies for the number o! Securitivs speciliag v the Accentance Forra of such levser o as oy e
allocaled by the Directors:

{2  agrees to be ound by me lems and condilicns sel cut n the Prosnocius and the Consipution of fhe
Company; and

13) authorises the Dircclon 1o complnte O amend this ACCorance Fom s whiern Aerassary [ Sorrea! any arors or
OTNISSInNS.
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New issue announcement,
application for quotation of additional securities
and agreement

fn_[(')rmuriun or ductenents et avaifahlo nowe sst he given o ANN as soon ax cvatfaie. I')Iﬁ?!'.'fl”!ff)ii ane
documenis given 1o ASX become ASX's property and may e wade public.

baroduced 1779096 (g Appemlic 30 anended FFUE GO0 T2000, MET00E 1T T00, 0477003, 74 1672005

Name of entity

Ironbark Gold Limited

ABN
93 118751 027

We (the entity} give ASX the following information.

Part 1 - All issues

Yot nnast comipieie the redevant seetions (aiiael sheets IFfiere Iv not enocorh spaace s

1 "Class of "securitics issucd or 1o be 1 Gy Tubly paid ordinary shares
issued {b) oplians
2 Number of *securities issued or o b () 18 300,000

be issued (1 known) or maximum | by 16,000,000
number wlhich may be issnued

3 Principad terms of the “scenritics | (a) n/a

(eg, it options, exereise price and | (by exercisable at o price of $1.50 an or belore 1
expiry  date; i partly  paid | pelruary 2010

securities, the amount owstanding :
and  due dates for payment; of
“converlibile SeCUrItes, the
conversion price  and  dates  for
CONVErsion)

+ See chapter 19 for dalined terms.

2441072005 Appendix 3 Page !
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New issue announcemient

Do the "securities rank equally in afl
respects from abe dae of allonnent
with an existing "class of quoted
seeurilies?

If qhe additional securities do not

zink equaliy. please saie;

¢ the date from which they de

o the  oextent o whichh  they
participate for the nest dividend,
{ny the  case  of  a rust.
distribufion) or interest payment

o he exient 10 which they do rot
rankequally, other (than in
relation o the next dividend,
distribation or iterest paymen

Lasue price or considenation

Purpose of the issue

(1i issued nx considerstion for the
acquisition of assets, clearly identify
those asseis)

Dates of cntering “securitios inla
uncertificated boldings or despateh
of certificates

Number  and  Celass of ol
Tsecuritivs guoted on ASN
vnchuding the secunities mn clause
2 i applicable)

{a) Yes
{b) options will not be quoted

{a) §2.50
{B) il cash consideration

Capiti raising to complete the Acquisition,
explore and develop the Citronen Project and
provide working capilal for existing projects.

O orabout 25 May 2007

Number *(Class
35200000 Fully paid ordinary
shares

+ See chapter 19 for defined tenms.

Appendix 33 Page 2
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New issue announcement

10

Number and  ‘“class  of  all
“securilies not quoted on ASX
(finchinding (e securities iy clonse
2 il applicabley

Dividend policy (in the case of a
trust, distribution policy) on the
inerensed capital (teresis)

Numnber ‘Class
3,300,000 Fally  paid  ordinary
shares

2000000

16,000,000

Options exercisable at
.30 on or belore 10
August 2011

Options exercisable at
$1.50 on or before |
February 2010

Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

il

=]

16

Is  security  holder  approval

required?

Is 1the issue renounceable or non-
renounceable?

Katio in which the “securities wall
e eTeredd

*Class of "securities 1o which the
ofter relates

‘Record dule 0 determine
entitlements

Will holdings on dilTerem registers
{or subregisters) be apgregated ior

volcututing entittements?

Policy fur deciding emitlernenms in
relation 1o fractions

Names of countries in which (he
entity has “security holders who
will ot be  senl  new  issue
documents

Moter Secnziny bolders must be tald how thes

cntilleaents e 10 e dedhe with

Cross reterence ade 77

Closing  dale  for
aceuplances or renunclations

receipt  of

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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New Issue announcensent

20

Fi
[

a9

29

Names of a0y undenwriters

Amount ol any utderwriting fec or
comimission

Names of any brokoers (o the issue

Fec or comumssion pavable 1o 1he
braker to the issue

Amount ol any  hawdling  fee
payable o brokers who lodge
aceeplanees of  renunciations  on
behal i ol *sceurily holders

[ the issuc s contingent on
“seenrity holders”  approval,  the
date wlihe mecuny

Date  entitlemen: wnd acceptanee
form and  prospectos or Prodioc
{Disclosure Statement will be sent (o
persons cntitled

Hothe enttty has ested aptions, and
e tevs entithe option holders to
participale on exeraise, (he date on
which netices will e semt to oprivn
holders

Date riphts wading wifl begin (if

applicable)

Date righis trading will end (if

applicable)

How do “seeurity holders seld their
enmiticinems  in fiedf throngh 2
broker?

How do “security holders sell part
of their  entitienienis through 2
roker and aceept for the halance?

b See chapter 19 for dafioad erms,
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New issue announcement

iz How Jo "sceurity helders disposc
of their entitlements {exeept by sale
thraugh o broker)?

33 Despatch date

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You need only eompens ihis secion i vou are applving for quetaiion of sceuriiies

2
L=

Type of secunities
{tich one)

{a) >\i Securities described i Pan 1

(b All other securitics

Fxample' restricted securition a the end of the eserowed penod, partdy pad weeunties thar becate Jidly paad, smplovee
fncentive alare seourtics when resuiction ends, secerties 1iaued B capiry or Coavernon of comenille soguntics

Entities that have ticked box 34(a)

Additional sccurities forming a new class of securitivs

Tick 1o indicote you are providig the inforunion ar
docunents

3s [ the “securitivs are “equily sceurities, the numes of the 20 larpest holders ol the
D additional “securities. and the number and percemape of additional “securities held by
those holders

D [T the seouritics are Cequity scourilies, o disiribution schedule of the additional
“securilics serting onl the number of holders in the aategories
- 1,000
001 - 5,000
5.001 - 10,000
10,001 - 160,000
100,001 and over

securiies

A copy of any trmst deed for the addrlional

+ See chapter 19 Tor defined terma,

14172003 Appantin 3B Page &
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New ias -
INCW IS abnouncement

Entities that have ticked box 34(b}

38 Number ol sccurities  for
“guotation 15 sought

39 Class ol "secwritics  lor
YuAtaion s soghi

40 D the 'securtivs rank equally inoall
qecis from the dme of aliounent
with an esisting "elass of quoted

Tsecurilies?

IF the addimanal seenrives do

rank cqually, please sute:

o the date from which they do

o the  oextent to which

participate for the nest dividend.

(i the  cise ol a

distribution} or interest payment
¢ the extent 10 which they do not
sk equally,  other than
rehiion 1o the next dividend,
distvthution or interest payment

41 Reasun for reguest lor quotation

now

Fxamphe En the wase of vostnennd seoarities, end of

testrtion perud

(i issued  upon conversion
another secarity. elearty wdenitly that

other scourity)

a? Nimber and Celass ol all Cseonrities

quoted  on ANN cinciuding

seeuriies in clause 38)

Number

(Class

e chaptar 19 for dafined terms,

Appendix 3 Page 6
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Bl M L L ACRTLENEE 34

New issue announcement

Quotation agreement

] “Quotation of our additional *securifies is in ASX s absolue discretion. ASN may
quode the *securities on any conditions 1t decides.

2 We warrant the following 10 ASX,

. The dssue of the “securities to be gquoted complive with the law and ix not for
an iilegal purpose.

. There is no reason why those “securities should not be pranted “quotation

. An offer of the "securities for sale within 12 monthg alier their issue will
not require disclosure under section 707(3) or secuon 1012000) of the
Corporations Act.

Rare An eniay gy aced 1 ablain approprine wadanies tro subsenbers tor thie seouriies i orcder (o be abic re give
s Whrranty

* Seclion 724 or section 1O16E of the Corporations Act docs not apply o any
applications reccived by us in relation 1o any “securiiics 10 be quoted and
that. no-eme has any right to return any ‘securities 10 be quoted wder
sections 737, 738 or 1016F ol the Corporazions Act at the nme tha we
request that the *securities be quoted.

. H we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right 1o return the
*securitics to be quoted under section 11913 oi the Corporattons Act ot the
e that we request that the “securnes be quoted,

3 We will indenmnify ASX (o the {ullesi extent pernnlied by law in respeet of any
claim. action or expinse arising from or connected with any breach of the warranties
i this agreement.

4 We give ASX the information ad documents required by this form.  H oany
information or document not available now, will give it lo ASX before ‘quotation of
the ‘securilies baging. We acknowledge that ASN is relving on the mformaion and
docaments, We warrant that they are (will be) trie and couplele,

Sign here: Jonathan Downes.......o Drter 26 Aprif 2007

{Director)
Print name: SJosathan Downes.

+ See chapter 19 for defined revms.
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QUARTERLY ACTIVITIES REPORT

ST
Ending March 2007 ST A

lronbark Gold Limited (Ironbark) is a focused and dedicated base metal exploration '
and development Company listed on only the Australian Stock Exchange. The
Company has a technically strong Board with significant relevant experience and

owns a suite of base metal and precious metal projects in Australia and Greenland.

Highlights during the March Quarter

1. Major Zinc Project Acquisition

Ironbark entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of the major Citronen
Zinc Project in Greenland representing 16.8Mt @ 7.8% Zinc, 0.9% lead.
The project bas outslanding exploration potential with mineralisation
boundaries not defined by current drilling

2. Belara base metal project drilling

Drilling at the Belara base metals project in New South Wales, Ausltralia
returned significant results demonstrating continuity of mineralisation and
grade. Mineralisation remains open and is increasing in width and grade at
depth

3. Wolf Minerals IPO
Ironbarks specialty metals were divested to Wolf Minerais Limited which |
listed on the Australian Stock Exchange. lronbark retains 3 million shares in
Wolf Minerals Limited

4. Captains Flat base metal project drilling — Jerangle

Driliing at the Jerangle base metals project in New South Wales, Auslralia
returned anormalous base metals assays but was terminated due to difficult
ground conditions and high water flows. The drilling program was not
effective and a more powerful drilling rig is currently being sought to
continue the programme

Highlights Subsequent to the March Quarter

5. $25.75M Equity Raising and partnership with Glencore AG

Subject to shareholder approval, Ironbark has agreed to issue 10.3M shares
to raise $25.75 million at a price of $2.50 per share to institutional,
sophisticated and industry investors

6. Belara Project Initial Resource
First JORC compliant inferred resource estimate for the wholly owned
Belara base metal project




1. MAJOR ZINC PROJECT ACQUISTION

fronbark entered into an agreement to acquire 100% of the Citronen Zinc Project
(Citronen) in Greenland.

Citronen represents one of the worlds largest undeveloped zinc resources.
Citronen is located in northern Greenland (Figure 1), a self governed territory of the
Kingdom of Denmark. This major acquisition significantly increases the scope of
lronbark towards becoming a substantial zinc producer.

Previous estimates of mineralisation associated with the Project were generated
prior to the introduction of the JORC Code guidelines for the reporting of identified
minerai resources and ore reserves. On this basis, previous estimates can not be
reported as “resources” or “reserves” under the JORC Code guidelines. Whilst the
Company considers these previous estimates are material and provide a
reasonable reflection of the quantum and grade mineralisation, there can be no
guarantee that re-classification will occur in accordance with the Company's
objectives in the short term or at all.

The most recent resource estimate of the Project starts at approximately 16.8Mt
tonnes at 7.8% zinc and 0.9% lead (approximately 8.3% zinc equivalent). This is
based on 32,826 metres of diamond drilling conducted between 1993 and 1996
returning intercepts such as 28.8 metres @ 9.7% zinc (including a higher grade
zone of 8.5m @ 19.0% zinc). The most recent resource estimate was taken from
the Platinova A/S 1999 Annual report as lodged with the Toronto Stock Exchange
and was in compliance with the Canadian Institute for Mining, Metallurgy and
Petroleum siandard far reporting mineral resources.

Ironbark considers that Citronen offers exceptional large scale, low risk, long life
and high margin production potential as well as an outstanding exploration
opportunity with the extent of mineralisation yet to be determined.

The mineralisation is considered to be of a SEDEX style zinc deposit and this
model is potentially very large. The mineralisation starts from the surface and is
shallow, flat lying and adjacent to a deep water fjord that may provide near mine
ship docking and loading opporunities.

lronbark has agreed to purchase 100% of Citronen for $6M cash and 8M shares in
Ironbark, plus 16M options in lronbark with an exercise price of $1.50 and maturity
date of 1 February 2010. Separately, a 2.5% net smeiter royalty (NSR) is payable.
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Figure 1: Location Plan - Citronen Zinc Project and other historic zinc mines



2. BELARA BASE METAL PROJECT

The Belara Project is located east of Wellington and approximately 90 kilometres
north of Orange in New South Wales. Previous explorers have identified significant
sediment-hosted zinc. lead. copper, silver and gold mineralisation from drilling
undertaken between 1868 and 1993. The mineralisation has been identified over a
strike of 2,200 metres.

The drilling program camprised § holes for 1,104 metres of reverse circulation (RC)
drilling and 707.4 metres of diamond drilling {see Figure 2 and 3). The drilling has
successfully confirmed the continuity of previously identified mineralisation and the
tenor of the mineralisation between earlier drill holes. The drilling data is
considered of sufficient density to support a JORC compliant resource to be
calculated.

A program of extensional and infill drillihg is currently being planned during the
June quarter, 2007 to expand on the resource and to test the mineralisation at
depth, which appears to be increasing in grade and width.
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Figure 3: Long section of the Belara mineralisation
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3. WOLF MINERALS LIMITED PO

Ironbark entered into a co-operative divestment agreement of its wholly owned
Burrandana and Kiawarra tungsten and tin projects to Wolf Minerals Limited (Wolf)
for a consideration of 3 million Wolf shares. The divestment will see these projects
receive the attention they deserve allowing lronbark to continue to focus on its
base metal and gold projects.

Wolf listed on the Australian Stock Exchange on 15 February 2007 following a
strongly sought Initial Public Offer raising $3 million at $0.20 per share.

3. CAPTAINS FLAT BASE METAL PROJECT DRILLING- JERANGLE
(Ironbark earning 75%)

A number of targets have been identified as being prospective for base metal and
gold mineralisation which are associated with Volcancgenic Massive Sulphide
(VMS) deposits. These include amongst others, the Laxe George Mine Deeps.
Vanderbilt Hill, Anembo and Jerangle prospects.

Drilling at the Jerangle base metals project in New South Wales, Australia returned
anomalous base metals assays hut was terminated after completing only 500
metres of drilling due to difficult ground conditions and high water flows. The
drilling program was not effective with very poor drill core recovery and a more
nowerfut drilling rig is currently being sought to continue the programme and it is
hoped that drilling will recommence during the June quarter, 2007. The next driling
program will target the deeper down-dip extensions to previously recorded base-
metal intercepts.

5. $25.75M EQUITY RAISING AND PARTNERSHIP WITH GLENCORE AG

lronbark has, subject to shareholder approval, entered into subscription
agreements with institutional, sophisticated and industry investors to issue
10,300,000 shares to raise $25.75 million at a price of $2.50 per share. These
funds are considered adequate to conclude the purchase of the Citronen Zinc
Project (a further $4,500,000 payment) and provide waorking capital to aggressively
progress the Citronen Zinc Project towards a full feasibility study for a period of two
years.

Ironbark has also entered into a Heads of Agreement with Glencore International
AG encompassing potential future funding, entering in an agency agreement to
assist in marketing and the appointment of a non-executive Director tc the Board of
Ironbark.

Following the completion of this placement Merrill Lynch Equities (Australia} and
Glencore International AG will become significant shareholders in fronbark.
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6. BELARA PROJECT INITIAL RESOURCE

lronbark released the first JORC compliant inferred resource estimate for the
wholly owned Belara base metal project {copper, lead, zinc, gold and silver)
following a recent drilling program of:

1.0 mitlion tonnes at 5.0% zinc, 0.4% copper, 1.5% lead, 0.3 g/t gold and 50 g/t
silver (7.5% zinc equivalent, 10.2 g/t gold equivalent”) at a 4% zinc cutoff

Within a larger lower grade resource of:

3.8 million tonnes at 3.1% zinc, 0.4% copper, 1.0% lead, 0.2 g/t gold and 34 g/t
silver (4.9% zinc equivalent, 6.7 g/t gold equivalent™) at a 1% zinc cutoff

Belara is located approximately 98km NNE of Orange in New South Wales,
Australia. The resource estimate was prepared by independent minerals industry
consultants Ravensgate. The Belara ore body begins at surface and has been
estimated to a depth of 350 metres.

Ironbark considers the resource to be significant and is encouraged that the two
deepest holes have returned the highest grade and widths indicating that the ore
body is open ended at its thickest point. fronbark plans to expand the resource by
conducting further driliing targeting extensions to mineralisation. Additional drilling
is planned to bring the resource to a higher level of confidence and increase the
overall grade of the ore body.

The mormation in this report that relntes to Exploration Results, Mineral Resources or Gre Reserves is based on information
compiled by Mr A 3yass, B.Sc Hons{Geol), 8.Econ, FSEG, MAIG an employes of fronhark Gold Limited. Mr Byass has
sufficinnt experinnce that is relevant 1o e style of mineralisation and type of deposit under cansideration and 1o the activily
which hie is undertaking o geality as o Competant Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the Auslralasian Code for
Repodting of Exoploraton Resulte, Mineral Resources and Qre Reserves, Mr Byass consents to the inclusion in the report of
the matters hosaed on s mfoomabion in ithe lorm ang context in which i aphears.

For further information please contact:
Jonathan Downes

Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Level 1, 350 Hay Street,
Subiaco,

WA 6008

Tel: (08) 6461 6350
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TRONBARK GOVD LIMITELD

ABN

93 118751 027

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Onarter endesd {eurment quanier’™)

31 NMareh 2007

Current gnarier Year o date (9 months)
Cash Dows relaied fo operating avfivities FATO00 SA NN
1.1 Receipts (rom product sales and related debtors
1.2 Paymenty [or
(a1 exploration and evaluation EREY} (635)
(bj development
{c) production
(dY adimnistration {24 {436)
1.3 Dividends received
1.4 Interest and other nems ol a sinular nature 73
received
1.3 Derest amd ofher costs of finance paid
1.6 Inconne taxes paid
1.7 Otlrer (Boad) )
Net Operating Cash Flows 10X3) i |.005)
Cash flows related to investing setivities
1.8 Paymem for purchases of?
(a)prospects {30)
(byequity investments
(c)other hixed assets {2) (2)
1.9 Proceeds trom sale of:
(a)prospects
(blequity investmenis
(c)other fixed assets
1.10 [Luans 1o other entities
L) Luans repaid by other entities
112 Crher deposiv patd  for the share sale 15000 {1.5300)
agrecment with Redford  Resoneces Holdings
Limited
Net investing cash lows (1,502 {1.552)
1.13 Total  operating and  investing  cash {lows
(carried forward) 12.18%) {2,557y

+ See chapter 19 for defined werms.
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Mining exploration enbity quarterly vepont

113 Total operatiy and investing cash fows
(hrought forward) (2,135} (2,557}
Cash Nows related 1o financing activities
1.14 Proceeds Meon issues ol shares, oplions, elc. 3,000
VoL Procesds Trom sale of Torfeited shares -
1.in Procesds Trom hm'w\ﬂ'im_‘_x -
LT Repayment ol borrowings -
1A% Dividends paid -
1. 1% Other - costs to lssue (2013
Net finaneing cash Nuws 2,799
Net (decrease) inercuse in eash held (2.185) 242
1.20 Cash at beginniay of guarteriyear to daie 2,792 365
1.21 Exchange mie adjustnents o item 1.20 -
_ 607 607 o
1.22 Cush af end of quarter

Yayraents to directors of the entity and associates of the directors

Payments to related entities of the entify and associates of the related entities

Current quarter

$A000

.23 Agguegate amoans of pavinents to the parties included in item 1.2 53
.24 Aggregans amount of Toans o the parties included in fem 110
1.2%5 Explanation accessury for an understanding of the tmosactions

1. Payment of consuliing and direciors fees o diteelors.
Non-cash financing and investing activitics .
2.1 Details of financing and investing tansactions which have had a material effect on consolidaled

assets and Habilides but did net involve cash Mows

L |

22 Details of outlays misdc by other entities Lo establish or increase their shate in projects in which the
reporting emity has an interest

L |

Financing facilities available

Acdek nates us neeessary for an anderstunding of the position.

Amount available Amount used
SAT000 SA000
3 Loan [acilities - -
3.2 Credn stamdby arrangements - -
+ Sew chapter 19 foe dufined werns,
305920010 Appendix 5B Page 2
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Mining explormtion entity quarterly report

Estimatced cash outflows for next quarter

$A000
4.1 Exploration and evaluation 4,600
4.2 Developmen
4,600
Tatal
Reconciliation of cash
Reconciliation of cash at the end of the quarter (as Current quarer Previous quaner
ghown in the consolidated statement af cash flows) 1o LATODG LATHO0
the related dtems in e aceounts is as follows.
5. Casl on hand and @ bank (239 (34)
3.2 Deposits ot call 246 2826
53 Bank overdrafi
3.4 (nher (provide details)
o . )7 2,792
Potal: eash ar end of quarrer (item 1.22) 607
Changes in interests in mining tenemenis
Tenement Nature of interest Enterest of Interest at
reference (note {2)} beguonung | end of
of quarter |} quarter
6.1 Interests i mining
wenements relinguishid,
reduced or apsed
6.2 Inlerests m noping FL2007:02 | Acquired ¢) W T,
tenements acquired or ELAMSG Acquired % 1005
increased ELAGTO Acxuired 0 TO0%
ELAMGD Acquired 0% 100%,
ELAGAGI Avquired (e 1000%,
ELAG4TS Acquired (% 100%,
ELA208! Acgnred N 100%

{1} Acquired subject o sharchoelder approval e General Meeting o be held on 27 May 2007,

i+ See chapler 19 for defined ternns.
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Mining exploration entity quarterly report

Issued and quoted securities at end of current quarter

Deseription includey rate of inieresi and any redempiion or conversion rights together sith prices ad dutes,

Tow) number

Numher quoted

fssue  price  per
sccurity (sce note

3) {cents)y

Amount paid up per
sceurily {see note 3)
(cents)

~)
[

Preference
‘securities
{tleseripiion)
Changes during
ey

L) Inereases
throuyh tssues
1Y Deereases
throagh returns
of capital, buy-
hacks,
redemiplions

-1
)

'Ordinary
securities

Changes during
quarter

(a) fnereases
through issues
(b)) Decreases
throngh returns
ol capital, buy-
backs

22,560,000

17,000,000

-
e

*Convertible
debt securities
{eleseription )
Changes duriog
Pt

i) [nereases
througly issies
by Deuvraases
throngh
seeurilics
matured,
converted

-3

. )

7.8

710

Crptions
(escriptian and
conversion

Jucior)

Issued during
quarter
Exurcised during
quarier

Expived dunng
(uatrter

2,000,000

[xercise

50.30

price

Expiry date 10
Auygust 2011

Debentures
ftotads onhyv)

tnsecured
noles (fenals
rmf_!')

+ Nee chapter 19 {or defined terms.
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Mining explorion entity guarterly report

Compliance statement

! This statement has been prepared under aceounting policies which comply with accounting
standards as defined in the Corposations Act or other standards aceeptable 10 ARNX (see note J4),

2z This stateiment does give atroe ad Tair view of the manees disclosed.
=
L & *
NN i<l
Sign here: Stephen Brockhurst Date: 30 April 2007

{Company secrelary)

Notes

| The guarterly repont provides a basig for inforning the imarkel honw the entily’s achivities have
boen financed for e past quarter and (he offect on ifs eash position. An cotry waniing 1o disclose
additional information is encouraged to dv 50, in 2 noie or notes atlached o s report,

2 The *Nature of interest” (ilems 6.1 and 6.2} includes oprions in respect of Dierests in nining,
tenements acquired, exercised or lapsed during the reporting period, 1 the entity oy involved ina juint
venture agreement and there are conditions precedent which will chiange its pereentage interest in g
mining tenement, il shoeld diselose the change of pereentage intcsest and condilions precedent i the list
required foritems 6.1 and 0.2

3 Issucd nud guoted securities The issue price and amount paid up is not required initems 7.1
and 7.3 for fully paid securities.

4 The definitions in, and provisious of, AASE [022; Acconnting for Extractive Indusiries and
AASB 1026; Statenent of Cush Flows apply 1o this report,

5 Accounting Standorids ASX will aeeept, for exampte, the nse of Iternational :'\L‘Cnllllli[lu
Standards for foreipn entitics. 1 the standards used do not address a topic. the Anatralian sizndard on that
topic {1 any) musi be complied with.

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms,
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Chanee ol Bireetor’s Interest Nofice

fle 3.794.2
Appendix 3Y

Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documenis not availuble now mnst be given to ASN as soun as available. Informeadion and
documents piven to A 85X become ANX's properiv und may he mode public.

Inreodfueed 307402001

Name of entity ironbark Gold Limited

A BN 93 118 751 027

We (1he entity) give ASX the following infornmiion under listing ruile 3.19A.2 and as agens for the
director for the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Act.

Name of Direclor Jonathan Downes

Prate of fast notice 7 March 2007

Part 1 - Change of director’s relevant interests in securities
i the case of a trast, iy ineludes Drtereas i the trust gudie available he the ropoasdibe enpity of e dre

Mote, In the easa of 2 campany. interes1s wlieh coane withim pasageaph (1) o1 the definitrm o3 aodiTable szt ofa diveenoee shonld be
diselosed in this pan

Direct or indirect interest Indirect

Nature of indirect interest Not Applicable
(including registered holder)
Nure Pravide sletwils of (he ciicwmatinees giving ns o the relesam

interest
DPate of chauge 2 Nay 2007
No. of securities held prior to change Direct

120,000 fully paid ordinary shares
1,000,000 $0.30 uptions expiring 10/8/2011

Lndirect

Kotring Pery Downes  (spouse of Jonathan 2,000,000 (ully paid ordinary shares

Downes)

JE&K Downes Superfund A/C n entny m
wihich  Jdonathan Downes has o benelicial
interest)

HLOOG fully paid ordimary shares

Gotd Member Pty Lid (a company in which

g 10,004 fully paid ordinary shares
Jonathan Downes has a relevant interest ) ’ ¥l .

Class Fully paid ordinary shares

Number acquired 25,000

-+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

117372002 Appendix 3Y Page |
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Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Katrima Peta Downes (spouse of Jonathan
Dewnes)

T&K Downes Superfund AsC (an entity
which  Jonathan  Pownes has a benelicial
INeresi)

Gold Member Py Iitd (o company in which
Jonathan Downes his 2 relevan interest)

Number disposed Nil
Vilue/Consideration $87.500
Neter I consideration s nopeeasht provade dertarln snd  gstirneied

waliatiam

No. of securities held alter change Direct

20,000 {ully paid ordinary shares
1,000,000 $0.30 options expiring 10/8/201]

Indirect
2,000,000 [ully paid ordinary shares

10,000 Milly paid ordinary shares

35,000 lully paid ordinary shares

Nature of change

securitie: nnder dividend reinvestment plan, particepation in buy-hak

Exampie: en-masket eade, ol msrket teade, exeiene ol oplions, issue of

On-market trade

dizedosed in this pan

Part 2 — Change of director’s interests in contracts

Norer b the case ol a company, interesrs wloch come within parageaph i olthe detininon of "astiliable ioterest o adircer” should e

Detaid of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issued securities)

Date of change

No. and class of sccurities {o
which itnterest related prior to
change

tnte: Diesatls are only seqpored Jar s contraet o relaen
o wihreds the inceseat Bas changd

Interest acquired

[nterest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note: Hcoasideration iy non-cash, provide deimls
and an estimated valustion

Liuterest after change

+ xee chapter 19 for defined 1enms.
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10 May 2007

The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

IRONBARK ACQUIRES FURTHER ZINC PROJECTS

Ironbark Gold Limited {lronbark) is pleased to repert that it has lodged priority applications over three
further zinc projects in Greenland (Figure 1). The projects are believed to offer axcellent exploration
potential and the final grant will be subject to approval being recaived from Bureau of Minerals and
Peiroleum under the Graenland Home Rule. A briefl description of each of the projects is provided below:

Washington Land - Cass Prospect

The Cass Prospect was identified in 1999, the final year of a joint venture between Platinova AS and Rio
Tinto targeting Mississippi Valley Type {MVT) base metal minaralisation. The Cass prospect is situated in
the Franklinian Basin geological unit. The Cass Prospect mineralisation is consicered to be
contemporaneous with the Polaris and Nanisivik historic mines Incated in Canada.

Mineralisation at the Cass Prospect occurs within a structure with an observed strike length of
approximately four kilometres. The structure outcrops poordy dua to overlying glacial till including houiders
and gravel. A rock chip composite sample collecled on a profile acress the discovery sie returmned 25
metres grading 8.9% zine, 11.1% lead and 85 g/t silver. A single drill hole yielded 1 2 metres at 8.4% zinc,
0.04% lead and 94 gi silver. Rio Tinto withdrew from the joint venure following the diilling. The hole is
regarded as not necessarily inlercepting the main target and will be ollowed up as a matter of poority.

Mesters Vig — Blyklippen Zinc Ming

The Blyklippen Zinc Mine was mined from 1956 to 1862 and yielded production of 544 600 tonnes for a
recovered grade of 9.9% zinc and $.3% lead. Previous explorers identified addilional mineralised
structures near the main mine and the project area is considered prospective and amenable to

geophysical exploration techniques.

An excellent sumimary of the project has been prepared by GEUS {Geological Survey of Denmark and
Greenland) and can he downloaded using the following link:

hitp:/iwww .geus.dk/minex/qo05,. pdf

Navarana Fjord

In the Navarana Fjord anticline, a vertical, seven metre Lhick and 300 metre long, brecciated calcite vein
crosscuts the limestone of the Portfield Formation. Centrally in the calcite vein of a cne metre wide
breccia zone apigenetic sphalerile occurs associated with barite, which conslittes 60-70% of the matrix.
in addition another zinc-barite occurrence has been identified in the area which is described as a strata-
bound occurrence within a carbonaceous shale and chert sequence. The model is described as being of
the MVT base metal mineralisation.




SV o e | g Sk o mm Al i ot e

n Fic&rd ;

tionNord

el Danmark Hava

- Baffin

e Eh

(¥ L{"i i

Figure 1: Location Plan of Tronbark Projects in Greenland

For further information please contact:

Jonathan Downes
Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED
Telephone: +61 8 6461 6350
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11 May 2007

The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

IRONBARK UPDATE REGARDING FURTHER ZINC PROJECTS

Ironbark Gold Limited (lronbark) provides further information regarding three further zine projects in
Greenland (Figure 1}. The projects are helieved to offer excellent exploration potential and the final
grant will be subject 1o approval being received from Bureau of Minarals and Patroleum under the
Greenland Home Rule. A brief description of each of the projects is provided helow:

Washington Land — Cass Prospect

The Cass Prospect was identified in 1999, in a joint venlure targeting Mississippt Valley Type
(MVT) base metal mineralisation between Piatinova AS and Rio Tinto Mining and Exploration Inc.,
(Rio Tinto) a subsidiary of London based Rio Tinto PLC (Rio Tinto}. The Cass Prospect is situated
ir the Franklinian Basin geological unit. The Cass Prospect mineralisation is considered 1o be
contemporaneocus with the Polaris and Nanisivik historic mines located in Canada.

Mineralisation at the Cass Prospect occurs within a structure with an observed strike length of
approximately four kilometres. The structure outcrops poorly due to overlying glacial till including
boulders and gravel. A continuous rock chip composite sample spanning 25 melres on a profile
across the struclure returned an average grading 8.9% zinc, 11.1% l2ad and 95 ght silver and a
second continuous rock chip composite sample spanning 2% metre located 550 metres to the east
returned an average grade of 3.7% zinc, 7% lead and 40 g/t silver. The precise details of sampling
and assaying methodology are unknown however this information was released 1o the Toronto
Stock Exchange in 1899, A single diamond drill hele yielded 1.2 metras al 84% zine, 0.04% lead
and 94 g/t silver. Rio Tinlo withdrew from the joint venture following the drilling in 1999 at a peariod
of low zinc and lead prices. The hole is regarded as not necessarily intercepting the main target and
will be followed up as a8 matier of priority.

Mesters Vig — Blyklippen Zinc Mine

The Blyklippen Zinc Mine was minad from 19506 to 1962 and yielded production of 544 600 tonnes
for a recovered grade of 9.9% zinc and 9.3% lead. Previous explorers wlentified addiuonal
mineralised structures near the main mine and the project arga is considered prospective and

amenable to geophysical exploration technigques.

An excellent summary of the project has been prepared by GEUS (Geological Survey of Denmark
and Greanland) and can be downloaded using the foliowing link:

htip:/fwww.geus. dkiminex/qo05.pdf

Navarana Fjord

In the Navarana Fjord anticline, a vertical, seven metre thick and 300 metre long, brecciated calcite
vein crosscuts the limestone of the Portfield Formation. Centrally in the calcita vein of a ong metre
wide breccia zone epigenstic sphalerite occurs associated with barite, which constituies 63-70% of
the matrix. In addition another zinc-barite occurrence has been identified in the area which is
described as a strata-bound ocourrence within a carbonaceous shale and chert sequence. The
model is described as being of the MVT base metat mineralisation.
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Figatre 1; Location Plan of fronbark Projects in Greenland

The information in this report that relates o Explerntion Results, Mineral Resources or Ore Reserves is based on information
compiied by Mr A Byass, B.5c Hons(Grol), B.Econ. FSEG, MAIG aa employee of lronbark Gald Limited. Mr Byass has
sufficient expeoricrice that is relevant to the siyle of mineralisation and type of daposit undar consideration and to the activity
which he is undertaking lo guality as o Competant Person as defined in the 2004 Edition of the Australasian Code for
Ruporting of Exoploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Raserves. Mr Byass consents to the inclusion in tha report of
ther matters hasad on this information in the form and context in which t appears,

For further information please contact:

Janathan Downes
Managing Dirgctor

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

Telephone: +61 8 6461 6350

Level, 350 Hay Sireet, Subiaco, WA 6008
www_ironbarkgold.com. au
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21 May 2007

The Manager,
Company Announcement Office,
Australian Stock Exchange Limited

CITRONEN PROJECT UPDATE AND KEY APPOINTMENTS

[ronbark Gold Limited (lrenbark) is pleased to provide an update regarding the Citronan Zinc
Project {Project) and to announce the appointment of key personnel who will significantly boister
the executive team.

Project Update

fronbark has engaged the Danish based POLOG group to manage all logistical aspecis of the
Project exploration during 2007 including the procurement and transport 1o sile ol the required
personnel and equipment including a new 40 man camp, fuel, food, generat supplies and an on site
heticopter. POLOG has extensive experience managing large scale mineral exploralion projects in
Greenland.

Greenland Resources A/S in partnership with Cyr Drilling International Limited based out of Canada
(Cyr Orilling} have secured the relevant personnel required to operate the two diamond drilfing rigs
owned by ironbark on a 24 hour basis commencing in late June and runnimg inio Seplembsr,
Gardon Cyr of Cyr Drilling was previously the principal of Midwest Drilling Lid. Midwest Drilling Ltd
co-ordinated all the past drilling at the Project from 1993, The 2008 drilling season is planned to
commence in April and continue into September,

The Canadian based, global engingering and geological consulting firm Wardrop Engineering Inc
has been engaged lo pravide start up geological input through the contracting of Greg Mosher.
Greg Mosher is a highly experienced geologist and was involved in the exploration, discovery,
interpretation and documentation of the Citronen Zing Preject from 1993 to 1995 inclusive. His input
and knowledge will greatly assist ironbark’s exploration ramp up.

As part of the licence transfer process Ironbark has assumed the responsibility for all the equipment
at the Project site. lronbark currently has twe drilling rigs, a bulldozer, tractor and ATVs as weall as a
very large inventory of spare parts {including a new drill rig engine, hundreds of metres of new
drilling rods, diamond bits etc). Ironbark has completed a first pass site inspection with a team of
mechanics and has started up the drill rig, bulldozer, generator and an ATV, lronbark expects to
cormmence drilling immediately following the expanded camp establishment in late June.

it is planned that one of the drilling rigs will be used to infill and confirm resources with the: aim of
providing sufficient drill density in several areas of wide-spaced drilng {+300m dritl cenires) to
atlow these intercepts to be included in a publicly reportable resource estimaie. The second drilling
rig will drill larger diameter diamond core and be used for geotechnical and metallurgical drilling
within areas of currently guoted resources. This information will be used as parl of the ongaing
feasibility study

Key Appointments

In order to expedite lronbark’s projecl developments in Graeenland and Australia, several key
personnel have been added to the team. These include:-

David Round Chief Financial Officer
Donald Maclean Geology Manager (Greenland)
Gregory Campbeli Director of Engineering

Stepan Crlov Senior Geologist (Greenland)




RO NI

David Round - Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary. B.Bus, CPA MBA

David is a highly experienced accountant and company secretary with corporate finance and
taxation experience in Ausiralia and Europe. Previous roles include adviser to Chief Financial
Officers of a number of groups including SNC Lavalin, International Drill-Quip, KPMG in Londoen,
Grant Thorntan, Home Building Society, Satterley Properly Group and several mining joinl ventures
based in Perth. David has been involved in numerous projects in WA market involving valuations,
major capital raisings, expert reports and due diligence assignments for publicly listed and privately
owned Organisations. David has most recently been employed in the role of Chief Operating Officer
and Chief Financial Officer far the Western Force Super 14 Rugby Team.

David has a detailed understanding of new Infernational Accounting Standards and their application
to Austratian lisled groups which will be particularly pertinent to the management of lronbarks
Greenlandic operations.

Donald Maclean - Geology Manager {Greeniand), 8.5¢ (Hons) Geol

Don is a geologist with over 13 years experience. Don has worked for Lynas Gold, Great Central
Mines and laler for Normandy Mining Limited al the Jundee mine in Western Ausiralia in a Senior
rote. Most recently Don was been employed as the Manager Mine Development for Newmont at
the Waihi Mine in New Zealand.

Donald has excellent management and geofogical skills which will be weil utilised by lronbarks
Greenland operstions during the development drilling and mining feasibility studies.

Gregory Campbell - Diractor of Engineering, BE {Chem) Hons, MAusiMM, MIEAust

Greg has agreed to substantially increase his role within ironbark and move from nis curre non-
executive Direclor positicn to a full time Executive Director role. Greg has over 17 years
angineering experience across Australia covering chemical and process engineering, operating,
marketing and financial analysis of projects in the metals industry. This experience has been gained
in various capacities including eight years with BHP Limited in a range of engineering and technical
roles. eight years in senior engineer consultancy roles with Kvaemer and Promet Engineers and
both process engineering and technical marketing roles for Ausmelt Limiled.

In his Executive position Greg will take on the roles of managing metallurgical and process and
plant design in relation ta the Company's nening feasibility studies.

Stepan Orlov - Senior Geologist (Greentand), 8.5¢ Geol, MAIG

Siepan has over 15 years experience in the mining and minerals indusiry. This experience has
principally been gained ihrough exploration in remote climates. including the Arctic and high altitude
areas. Companies that Stepan has werked with include Jubilee Mings NL, Batavia Mining, Siberia
Mining Corporation Limited and Foriescue Metals Group Limiled. Stepan has planned and
managed numerous exploration programs in remote climates.

In addition to tnese appointments, Ironbark has previously announced that it has engaged the
services of Andrew Stocks in the role of Logistics Advisor. Andrew has over 20 years of experience
in the minerals industry as a mining engineer and mine manager. He has held senior management
positions with Barrack Gold {Mine Manager of apen pit and underground gold mining operation) and
most recenily Crew Gold Corporation PLC. In the role of Vice president, Andrew managed and
oversaw the commissioning of the Nalunag gold mine in Greenland. In this role Andrew became
familiar with the legistical requirements and husiness procedures in Greenland.

For further information please contact:
Jonathan Downes, Managing Director
IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED

Telephone: +67 8 G461 G350

Level 1, 350 Hay Street, Subiaco, Perth 6008




SRR R

Chanyge of Birector's Interest Notice

Rude 31042
Appendix 3Y
Change of Director’s Interest Notice

Information or documents wol available nose st be given 1o ASN as voon a5 araifabic. Information and
documents given o ASN become ANY s properiv and may be smade pubiic.

bateodueed 30420014

Name of eniity lranbark Geld Limited

ABN 93 118 751 U427

-

We (the entity) give ASY the following infornmtion under listing rile 3.09A.2 and as agent for the
director Tor the purposes of section 205G of the Corporations Acl,

Name of Director Peler Bennelto

Pate of last notice 2 March 2007

Purt 1 - Change of director’s refevant interests in seeurities
Pt the ease of e rust, this fnetuces iderests i the trust made availolde b the respsilie cubily of the e

Nuoie. |n the case of 3 company. intereats which corne within parageaph (0ol dke definioon of “notilizdde interest ot n directos” should be
disclosed iaus pari

Direct or indirect interest Indirect (2)
Nuture of tadirect inferest Indircet (1)
{including registered holler} Gillie Beaneuo (pouse of Peter Bennetto)

Note Provide detnils of The crcomsinees giving nss i e relevan
intarest

Indirect (2)

Canonbar Investmenis Pry Lid (an enity n
which  Peier Reonetis has a o benehacial
pterest)

Tndirect (3)

Corparate Momentwn Pty Ll (an endily in
which Pster Bemnetto has  a benelicial
interest

Lodireci ()

Sceurity DRiscount & Finmanee My Ld (an
entity in which  Peter Hemnetto has 4
beneficial interest)

Date of chaoge 21 May 2007

+ Ree chaper 19 for defined terms,

117372002 Appeniin 3y Page |
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Change of Director’s Lnterest Notice

Na. of securitics held prior to change
Gribtie Bennetto {spouse of Peter Beonetlo}
Canonbar Invesunents Pty Lud (an entity in

which Peter Bemmetis has a benelicial interest)

Corporate Momenun Pty Ltd (an entity in
which Peter Bennetto has a benelicial interest)

Security Discount & Finance Pty Lrd (an entity

Direct
360,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Indirect (1)
10,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Indirect (2)
60,000 fully paid ordinary shares

Indirect (3)
10,000 [ully paid ordinary shares

Indirect (4)

- which Peter Bennetto has ¢ benelicial | 14000 fully paid ordinary shares
interest)
Class Fully paid ordinary shares

Chllie Bennelto (spouse ol Peter Bennetio)

Canonbar Invesiments Py Ltd (an entity in
whiclh Peter Bennetio has a benelicial imerest)

Corporate Momentwm Py Lud (2o entity in
which Peter Bennetio has a benelicial interest)

Security Discount & Finance Piv Lid (an entity
mowhich Peter Boenietio
interest)

has o benelicial

Number acquived 10,000
Number disposed Nil
Value/Consideration $32.400
Noter 1Y cotsideatet s ononcrsh proside datarls apd estimared

valuation

No, of seeuritivs hehld after change Direct

360.000 fully paid ordinary shares

lndireet (1)
10,000 Nully paid ordinary shares

Indirect (2)
70,600 fully paid ordinary shares

[ndirect (3)
10,000 Gully paid ordinary shares

Indirect (4)
H3.000 Dol pard ordinary shares

. N
Nature ol change

Fxample: on-marked irade, oft-market trade, excrere ol oplions. issue ol
svewrithes ey dividend rotmvestment pran, gagheganion o buay-back

Om-market trade

b See chaptor 19 for defined termns.
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Chanee of Director’s Interest Notice

Part 2~ Change of director’s interesis in contracis

Nate do the case of a conpany. intereas which core within paragaph (i) ol the defimiion of "notiftable sateat of a dieeator” shouid be
diselosel in Qies parnl

Betail of contract

Nature of interest

Name of registered holder
(if issned securities)

Date of change

No. and class of sccuritics 1o
which inferest related prior o
thange

Noter Peisls are ooly reguucd for a vontz moelation
o which the imensc has chunged

Interest acquired

Interest disposed

Value/Consideration
Note' [t congiileeation 15 mop-cash, provide detils wnd
an eshimated vihunon

Interest after change

+ See chapter 19 for defined tarms,

117320002 Appendin 1Y Page 3



New issue announcement

Appendix 3B

New issue announcement,

Kufe 2.7, 3 10,3, 30004, 3105

application for quotation of additional securities

and agreement

Mmformation or documenits not avaifuble nove nuest be goven 1o ANY ws voon as avaitahics Information and

dogimenis given 1o ASY become ASX's properie anst inay e made public.

troduced 11796 (higin Appemlic § Amended P08, 1990, 1772000, 3302008, 1 TG L2003, 24102008

Name of entity

Ironbark Gold Limned

ARN

w3 118 751 027

We (the entity) give ASN the following information.

Part 1 - All issues

Your mzst connpleie the relevant seciions faitel sheety if there 5x nos evongh spovces

[

"Class ol Fsecurities issued or l be
1ssue

Number of Fsecurilics ssucd or to
be issued (i known) or maxinmum
mtniber which may be fssied

Principal terms of the "sccurihes
(ep, i options, excreise price and
expiry  date;  if pardy  paid
"securities, the amoum outstanding

and due  dates  for payment if

Feonvertible SECUres, the
conversion  price  and dates  for
COUVErsing)

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.,
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AMPCIUEN O1D
New issue announpcement

L.

G

Do the “sceurities rank equally in all
respects from the date o atlotnent
with an existing “class of quoted
Ssecuriies?

0 the additienal securiies do not

runk cyually. please siaie;

¢ the date from which they do

o the cestems to wluch  they
participate for the neat dividend,
(in the cuse of a  wust,
distribution} or interest payviicnt

o tbe extent w which they do not
rank  equaily, other  than  in
relation to the nest dividend,
distribution ur niterest payment

Iesue price or considerntion

Pumpose of the issue

(I issued as consideration lor the
acquisition of assets, clearly identily
those assets)

Dates of wntering “sceurities i
uncertifvated holdings or despaieh
of certificates

Nenmber  and  felass of ol
secnrivics quoted  on ABX
tincfuding the sccunlics in clause
it applicable)

Number

*Class

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms,

Appendix 38 Page 2
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New i!\‘NllL' announeement

Number {lass

9 Number  and  “class  of  all
Tsecurtlics nol quoted on ASX
Unchiding the securities in clause
2 ilapplicable)

10 Dividend policy {in the cuse of a
trust, distribution policy) on the

mereased capital {interesis)

Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

. 11 Is  security  holder  approval
required?
i2 [5 the issne renouncenble or non-
renounceable?
13 Ratio in which the “secovities will
Ie oftered

14 *Class of “securitics o which (he
offer relates

13 Record  date w determine
crastlesnents

16 Will holdings on differem registers
cor subregisters) be aggregated for
calculaning entitlements?

I 17 Policy tor deciding entittements in

relation to fractions

18 Names ol countries in which the

entity hag “security holders who
will uot be  sent new  issue
documents

Notes Securny hoelders must be told how dierr
entitlements are 1o b dealt with

Crass wterepcs: e 77

19 Closing  dale Tor  receipr of
acceprances or renunciations

+ See chapter 19 for delined terms.
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SAPPURULY 0D
New issue anouncement

2l

(=]
[ ]

[
L

27

Namwes of any underwriters

Arnasunt of any underwriting fec or
CONINULSSLOT

Nainies o any brokers o ihe issue

Fee or vcommission pavable w0 the

Froker 1o the ssue

Amount of  any  lendling fee
payable 1o brokers who  odge
.’-]CCCP"H]CL‘,S or ]'Cl1llﬂlfj:l“l')l15 un
behalf of "security holders

Il the issue is  contingent on
*sccurity  holders”  approval,  the
date of the mecting

Date  entilement and  aceeptanee
form and prospectzz or Product
Diselosure Swatement wall be sent 1o
[rersens entiled

[ the entity has wssoed oprions, and
the terms entitle option holders to
participate on excrcise, the date on
which notices will bo sent to option
hoiders

Lyate righis tading will begw (il

applicabled

Date righis teading will end (i

applicable}

tlow do “sccurity hulders sell their

entilemems  in fudl through  a
broker?

How do *seourity hotders sell parr
of their emitlements through a
Broker and aceept for the balance?

vosee chupter 19 for datned tenins.

Appendin 2 Poge 4
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New issue unnouacement

iz How do "sceurily hokders dispose
of their entittements {except by sale
through a broker)?

33 *Despateh date

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You rvedd only complele thix section (fvou are applving for quoniiion of securivies

34 Type ol securities
{tick vne)

{a) D Securitics described in Pan i

(s N1 AL ether securilics
AN

Fxminple wstncted secusties at b emd o the wseroned perod, panthy paal s
ieentive share seeuntwes when restnchion ends, seenres msed an SAPIEY OF CONVEFAIGN 0 comvertdhie accuniics

Wt Ean beromy el paid, dmploy e

Entities that have ticked box 34(a)

Additional sccuritics forming o new class of securities

Tick to indiewe you are providing the informarion or
doctuments

38 l:] [ the "securitivs are "oty securities, the names ol the 200 Jpest holders of the
additional “securities. and the number and percentage of additional “securives held by
those holders

36 D I he fsecuritics are “equity seeurilies, a distribution schedule of the additiona
Tseeurities sesting out the number of holders in the calegories
| - 1,000
1.001 - 5,000
5.001 - 10,000
10,001 - 100,000
106001 and over

Lo
~1

D A copy of any trust deed for the additional *securities

+ See chaprer 19 for defned terms.
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New issue announcement

Entities that have ticked box 34(b)

38

19

0

41

Number ol sceurities {or which

Tquotation is sought

Class  of  "securities  for  which

quotaion is songht

[0 the 'seeures rank egually snall

respeets frons the date of allotnem

with an oxisting “class off quoted

“securitics?

I ihe additional securitics Jo not

rank cgually, please sile:

o the date from which they do

s the
participate Tor the next dividend,
{an

estent 1o which  they

the  wase ol a trusl,

disttibution) or mteress pavinent

than {n

o the extent to which they do naot
eaually,  other

rank
refation o the

nexc dividend,

disteibution or interest payimen

Reason for request for quotation
now

Fxample i the case o restneied securities, end of
restenction gorisd

{if issued  upon  convaersion  of
another secarity. clearly identily that
ether secunity)

Numbgr and "ulasg of all “scourities
qumted  on ASX the
securities 1 clause 38)

tinciuding

2,000,000

IFully paid ordinary shares

Yos

Release from escrow

Number “(Class

37.300.000 Folly

paid
shares

ordinary

b See chapter 19 for defised terms.
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New issue annouscement

Quotation agreement

! *Quotation of our additional *securinies 1s in ASX’s absolwte discretion. ASX may
guote the *securities on any conditions it decides.

2 We warrant the following to ASX.

. The issie of the “securities t be guoted complics with the Taw and is not Tor
an itlepal purpose.

) There ts no reason why thase “securities shoukd ot be pranted "quotation,

. An offer of the “secorivies for sale within 12 months afler sheir issue will
nol require disclosure under section 707(3) or seetion 101206y of the
Corporations Act.

Note An enuly iy need 10 AN ARPrOpRITe warianties from subsertbers ton the scourftics in order to be uble jo give
this warranty

. Section 724 or section [O16E of the Corporations Act does nol apply to any
applications reccived by us in relation lo any  sceurines o be guoted and
that no-one has any right 1o retarn any “seeurities 3o be guoted under
sections 737, 738 or 10168 of the Corporations Act al the time that we
reques! that the securilies be quoted.

* If we are a trust. we warrant thal no person has the night to returm the
'securities to be quoted under seetion 101913 of the Corporations Act at the
time that we reguest that the “securies e quoted.

3 We will indenmify ASX (o the fullest extent permitied by law in respect of any
claim, action or expense ariging [rom or connected with any breach of the wanunties
in this agreement.

4 We pive ASX the informatton and docomentz regquired by this form. [ any
information or document not available now, will give it io ASX before "quolation of
the securilies beging, We acknowledge that ASX ix relving onthe information and
documents. We warrant that they are (will be) true and comyplete,

Sign here: Jonathan Downes......... Date: 31 Moy 2007

(Dircetor)
Print nime: Slonathan Dewnes. o

= xee chaper 19 for defined tarms,
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Form 603 nEQTt R

Corporalians Act 2001 r'"‘rﬂ} on o H ' !--§
Seclion 6718 ' o )

Notice of initial substantial holder ' -/

lo. Company Namre/Scheme 1RONBARK GOLD LIMITED

AUNJARSN

1. Details of substantial hotder (1)
Mame MERRILL LYNCH & CO., INC.

ACNZARSN Gf appliczble)

The holdar hecame a substantial boldar gn 30/54/2007

. Petails of voting power

The toial nember of voles axached to all tha voting sharas o1 the comaany ¢ voting intergsts in the scheme kgt the sulstartial holaer or ar assatiale 2Y nad a
iglevant interest (31 o on the fate the subslantial Felder beceme i sunstantial holcer arz as loliaws:

Class of sezwrines (4) Numker of sacuritioy Parson's voias (&) \isting power (7)
ORDINARY 2,122,149 3,122.,13¢ £.37%

3. Dewils of relevant interests

The nature of the rufevant interest the subs.artizl holeer o 2a associate had in the follmwing voting securtties on the gate the substanta! ho g becaire 3 s shstanti
halcer are as foliews:

Ho'der of relevail inleesy Nature of selevar interest [/ Class end aumper of sec mities

SEE APPENDIYX 1

4. Details of present registered holders
The persons reglsteree as he'ders of the secunties ieferrad Lo in saragraph 3 above are as fol.ows:

Holder of relevant Registered holder of Person entitled ta be Class and numper
inerest sacurities registered s holdor (8] of sceurities

GEE APPERDI1IX 2

5. Consideration
The consideraton paid fu- cach relevant mnterest rererred (o in paragraph 3 sbove, and accwred in the faur mentks s0or (o the diy Whag the Sabstanba! Raita becang &
substantial holder is as fallows:

Holder of relevsnt Date ot aequisition b onsidure oo 1) € 155 aad n gy |
nterest of seeu Dgs '
ash fTor tash "

SEE APPENDIX 3




B3 page 2/2 15 July 2003

6. Associales )
The rensans the parscns named i paragraph 3 above are asseciates of the substantial bolder are as follows:

p_— ———

Neme a3d ACKZARSN (f applicatile) Nawre of assceiation

SEE APPENDIX 4 :

1. Addresses
The adiresses of persens nemee in s form are s fo'lows:

Name Address

SEE APPENDIX 5

Signa re

plint feme ROSS MCASEY cepacity ATTORNREY - IN-FACT
sign here ’P . dta S/ & /2007
%% N ‘Y\l g\ﬁﬂ\i
DIRECTIONS
(it IFthere are @ numbar of substantiai hotdars with smitar of related relevent interests {eq. 2 corporation 2nd ils related corporations, of the mansger and trustee of en

equty bustl. e nines coutd be iacluded b 43 anaensee 3o the lorm. I e relevant interests of a Qo of persans are essentially shnilar, they may ba referred to*

Lroughaut the fom 25 a spenifically nanied group if the ma meessip ot eath group, viththz neres and addresses of members (s cleary setout in paragraph 7 of the

form.

[2) See tha cefiniton of "asscziste’ In sertinn 8 of the Sorparations Act 2031,

3 See tha tefinition of "relevent imerest” in seeticns 538 end 6T1B(T) of e Corporalions Act 2031,

) The voting steres of o company coasticte ane tfass unless dvidad Into soparate tlasses,
[} The total rumber uf votes atiached i all the voting snares n the company ar vating inmrests 1 te schame (£ any that ine persch or an associae has srolevant
imerest in

[ The persan’s veies ivided by tha Woial voies I the bedy camorata o scheme mulipled b 130,

)] freluda detalis el:

{a) any refevan: agroement of other crtumsTances by which 1he relovant intecast vias Acquiren. [ subsectian 6713(4) applies. a copy of any cocument settingoum
tie Lemms af aoy iolevant agaement, aad a stalement by the persan giving ful 2nd aczurate dtails of &y coriract. staema or arangemen. st accompany

thls foim, tegethier wiih 2 writtian statement tertifying Lafs contract, scheme of arangement; and

[} ony queliticailon of the power uf 4 oS Lo eXerCise, COnTal ihe CXOITISe of, of influance the exercisa of, the voting powers ¢! disposal of the securtics te

which the relevart interest refaies iraicating clsany \ne particular seturitios 1 which the quaiification applies).

Ses the deflnitian of efevast agroament™ in section € of the Carporations Act 2001,
5] W thie susstancfal fiotder is enahle Lo delcinine th Mertty of the person {20, if the relevart intmest risas because of an option) wiite Unknown”.

{5 Deails of e coasideration mustinclude any ana all benefits, money ard ather, thet any person (rom whom a redavant interest was acquived has, of mzy, became

enlitied io ieg2lve in telaion 1o thot acquisition. Delails must be inchided aven if the bered! s ondivonal cn the happening or riot of a contingen:zy, Datails must be

initiuced of any beretit paid a2 hehalf of e suzstantlal holder or s asseciate In felation Lo the acquisitions, even if they are nol paid directiy 10 the person from vhem

(e yelaven; fnieres: was accicred




Form 603 - Merrill Lynch as Initial Substantial Holder of lronbark Gaold Ltd

Appendix 1 - [item 3]

Holder of relevant interest

Nuture of relevant interest

Merzill Lynch & Co.. Inc.

Beneticial Owner {decmed nteresi
from its nssociates)

Class i sumber of vecurities

Ordinury share 3,122,149

Merzill Lynch Equiiies (Australia)
limited

- ditlo -

Ordinary share 3,122,146

Appendix ta - [item 3)

Stock Rareawing and Lending

Numberof shures

Loun value

Nonc

N/A

IN/A

Appendix 2 - [item 4]

I'erson
o Registercd holder of entitled to be | Class and number of
Halder of relevant interest L . .
securities registered as setuaritics
holder
. D interest its ! .
l Merrill Lynich & Co., Inc. ccln.cd interest from its WA Owdinary share 3,122,149
associales ’
Merrill Lynch Equities Merrili Lynch Equitics A
A PO N H sshare 3,122,149
(Australiay Limited [Australia) Limited " Orddinary share 3,1
Appendix 3 - [item 5]
Halder of relevant interest Date of acquisition Consideration ¢ .I:I,\.\.n.nd bumher ot
seeurities
Moernll Lynch fquities .
N X : RF: rrdinany shere 0122038
(Anstealia) 4 imited Appendia 3a | Appenidix 3a Grdinany share o, 4

Appendix 4 - [item 6]

Name and ACN/ARSN (if applicuble)

Nature of association

Merrill Lyneh & Ca., Inc.

Liltimale holding company

Murnill Lvnch Equities (Australiay Limiwed

Subsidiary of Mernill Laneh & Co., Inc

Appendix § - |itemn 73

Name

Address

Merrill Lvneh & Co., Inc.

4 Waorld Fimuncial Cemer, Nonth Tower, 250 Vesey
Streat. New York, New York 10281

Mereill Lyvuch Equities (Ausizaliay Limited

Lavel 38, Gavernor Phillip Tonwver, | Furrer 17 ace
Svdney NSW 2000




Transaction History Appendix 1a

Period: 26 April 2007 to 30 May 2007

lronbark Gold lelted LTD (ISIN AUOODOOOIBG1)
GlRa etk W}‘{m' e, Eh

G
;-Jr-uar_:u._i.
Merrill Lynch Equitics (Australia) Limited
brought forward 0
26-Apr-07 Buy $126,586 33.65 34,681 24,681
27-Apr-Q7 Buy $487 012 3365 133,489 168,170
30-Apr-07 Buy $82.204 $3.55 23,155 191.326
01-May-07 Buy $53,250 $3.55 1£,000 206326
15-May-07 Sell -$28,768 $4.77 -6,031 200,295
1G-May-07 Sell -$1.416 $4.80 -295 200,000
25-May-07 Buy $117.833 $5.32 22,149 222,149

30-May-07 Buy $7.250,000 $2.50 2,800,000 3,122,149




wevel 1, 350 Hay Sheel,
Sudlaco, ¢208,
wostarn Australio,
Fostal; FO Box 933,
West Parth, WA, $8/72

I +AT H A48T AN
F 61 8462101872
v areb kgl comony

ASX ANNOUNCEMENT

18 June 2007

ISSUE OF DIRECTORS OPTIONS

The Directors of Ironbark Gold Limited are pleased to announce that they have
resolved to issue Mr Greg Campbell 100,000 options exercisable at $4.25 on or
before 18 June 2012 subject to approval by members at the Annual General
Meeting.

Mr Campbell has recently been appointed as Director of Engineering and will take
on the role of managing metallurgical and process and piant design in relation to
the Company’s mining feasibility studies. Accordingly the Company would like to
offer the options as an incentive for Mr Campbell to continue with the Company in
the future.

Yours faithfully

Jonathan Downes
Managing Director
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New issue announcement

Rule 2.7, 3. 10, _~?,.

Appendix 3B A
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New issue announcement, e e
application for quotation of additional securities
and agreement

bonhy [

Information or documents not availoble now must be given to ASX as soon as available.  Information and
documents given io ASX become ASX s propertv and may be made public.

Intedueed 177996, Origin: Appendix 5. Amended 1798, 14999, 1772000, 07472001, 117372002, 112003, 2471072005

Name of entity

Ironbark Goeld Limited

ABN
93 118 751 027

We (the entity) give ASX the following information.

Part 1 - All issues

You must complete the relevant seciions (aiach sheew if there Is not enough spuace).

1 "Class of *securilics issued or to be | Options
issued

2 Number of *securities issued or to | 600,000
be issued (if known) or maximum
number which may be issued

3 Principal terms of the *securities | Exercisable at a price of $4.25 on or before 18
(eg, i options, exercise price and | Jupe 2012
expiry date; if parly paid
*gecurities, the amount outstanding
and doe dates for payment; if

Teonverlible securities, the
conversion price and dates for
conversion)

+ Sea chaprer 19 for defined teems.

2471072003 Appendix 38 Page |
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New issue announcemient

6

Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing “class ol quoted
"securities?

If the additional securities do not

rank equally, please state:

¢ 1ihe date from which they do

e the cextent to which they
participate for the next dividend,
(in the case of a trusty
distribution} or interest payment

¢ {he extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than in
relation to the next dividend,
distribution or interest payment

Issue price or consideration

Purpose of the issue

(If issued as consideration for the
acquisition of assets, clearly identify
those assets)

Dates of entering “securities into
uncertificated holdings or despatch
of certificates

Number and “*class  of all
‘sgeurties quoted  on ASX
(ingluding the securities in clause
2 if applicable)

No - Upon exercise of the options into ordinary
fully paid shares, the allotted and issued shares
will rank equally in all respects with an existing
class of quoted securities. The oplion does not
entitle the holder to participate in the next

dividend or interest payment.

Nil

Options

On or about 18 June 2007

Number *Class

35,300,000
shares

Fully paid ordinary

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms,

Appendix 3B Page 2
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New issue announcement

Number *Class
9 Number and Felass  of all | 5,500,000 Fully paid ordinary
*gecurilies not quoted on ASX shares
(including Lhe securities in clause
2 if applicable) 2,000,000 Options exercisable at

$0.30 on or before 10
August 2011

16,000,000 Options exercisable at
$1.50 on or before |
February 2010

600,000 Options exercisable at
$4.25 on or before 18
June 2012

10 Dividend policy (in the case of a
trust, disiribution policy) on the
increased capital (interests)

Part 2 - Bonus issue or pro rata issue

11 Is  security holder  approval
required?

12 Is the issue renounceable or non-
renounceable?

13 Ratio in which the *securities will
be oftfered

14 *Class of *securives 1o which the
offer relates

15 *Record date to  determine
entitlements

16  Will holdings on different registers
(or subregisters) be aggregated for
calculating entitlements?

17 Policy for deciding entitlements in
relation to factions

+ See chapier 19 for defined terms.

17172103 Appendix 3B Page 3
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New issue announcement

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

K1Y

Names of countries in which the
entity has ‘security holders who
wil not be sent new issue
documents

Nuote: Seeurity holders must be 1old how their
entithenents are to be deakt with,

Cross reference: rule 7.7,

Closing date for receipt of

acceplances or renunciations

Naines of any underwriters

Amount of any underwriting fee or
commission

Names of any brokers to the issue

Fee or commission payable (o the
Lroker to the issue

Amount of any handling fee
payable o brokers who lodge
aceeptances or renuncialions  on
behalf of *security holders

Il the issue is conlingent on
"security  holders’ approval, the
date of the meeting

Date entitlement and acceplance
form and prospectus or Product
Disclosure Statement will be sent Lo
persons entitled

If the entity has issued options, and
the lerms entitle option holders to
pacticipate on exercise, the date on
which notices will be sent to oplion
holders

Date rights trading will begin (if

applicable)

Date rights trading will end (if

applicable)

How do *security holders sell their
entittements  in fidl through a

+ See chapter 19 for defined tenns.,

Appendix 3B Page 4

1172003



New issue announcement

broker? | |

31 How do *security holders sell part
of their entitlements through a
broker and accept for the balance?

32 How do *security holders dispose
of their entitlements {except by sale
through a broker)?

33 “*Despatch date

Part 3 - Quotation of securities

You need only complete this section if vou are apphiing for guotation of securities
) p PpvIng q )

34 Type of securities
(tick one)

{a) Securities described in Part 1

() D All other securitics

Exampie: restricied securities at the end of the escrowed perind, partly paid securities that beeome fully paid, enployee
incentive ahare securities when resiiction cods, sccunities sautd on expiry or conversion of copvertibls seeuniics

Entities that have ticked box 34(a)

Additional securities forming a new class of securities

Tick 1o indicate you are providing the information or
documents

35 If the ‘securities are ‘equity securities, the names of the 20 largest holders of the
additional *sccurities, and the number and percentage of addilional “securities held by
those holders

36 D If the *sccuritics are “equity securities, a distribution schedule of the additional
*securities setting out the number of holders in the categories
1- 1,000
1,001 - 5,060
5,801 - 10,000
10,601 - 100,000
100,001 and over

37 D A copy of any trust deed for the addilional *securities

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

171720013 Appendix 3B Page 5
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New issue announcement

Entities that have ticked box 34(b)

38

39

40

41

42

Number of securitiecs for which
*guotation is sought

Class of “securities for which
quotation is sought

Do the *securities rank equally in all
respects from the date of allotment
with an existing ‘class of quoted
*securilies?

[ the additional securities do not

rank equally, please stale:

o the date from which they do

¢ the extent 1o which they
participate for the next dividend,
{(in the case of a trusl,
distribution} or interest payment

s the extent to which they do not
rank equally, other than m
relation to the next dividend.
distribution or interest paynient

Reason for request for quotation
now

Example: In the case of restricied securities, end ol
restriction period

(if issued upon conversion of
another security, clearly identify that
other security)

Number and "class of all “securities
quoted on ASX (including the
securities i clause 38)

Number

*Class

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.

Appendix 3B Page 6
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New issue announcement

Quotation agreement

] *Quotation of our addilional *securities is in ASX’s absolute discretion. ASX may
guote the *securities on any conditions it decides.

2 We warrant the following 10 ASX.

. The issue of the *securities to be quoted complies with the law and is not for
an illegal purpose.

. There is no reason why those *securities should not be granted "quotation.

. An offer of the “securities for sale within 12 months afier their issue will
not require disclosure under section 707(3) or section 1012C(6) of the
Corporations Act.

Note: An entity may peeid to obtain appraprizie warraniics from subseribers for the secarities in order ro be ubie fo give
s warranty

. Section 724 or section 1016 of the Corporations Act does not apply to any
applications received by us in relation to any *securities o be quoted and
that no-one has any right Lo return any ‘securities to be quoted under
sections 737, 738 or 1016F of the Corporations Act at the time that we
request that the *securities be quoted.

. If we are a trust, we warrant that no person has the right to return the
*securities to be quoted under section 10198 of the Corporations Act at the
time that we request that the ‘securities be quoted.

3 We will indemnify ASX 1o the fullest extent permitted by law in respect of any
claim, acilon or expense arising from or connected with any breach of the warranties
in this agreement.

4 We give ASX the information and documents required by this form. I any
information or document not available now, will give it lo ASX before *quotation of
the +securities begins. We acknowledge that ASX is relying on the information and
documents. We warrant that they are (will be) true and complete,

Sign here: Jonathan Downes.......oooe Date: .18 June 2007...
(Director)
Print name: CJonathan Downes........oooovveecieeceeee e e

+ See chapter 19 for defined terms.
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AUSTRALIAN SECURITES EXCHANGE

IRONBARK GOLD LIMITED - SHARE SPLIT

Participating Organisations are advised that the share split of Ironbark Gold Limited (the "Company”) will be
effective on 3 July 2007.

The reorganisation of capital will by way of a share spiit whereby every fully paid ordinary share will be split
into five fully paid ordinary shares.

Fractions will be rounded up.
The timetable is as follows.

21 May 2007 Shareholders approved the share split

3 July 2007 Trading commences in the reorganised securities on a deferred
settiement basis.
ASX Code:
IBGDA - Fully paid ordinary shares

8 July 2007 Last day for the Company to register transfers on a pre-
reorganisatian basis,

10 July 2007 First day for the Compary to register securities on a post
reorganisation basis.

16 July 2007 Despatch of holding statements. Deferred Settlement trading
ends,
ASX Code:
IBG ~ Fully paid ordinary shares

17 July 2007 Trading on a T+3 basis commences

20 July 2007 Settlement of trades conducted on a T+ 3 basis

ASX Contact: Matthew Foy

Business Unit Issuers, Perth

Date: 28 June 2007

ibg2007.06.28WC-MP.doc

No responsibility is accepred for any inaccuracies in the marter published.
P Pa
2 1

END




